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PART I
THE FRANCHISOR AND ITS RELATED COMPANIES
To simplify the language in this Franchise Disclosure Document (“Disclosure Document”), “we”
or “us” means Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited, the “Franchisor.” “You” means the person(s)
who signs the Franchise Agreement, the Franchisee. If you are a corporation, partnership, limited
liability company or other entity, “you” also includes both the business entity and its owners.
Capitalized terms not defined in this Disclosure Document have the meaning set forth in the
Franchise Agreement attached as Exhibit D. All dollar amounts stated in this Disclosure
Document are US Dollars, unless stated otherwise.
We are a limited company formed on December 7, 2010, under the laws of England and Wales,
with registered number 7462067. For the purpose of this offering, we do business under the name
“Hilton.” Our principal business and registered office address is Maple Court, Central Park, Reeds
Crescent, Watford, Hertfordshire, UK WD24 4QQ, and our telephone number is +44 207 856
8000.
We became the franchisor of hotels which operate under the Hilton brand (“Hilton Brand” or
“Brand”) for all locations outside the United States of America, including the District of Columbia
and its territories and possessions (“US”) in January 2018, except in Canada, China, Russia and
a limited number of other territories.
Our parent company is Hilton Domestic Operating Company Inc., a Delaware corporation formed
on July 12, 2016 (“Hilton”). Hilton’s parent company is Hilton Worldwide Holdings Inc., a
Delaware corporation formed on March 18, 2010 (NYSE: HLT) (“Hilton Worldwide”). The
principal business address of both companies is 7930 Jones Branch Drive, Suite 1100, McLean,
Virginia 22102 USA.
Hilton became our parent company on January 4, 2017, as the successor to our previous parent
company, Park Hotels & Resorts, Inc. (“Park”). Together, Hilton and Park have conducted a guest
lodging business since 1946. Park was originally called Hilton Hotels Corporation ("HHC") from
May 29, 1946, to December 19, 2009. It changed its name to Hilton Worldwide, Inc. (“HWI”) on
December 20, 2009, and to Park Hotels & Resorts Inc. on June 1, 2016. On January 4, 2017,
Park became an independent company in a spin-off transaction. As a result of that spin-off, nearly
all company-owned hotels were divested with Park. For convenience, all references to “Hilton” in
this Disclosure Document include HHC, HWI, and Park during the relevant time frames for each,
unless otherwise noted.
We are also the franchisor outside of the US for all of the other brands affiliated with Hilton
Worldwide.
Our immediate predecessor, Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP, a limited partnership formed under
the laws of England and Wales with registered number LP015958 on March 12, 2014, was the
franchisor of hotels which operate under the Hilton Brand for all locations outside the US from
July 2014 through December 2017. Its predecessor, Hilton International Franchise LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company formed in September 2007, offered Hilton Brand franchises for
hotels outside the US from October 2007 through June 2014. Its predecessor, Hilton Inns, Inc., a
Delaware corporation incorporated in July 1962 (“Hilton Inns”), offered franchises for Hilton Brand
hotels in Canada, Mexico, Central America, South America, and the Caribbean between
September 1965 and October 2007.
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Our affiliate, Hilton Franchise Holding LLC, a Delaware limited liability company formed in
September 2007, has been the franchisor for the Hilton Brand in the US since March 30, 2015.
We have provided development and management services to selected hotels outside the US
since July 2014, and will continue to do so in addition to our duties as the franchisor for all Hilton
Worldwide Brands for all locations outside the US, except in Canada, Russia and a limited number
of other territories.
PART II
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A copy of our audited Strategic Report, Report of the Directors and Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2018 (the “Financial Statements”) is attached in Exhibit C. The
Financial Statements compare fiscal years 2017 and 2018. A copy of our previous audited
Strategic Report, Report of the Directors and Financial Statements for the year ended December
31, 2017 (the “Prior Financial Statements”) is also attached in Exhibit C. The Prior Financial
Statements compare fiscal years 2016 and 2017.
For fiscal year 2017, we restated our results due to changes in accounting standards as described
in the Notes to the Financial Statements. This restatement resulted in a decrease in our reported
total assets from $1,854,350,980 to $1,848,729,809. There was no change in our reported share
capital.
For fiscal year 2016, we reported both Turnover and Gross Profit over $400,000,000. We also
reported an operating loss of $472,207,707 due to one-time events that included a group
restructuring, an intercompany loan rationalization program, and a capital reduction (as
summarized on Page 2 and detailed within the Financial Statements). We do not believe these
one-time events have had any material effect on our ability to perform our obligations as the
franchisor.
PART III
LITIGATION
We and our controlling companies are not involved in any pending litigation specifically
questioning the franchising system or that might directly result in the inability to operate the
franchise.
PART IV
THE LICENSE
We franchise the non-exclusive right to use the Hilton System ("System") in connection with the
operation of a Brand hotel in Brazil. The System consists of the elements, including the knowhow,
we periodically designate to identify hotels operating worldwide under the Brand and currently
includes the Marks; access to a reservation service; advertising, publicity and other marketing
programs and materials; training programs and materials, standards, specifications and policies
for construction, furnishing, operation, appearance and service of the Hotel, and other elements
we refer to in the Franchise Agreement, in the Manual or in other communications to you, and
programs for our inspecting the Hotel and consulting with you. We may add elements to the
System or modify, alter or delete elements of the System. You must follow the high standards we
establish for the System and you may be required to make future investments.
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The Franchise Agreement you sign will provide for new development, change of ownership, relicensing, or conversion, depending on your situation. These situations are referred to in this
Disclosure Document as "New Development," "Change of Ownership," “Re-licensing,” and
"Conversion," respectively. Adaptive Reuse is also identified as a category on the Franchise
Application. It is a form of Conversion.
Separately, we also offer franchises for the eforea spa concept at a Brand hotel. An eforea spa
features an exclusive menu of treatments and innovative design elements, including unique zones
that a spa guest passes through on their treatment journey. The franchisee of the eforea spa must
be the franchisee under the Franchise Agreement for operation of the Hotel. If you elect to add
an eforea branded spa to your Hotel, you must sign the Eforea Spa Amendment to Franchise
Agreement (“Eforea Spa Amendment”). If you sign the Eforea Spa Amendment, the System will
include the eforea spa and all of its elements and you must comply with the eforea spa Manual.
If there is a conflict between the Manual and the eforea spa Manual, the eforea spa Manual will
control. If you are operating a spa under a trademark other than eforea, the System will not include
the eforea spa concept, but you still must comply with the System and our requirements related
to spas generally, as found in our Manual.
PART V
THE IDEAL FRANCHISEE
The ideal franchisee would have substantial management or ownership experience in the guest
lodging industry. The ideal franchisee must also understand branding and the brand management
model and why it is important to work with the systems and processes that we establish. No
particular educational background is necessary.
PART VI
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION
OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS
Whether you are an individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity,
you are at all times responsible for the management of your Hotel’s business. You may fulfill this
responsibility only by providing qualified and experienced management satisfactory to us, which
may be a third-party management company (the “Management Company”), which we have
approved in writing. However, you may not enter into any lease, management agreement or other
similar arrangement for the operation of your Hotel or any part of your Hotel with any person or
entity without first obtaining our written consent. To be approved by us as the operator of the
Hotel, we must consider you and any proposed Management Company to be qualified to manage
the Hotel. We may refuse to approve you or any proposed Management Company which, in our
reasonable business judgment, is inexperienced or unqualified in managerial skills or operating
capacity or capability, or is unable to adhere fully to the obligations and requirements of the
Franchise Agreement.
We reserve the right to not approve a Competitor (defined below), or any entity that is the
exclusive manager for a Competitor through itself or an affiliate, to manage your Hotel. If your
Management Company becomes a Competitor, or if in our sole judgment your Management
Company becomes unsuitable to manage your Hotel, you will have 90 days to retain a qualified
substitute Management Company that we approve.
A "Competitor" means any individual or entity that at any time during the license term, whether
directly or through an affiliate, owns in whole or in part or is the licensor or franchisor of a
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Competing Brand, irrespective of the number of hotels owned, licensed or franchised by the
Competitor under such brand name. A Competitor does not include an individual or entity that
(i) is a franchisee of a Competing Brand; (ii) manages a Competing Brand hotel, so long as the
individual or entity is not the exclusive manager of the Competing Brand; or (iii) owns a minority
interest in a Competing Brand, so long as neither that individual or entity nor any of its affiliates is
an officer, director, or employee of the Competing Brand, provides services (including as a
consultant) to the Competing Brand, or exercises, or has the right to exercise, control over the
business decisions of the Competing Brand. A “Competing Brand” means a hotel brand or trade
name that, in our sole business judgment, competes with the System or any Brand Hotel or
Network Hotel.
Any Management Company must have the authority to perform all of your obligations under the
Franchise Agreement, including all indemnity and insurance obligations. After we approve the
Management Company, we can require the general manager and other personnel, such as your
director of sales, to attend training programs that pertain to the operational functions of the Hotel
related to those roles that are necessary to meet our Brand Standards.
We do not require you or your Management Company to sign an agreement not to compete with
us after termination of the Franchise Agreement. However, you may not engage, directly or
indirectly, in any cross-marketing or cross-promotion of your Hotel with any other hotel, motel or
related business without our prior written consent, except for Network Hotels (as defined in the
Franchise Agreement). You must not copy or disclose any confidential or proprietary materials.
We may require a guaranty of the Franchise Agreement. Each required guarantor must sign a
Guaranty. A copy of the form Guaranty is attached as Exhibit E.
PART VII
INITIAL FEES AND ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
You must complete a Hotel Project Application (“Application”) for a Brand hotel, whether for New
Development, Conversion, Change of Ownership, or Re-licensing. The Application form may also
list Adaptive Reuse, which is a type of Conversion. When you submit the Application to us, you
must pay an initial fee (“Application Fee”). If you are applying for a franchise for a hotel that was
previously operated as a System Hotel, we may require, as a condition of approving your
Application, that you also pay outstanding royalties and other fees due under the prior franchise
agreement relating to the System Hotel. If you are applying for Change of Ownership, Relicensing or Conversion, we may require that you also pay a Product Improvement Plan (“PIP”)
Fee for us to determine the renovation or remodeling requirements needed to bring the Hotel to
Brand Standards. Other initial fees and costs are outlined in the following table, estimated based
on the room count shown below.
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ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
HILTON (300 ROOMS)
Amount

Method of
Payment

When Due

To Whom
Payment Is To
Be Made

$95,000

Lump Sum

With Hotel
Project
Application

Us

$0 to $7,500

Lump Sum

As Arranged

Us

Varies

As Agreed

As Arranged

Supplier

Varies

As Arranged

As Arranged

Supplier

Varies

As Agreed

As Agreed

Seller

$16,875,000 to
$84,375,000

As Agreed

When
Approved

Suppliers

$562,500 to $2,250,000

As Arranged

Before
Opening

Supplier

$9,000,000 to
$15,750,000

As Agreed

As Agreed

Suppliers

$1,687,500 to $3,375,000

As Required

As Required

Suppliers

$56,250 to $168,750

As Required

As Required

Supplier

$183,750 to $315,000

Lump Sum As
Required

$104,400 to $254,400

Lump Sum

$2,500 to $41,000

As Required

As Incurred

Supplier

$5,000 to $20,000

As Arranged

As Incurred

Us and
Suppliers

$2,500 to $15,000

Lump Sum

On Request

Us or Supplier

$0 to $10,000

Lump Sum

On Request

Us

Varies

As Required

As Required

Supplier

$75,000 to $231,750

As Agreed

As Agreed

Supplier

Type of Expenditure
Application Fee
Note 1
Product Improvement
Plan Fee
Note 2
Market Study
Note 3
Environmental
Assessment
Note 4
Real Property
Note 5
Construction/Leasehold
Improvements
Note 6
Designer and Engineering
Fees
Furniture, Fixtures and
Equipment
Note 7
Inventory and Operating
Equipment
Note 8
Signage
Note 9
Computer Software &
Hardware
Note 10
Guest Internet Access
Program
Note 10
Delphi Sales and Events
System
Note 10
Required Pre-Opening
Training
Note 11
Accessibility Consultant
Fee
Note 12
Construction/Renovation
Extension Fees
Note 13
Insurance
Note 14
Organizational Expense
Note 15
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Amount

Method of
Payment

When Due

To Whom
Payment Is To
Be Made

$122,500 to $797,500

As Required

As Required

Supplier

$1,125,000 to $3,375,000

As Incurred

As Agreed

Suppliers

$1,687,500 to $8,437,500

As Incurred

As Agreed

Suppliers

$800,000 to $1,000,000

As Incurred

As Agreed

Suppliers

$25,000

As Agreed

As Agreed

Us

$0 to $4,500,000

As Incurred

As Agreed

Suppliers

$20,000

As Incurred

Before
Opening

Us

Type of Expenditure
Permits and Licenses
Note 16
Miscellaneous PreOpening and Project
Management Expenses
Note 17
Contingencies
Note 18
Additional Funds
Note 19
Eforea Spa Initial Fee
Note 20
Additional Funds for Spa
Implementation
Note 21
Other Required PreOpening Services Fees
Note 22
TOTAL
See Note 23

$32,404,400 to $125,063,400
THESE FIGURES DO NOT INCLUDE REAL ESTATE COSTS, MARKET
STUDIES, INSURANCE, INTEREST, TAXES, TARIFFS OR IMPORT
DUTIES, OR SEPARATELY IDENTIFY THE COST OF IMPROVEMENTS
UNDER A CONVERSION, RE-LICENSING OR CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP.

NOTES
Note 1 – The Application Fee in the table is calculated as follows: $75,000 (for the first 250
rooms) + ($400 x 50, for the 50 additional guest rooms), for a total of $95,000. If you increase the
proposed number of guest rooms for the Hotel after your Application is approved and before the
opening of the Hotel, you must obtain our approval and pay us any additional Application Fee
amount owed as if you had included those additional rooms as part of your original Application. If
you withdraw your Application before we approve it, or we deny your Application, we will refund
the Application Fee without interest, less a $7,500 processing fee. Once we approve your
Application, the Application Fee is non-refundable, even if we subsequently terminate our
approval.
Note 2 – If you apply to convert an existing hotel to a Brand hotel or apply for a Change of
Ownership or other Re-licensing, we charge a nonrefundable Product Improvement Plan (“PIP”)
fee to determine the updating requirements for the Hotel. In rare situations which probably do not
apply to you, we may waive the PIP fee. We occasionally apply the PIP fee towards the payment
of your Application Fee.
Note 3 – For all new hotels, we recommend and may require a market study from a nationally
recognized independent firm which discusses the competition for your proposed hotel, together
with a minimum 5-year operating pro forma from you, based upon such market study, showing
your anticipated operating results. While we do not require prospective franchisees who are
converting existing hotels to obtain a market study, occasionally we may encourage a franchisee
to commission a market study to evaluate the economic consequences of conversion. Our
acceptance of the market study with a pro forma is not a financial performance representation on
our part or a ratification of the projections performed by the consultant.
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Note 4 – Before you purchase the land, you should, at a minimum, consider obtaining an
environmental assessment to determine the environmental condition of the land. Based on this
report, additional investigations and tests may be necessary before you make your purchase
decision. Many lenders will require an environmental assessment report before lending purchase
money.
Note 5 – These estimates do not include the cost of the real property due to wide variations in
costs among geographic areas and at different sites. The cost of land for a hotel varies depending
on location, size, market prices in the area, accessibility and special assessments, among other
factors. If you are converting an existing hotel that you already own or lease, you may have no
additional real property costs.
Note 6 – These estimates relate to a hotel with the elements we require (food and beverage,
recreational, and other facilities as applicable). These estimates do not take into account local
requirements such as earthquake requirements or impact fees. Your actual expenditures will
depend on many variables, such as the size and location of the real property, the quantity and
quality of the items being purchased, the terms on which the purchases are made, and fluctuations
in material and labor costs. You may also elect to lease certain items such as the real property.
In New Development, building construction costs vary greatly from region to region depending on
material and labor costs and other variables. In Conversions, the renovation costs will vary
depending on the age of the facility (including code compliance), performance-based
requirements (including fire & life safety systems and strategy); the use of the existing facility (an
existing hotel or an Adaptive Reuse), the condition of the facility (including the physical integrity
of the structure and envelope), and the state of all accoutrements (including the furniture, fixtures,
equipment, and finishes) in relationship to conformance with our Brand Standards. You are
encouraged to independently investigate, before executing the Franchise Agreement, the cost of
all such items as they will specifically affect your investment.
Note 7 – This is an estimate for the total cost of furnishing a Brand hotel in the size shown. The
cost of furniture, fixtures and equipment will depend on the number and type of guest rooms (for
example, double rooms versus king rooms), the extent of the food and beverage service offered,
restaurants, lounges and supporting facilities. Estimates for new hotels include the cost of
furniture, fixtures and equipment for guest rooms, corridors, restaurants, lounges, health clubs,
all public areas, telephone systems, kitchen equipment and laundry equipment. If you are
converting an existing hotel, your costs will most likely be lower, but you must conform guest
rooms, public areas, the exterior, and all other areas to our Brand Standards.
Note 8 – Inventory includes food and beverages and other immediately consumable items such
as fuel, soap, cleansing material, matches, stationery and similar items. Operating equipment
includes such items as chinaware, glassware, linens, silverware and uniforms.
Note 9 – Signs include freestanding signs and primary identification for the building. The amount
includes installation, freight, foundation and wiring. You must install, display, and maintain
signage displaying or containing the Brand name and other distinguishing characteristics in
accordance with plans, specifications and standards we establish for System Hotels. You must
purchase exterior signage from a vendor currently licensed by us. You may contact us for a
current list.
Note 10 – You must acquire and install hardware and software for the required computer systems,
including the HSPMS system, Guest Internet Access system, Connected Room system, Guest
Facing Workstations/Business Center, and the Delphi Sales and Events System. You must also
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pay any related taxes, tariffs, and duties for the importation of the computer equipment into Brazil.
The operating costs during the initial period are included in the Additional Funds line above. See
Part VIII for additional details.
HSPMS Hardware and Software. You must use authorized hardware and software for the HSPMS
system. This system utilizes some components from third party providers and some components
from our affiliate, HSS, which integrate together. You may purchase the hardware from our
preferred providers, or you may purchase or lease it through other (non-preferred) third-party
vendors. If you acquire the hardware from another (non-preferred) third-party vendor, you must
also pay HSS for its reasonable expenses in determining that it conforms to our specifications.
You must also pay for all necessary communications vehicles for HSPMS (wide area connections,
electronic mail, and internet connections), along with the installation and configuration costs, and
travel and other expenses of the employees and vendors who perform the installation and
configuration services. The HSPMS software package utilizes software components from thirdparty vendors and software components from HSS. The software components that you license
from HSS are proprietary to HSS. Because of this, HSS is the only supplier of these components.
We may periodically change any elements or components within the HSPMS system. We are not
able to determine and disclose a separate market price for HSPMS because there is no thirdparty market for HSPMS in its entirety. These computer system fees are not refundable.
About 90 to 120 days before your Hotel opens, you must sign the agreement for HSPMS and/or
other related agreements we require, which will govern your access to and use of the HSPMS
system. The current HITS Agreement is attached as Exhibit G. You must also purchase certain
software licenses such as Windows Server operating systems and related client access licenses,
database applications, and virus detection and removal tools. Where applicable, these licenses
must be purchased through existing enterprise agreements HSS has in place with vendors such
as Microsoft. HSS will invoice the Hotel for such purchases. You may purchase other software
not covered by enterprise agreements from other third-party suppliers. Costs of these licenses
may vary based on the number of users or computers at your Hotel and other factors.
You must have one or more Systems Implementation Consultants (“SICs”) on site for your Hotel’s
opening. HSS determines the number of SICs and the number of days they will be on site based
on size and type of hotel. Any delays in opening will cost $700 per SIC per day for each additional
day, plus the SICs’ travel expenses. If the delay results in the departure and re-scheduling of the
SICs’ on-site service period, a $2,000 re-scheduling fee would be charged plus the
SICs’ additional travel expenses. These fees are not refundable.
You must update and upgrade (“refresh”) the HSPMS system at least every 3 years. We may also
require you to refresh the HSPMS system in connection with a Change of Ownership or
Relicensing, when a new franchise agreement is signed. We anticipate that cost of this to be the
same or less than the cost of the original installations (but not including any elements that were
needed for the original installation only).
For the operation of any other business computer systems outside of HSPMS, including but not
limited to financial or accounting systems, point of sale, telephone systems, inventory, spa and
health club memberships, you are able to contract with the supplier of your choice for both the
hardware and software, subject to meeting our Standards on features and functionality. The only
restriction would be where such hardware and software need to interface to HSPMS. In those
instances, your choice of supplier would be restricted to those that have a working interface to
HSPMS. The hardware, software, and interfaces must be installed by, and fees must be paid to,
the respective vendors you choose.
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Guest Internet Access Hardware and Software. Currently, our approved Guest Internet Access
program is called “StayConnected.” You must install certain hardware and software, an internet
access circuit, and subscribe to an internet access service to meet this requirement. The
hardware and software for Guest Internet Access will be provided by, installed by, and maintained
by our preferred providers. You may purchase the necessary hardware from a preferred provider,
or we may permit you to purchase or lease it through other (non-preferred) third-party vendors. In
addition to the hardware and software costs, you must pay for all necessary communication
vehicles (phone lines, network connections), installation and configuration costs, and travel and
other expenses of the vendors who perform the installation and configuration services. The
estimate shown here includes Guest Internet Access hardware, software, installation, and certain
other costs and fees, excluding taxes or structured cable and cabling installation. If we permit you
to acquire the hardware from another (non-preferred) third-party provider, you must also pay HSS
for its reasonable expenses in determining that the hardware conforms to the required
specifications.
You must refresh the Guest Internet Access system at least every 4 years. We may also require
the Guest Internet Access system to be refreshed in connection with a Change of Ownership or
Re-licensing, when a new franchise agreement is signed. We anticipate that cost of this to be the
same or less than the cost of the original installation (but not including any elements that were
needed for the original installation only).
Connected Room. You must install our “Connected Room” system, which enables streaming
media and permits guests to use their smart phones and other personal mobile devices to control
their guest room television and other conveniences such as lighting and temperature using the
Hilton Honors App. This system requires a control module that is connected to each in-room
television along with certain electrical fixtures such as light switches and thermostats, which you
must purchase from us or our approved vendors. The cost of each control module is currently
$150, and the cost of the electrical fixtures is competitive with equivalent standard fixtures. These
costs are paid before opening. You must also have a maintenance and support contract from us
or an approved vendor, which currently costs $1 to $2 per control module per month. The
Connected Room system is not part of the HSPMS system but the total estimated cost per hotel
is included within the total estimated cost ranges for the HSPMS Hardware, Software, and
Maintenance costs shown above (and in Part VIII (Periodic and Other Fees)). These costs are
normally not refundable.
Guest Facing Workstations/Business Center. Your Hotel must have computer workstations and
printers available for guest use, free-of-charge, in either a traditional business center or in an open
zone in the lobby, in accordance with our Standards. The number of required workstations varies
by the size of the Hotel. You must obtain specified hardware, software and ongoing support from
our approved suppliers. We are not obligated to provide any maintenance or updates for this
center. You must maintain and update the center at your cost to remain in compliance with the
Standards. There are no limits on the frequency or cost of this obligation. We will not have
independent access to any information that will be generated by or communicated through this
center.
Delphi Sales and Events System. You must also use Delphi.fdc, a cloud-based sales and events
system, powered by Amadeus Hospitality, a third-party vendor. The set-up costs of this system
are shown here. Additional set-up costs may apply, depending on implementation approach you
choose and the specific needs of your Hotel. You must also pay ongoing costs on a per-user
basis as shown Part VIII (Periodic and Other Fees). The number of users varies by hotel and

{018316-999987 00275531.DOCX; 1}

9

2019 Brazil Hilton

there is no established average. Therefore, we cannot estimate these ongoing costs during the
initial period.
Digital Floor Plan. You must pay for the preparation of a digital floor plan for your Hotel. HSS will
have the digital floor plan prepared by a local vendor. The floor plan will be used by us and our
affiliates, including Hilton Honors Worldwide, to allow Hilton Honors guests to choose their room
from a map of the Hotel and enable digital check-in. The current fee is $2,000 and is paid to HSS
before the opening of your Hotel. This fee is not refundable.
Eforea Spa. If you open an eforea spa at your Hotel, you must obtain and use industry appropriate
spa booking software to schedule customer appointments, record customer information and
transaction data, take payments for services, create reports regarding your spa’s operations and
create and customize social media and email marketing campaigns. You will also need to
purchase certain other equipment including a bar code scanner, magstrips reader and receipt
printer. Neither we, nor any affiliate or any third-party has any obligation to provide ongoing
maintenance, repairs, upgrades or updates related to any such computer system. We can
periodically require you to upgrade or update any of your spa computer systems while you are
operating an eforea spa. There are no contractual limitations on the cost of this obligation.
Note 11 – We will provide the required training programs as described in Part XII of this Disclosure
Document. You are responsible for the costs of training materials, and travel and living expenses
while training. We may charge additional training costs based on the number of personnel that
require training. We anticipate that overall training costs will be reduced over time. We are
beginning to utilize a new online virtual learning program, which we estimate could lower certain
training expenses by up to 20% to 40%, as well as reduce your employees’ time away from the
business.
Note 12 – If you want to engage in a Permitted Transfer, Conversion, Re-licensing or Change of
Ownership Transfer for your Hotel, you may be required to complete an independent survey
conducted by a consultant to determine your Hotel’s compliance with accessibility requirements
for disabled persons.
Note 13 – Your Franchise Agreement contains a deadline by which construction or renovation
work must begin. After the expiration of any automatic extensions without a fee, you may request
a further extension of this deadline and must pay the applicable fee if we approve your request.
Note 14 – You must maintain the minimum levels and types of insurance specified in the Manual
at your expense. This insurance must be with insurers having minimum ratings we specify; name
as additional insureds the parties we specify in the Manual; and carry the endorsements and
notice requirements we specify in the Manual. Insurance premiums vary widely by reason of
location, size of Hotel and type of coverage purchased and cannot be estimated.
Note 15 – Actual cost depends on work done by an accountant and attorney, and standard
regional rates.
Note 16 – The licenses and permits you must obtain to operate your Hotel vary depending on the
requirements of the municipality and other political subdivisions in which the Hotel is located. You
must reimburse us for the costs we incur in obtaining registration of the Franchise Agreement with
the Brazilian National Institute of Industrial Property and the Brazilian Central Bank, or any other
similar governmental or other filings related to the Franchise Agreement. These costs may include
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translation costs of the Franchise Agreement and filing materials. See Part VIII and Section 16.22
of the Franchise Agreement.
Note 17 – You may incur pre-opening expenses for additional personnel training; sales;
administrative and general expenses; project management; technical services; advertising;
security deposits, utility deposits, and opening festivities. Because there are so many variables
for an existing hotel, we cannot estimate these pre-conversion expenses for a franchisee
converting an existing hotel.
Note 18 – "Contingencies" means unanticipated construction cost overruns and other
unanticipated expenses. Because there are so many variables for an existing hotel, we cannot
estimate these pre-conversion contingencies for a franchisee converting an existing hotel. You
should assume it will be at least 10% of construction costs.
Note 19 – This estimates your initial operating expenses for 3 months after opening, including
payroll costs. These figures are estimates only and you may have additional expenses starting
the business. Your costs will depend on such factors as your management decisions, local
economic conditions, competition, and how quickly occupancy rates increase after opening.
Note 20 – The initial fee is paid only if you are installing an eforea spa in your Hotel.
Note 21 – The low estimate assumes you are not opening a spa. The high estimate includes the
cost to build out and equip the spa to current spa standards, whether you are installing an eforea
spa or another spa concept. Costs may be greater for a Conversion hotel or to convert space in
an existing Brand hotel into an eforea spa or another branded spa that meets our specifications.
Note 22 – You must pay an Opening Process Services Fee before opening. This fee is to help
recoup our costs in providing numerous pre-opening visits to your Hotel that focus on Brand
Performance Support, commercial activation consultations and other services to enable you to
open your Hotel, as well as opening day approval and confirmation visits, and post-opening
commercial activation meetings. This fee is not refundable.
Note 23 - In compiling theses estimates, we relied on Hilton’s 60+ years of experience in operating
or franchising hotels. With respect to an eforea spa, we relied on Hilton’s experience over the last
6 years in operating eforea spas in the US. All amounts are stated in US Dollars and are current
as of the date of this Disclosure Document, but may have changed since that time. We cannot
reasonably estimate the likelihood or magnitude of any such changes. We also have experience
gained from franchising Brand hotels internationally, but we lack relevant and reliable information
to provide estimates of the initial investment to develop a Brand hotel in all countries. In particular,
we do not have any specific initial investment information about establishing a franchised Hilton
hotel in Brazil. You should review these figures carefully with a business advisor before making
any decision to purchase the franchise. We encourage you to independently investigate the costs
as they will specifically affect your investment. DO NOT RELY ON THESE NUMBERS WHEN
MAKING A DECISION ABOUT INVESTING IN A FRANCHISE WITHOUT FIRST
INVESTIGATING COMPARABLE COSTS BASED ON YOUR EXPERIENCE WITH THE LOCAL
BRAZIL MARKET. The expenses shown in these charts are estimated for typical New
Development and Conversion hotels of the type and size shown. In a Conversion, your costs will
depend on the type and condition of your existing Hotel, its age, physical structure and quality of
furnishing. Because there are so many variables involving any particular existing hotel, we are
unable to provide an estimate of costs.
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PART VIII
PERIODIC AND OTHER FEES*
Type of Fee (1)
General
Monthly Royalty Fee

Amount
5% of Gross Rooms
Revenue.

Monthly Eforea Spa
Royalty Fee

2% of Gross Spa
Revenue.

Monthly Food and
Beverage Fee

3% of Gross Food
and Beverage
Revenue.

Monthly Program Fee

4% of Gross Rooms
Revenue.

Room Addition Fee

Currently, $400 per
guest room or suite
multiplied by the
number of additional
guest rooms.

Computer Systems
HSPMS Additional
Rooms Fee

HSPMS Connectivity
Fees
HSPMS Interface
Fees
HSPMS Hardware
Maintenance Support
Fees

Currently, $45 per
additional guest
room/suite.

Due Date

Remarks

Payable monthly
by the 15th day of
the following
month.
Payable monthly
by the 15th day of
the following
month.

Payment must be accompanied by
our standard schedule showing the
computation of the fee for the month
in question. See Note 2.
Payable only if the Eforea Spa
Amendment is in effect. Payment
must be accompanied by our
standard schedule showing the
computation of the fee for the month
in question. See Note 2.
Payable monthly Payment must be accompanied by
by the 15th day of our standard schedule showing the
the following
computation of the fee for the month
month.
in question. See Note 2.
Payable monthly Payment must be accompanied by
by the 15th day of our standard schedule showing the
the following
computation of the fee for the month
month.
in question. We may change the
Monthly Program Fee. See Notes 2
and 3.
Due with
Payable if you add or construct
Application for
additional guest rooms after you
approval.
open the Hotel under the Brand. The
fee is non-refundable once we
approve your Application.

If you add or construct additional
guest rooms at the Hotel at any time
after you sign the Franchise
Agreement, you must pay Hilton or
HSS the then current per guest
room/suite software license fee
charged to System Hotels multiplied
by the number of additional guest
rooms.
Currently, between
Billed monthly.
Fee is determined by the number of
$1,000 and $4,000
workstations and other HSPMS
per month.
equipment at your Hotel.
Currently, $2,250 per As agreed.
Payable if you add an additional
additional interface.
HSPMS interface after Hotel
opening.
Currently, 15% to
Billed monthly by This cost is determined by the
25% of the actual
the 15th day of
number of workstations and other
hardware cost per
the following
HSPMS equipment at your Hotel.
year.
month.
This range also includes the
maintenance and support cost for
the Connected Room system.
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Type of Fee (1)
HSPMS Software
Maintenance Support
Fees
HSPMS Email Fees

Amount
$1,200 to $9,500

Due Date
Not applicable.

Remarks
This cost is determined by the
number of rooms and HSPMS
interfaces at your Hotel.
You must have at least 3 email
accounts.

Currently, $7.92 per
Billed quarterly.
user per month for all
users and $12.50 per
month for delivery to
authorized mobile
devices.
Delphi Sales and
Currently, $798 per
Payable annually These license and maintenance fees
Events System
user per year.
with invoice.
are paid to HSS, which are passedthrough to the vendor less a mark-up
to recover certain costs. See Note 4.
Guest Internet Access Currently, $1,750 to
Billed monthly.
You must install a Guest Internet
Circuit
$5,750 per month.
Access Circuit that meets our
specifications and pay for the
ongoing cost of using the circuit from
a preferred provider. You must
arrange for procurement of the
monthly service for the required dialin line locally. The cost will depend
on the circuit size, type and physical
location of your Hotel. See Note 5.
Guest Internet Access Currently, $750 to
Billed monthly.
You must purchase this service from
Service
$3,000 per month.
a preferred provider. The cost will
depend on your Hotel’s size and
number of meeting rooms. This
estimate includes the connection and
monthly service for the required
dial-in line, 24x7 call center support
and equipment break-fix
maintenance. See Note 5.
Guest Assistance and Quality Assurance Programs
Guest Assistance
Currently, $300 per
Within 48 hours
Payable to resolve guest complaints.
Program: Customer
handled transaction
of receipt of
Our Guest Assistance Agent may
Satisfaction Guarantee for Hilton Honors
invoice.
offer the guest a cash refund (up to
Diamond members,
the full cost of the customer’s stay),
$250 per handled
complimentary return stay, Hilton gift
transaction for Hilton
cards or Hilton Honors point rebate
Honors Gold
to resolve the complaint to the
members and $200
customer’s satisfaction. You are
per handled
billed the cost of the rebate plus the
transaction for all
handling fee. We may change the
other guests.
maximum guest rebate amount or
increase the handling fee.
Guest Assistance
Hotels must honor a When the stay is The discount applies if a guest finds
Program: Price Match 25% discount off the consumed.
a lower qualifying rate for a qualified
Guarantee
lower rate on all
booking at your Hotel. After the
approved claims.
Guest Assistance Department
confirms the lower rate is available
for booking through a third-party
channel, the claim is approved and
the rate is adjusted. The fee is
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Type of Fee (1)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

subject to change. In addition, we
may modify the amount provided and
the method of payment to the guest.
Guest Assistance
Currently, $15
Within 10 days of Payable if more than 5 files are
Program: First
administrative fee.
billing.
created in a month by Guest
Contact Resolution
Assistance to resolve guest
complaints about products, services
or cleanliness. You pay the cost of
any compensation we provide to a
guest to resolve the complaint, even
if the fee does not apply.
Guest Assistance
$25 per complaint
As invoiced.
If a hotel does not respond to a
Program: Online
administrative fee.
guest complaint or negative
Complaints
comment on certain designated
websites or social media platforms
within 24 hours, Guest Assistance
will respond to the guest and this fee
will be due. This program and fee
are subject to change.
Quality Assurance Re- Currently, $480 to
Within 10 days of Payable each time we conduct an
evaluation Fee
$2,750 per
billing.
on-site quality assurance evaluation
re-evaluation visit.
after your Hotel has failed the
previous quality assurance
evaluation. The cost will be
determined at $15 per available
room and capped at $2,750. You
must also provide complimentary
lodgings for the quality assurance
auditor during the evaluation.
Quality Assurance
Currently, $2,750 per Within 10 days of Payable each time we conduct a
Special Re-evaluation re-evaluation visit.
billing.
special on-site quality assurance
Fee
evaluation (“Special”). We may
conduct a Special: (a) to verify a
default has been cured; (b) to verify
that a PIP has been completed; (c)
any time after your Hotel has failed
two quality assurance evaluations in
any calendar year; (d) if your Hotel
fails its opening inspection; or (e) if
your Hotel fails its previous Special.
You must also provide
complimentary lodgings for the
quality assurance auditor during the
evaluation.
Conferences and Training
Brand Conference
Currently, $2,500 per Before
Your general manager and director
attendee.
attendance.
of sales must attend the Brand
conference, usually held annually.
Dates, location and duration of the
conference vary from year to year.
You must also pay the wages, travel,
living and miscellaneous expenses
of your attendees.
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Type of Fee (1)

Amount

Due Date

General Manager
Training

Currently, $1,550 per Before Hotel
attendee.
opening.

Commercial Leader
Training

Currently, $1,550 per Before
attendee.
attendance.

Training Program and
Training Materials

Varies from $0 to
$5,000 per attendee.

Before
attendance or
materials are
shipped.

Frequent Customer, Affiliation and Distribution Programs
AAA/CAA Discounts & Currently, 10%
If invoiced, within
Rewards Program:
commission.
15 days. If
Member Direct
through
Automated
Clearing House
(“ACH”), by the
12th business day
of each month.
Hilton Advance
Currently, 1.35% of
If invoiced, within
Program
eligible Digital Direct 15 days of billing.
Revenue, not to
If through ACH,
exceed $30 per stay. on the 12th
business day of
the month.

FastPay
(Centralized Group
Meeting Payment
Program)

Remarks
Your general manager must attend
this virtual learning program,
currently called our General
Manager Activation, within 180 days
of hire.
Your director of sales or other
commercial leaders must attend this
virtual learning program, currently
called our Commercial Leader
Activation, within 180 days of hire.
In some cases, you must pay wages,
travel, living and miscellaneous
expenses of your attendees, or the
expense of our trainers. Some
training programs are mandatory and
other training programs are optional.
See Part XII.
Payable for each consumed stay
booked through the dedicated
AAA/CAA “member-direct” line at
Hilton Reservations & Customer
Care.

We anticipate that this program will
be implemented in the future. It is
intended to help drive bookings
through Hilton's online direct booking
channels using lower-funnel
marketing activities, search engine
optimization, social media platforms,
and other methods. Digital Direct
Revenue is all Gross Rooms
Revenue from bookings made
through our online direct booking
channels such as Hilton websites
and mobile apps. See Note 1.
Currently, $0.18 per
If invoiced, within This required program centralizes
transaction and a
15 days. If ACH, and automates third-party group and
support fee of $0.42 on the 12th
meeting planner commissions into
per transaction, plus business day of
one payment for all participating
each month.
the applicable
hotels. It may also perform
commission. If we
reconciliation services for these
increase these fees
payments. We may determine the
this year, the
items that are commissionable, the
combined total will
third parties eligible to be paid, and
not exceed $1.40 per
the commission percentage(s) paid
transaction, plus
through this program, all of which are
commission.
subject to change based on market
conditions and other factors.
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Type of Fee (1)
Group Preferred
Partnership Program

Frequent
Traveler/Guest
Reward Program

Hilton Honors Event
Planner Bonus
Program

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Currently, $1.25 per
transaction, plus the
applicable
commission. If we
increase this fee this
year, it will not
exceed $2.50 per
transaction, plus
commission.
Currently, 4.3% of
total eligible guest
folio. This fee is
waived for stays in
which the guest is
enrolled on-property
in Hilton Honors.
Currently, $0.005 per
Hilton Honors bonus
point awarded.

If invoiced, within
15 days of billing.
If through ACH,
on the 12th
business day of
each month.

This optional program provides
additional access to select top group
intermediary customers, including
participation in marketing and
promotions designed to drive
incremental business.

10 days after
billing.

You must participate in any brand
specific or System-wide guest
frequency or reward program.
Currently, you must participate in
Hilton Honors. These programs are
subject to change. See Note 6.

Global Affiliate
Program

Currently, up to 10%
commission on total
room rate for
consumed stays.

Hilton Plus Program

Currently $0.18
transaction fee
applies to all
bookings through
Hilton Plus. This fee
applies to no-show,
canceled,
commissionable and
non-commissionable
reservations. Hotel is
billed 10%
commission on the
consumed hotel
revenue.
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As incurred.

This is an optional commercial
incentive program. It enables hotels
to award Hilton Honors bonus points
to an event planner for a group
booking (or as otherwise specified in
the group booking contract) in
addition to points earned by
individual guests in the group. Hotels
must opt-in during an annual
enrollment period to participate. New
hotels may enroll on opening. We
may make this program required in
the future. Fees and program terms
are subject to change.
Within 10 days
Payable through us to participating
after billing.
third parties that refer customers to
Hilton Worldwide websites if the
customer books a reservation on the
Hilton Worldwide website and
completes the booked stay at your
Hotel.
If invoiced, within The mandatory Hilton Plus Program
15 days of billing. gives the Hotel the ability to sell
If through ACH,
vacation packages, combining
on the 12th
rooms, air, car, and other travel
business day of
components. Only the Hotel room
each month.
revenue component associated with
a Hilton Plus package consumed
sale is commissionable to the
Packaging Technology Provider.
Hotel receives 25% credit on the
positive gross margin generated
from the non-hotel components of
the Hilton Plus Package.
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Type of Fee (1)

Amount

Due Date

Third-Party
Reservation Charges

Currently, up to $5.45 If invoiced, within
per stay.
15 days of billing.
If ACH, on the
20th day of each
month.

Travel Planner
Centralized
Commission Payment
Program (“TPCP”)

Currently, up to 10%
commission and
$0.18 per transaction
processing charge.

If invoiced, within
15 days of billing.
If through ACH,
on the 12th
business day of
each month.

Weekday stay
(Monday -Thursday)
= $0.71; Weekend
stay (with 1
Fri/Sat/Sun) = $1.42;
Weekend stay (with 2
Fri/Sat/Sun) = $2.13.
Double Dollars,
amounts increase to
$1.42, $2.63 and
$3.84, respectively.
Transfers, Re-licensing and Financing
Franchise Application Currently, $100,000.
Fee - Change of
Ownership
Permitted Transfer
Currently, $5,000.
Processing Fee

If invoiced, within
15 days of billing.
If ACH, on the
12th business day
of each month.

Franchise Application
Fee - Re-licensing

Currently, $75,000.

Lender Comfort Letter
Processing Fee

Currently $3,000.

Public Offering
Processing Fee

Currently, $5,000.

Before we sign
the new
franchise
agreement.
Before we issue
a Lender Comfort
Letter.
When you submit
request for our
approval.

Unlimited Rewards
Travel Counselor
Incentive and Loyalty
Program
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Project
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When you submit
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Remarks
Currently includes the costs and fees
incurred in connection with ThirdParty Reservation Systems, such as
GDS, airline reservation services,
internet and other service
reservation providers for using their
distribution system for reservations.
Certain Third-Party Reservation
services may not be subject to this
fee.
Participation is mandatory. TPCP
consolidates all commissionable
consumed travel planner bookings
and remits one payment per agency.
Commission is payable on the total
room rate and other commissionable
charges, and transaction charge is
payable on commissionable and
non-commissionable reservations,
no-shows and cancellations.
Mandatory participation for all hotels
participating in the TPCP program.
These funds are remitted to Avis
Budget (a portion is paid to the travel
planner; Avis Budget retains the
remaining amount as a processing
charge).

Payable for any proposed transfer
that does not qualify as a Permitted
Transfer.
Payable for any proposed transfer
that qualifies as a Permitted Transfer
and requires our consent. We will
waive this fee for 1 Permitted
Transfer before the Opening Date.
Payable if we enter into a new
franchise agreement with you at the
end of the Term.
We will only issue a Lender Comfort
Letter if you request it.
You must pay any additional costs
we may incur in reviewing your
documents, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees.

2019 Brazil Hilton

Type of Fee (1)
Management
Management Fees

Amount
Fees will be
established by
mutual agreement.

Due Date

Remarks

As incurred.

Payable if you enter into a
management contract with our
affiliate. You may hire an outside
management company with our
approval

Remedies and Damages
Actual Damages under Actual amount.
Special Circumstances

On demand.

Audit

On demand.

Payable in lieu of Liquidated
Damages if (i) within 12 months of
each other, 2 or more franchise
agreements for the Brand between
yourself or any of your affiliates and
us or any of our affiliates terminate
before their expiration date either
because you or any of your affiliates
unilaterally terminate the franchise
agreements or because we or any of
our affiliates terminate the franchise
agreements as a result of your or
your affiliate’s breach or default or
(ii) your agreement for the Hotel
terminates automatically or is
terminated by us or any of our
affiliates after an unapproved
Transfer either to a Competitor or to
a buyer that converts the Hotel to a
Competitor hotel within 2 years from
the date your agreement terminates.
Payable if audit reveals that you
understated or underpaid any
payment due to us which is not fully
offset by overpayments. If audit
reveals that underpayment is willful
or for 5% or more of the total amount
owed for the period being inspected,
you must also reimburse us for all
inspection and audit costs. If audit
discloses an overpayment, we will
credit this overpayment against your
future payments, without interest, or
if no future payments are due under
the Franchise Agreement we will
promptly pay you the amount of the
overpayment without interest.

Actual amount of
deficiency plus
interest.
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Type of Fee (1)
Indemnification

Insurance

Amount
Reimbursement for
all expenses,
including attorney’s
fees and court costs
and any payments by
us or our affiliates to
remedy your defaults,
or due to any claim,
demand, tax, penalty,
investigation or
proceeding arising
from any claimed
occurrence at your
hotel.
Actual amount.

Due Date
Case by case
basis as
incurred.

Remarks
You must also defend us, our direct
and indirect owners, and each of
such affiliates’ current and/or future
subsidiaries, and affiliates and any
officers, directors, employees,
agents, successors and assigns.
However, we retain the right, through
counsel of our choice, to control any
matter to the extent the matter
directly or indirectly affects us, our
subsidiaries, affiliates, officers,
directors, employees, agents,
successors or assigns

If you do not obtain or maintain the
required insurance or policy limits
described in the Manual, then we
can (but are not obligated to) obtain
and maintain the insurance for you
without first giving you notice. If we
do so, then you must immediately
pay our costs to obtain such
insurance.
Interim Remedies
Actual costs plus
If dollar amount, If we elect interim remedies instead
/Information
intervention or
when notice
of terminating your Franchise
Technology Recapture administration fees
specifies. If
Agreement for uncured defaults,
Charge
set forth in the
percentage
Hilton may charge you for: the cost
Standards
increase to fee,
of any computer hardware, computer
when agreement software, other information
requires fee paid. technology and/or information
technology service which we and/or
our affiliates provided to you in the
past at no additional charge other
than the fees you paid under your
agreements; costs related to
suspending and disabling your right
to use any software, information
technology and/or network services
we or our affiliates provided to you,
together with intervention or
administration fees set forth in the
Standards; and, the costs of any
computer hardware, computer
software, other information
technology and/or information
technology service we and/or our
affiliates determine to provide you
after the date of the notice of default.
Liquidated Damages
$5,000 per day that
On demand.
Payable if you open your Hotel
for Unauthorized
your Hotel is open
before we give you written
Opening
without authorization.
authorization to open, plus our costs,
including attorney’s fees.
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Type of Fee (1)

Amount

Due Date

Liquidated Damages
for Pre-Opening
Termination

The System’s
Average Monthly
Royalty Fees
multiplied by 60.

Liquidated Damages
for Post-Opening
Termination

The greater of: (a) the On demand.
Hotel’s Average
Monthly Royalty Fees
multiplied by 60; or (b)
the System’s Average
Monthly Royalty Fees
multiplied by 60.
The Hotel’s Average On demand.
Monthly Royalty Fees
multiplied by 60.

Liquidated Damages
for Failure to Comply
with Intellectual
Property Obligations

On demand.

The Hotel’s Average On demand.
Monthly Royalty Fees
multiplied by the
number of months
remaining in the
Term.
$10,000 for each day On demand.
that you fail to
comply with
intellectual property
obligations.

Liquidated Damages
for Failure to Comply
with Post-Term
Obligations

$10,000 per day for
each day of delay in
complying with your
obligations.

On demand.

Service Charges for
Overdue Payments

1.5% per month or
highest percentage
permissible by law,
whichever is less.

On demand.

Taxes

Actual amount.

On demand.
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Remarks
Payable if we terminate the
Agreement: (1) before you begin
Hotel Work and you or a Guarantor
enter into an agreement for, or begin
the construction or operation of
another hotel at the site within 1 year
after termination; or (2) after you
begin the Hotel Work but before you
open (unless excused by Force
Majeure). See Note 7.
Payable if we terminate the
Franchise Agreement on or after the
Opening Date but before the 2nd
anniversary of the Opening Date.
See Note 7.

Payable if we terminate after the 2nd
anniversary of the Opening Date but
before the final 60 calendar months
of the Term. See Note 7.
Payable if we terminate the
Franchise Agreement within the last
60 months of the Term. See Note 7.

Payable if you fail to comply with the
trademark, trade name, web site, or
other intellectual property obligations
in the Franchise Agreement, in
addition to our costs and expenses
of enforcement.
Payable if you fail to comply with
your post-term obligations within 30
days after termination or expiration.
You must also reimburse all of our
and our affiliate’s costs and
expenses, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees, incurred in
connection with your noncompliance.
Payable if you do not make any
payment to us or our affiliates when
due. Our acceptance of your
payment of any deficiency will not
waive our right to terminate the
Franchise Agreement under its
terms.
If any sales, use, gross receipts,
withholding or any other tax
(excluding withholding on monthly
royalty fee) is imposed on the receipt

2019 Brazil Hilton

Type of Fee (1)

Amount

Due Date

Identity, Sales, and
Distribution NonCompliance Fee

Currently, $500 per
instance.

On demand.

Franchise Agreement
Non-Compliance Fee

1% of Gross Rooms
Revenue.

On demand.

Miscellaneous Services/Programs
Consultation and
Set by us on a
Service Fees
project-by-project
basis.
Consortia Program
Currently, $2.70 for
each consumed night
booked under the
Consortia “parity”
rate, plus applicable
commission.

TMC Pay-On-All-PayFor Performance
Program

FedRooms Program

Currently, $1.03 plus
up to 10%
commission or fee,
where applicable, for
each consumed night
booked by a TMC
travel agency. If we
increase this fee this
year, it will not
exceed $1.15, plus
commission.
Currently, 2.75% of
room revenue – for
each consumed stay
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When we
request.
If invoiced, within
15 days. If ACH,
the 12th business
day of each
month.

If invoiced, within
15 days of billing.
If through ACH,
on the 12th
business day of
each month.

Billed on TACS
invoice. Due
within 15 days of
billing if invoiced.
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Remarks
of any payments you are required to
make to us under the Franchise
Agreement, then you must also
make an additional payment to us
such that, net of any sales, use,
gross receipts, withholding or any
other tax, the amount received by us
is equal to the amount we would
have received had no such tax been
imposed. This does not apply to
income taxes payable by us as a
result of our net income relating to
any fees collected under the
Franchise Agreement.
This cost-recovery fee is payable if
your Hotel fails to comply with the
Identity, Sales, and Distribution
Brand Standards.
This charge will apply each month in
which you fail to comply with the
Franchise Agreement. See Notes 2
and 8.
Payable if we make consultation
and/or other voluntary services
available to you on request.
You must participate in BOTH or
NEITHER the Consortia Program
and the TMC Pay-On-All-Pay-For
Performance Program. The list of
participating travel agency accounts
can and will vary depending on
negotiations with accounts. We pay
a portion of the fee directly to the
travel agency account; the remainder
is used to fund marketing efforts with
travel agency accounts and as a
processing charge.
You must participate in BOTH or
NEITHER the Consortia Program
and the TMC Pay-On-All-Pay-For
Performance Program. The list of
participating travel agency accounts
can and will vary depending on
negotiations with accounts. We pay
a portion of the fee directly to the
travel agency account; the remainder
is used to fund marketing efforts with
TMC and as a processing charge.
This is a government and military
travel program. You are not required
to participate. We pay the entire fee
to FedRooms.

2019 Brazil Hilton

Type of Fee (1)

Amount

booked under the
program SRP.
CWTSatoTravel
Currently, $2.70 for
Program
each consumed night
booked under the
program SRP, and
standard travel
agency commissions
ranging from 8% to
10%.
Omega World Travel
Currently, $2.70 for
Government Consortia each consumed night
Program
booked under the
Program SRP, and
standard travel
agency commission
ranging from 8% to
10%.
ADTRAV Government
Pay for Performance
Fee

Currently, $2.70 for
each consumed night
booked under the
program SRP, and
standard travel
agency commissions
ranging from 8% to
10%.

ResMax Program

Currently, 5.15% to
6% of consumed
revenue from
ResMax booking.
Rate varies due to
type of booking,
length of stay and
other factors.

Due Date
If ACH, on the
15th of the month.
Billed on TACS
invoice. Due
within 15 days of
billing if invoiced.
If ACH, on the
15th of the month.

Remarks

This is a government and military
travel program. You are not required
to participate. We pay a portion of
the fee directly to CWTSato Travel;
the remainder is used to fund
marketing efforts with CWTSato
Travel and as a processing charge.

Billed on TACS
invoice. Due
within 15 days of
billing if invoiced.
If through ACH,
on the 15th of
each month.

Payable if you participate in either of
these programs. We pay a portion of
the fee directly to Omega World
Travel in lieu of annual participation
fees. The remainder is used to pay
for training and marketing directed at
the agents booking hotels.

Billed on TACS
invoice. Due
within 15 days of
billing if invoiced.
If through ACH,
on the 15th of
each month.

Payable if you participate. We pay a
portion of the fee directly to ADTRAV
in lieu of "up-front" annual
participation fees for preferred
status. The remainder is used to pay
for training and marketing directed at
the agents booking hotels.

As required by us ResMax with Auto Attendant
or our affiliate.
provides additional reservation call
handling services by automatically
transferring reservation calls to a
ResMax sales specialist. ResMax is
an optional, supplemental service. If
your Hotel is not enrolled in ResMax
and accepts a referral, we may
charge you a fee of up to 6% of
consumed revenue from the ResMax
booking. The program terms,
eligibility, and fees are subject to
change.
Revenue Management Currently, $1,025 to
Within 10 days of RMCC provides revenue
$1,550 per month,
Consolidated Center
billing.
management, analysis, strategy, and
depending on the
(“RMCC”)
coaching services to franchisees.
Model.
RMCC offers different levels of
service based on tiered Models.
Foundation Model oneRMCC is an optional, supplemental
time fee of $999.
service. RMCC programs and fees
are subject to change.
Procurement and
Currently, 3% to 10% Within 10 days
See Note 9.
Services Fees
of project cost.
after billing.
Reimbursement for
Our actual out-ofOn demand.
We intend to seek registration of the
Governmental or other pocket costs.
Franchise Agreement with the
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Type of Fee (1)

Amount

Due Date

Filings related to the
Franchise Agreement

Remarks
Brazilian National Institute of
Industrial Property and thereafter the
Brazilian Central Bank to facilitate
your payment of fees to us. We
require you to reimburse to us our
actual out-of-pocket costs associated
with these registrations and any
other filings related to the Franchise
Agreement, including any translation
costs. See Part VII, Note 16.

*Some of these programs and related fees and costs may not be applicable to your Hotel.

NOTES
Note 1 – Unless otherwise indicated, all fees are payable to us in US Dollars, are not refundable
under any circumstances and, other than the Royalty Fees and Liquidated Damages, are subject
to change. You must convert Gross Rooms Revenue into US Dollars daily, based on WSJ.com
rates that are reported by Reuters as blended rates by multiple banks that trade in excess of $1
million daily.
Note 2 – "Gross Rooms Revenue" means all revenues derived from the sale or rental of guest
rooms (both transient and permanent) of the Hotel, including revenue derived from the redemption
of points or rewards under the loyalty programs in which the Hotel participates, resort fees, urban
fees and similar fees, late cancellation fees, amounts attributable to breakfast (where the guest
room rate includes breakfast), Mandatory Guest Fees, late cancellation fees, and guaranteed noshow revenue and credit transactions, whether or not collected, at the actual rates charged, less
allowances for any Guest Room rebates and overcharges, and will not include taxes collected
directly from patrons or guests. Group booking rebates, if any, paid by you or on your behalf to
third-party groups for group stays must be included, and not deducted from, the calculation of
Gross Rooms Revenue.
“Mandatory Guest Fee” means any separate fee that a patron or guest is charged for in addition
to the base room rate for a guest room, including but not limited to resort fees, facility fees,
destination fees, amenity fees, urban destination fees, or any other similar fee. Mandatory Guest
Fees do not include employee gratuities, state or local mandatory taxes, and other tax-like fees
and assessments that are levied on a stay, as determined by us, that are passed through to a
third party (such as tourism public improvement district fees, tourism or improvement
assessments, and convention center fees).
“Gross Food and Beverage Revenue” means all revenues (including credit transactions whether
or not collected) derived from food and beverage-related operations of the Hotel and associated
facilities, and all banquet, reception and meeting room rentals, including all restaurant, dining,
bar, lounge, and retail food and beverage services (unless leased from third-party suppliers), at
the actual rates charged, less allowances for any rebates and overcharges, and will not include
any sales, hotel, entertainment or similar taxes collected from patrons or guests. “Gross Spa
Revenue” means all revenue from services and retail sales of products from the eforea spa, less
allowances for spa rebates and overcharges, but does not include any sales or other taxes
collected directly from spa customers or any revenues from food and beverage sales of the spa.
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If there is a fire or other insured casualty at your Hotel that results in a reduction of Gross Rooms
Revenue, Gross Food and Beverage Revenue or Gross Spa Revenue, the Monthly Program,
Monthly Royalty Fees, and Monthly Food and Beverage Fees will be equal to the Monthly
Program, Monthly Royalty, and Monthly Food and Beverage Fees forecasted on the basis of the
Gross Rooms Revenue, Gross Food and Beverage Revenue and Gross Spa Revenue amount
you agree upon with your insurer(s). However, we have the right to participate with you in
negotiating the value of your Gross Rooms Revenue, Gross Food and Beverage Revenue and
Gross Spa Revenue claim with your insurer(s).
There may be an annual adjustment within 90 days after the end of each operating year so that
the total Monthly Royalty Fees, Monthly Food and Beverage Fees and Monthly Program Fees
paid annually will be the same as the amounts determined by audit. We can require you to transmit
all payments required under the Franchise Agreement by wire transfer or other form of electronic
funds transfer. You must bear all costs of wire transfer or other form of electronic funds transfer,
and make all arrangements to send payments to us in the US.
Note 3 – We may change the amount of the Monthly Program Fee at any time. The Monthly
Program Fee rate will not exceed the current rate plus 1% over the term of the Franchise
Agreement. The Monthly Program Fee pays for various programs to benefit the System, including
(i) advertising, promotion, publicity, public relations, market research, and other marketing
programs; (ii) developing and maintaining directories and internet sites for System hotels; (iii)
developing and maintaining the Reservation Service systems and support; (iv) quality assurance
programs; and (v) administrative costs and overhead related to the administration or direction of
these projects and programs. We may create any programs and allocate monies derived from
Monthly Program Fees to any regions or localities. The Monthly Program Fee does not cover your
costs of participating in any optional marketing programs and promotions offered by us or our
affiliates from time to time in which you voluntarily choose to participate. These fees also do not
cover the cost of operating the Hotel in accordance with the Standards or the Manual.
Note 4 – You must use Delphi.fdc, a cloud-based sales and events system powered by Amadeus
Hospitality in a configuration we approve. For this service you will pay initial set-up costs to the
vendor, and ongoing annual license fees to us. The set-up costs of this system are shown in Part
VII (see Estimated Initial Investment). The annual license fees and maintenance costs are shown
here and include a 10% mark-up. You will pay the license fees and maintenance costs to HSS,
which are then passed-through to the vendor. We keep the mark-up as reimbursement for our
costs in developing and maintaining Delphi.fdc for our Network Hotels. You must maintain and
update the system at your cost to remain in compliance with the Standards. There are no limits
on the frequency or cost of this obligation. Delphi.fdc integrates with other Hilton business
systems, including the MeetingBroker lead distribution platform.
Note 5 – You must provide internet access for all guest rooms, meeting rooms, and public spaces
at your Hotel in accordance with our Standards (“Guest Internet Access”). Currently, our approved
Guest Internet Access program is called “StayConnected.” You must install certain hardware and
software, an internet access circuit, and subscribe to an internet access service to meet this
requirement. The installation costs are described Part VII (see Estimated Initial Investment) and
the ongoing monthly costs are shown here. You must obtain your Guest Internet Access circuit
and Guest Internet Access service from our preferred providers. In the past we have permitted
franchisees to acquire these services from either preferred providers or our affiliate, HSS, and
may do so again in the future.
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Note 6 – You must participate in, and pay all charges related to, our and our affiliates’ marketing
programs not covered by Monthly Program Fees, and all guest frequency programs we require,
including the Hilton Honors Worldwide guest reward programs or successor programs. You must
also honor the terms of any discount or promotional programs (including any frequent guest
program) that we or Hilton offer to the public on your behalf, any room rate quoted to any guest
at the time the guest makes an advance reservation, and any award guest certificates issued to
Hotel guests participating in these programs. We and our affiliates' other hotel brands may also
participate in these programs. These programs are subject to change. You pay your share of the
costs of the programs.
Currently, these programs include the Hilton Honors™ guest reward program operated by Hilton
Honors Worldwide, and airline and rental car company frequent user programs in which Hilton
participates. The Hilton Honors™ guest reward program was originally called “Hilton HHonors®”
and changed its name to Hilton Honors™ in February 2017.
Hilton Honors members may accumulate Hilton Honors points with most stays for all eligible
dollars spent at participating Hilton Honors hotels. Hilton Honors members, can obtain frequent
flyer mileage credit in one participating airline's frequent flyer program per stay with most stays at
participating Hilton Honors hotels. Hilton Honors members may earn both points and frequent
flyer mileage credit for the same stay at participating hotels. Hilton Honors members may also
earn additional points for using Hilton Honors car rental and/or other partners in conjunction with
a stay and may periodically earn additional point and/or mileage bonuses through promotional
activity. The only room rates that are not eligible for Hilton Honors point and/or mileage earnings
are wholesale/tour operator packages, contracted airline crew rates, complimentary or barter
rooms, stays on NET Group/Series Group/IT Group rates, contracted Entertainment or Encore
rates, stays using airline percent-off award certificates, stays that are booked via third-party
websites other than the websites of Hilton Honors airline partners. Hilton Honors members may
redeem their accumulated points for discounted and free hotel room nights and other rewards.
Terms of the Hilton Honors program are subject to change. Pricing is subject to change and is
reviewed annually.
These basic program fees are assessed on any stay for which a guest (a) earns Hilton Honors
points or (b) earns both Hilton Honors points and airline mileage credit. Additional Hilton Honors
bonus points that members earn as a result of promotions that your Hotel agrees to participate in
will result in an additional fee payable by your Hotel based on a set cost per point or a percentage
of the eligible guest folio, depending on the type of promotion. Similarly, bonus airline mileage
credit that guests earn as a result of promotions that your Hotel agrees to participate in will result
in an additional fee payable by your Hotel – amount varies by participating airline partner program.
All program costs are subject to change.
In addition to the basic program fees outlined above, hotels are also responsible for the cost of
certain guest amenities provided to Hilton Honors members. Hotels must allocate a certain
percentage of rooms inventory for free night reward redemption by Hilton Honors members as
specified by the Hilton Honors program. Hotels will be reimbursed for these reward redemptions
on the same basis as other similarly situated participating hotels as specified by the Hilton Honors
program.
Note 7 – The term “Hotel’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees” means: (a) if the Hotel has been
operating for at least 24 months, the amount of all Monthly Royalty Fees due under the Franchise
Agreement for the 24 month period before the month of termination divided by 24; and (b) if the
Hotel has not been operating for at least 24 months, the amount of all Monthly Royalty Fees due
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under the Franchise Agreement for the period between the Opening Date and the termination
date divided by the number of months between the Opening Date and the termination date. Any
percentage fee discounts (including fee ramps) are excluded from the calculation of Hotel’s
Average Monthly Royalty Fees.
The term “System’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees” means the average Monthly Royalty Fees
per Guest Room owed to us by all System Hotels in operation in the United States over the 12
full calendar month period immediately preceding the month of termination, multiplied by the
number of approved Guest Rooms at the Hotel. Any percentage fee discounts (including fee
ramps) are excluded from the calculation of System’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees. For the
avoidance of doubt, any System Hotel that has not been in operation for at least 12 full calendar
months immediately preceding the month of termination is not included in determining the
System’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees.
Note 8 – If your Hotel is not in compliance with the Franchise Agreement, including failing to meet
our quality assurance Standards or failing to complete a PIP by the required date, we may charge
a Non-Compliance Fee for each month in which the non-compliance occurred or continued for
one or more days, to compensate us for damage to the Brand’s reputation and for the additional
work caused by your non-compliance. This fee is in addition to any other applicable fees.
Note 9 - If we or our affiliates furnish, supply, service or equip your Hotel at your request before
it opens, then you must pay or reimburse them for all costs they incur at your request, and related
service fees. In particular, HSM negotiates with manufacturers and suppliers for the distribution
of hotel furniture, furnishings, fixtures, equipment and supplies, certain food and beverage
equipment supplies, and certain hotel services at a discount. You may purchase these items from
HSM, but you are not obligated to do so. If you choose to buy from HSM it will invoice you for the
cost of the products, freight, taxes, and other actual costs incurred by HSM, plus a procurement
fee. HSM may offer you a payment plan. These payment plans are agreed with each franchisee
individually based on the type of project. Currently, HSM offers franchisees the ability to pay the
project costs in 5 installments as follows: first – 5%, second – 5%, third – 10%, fourth – 45%, and
fifth – 35% of the total. These percentages may be adjusted based on the project’s timeline.
Payment dates are also based on the project’s timeline. Payments are due in 30 days. The interest
rate for late payments is 18.5% per year, compounded daily. Change orders must be paid in full,
either in advance or with the next installment due.
PART IX
FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
We do not have any Hilton Brand franchisees in Brazil. The names, address and business
telephone number, or if unknown, the last known telephone number of all Hilton Brand franchisees
as of December 31, 2018 are attached as Exhibit A. The names, address, business telephone
number, or, if unknown, the last known home telephone number, of every Hilton Brand franchisee
who has had an outlet terminated, cancelled or not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or
involuntarily ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreement during 2018 are attached as
Exhibit B.
PART X
TERRITORY
We grant you a non-exclusive license to use the System during the term of the Franchise
Agreement to operate a franchised hotel at a specified location. There are no provisions in the
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standard Franchise Agreement granting you a protected area or territory. You will not receive an
exclusive territory for your Hotel.
We may, however, agree to give you certain specific territorial restrictions (“Area Restriction”) for
an area surrounding your Hotel and encompassing the immediate competitive market for the Hotel
as may be agreed on by the parties (“Restrictive Area”). If we agree to give you an Area Restriction
for your New Development or Conversion, it will normally be for an agreed-upon time period,
which is shorter than the term of the Franchise Agreement (“Restrictive Period”). We will not
normally grant an Area Restriction for a Change of Ownership or Re-licensing, although we will
occasionally do so under certain unique circumstances.
We may also agree to give you an Area Restriction if you enter into a strategic development
agreement with us for a multi-unit hotel deal. The decision to grant or not grant any Area
Restriction shall be in our sole and absolute discretion.
We do not permit the relocation of franchised hotels. You have no options, rights of first refusal
or similar rights to acquire additional franchises.
PART XI
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF GOODS, SERVICES AND MATERIALS
This Part describes your obligations to buy or lease goods, services and materials from us or our
designees, from suppliers we permit you to use, or in accordance with our specifications.
You must build, furnish, equip and supply your hotels in accordance with the standards and
specifications in our standards manual (“Manual”). The standards for an eforea spa are included
in the eforea spa manual. We review, modify and implement product standards and
specifications. We may periodically modify and update standards and specifications to reflect
operational requirements, advances in technology, improved methods of manufacture, new
materials and structures, new products, improved prices and other factors. We currently issue,
modify and update specifications in the form of updates to the Manual. We may periodically
require you to modernize, rehabilitate, renovate, refurbish and/or upgrade your hotel’s fixtures,
equipment, furnishings, furniture, signs, computer hardware and software and related equipment,
supplies and other items to meet the then current standards and specifications specified in the
Manual. You are responsible for the costs of implementing all changes required because of
modifications to the standards in the Manual. The Manual is our exclusive property and you must
return it to us on request and, in any event, on termination or expiration of your Franchise
Agreement.
You must comply with our standards regarding the purchase of products and services for use at
the hotel, including furniture, fixtures, equipment, food, operating supplies, consumable
inventories, merchandise for resale to be used at and/or sold from the hotel, in-room
entertainment, property management, revenue management, telecommunications and telephone
systems, long distance services, signs/environmental graphics, customer satisfaction
measurement programs, uniforms, materials with logos, property print advertising, guest
assistance programs, computer networking and other computer and technology systems, and any
and all other items used in the operation of the hotel (collectively, the “Supplies”), including our
specifications for all Supplies. You must also maintain acceptable product quality ratings at your
hotel and maintain the hotel in accordance with the Manual. In some cases, we may require you
to purchase a particular brand or type of product, fixture, furniture, equipment, or service, but you
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may purchase it from any authorized source of distribution. The requirements are generally
contained in our manuals, but may be separately issued to you.
Purchases through Our Affiliates
You must obtain and use the Hilton Standard Property Management System (“HSPMS”) required
computer hardware and software for the operation of the Hotel. You must purchase items bearing
our logo, trademark or service mark from a supplier approved by us. We may derive profit from
such sales.
Hilton Supply Management (“HSM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hilton, negotiates with thirdparty manufacturers and suppliers for the distribution of hotel furniture, furnishings, fixtures,
equipment and supplies, certain food and beverage supplies, and certain hotel services. You may
but are not obligated to purchase specified items from HSM or such third parties. HSM negotiates
lower prices with manufacturers and suppliers, and then passes these savings on to franchisees
when it sells to franchisees. HSM may negotiate purchase arrangements with manufacturers and
suppliers for the benefit of our franchisees, all System hotels, all Network hotels, or any subset of
each. Occasionally, HSM may negotiate special purchase arrangements with manufacturers and
suppliers for franchisees or their management companies that operate multiple hotels. HSM may
also permit competitor hotels or their management companies to participate in its purchase
arrangements with manufacturers and suppliers. This is done to help increase HSM’s overall
purchasing volume and bargaining power.
Except as discussed below, you may purchase the furniture, fixtures, and equipment (“FF&E”)
and other Supplies for your Hotel from any source as long as the specifications and standards in
the Manual are met. However, in the future, we may require you to purchase FF&E and Supplies
from a supplier approved by us, or we may require you to purchase a particular brand or model
of Supplies or equipment that is available only from one source, and we may derive revenue as
a result of those purchases.
If you operate an eforea spa, you must sell all the products we specify and perform the spa
treatments we require. If you are opening a spa under a concept other than eforea, you must use
us, one of our affiliates, or a third-party management company that we approve to provide you
with certain services for your spa. We or our affiliate may derive a profit from any services we
provide to you for your spa. We and our affiliates may also receive payments from any third-party
management company that we approve to provide services to your spa. However, neither we nor
any affiliate currently receive any payments.
HSM has various discount agreements with manufacturers and suppliers, under which it receives
rebates and allowances based on the total volume purchased from the manufacturer. These
volume fees include sales to franchisees by the manufacturers and in some cases, through
suppliers. HSM also receives certain volume and national account marketing allowances from
manufacturers in connection with the sale to franchisees of certain items, such as coffee, soft
drinks, cleaning compounds, and paper products. For one of our brands, Tru by Hilton, HSM is
also an approved procurement agency and may receive fees for providing procurement
services. In addition, HSM receives cash discounts for early payment on orders it places with
manufacturers and suppliers to fill purchase orders placed with it by franchisees of all Hilton
Worldwide brands. HSM may derive profit from the revenues it collects from rebates,
administration fees, and purchasing fees. A portion of these revenues are used to offset the cost
of establishing the purchasing programs and supporting the expenses of HSM.
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Certain suppliers we approve (“PSDP Suppliers”) become members of our Primary Supplier
Distribution Program (“PSDP”). Each PSDP Supplier pays to HSM an administration fee that is
between 0.5% and 5% of purchases by all franchisees from the respective PSDP Supplier.
We evaluate suppliers based on many factors, including: (i) the quality and cost of the products
and/or services; (ii) the supplier's established history in serving the System with products that
consistently meet or exceed the standards and specifications as set forth in the Manual; (iii) the
level of support and recognition of the supplier by us and our franchisees, as well as the System's
demand for those products/services; and (iv) the supplier's ability to service the needs of the
System and potential for active participation and support of the PSDP program. If a PSDP Supplier
no longer meets our criteria, the PSDP Supplier's name and materials are removed from the
PSDP.
If you want to use a product, or a particular brand or model, that has not been specified as having
met our standards, or if you want to purchase from an unapproved supplier an item that must be
purchased from an approved supplier, then you can submit a written request for us to approve
the product or supplier. We may require certain information or samples which you must provide
at your expense. We will review all of the pertinent information. While we have no obligation to
respond within a certain timeframe, our review typically takes 30 days to complete. We do not
provide any material benefit (such as license renewal or the grant of additional licenses) to a
franchisee based on a franchisee’s use of designated or pre-approved suppliers (the Franchise
Agreement is non-renewable).
Spa Build-out and Management
Whether we require you to install a spa in your Hotel or we approve your request to install a spa
in your Hotel, the spa must meet our specifications and you must complete an application. In
either case, we recommend that you install our eforea branded spa in your Hotel, but you do not
have to use this concept. If you will be installing an alternate spa concept, you must enter into a
consulting services agreement with us or one of our affiliates or a third-party approved by us for
the build-out and design, planning and concept development, business model creation, IT,
construction and technical services, equipment selection and procurement, operational
guidelines, menu development and sales and marketing services related to the spa.
If you install our eforea spa concept in your Hotel, you will sign the Eforea Spa Amendment and
pay us an initial fee (see Part VII). We or one of our affiliates will provide you with eforea design
and construction guidelines, a collateral suite, spa menus, and access to required training
provided by suppliers. After your Hotel opens, you may either manage the spa yourself or retain
the services of another spa management company approved by us in advance.
Signage
You must install, display, and maintain signage displaying or containing the Brand and other
distinguishing characteristics in accordance with plans, specifications and standards we establish
for System Hotels. You must purchase exterior signage from a vendor currently licensed by us.
You may contact us for a current list in your area.
Reservation Service
You must use the Reservation Service for reservation referrals. You must also purchase computer
terminal equipment and software compatible for use with the Reservation Service. The computer

{018316-999987 00275531.DOCX; 1}

29

2019 Brazil Hilton

equipment and software you purchase for HSPMS satisfies the requirement that you purchase
computer equipment and software compatible with the Reservation Service. Although you must
use the Reservation Service, you may also use other reservation services to refer reservations to
(but not by or from) your Hotel.
Business Computer Systems
You must use our required business computer systems, which we may periodically change.
Currently, we require you to use HSPMS, which connects System Hotels to Hilton’s reservation
offices and travel planners worldwide. For HSPMS you must have certain hardware, software,
installation, and support. We also require you to use our required Guest Internet Access System.
For Guest Internet Access you must have certain hardware, software, an internet access circuit,
and internet service. In addition, you must have the Connected Room system, Guest Facing
Workstations/ Business Center, a digital floor plan, and Delphi.fdc (which is a cloud-based sales
and events system) that meet our Standards and specifications. All of these components must be
acquired from either HSS or preferred providers, or may be acquired from other (non-preferred)
vendors, depending on the specific product or service and the individual circumstances of your
Hotel. We will provide you with our Standards and specifications as appropriate. In the future, any
of the products or services may be manufactured or provided by an approved supplier who is also
our client or supplier. See Parts VII and VIII for details.
General
Before we permit you to proceed with your plans for construction or remodeling of the Hotel, and
any time you make changes that affect usability or access to your Hotel, your architect or other
applicable certified professional must certify to us that the Hotel’s plans and specifications comply
with all laws and applicable legal requirements related to accessibility/accommodations/ facilities
for those with disabilities, as further described in the Manual. If requested, you must arrange for
us and our affiliates to participate in all progress meetings during the development and
construction of the Hotel, to have access to all contract and construction documents for the Hotel
and to have access to the Hotel during reasonable business hours to inspect the Hotel and its
construction, completion, furnishing and equipment for conformity to the finally-approved
construction documents. However, we and our affiliates have no obligation to participate in
progress meetings or to inspect the Hotel. Our approval is not a representation of the adequacy
of the plans and specifications, the structural integrity, or the sufficiency of the mechanical and
electrical systems for the Hotel. When you complete construction of the Hotel and before your
Hotel opens for business, your architect or general contractor must provide us with a certificate
stating that the as-built premises complies with all applicable legal requirements relating to
accessibility/accommodations/facilities for those with disabilities, as may be further described in
the Manual.
During the term of the Franchise Agreement and any term extensions, we may periodically require
you to make additional expenditures and investments to maintain your Hotel in accordance with
the Standards and to remove any deficiencies in your Hotel’s operations. In addition to this general
obligation, we currently require that you complete a significant renovation of guest rooms/suites,
corridors and public facilities, including the replacement of all soft goods and case goods, at
specific periodic intervals as required by the Standards.
Except as stated above, we do not negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers for the benefit
of franchisees. There are no purchasing or distribution cooperatives. We provide you with no
material benefits (such as license renewal or the grant of additional licenses) based on your use
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of designated or permitted sources (the Franchise Agreement is non-renewable). Except as
described above, we presently receive no payments, discounts, rebates, credits or commissions
from any supplier based on your purchases from that supplier.
PART XII
FRANCHISOR’S SERVICES
Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance. We may provide
any of these services through our employees and representatives, through our affiliates or through
any third-party provider we designate.
Pre-Opening Phase Obligations
After we approve your Application and/or you sign the Franchise Agreement, but before you open
your Hotel, we will:
1.
Loan to you a copy of our Manual, which contains mandatory and suggested
specifications, standards and procedures. The Manual is confidential and is our property.
References to the Manual include all written standards and requirements that have been and are
periodically developed by us in connection with the construction, equipping, furnishing, supplying,
operating, maintaining and marketing of Hilton Brand hotels, including your Hotel. We may provide
these standards and requirements in one or more documents or guides. All of these items, as we
periodically modify them, will be considered the Manual. We will periodically change the Manual
(Franchise Agreement, Section 4.6).
2.
Review your selection before you retain or engage an architect, interior designer, general
contractor and major subcontractors, and you must obtain our prior written consent (Franchise
Agreement, Section 6.1.1).
3.
Review the plans, layouts and specifications, drawings and designs for constructing and
furnishing your Hotel, including guest room areas, and grant or deny approval, which may be
conditioned on your architect or other certified professional certifying to us that the Plans comply
with all laws related to accessibility/accommodations/facilities for those with disabilities. You may
not start construction until you receive our approval. Once you receive our approval, you may not
make any changes to the plans without our advance consent (Franchise Agreement, Sections
6.1.2., 6.1.3 and 6.1.4).
4.
Review and approve or disapprove your proposed management of the Hotel (Franchise
Agreement, Section 7.0). In evaluating the proposed management, we look at the proposed
management organizational structure, prior experience and performance in managing similar firstclass, full-service hotels, as well as other relevant factors. If we do not approve your proposed
management, then we will require you to hire a professional hotel management company
satisfactory to us to manage the Hotel for at least the first year of operations. At the end of the
year, if you request it, we will reevaluate this requirement.
5.
Provide you with the HITS Agreement (which will be countersigned by HSS) before you
open your Hotel. The HITS Agreement governs your access to and use of HSPMS. The HITS
Agreement also governs the installation and on-going support and maintenance of your Guest
Internet Access service.
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6.
Make available to you for use in the Hotel various purchase, lease, or other arrangements
with respect to exterior signs, operating equipment, operating supplies and furnishings, which we
or our affiliates may have and which we make available to other Brand franchisees (Franchise
Agreement, Section 4.7).
7.
Provide you with the eforea design and construction guidelines, a collateral suite and spa
menus if you open an eforea spa with your Hotel, before your spa opens (Eforea Spa Amendment,
Paragraph 4). We will also loan to you a copy of the eforea spa Manual and/or provide you with
electronic access to the eforea spa Manual on the Hilton Intranet resources library. The eforea
spa Manual is confidential and is our property (Franchise Agreement, Section 4.6). We will also
provide you with a list of approved suppliers and specifications for required operating equipment,
products, supplies and furnishings in the spa (Eforea Spa Amendment, Paragraph 4).
8.
Specify initial and ongoing required and optional training programs (Franchise Agreement,
Section 4.1). You must pay a fee for these programs and the training materials. You must also
pay for travel, lodging and other expenses associated with training.
Training
This section generally describes our training program as of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure
Document. We may modify our training requirements over time. The subject matter, time required,
locations, and costs are subject to change. In this Disclosure Document the term “virtual” means
an internet-based class with a live instructor, and “online” means an internet-based class that
does not have a live instructor. Both virtual and online training courses are considered equivalent
to classroom training. These courses may be provided by us or our designated third-party
vendors. We will provide you with our current Brand training requirements document upon request
or you may access it through our intranet, The Lobby.
Hilton offers required training courses to those affiliated with the System for orientation and as
part of the certification process. Employees designated to take training must complete the
required training to our satisfaction. If you hire a replacement for any of the categories of
personnel who must attend a training program, the replacement must successfully complete the
appropriate training program.
We require participation by your general manager and director of sales in an annual Brand or
Regional Conference. Conference program fees and expenses are not refundable. The
conference may be held at various hotel locations.
1.
Brand Conference. our general manager must attend and complete our 6-week virtual
learning onboarding program, currently called General Manager Activation, before the Hotel
opens, or is converted, or within 180 days of hire. Perfect attendance is required to complete the
training. The subjects covered include Brand management, marketing, customer measures and
quality assurance, technology review, and Brand leadership. We conduct this training multiple
times per year.
2.
Commercial Leader Training. Your director of sales must attend complete our 6-week
virtual learning onboarding program, currently called our Commercial Leader Activation, before
the Hotel opens, or is converted, or within 180 days of hire. Perfect attendance is required to
complete the training. The subjects covered include Brand management, marketing, sales skills,
technology review, and Brand leadership. We conduct this training multiple times per year.
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3.
OnQ Property Management. Before the opening of your Hotel, all Hotel staff that will be
utilizing HSPMS must first complete their respective HSPMS Property Management System
(PMS) self-paced training and provide documentation of a printed certificate. This online training
is mandatory for all employees working in the subject areas. We will verify that all front desk staff
and management have successfully completed training and have passed an HSPMS certification
test by at least a minimum score of 80%. If your staff does not attain the minimum score, the
opening of your Hotel may be delayed.
4.
Hilton Honors Training. The Hilton Honors Training is online through Hilton University.
This training program is mandatory for all key management staff and applicable front office
personnel and must be completed before the Hotel opens, or is converted, or within 14 to 45 days
of hire, depending on job position.
5.
CRM Training. The CRM (Customer Really Matters) training program is online through
Hilton University. This training helps your employees identify your most valuable guests. It is to
be shown within 45 days for all new hires and within 14 days for front desk team members, general
managers and department heads.
6.
Accessibility Training. If you engage in a Permitted Transfer, Conversion, Relicensing
or Change of Ownership Transfer, we may require you to attend online Accessibility Training in
order to complete an independent survey conducted by a consultant to determine the Hotel’s
compliance with the legal requirements relating to accessibility for persons with disabilities.
Currently, there is no separate fee for this training.
7.
Information Security & Privacy. This training is mandatory for all employees with
access to The Lobby. It raises awareness of the importance of protecting sensitive personal and
financial information for guests and others. Hotel leaders may choose to use the instructor-led
materials to deliver the training to employees in groups or individuals may complete the eLearning
course. A signed attendance and acknowledgement sheet must be maintained in the Hotel
records for at least 12 months for subsequent audit verification.
8.
Hilton Train the Trainer. Each property is required to have 2 certified trainers at all times.
The Hilton Train the Trainer training is mandatory for your human resources or training
professional or other designee, within 90 days of opening or 90 days from the date of hire, and
covers basic facilitation techniques and practices and Hilton Core Learning Programs. Attendees
who successfully complete the program will receive certification at the end of the program.
9.
Make It Right. All team members must complete the Make it Right training program within
30 to 60 days of hire, depending on job position. It currently includes eLearning and a workshop
led by your Hotel management team on topics such as problem resolution, empowering team
members, meeting guests’ unanticipated needs and recognizing loyal guests.
10.
Hilton Orientation. All employees at your Hotel must complete a new employee Hilton
Orientation program at your Hotel within 30 days of the opening or conversion of your Hotel. Any
new employee hired after opening must complete an orientation program within 30 days of
employment. The length of the required training will vary depending on the position of your
employee. Your orientation program must be an interactive, multimedia program and include an
overview of the Hilton history, Hilton’s organizational structure, Hilton Brand culture, Hilton Brand
architecture as well as a description of your Hotel’s features, management team, employment
policies and procedures, benefit programs, dress code, work schedules and pay programs, safety
and security programs, house rules and regulations. All employees must complete the training
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program based on the following timeline: Orientation within 30 days, Service Skills Training within
60 days and Make It Right training and Jobs Skills Checklists and Certification within 90 days.
Currently, there is no separate fee for this training. These training programs are part of the PreOpening Kit, described below.
11.
Eforea Spa Training. If you will operate an eforea spa at your Hotel, the spa director,
each member of your leadership team, all members of administration and all technical positions
including estheticians, nail technicians, therapists and hairdressers must complete eforea Spa
Training that will focus on various products and services that you will provide at your spa and how
to deliver the eforea spa experience. We may require you to attend an eforea Brand guest
experience training in the future. The eforea spa training will be conducted by personnel of the
suppliers we specify who are providing their products and services to your spa. They will generally
have a minimum of 6 to 10 years’ experience in the spa industry and at least 1 year of experience
with their respective companies.
12.
Pre-Opening Kit. The Pre-Opening Kit includes startup materials that are sent to the Hotel
at approval, at start off construction, and before initial operations consultation. Online and web
based programming is self-paced training that trainees can access at any time. For other training,
unless otherwise noted, we will provide the training on an as needed basis.
Our instructors and presenters generally have a minimum of 2 to 5 years’ experience in the subject
taught. We use a variety of instructional materials in connection with our training programs,
including our Manual, digital media clips, DVDs, HU Connect social learning site, self-paced
eLearning programs, other media, and print and virtual handbooks. We may modify these
materials or use other materials for the training programs.
We and our affiliates offer many additional optional learning programs and may develop additional
learning programs at any time. You must pay any fees associated with required and optional
training courses, as well as the training materials. You pay for any travel, lodging and
miscellaneous expenses of your attendees. For programs that include travel by our (or our
affiliate’s) trainers to your Hotel site, you may also be required to pay travel, lodging, tax and
meals of the trainers.
Operational Phase Obligations
During the operation of the franchised business, we will:
1.
Directly or through one of our affiliates, periodically publish and make available to the
traveling public a directory of System Hotels, including your Hotel. Additionally, we will include
your Hotel, or cause your Hotel to be included, in national or regional group advertising of System
Hotels, and in international, national and regional market programs offered by us or our affiliates,
all subject to and in accordance with the general practice for System hotels (Franchise
Agreement, Section 4.4).
2.
Afford you access to the Reservation Service and Reservation System on the same basis
as other System Hotels in Brazil, so long as you are in full compliance with the material obligations
set forth in the Franchise Agreement, including all standards set forth in the Manual. These
services currently consist of a reservation system and database that connect your Hotel to the
Reservations Service and global distribution systems (Franchise Agreement, Section 4.2).
However, if you are in default, we can suspend our obligations to you under the Franchise
Agreement, including removing the listing of your Hotel from any directories we publish and from
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any advertising we publish, and/or removing or suspending you from the Reservation System
immediately upon notice to you (Franchise Agreement, Section 13.3).
3.
Administer a quality assurance program for the System that may include conducting
periodic inspections of the Hotel and guest satisfaction surveys and audits to ensure compliance
with System standards (Franchise Agreement, Section 4.5).
4.
If you are operating an eforea spa, we will also make available to you the services of a
team member who will periodically provide you with suggestions for the improvement of your
spa’s operations (Eforea Spa Amendment, Section 4).
In furnishing these benefits, facilities or services to you, neither we nor our affiliates will exercise
control or supervision over you. Management and operation of the Hotel is your sole responsibility
and obligation.
Advertising Information
We will use your Monthly Program Fee to pay for various programs to benefit the System,
including advertising, promotion, publicity, public relations, market research, and other marketing
programs; developing and maintaining Licensed Brand directories; developing and maintaining
the Reservation Service systems and support; and administrative costs and overhead related to
the administration or direction of these projects and programs. We will have the sole right to
determine how and when we spend these funds, including sole control over the creative concepts,
materials and media used in the programs, the placement and allocation of advertising and the
selection of promotional programs. We may enter into arrangements for development, marketing,
operations, administrative, technical and support functions, facilities, programs, services and/or
personnel with any other entity, including any of our affiliates. Monthly Program Fees are intended
for the benefit of the System and will not simply be used to promote or benefit any one property
or market. Occasionally, however, Monthly Program Fees may be used for a property or marketspecific initiative if we determine it has strategic value to the System overall. We will have no
obligation in administering any activities paid by the Monthly Program Fee to make expenditures
for you that are equivalent or proportionate to your payments or to ensure that the Hotel benefits
directly or proportionately from such expenditures. We may create any programs and allocate
monies derived from Monthly Program Fees to any regions or localities as we consider
appropriate in our sole judgment. The aggregate of Monthly Program Fees paid to us by
franchisees does not constitute a trust or “advertising fund” and we are not a fiduciary with respect
to the Monthly Program Fees paid by you and other franchisees. We are not obligated to expend
funds in excess of the amounts received from franchisees using the System. If any interest is
earned on unused Monthly Program Fees, we will use the interest before using the principal. The
Monthly Program Fee does not cover your costs of participating in any optional marketing
programs and promotions in which you voluntarily choose to participate. These fees also do not
cover the cost of operating your Hotel in accordance with the standards in the Manual. (Franchise
Agreement, Section 4.4.7).
We are not required to engage in or maintain any particular advertising program, apart from our
general obligations to periodically publish and make available to the traveling public a directory of
all System Hotels (including your Hotel), to include your Hotel in international, national or regional
group advertising of System Hotels and to include your Hotel in international, national and regional
market programs (Franchise Agreement, Section 4.4). Most advertising is placed on the internet,
as well as in traditional media (such as cable TV, radio, newspaper, magazine, direct email)
generally with national coverage. The source of our advertising is our in-house marketing
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department and national and regional advertising agencies. Media coverage is international in
scope.
You must advertise and promote your Hotel and related facilities and services on a local and
regional basis in a first-class, dignified manner, using our identity and graphics standards for all
System Hotels, at your cost and expense. You must submit to us samples of all advertising and
promotional materials that we have not previously approved (including any materials in digital,
electronic or computerized form, or in any form of media that exists now or is developed in the
future) before you produce or distribute them. You may not begin using the materials until we
approve them. You must immediately discontinue your use of any advertising or promotional
materials we reasonably believe are not in the best interest of your Hotel or the System, even if
we previously approved the materials. Any advertising or promotional materials, or sales or
marketing concepts, you develop for your Hotel that we approve may be used by other hotels in
the System without any compensation to you. (Franchise Agreement, Section 5.1.7).
You may not engage, directly or indirectly, in any cross-marketing or cross-promotion of your
Hotel with any other hotel, motel or related business without our prior written consent, except for
System Hotels and Network Hotels. The “Network” means the network of hotels, inns, conference
centers, timeshare properties and other operations which Hilton Worldwide and its subsidiaries
and affiliates own, license, lease, operate or manage now or in the future. “Network Hotel” means
any hotel, inn, conference center, timeshare property or other similar facility within the Network.
Currently, there is no advertising council composed of Brand franchisees to advise us on
advertising policies.
You must participate in local or regional advertising cooperatives as we direct. We allocate the
fees for these cooperatives on a fair and equitable basis among all participants. We administer
the cooperatives and are not required to provide financial statements for the cooperatives. We
have the power to form, change or dissolve any cooperative.
Apart from our general obligations to include your Hotel in our directories, our international,
national or regional group advertising and marketing programs and other promotional material
(Franchise Agreement, Section 4.4.2), we are not required to engage in or maintain any particular
advertising program. We occasionally provide for placement of advertising on behalf of the entire
System with international, national and local coverage. In the past, we have hired a national
agency and utilized in-house staff to create and place advertising.
Development Incentive Program
We are not required to offer you any type of financing or financial incentives. If we believe it would
be appropriate under the circumstances, we may choose to allow to you to participate in our
development incentive program described below (“Incentive”).
Other than the Incentive described below, we generally do not offer direct or indirect financing for
franchisees. We may negotiate these incentives when business circumstances warrant. These
programs may be modified, limited, extended or terminated at any time without advance notice or
amendment of this Disclosure Document.
We may, in our sole discretion, offer an Incentive for new hotels. An Incentive is a financial
contribution that we make to assist with the development or conversion of your Hotel. To receive
an Incentive, you and your principals must sign a development incentive note (“Note”) in the form
attached as Exhibit D-1 when you sign the Franchise Agreement. The Incentive will be disbursed
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to you within 30 days after the Hotel opens with our consent, and after: (i) you have passed a final
credit/financial review with no material adverse changes in the business, legal, litigation,
bankruptcy status or finances of the applicant, the guarantors or the project since preliminary
approval; (ii) the Hotel opens with our consent; (iii) you have completed any PIP required by the
Franchise Agreement; and (iv) you have paid the Application Fee.
An Incentive is not a loan, it is a contingent liability. If your franchise terminates before the end
of the Term you must pay us the then-current repayable amount of the Incentive. If you transfer
your Hotel you must also pay us the then-current repayable amount of the Incentive, unless we
permit the transferee to assume your obligations under the Note. In that case we may require the
transferee to provide us with such additional security as we deem appropriate. The repayable
amount of the Incentive decreases over time. For each year that the Hotel is open, the repayable
amount is reduced by an equal annual percentage of the Term. For example, if the franchise has
a 10 year Term, the repayable amount is reduced by 1/10th of the original amount annually. If the
franchise has a 20 year term, the repayable amount is reduced by 1/20th of the original amount
annually. An Incentive bears no interest. However, if an Incentive becomes repayable and
payment is not made in full when due, the outstanding amount is subject to interest at 1.5% per
month or the highest rate allowed by law. We may grant renewals, extensions, modifications,
compositions, compromises, releases or discharges of other parties without notice to any
guarantor or co-maker. You may not use any portion of the Incentive to make, offer, or authorize
any Improper Payment or engage in any act violating any Anti-Corruption Law. If we reasonably
believe that you have used the Incentive in violation of any Anti-Corruption Law, you must
cooperate with our reasonable requests for information and permit us to inspect all books and
records pertaining to your Hotel.
We generally require payment of the Application Fee in a lump sum when you submit your
Application, but may occasionally allow payment of the Application Fee in installments over a
limited time period before the start of construction work on the Hotel. If we do, we will not charge
interest or require a security interest over the installment period or require you to sign a note. You
may prepay the unpaid amount of the Application Fee at any time. If there is a default under the
Franchise Agreement, the outstanding balance is accelerated and becomes your immediate
obligation, along with any court costs and attorneys’ fees for collection.
We generally do not offer any other financing and do not guarantee your note, lease or other
obligations.
PART XIII
STATUS OF TRADEMARKS AND PATENTS BEFORE INPI
Trademark Use: Your Rights and Obligations
We grant you a limited, nonexclusive right to use our System in the operation of a hotel at a
specified location under the licensed trademark “Hilton.” As used in the Franchise Agreement
and this Disclosure Document, the System includes the Marks, including the Principal Mark
“Hilton.” The Marks include the Brand and all other service marks, copyrights, trademarks, logos,
insignia, emblems, symbols, and designs (whether registered or unregistered), slogans,
distinguishing characteristics, trade names, domain names, and all other marks or characteristics
associated or used with or in connection with the System, and similar intellectual property rights,
that we periodically designate to be used in the System. If you open an eforea branded spa and
sign the Eforea Spa Amendment, the Marks will include the eforea trademarks and service marks
during the term of the Eforea Spa Amendment.
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You may use the Marks only in connection with the System and only in the manner we designate,
as set out in the Franchise Agreement and the Standards. We may designate additional Marks,
change the way Marks are depicted, or withdraw Marks from use at any time. We will not withdraw
the Principal Mark. We reserve the right to limit what Marks the Brand hotel may use.
Your Hotel will be initially known by the trade name set forth in the Franchise Agreement (“Trade
Name”). We may change the Trade Name at any time, but we will not change the Principal Mark.
You may not change the Trade Name without our specific written consent.
You must operate under and prominently display the Marks in your Hotel and eforea spa, if
applicable. You may not adopt any other names in operating your Hotel or eforea spa that we do
not approve. You also may not use any of the Marks, or the word “Hilton,” or any similar word(s)
or acronyms: (a) in your corporate, partnership, business or trade name except as we provide in
the Franchise Agreement or the Manual; (b) any internet-related name (including a domain
name), except as we provide in the Franchise Agreement or in the Manual; or (c) any business
operated separate from your Hotel, including the name or identity of developments adjacent to or
associated with your Hotel. Any unauthorized use of the Marks will be an infringement of our rights
and a material breach of the Franchise Agreement.
Under the terms of the Franchise Agreement, you acknowledge and agree that you are not
acquiring the right to use any service marks, copyrights, trademarks, logos, designs, insignia,
emblems, symbols, designs, slogans, distinguishing characteristics, trade names, domain names
or other marks or characteristics owned by us or licensed to us that we do not specifically
designate to be used in the System. The Franchise Agreement does not grant you the right to use
any other marks owned by us or our affiliates.
Registration and Ownership of the Trademarks and Other Intellectual Property
We hold the rights to the Marks, including the trademarks and service marks listed in the table
below, which are registered in Brazil. The Marks were assigned to us from Hilton International IP
Holding Limited in June 2017, and those assignments are being filed for recording in the
trademark office.
Mark

Registration Number

Registration Date

HILTON

6375499

10 July 1986

HILTON

819279412

15 February 2011

STYLIZED H design

820857467

10 July 2001

STYLIZED H design

820857475

10 July 2001

STYLIZED H design

820857483

17 July 2001
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Mark
eforea

Registration Number

Registration Date

902823795

30 April 2013

902823981

30 April 2013

In the future, we may transfer the Marks to other affiliates for administrative purposes periodically.
If the Marks are transferred to any affiliates, we will obtain a license to use and sublicense the
Marks in our business, and your license to use the Marks will not be disturbed.
Protection of the Marks
We have the right to control any administrative proceedings or litigation involving a Mark licensed
by us to you. We will have the sole right and responsibility to handle disputes with third parties
concerning use of the Marks or the System. The protection of the Marks and their distinguishing
characteristics as standing for the System is important to all of us. For this reason, you must
immediately notify us of any infringement of or challenge to your use of any of the Marks. You
may not communicate with any other person regarding any such infringement, challenge or claim.
We will take the action we consider appropriate with respect to such challenges and claims and
only we have the right to handle disputes concerning the Marks or the System. You must fully
cooperate with us in these matters. Under the terms of the Franchise Agreement, you appoint us
as your exclusive attorney-in-fact to defend and/or settle all disputes of this type. You must sign
any documents we believe are necessary to obtain protection for the Marks and the System and
assign to us any claims you may have related to these matters. Our decision as to the prosecution,
defense and settlement of the dispute will be final. All recoveries made as a result of disputes with
third parties regarding the System or the Marks will be for our benefit.
PART XIV
CERTAIN OF FRANCHISEE’S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS
ON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION
During the Term, and continuing after termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement, you
must treat as confidential the Manual, and all other information or materials concerning the
methods, techniques, plans, specifications, procedures, information, systems and knowledge of
and experience in the development, operation, marketing and licensing of the System
(“Proprietary Information”). You do not acquire any interest in the Proprietary Information other
than the right to utilize it in the development and operation of the Hotel under the terms of the
Franchise Agreement while it is in effect, so that you have no interest in the Proprietary
Information after termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement.
You are required to maintain the absolute confidentiality of the Proprietary Information during and
after the Term. You may not use the Proprietary Information after termination or expiration of the
Franchise Agreement. You must adopt and implement all reasonable procedures we may
periodically establish to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Proprietary Information,
including restrictions on disclosure to employees and the use of non-disclosure and noncompetition clauses in agreements with employees, agents and independent contractors who
have access to the Proprietary Information. These restrictions will not apply to any information
that does not relate or refer in any way or part to the System, Manual, Brand and/or Marks and
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that you can demonstrate came lawfully to your attention before our disclosure or which, at the
time of or after our disclosure, becomes a part of the public domain through lawful publication or
communication by others.
On early termination of the Franchise Agreement, you must pay charges, fees, and actual or
Liquidated Damages as described in Part VIII.
On expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement for any reason, you must immediately
stop holding the Hotel out to the public as a System Hotel, and take whatever action is necessary
to assure that no use is made of any part of the System (including the Marks, all forms of
advertising and other indicia of operation as a System Hotel), and discontinue use of all
distinguishing indicia of System Hotels and Hilton Worldwide affiliated hotels, including such
indicia on exterior and interior signs, stationery, operating equipment and supplies, Internet sites,
brochures and other promotional material at or in connection with the Hotel or otherwise. You
must return to us the Manual and all other proprietary materials, remove all distinctive System
features of the Hotel, including the primary freestanding sign down to the structural steel, and
take all other actions (“De-identification Actions”) we require to preclude any possibility of
confusion on the part of the public that the Hotel is still using all or any part of the System or is
otherwise holding itself out to the public as a System Hotel.
If you fail to comply with the De-identification Actions within 30 days after termination or expiration
of the Franchise Agreement, you must pay Liquidated Damages as described in Part VIII for each
day of delay in complying with your obligations until full compliance is given to our satisfaction in
addition to payment of all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, that we
and/or our affiliates incur in connection with your non-compliance.
PART XV
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND OTHER AGREEMENTS
Exhibit D contains the Franchise Agreement and Addendum.
Exhibit D-1 contains the Development Incentive Note.
Exhibit D-2 contains the Eforea Spa Amendment.
Exhibit E contains the Guaranty of Franchise Agreement.
Exhibit F contains the Hotel Project Application.
Exhibit G contains the HITS Agreement.
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EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A

HILTON
OPEN
ALGERIA
Daewoo Algerie Hotellerie Loisirs et Immobilier SPA, Algiers, Algeria, Pins Maritimes El Mohammadia Algiers, Algeria 16000 21-219-696
BAHAMAS
BB Entertainment Ltd, Bimini Resort, Bahamas, Hilton at Resorts World Bimini North Bimini, Bahamas 888-930-8688
BELGIUM
Town Hotel S.A., Brussels City, Belgium, Place Charles Rogier 20 Brussels, Belgium 1210 2-2033125
CANADA
La Societe des Casinos du Quebec Inc., Lac Leamy, Quebec, Canada, 3, Boulevard du Casino Gatineau-Ottawa, Canada J8Y 6X4 819-790-6444
MH Hotels (Meadowvale) Limited, Mississauga/Meadowvale, Ontario, Canada, 6750 Mississauga Road Mississauga, Canada L5N 2L3 905-821-1981
Groupe Hotelier Grand Chateau, Inc., Montreal/Laval, Quebec, Canada, 2225, autoroute des Laurentides Laval, Canada H7S 1Z6 450-682-2225
Hospitality Fallsview Holdings Inc., Niagara Falls, Ontario, Canada, 6361 Fallsview Boulevard Niagara Falls, Canada L2G 3V9 905-354-7887
InnVest Real Estate Investment Trust, Quebec, Canada, 1100 Rene Levesque East Quebec City, Canada G1R 4P3 418-647-2411
InnVest Hotels LP, Saint John Trade and Convention Center,, 1 Market Square Saint John, Canada E2L 4Z6 506-693-8484
Silver Hotels (YYZ) HTA Inc., Toronto Airport, Ontario, Canada, 5875 Airport Road Mississauga, Canada L4V 1N1 905-677-9900
145 Richmond Street West Limited Partnership, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, 145 Richmond Street West Toronto, Canada M5H 2L2 416-869-3456
Markham Suites Hotel Limited, Toronto/Markham Suites Conference Centre, 8500 Warden Avenue Markham, Canada L6G 1A5 905-470-8500
Vancouver Airport Centre Ltd, Vancouver-Airport, BC, Canada, 5911 Minoru Blvd Richmond, Canada V6X 4C7 604-273-6336
DSDL Canada Investments Ltd., Vancouver-Metrotown, BC, Canada, 6083 McKay Avenue Burnaby, Canada V5H 2W7 604-438-1200
WW Hotels (Whistler) Limited Partnership, Whistler Resort & Spa, BC, Canada, 4050 Whistler Way Whistler, Canada V0N 1B4 604-932-1982
Berry Wellington Hotel LP, Winnipeg Airport, Manitoba, Canada, 1800 Wellington Avenue Winnipeg, Canada R3H 1B2 204-783-1700
CHAD
SGI Holding FZE, N'Djamena, Chad, Cornish Road N'Djamena, Chad 99999 65596559
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC
Playa Romana Mar B.V., La Romana All Inclusive Adult Resort, Do, Playa Bayahibe La Romana, Dominican Republic 23000 2218880
Playa Romana Mar B.V., La Romana All Inclusive Family Resort, D, Playa Bayahibe Section B La Romana, Dominican Republic 23000 2218880
ECUADOR
Hotel Colon Guayaquil S.A., Colon Guayaquil, Ecuador, Av. Francisco de Orellana Mz. 111 Guayaquil, Ecuador 4-5010000
Hotel Colon International CA, Colon Quito, Ecuador, Amazonas N 1914 Y Patria Avenida Quito, Ecuador 2-3828300
FINLAND
Scandic Hotels Oy, Helsinki Airport, Finland, Lentajankuja 1 Vantaa, Finland 01530 9-73220
Scandic Hotels Oy, Helsinki Kalastajatorppa, Finland, Kalastajatorpantie 1 Helsinki, Finland 00330 9-45811
Scandic Hotels Oy, Helsinki Strand, Finland, John Stenbergin ranta 4 Helsinki, Finland 00530 9-39351
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FRANCE
Societe d'Exploitation Hoteliere de Roissy S.A.S, Paris Charles de Gaulle Airport, France, Roissypole, Rue de Rome, BP16461 Roissy CDG Cedex, France 95708 1-4919-7777
Societe d'Exploitation Hoteliere du Palais SAS, Strasbourg, France, 1, avenue Herrenschmidt Strasbourg, France F - 67000 388-371010
FRENCH POLYNESIA
SA Moorea Lagoon Resort & Spa, Moorea, French Polynesia, BP 1005 PAPETOAI, French Polynesia 98728 40-551111
GERMANY
Elba Dresden Operating GmbH, Dresden, Germany, An der Frauenkirche 5 Dresden, Germany 01067 351-86420
Elba Dusseldorf Operating GmbH & Co. KG, Dusseldorf, Germany, Georg-Glock Strasse 20 Dusseldorf, Germany D-40474 211-43770
GUAM
Premier Ken Guam L.P., Guam Resort & Spa, Guam, 202 Hilton Road Tumon Bay, 96913 671-646-1835
GUATEMALA
Profesionales en Turismo, S. A., Guatemala City, Guatemala, Km. 9.5 CA-1 East Vista Real Complex Guatemala City, Guatemala 01015 242-70000
HONDURAS
Premium & Confort, S.A. de C.V., Princess San Pedro Sula, Honduras, Ave. Circunvalacion, 10 calle S.O. San Pedro Sula, Honduras 2-545-6900
HUNGARY
Danubius Hotel Operation and Services (Danubius Zrt), Budapest, Hungary, Hess A. ter 1-3 Budapest, Hungary H-1014 1-889-6600
ICELAND
Flugleidahotel ehf, Reykjavik, Iceland, Sudurlandsbraut 2 Reykjavik, Iceland 108 444-5000
IRELAND
Thornmont Limited, Kilmainham, Dublin, Ireland, South Circular Road Kilmainham Dublin, Ireland 1-4201800
JAMAICA
Hilmobay Resort Limited, Rose Hall Resort & Spa, Jamaica, West In, Rose Hall Road Montego Bay, Jamaica 000000 876-953-2650
JAPAN
K.K. Narita Kosuge Operations, Tokyo Narita Airport, Japan, 456 Kosuge Narita, Japan 286-0127 476-331121
MEXICO
Servicios E Inmuebles Turisticos, S. DE R.L. DE C.V., Guadalajara, Mexico, Ave. de la Rosas 2933 Guadalajara, Mexico 44530 33-3678-0505
Cibanco, S.A., Institucion De Banca Mutliple, acting solely, Los Cabos Beach & Golf Resort, Mexico, Carretera Transpeninsular Los Cabos, Mexico 23447 624-145-6500
Chartwell de Nuevo Laredo, S.A. de C.V., Mexico City-Airport, Mexico, International Mexico City Airport Mexico City, Mexico 15620 55-5133-0505
Inmobiliaria y Proyectos TRPlaya, S. de R.L. de C.V., Playa del Carmen, Mexico, Avenida Constituyentes 2 Gonzalo Guerrero Playa del Carmen, Mexico 77710 984-877-2900
Inmobiliaria en Hoteleria Vallarta Santa Fe, S. de R.L. de C, Puerto Vallarta, Mexico, Ave de las Garzas 136 Zona Hotelera Puerto Vallarta, Mexico 48333 322-1761176
Hospitalidad Real de Lomas, S.A. de C.V., San Luis Potosi, Mexico, Avenida Real de Lomas No. 1000 Fracc. Lomas de Sa San Luis Potosi, Mexico 78218 444-8250125
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MONTENEGRO
Hotel Crna Gora d.o.o., Podgorica, Montenegro, Bulevar Svetog Petra Cetinjskog 2 Podgorica, Montenegro 81000 20-443443
NEW CALDONIA
Societe Touristique De L'Anse Vata, Noumea La Promenade Residences, New Cald, 109 Promenade Roger Laroque Noumea, New Caldonia 98807 2-44600
NICARAGUA
Real Estate, Inc. Sociedad Anonima, Princess Managua, Nicaragua, Km 4.5 Carretera a Masaya Managua, Nicaragua 22555777
PERU
I&G Hispania S.A.C., Lima Miraflores, Peru, Avenida La Paz 1099 Lima, Peru 18 1-200-8000
POLAND
Filip Wojcikiewicz, Gdansk, Poland, Targ Rybny 1 Gdansk, Poland 80-838 58-7787100
PORTUGAL
Moura Stock Investimentos Turisticos E Hoteleiros, S.A., Vilamoura, Portugal, Rua da Torre d Agua Lote 4.11.1B Vilamoura, Portugal 8125615 289-304000
ROMANIA
S.C. Palace Dumbrava S.R.L., Sibiu, Romania, 1st, Padurea Dumbrava Street Sibiu, Romania 550399 269-505600
RUSSIA
Joint Stock Company Sadko Hotel, Moscow Leningradskaya, Russia, Kalanchevskaya Street 21 40 Moscow, Russia 107078 495-627-5550
SOUTH KOREA
Dongwon Inc., Grand Seoul, South Korea, 353 Yeonhui-ro, Seodaemun-gu Seoul, South Korea 120-710 2-3216-5656
Wooyang Industry Development Co., Ltd., Gyeongju, South Korea, 484-7, Bomun-ro Gyeongju, South Korea 38117 54-7457788
CDL Hotels (Korea) Ltd., Millennium Seoul, South Korea, 50, Sowol-Ro, Jung-Gu Seoul, South Korea 04637 2-7537788
SPAIN
Hotelera Diagonal S.L., Barcelona, Spain, Avenida Diagonal 589-591 Barcelona, Spain 08014 93-4957777
SWITZERLAND
Elba I Swiss GmbH and Elba II Swiss GmbH, Zurich Airport, Switzerland, Hohenbuehlstrasse 10 Opfikon, Switzerland 8152 44-8285050
TURKEY
ISR Turizm Isletmeleri ve Ticaret A.S., Bodrum Turkbuku Resort & Spa, Turkey, Sapli Koyu Golturkbuku Bodrum Mugla, Turkey 48452 252-3110150
Durmazlar Makina Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S., Bursa, Turkey, Istanbul Caddesi No 347 Bursa, Turkey 16210 224-5000505
Gocay Tourism, Management, Investment, Transportation & Trad, Dalaman Sarigerme Resort & Spa, Turkey, Sarigerme Tourism Center, PO11 Mugla, Turkey 48610 252-4441981
Cayirli Turizm Otelcilik Tic. A.S., Istanbul Bakirkoy, Turkey, Sakizagaci Mahallesi Kennedy Caddesi No 103, Bakirkoy Istanbul, Turkey 34142 212-9422500
Emaytas Turizm Gayrimenkul Yonetin Hizmetleri Sanayi ve Tic, Istanbul Kozyatagi, Turkey, Sahrayicedit Mah. Batman Sok No 4 Istanbul, Turkey 34734 216-4680000
SUMMA Turizm Yatirimciligi A.S., Istanbul Maslak, Turkey, Maslak, Buyukdere Cd. No 233, Maslak,Sariyer Istanbul, Turkey 34485 212-3051000
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UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
Dubai National Investment Company LLC, Dubai Al Habtoor City, United Arab Emira, Al Habtoor City, Sheikh Zayed Road Dubai, United Arab Emirates 4-4373333
UNITED KINGDOM
Craigendarroch Limited, Bath City, United Kingdom, Walcot Street Bath, United Kingdom BA1 5BJ 1225-463411
Dragonglass Belfast Limited, Belfast, United Kingdom, 4 Lanyon Place Belfast, United Kingdom BT1 3LP 28-90277000
That Bournemouth Big Hotel Limited, Bournemouth, UK, Terrace Road Bournemouth, United Kingdom BH2 5EL 1202-804775
Dragonglass UK Holding Limited, Edinburgh Grosvenor, United Kingdom, Grosvenor Street Haymarket Edinburgh, United Kingdom EH12 5EF 131-2266001
Hotel Collection Hotel No 2 Limited, Edinburgh, United Kingdom, 19 North Bridge Edinburgh, United Kingdom EH1 1SD 131-4723000
Sojourn Hotels LLP, Hilton London Bankside, 2-8 Great Suffolk Street London, United Kingdom SE1 0UG 20-36675600
Dragonglass Stakis SPE Limited, London Angel Islington, United Kingdom, 53 Upper Street London, United Kingdom N1 0UY 207-3547700
Excel Hospitality Limited, London Gatwick Airport, United Kingdom, South Terminal Gatwick Airport Gatwick, United Kingdom RH6 0LL 1293-518080
Shiva Hotels Heathrow Limited, London Heathrow Airport Terminal 5 / Poy, Poyle Road Colnbrook, United Kingdom SL3 0FF 1753-686860
Dragonglass Milton Keynes Limited, Milton Keynes, United Kingdom, Timbold Drive, Kents Hill Park Milton Keynes, United Kingdom MK7 6HL 1908-694-433
UNITED STATES
ALABAMA
Campus Hospitality Services, LLC, Birmingham, AL, 808 20th Street South Birmingham, AL 35205 205-933-9000
State of Alabama, The Lodge at Gulf State Park, AL, 21196 East Beach Blvd Gulf Shores, AL 36542 251-540-4000
ALASKA
CP Anchorage Hotel 2, LLC, Anchorage, AK, 500 West Third Avenue Anchorage, AK 99501 907-272-7411
ARIZONA
Chandler Hospitality Property, L.P., Phoenix/Chandler, AZ, 2929 W Frye Road Chandler, AZ 85224 480-899-7400
Sun Quorum, L.L.C., Phoenix/Mesa, AZ, 1011 West Holmes Avenue Mesa, AZ 85210-4923 480-833-5555
47th Street Phoenix Airport LLC, Phoenix-Airport, AZ, 2435 South 47th Street Phoenix, AZ 85034-6410 480-894-1600
Arizona SC Hotel Owner, LLC, Scottsdale, AZ, 6333 North Scottsdale Road Scottsdale, AZ 85250-5428 480-948-7750
Tucson East Holding, LLC, Tucson East, AZ, 7600 East Broadway Blvd. Tucson, AZ 85710-3705 520-721-5600
HSL El Conquistador LLC, Tucson-El Conquistador, AZ, 10000 North Oracle Road Tucson, AZ 85704 520-544-5000
CALIFORNIA
Wave Crest Oceanfront LLC, Cape Rey Carlsbad, a Hilton Resort, 1 Ponto Road Carlsbad, CA 92011 760-602-0800
CHSP TRS Los Angeles LLC, Checkers Los Angeles, CA, 535 South Grand Avenue Los Angeles, CA 90071 213-624-0000
L & L Hospitality Management Inc, Concord, CA, 1970 Diamond Blvd Concord, CA 94520-5718 925-827-2000
LB Funding LLC, Long Beach, CA, 701 West Ocean Boulevard Long Beach, CA 90831-3102 562-983-3400
NA Glendale LLC, Los Angeles North/Glendale & Executive M, 100 West Glenoaks Blvd Glendale, CA 91202 818-956-5466
Sun Hill Real Estate, LLC, Los Angeles/Universal City, CA, 555 Universal Hollywood Drive Universal City, CA 91608-1001 818-506-2500
Lancer Investments, LLC, Los Angeles-San Gabriel, CA, 225 West Valley Boulevard San Gabriel, CA 91776 626-270-2700
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Ashford TRS CM LLC, Orange County/Costa Mesa, CA, 3050 Bristol St. Costa Mesa, CA 92626 714-540-7000
Walter Family Partnership, Palm Springs, CA, 400 East Tahquitz Canyon Way Palm Springs, CA 92262-6605 760-320-6868
Pasadena Robles Acquisition LLC, Pasadena, CA, 168 South Los Robles Avenue Pasadena, CA 91101 626-577-1000
SAC Hospitality LLC, Sacramento/Arden West, CA, 2200 Harvard St Sacramento, CA 95815-3306 916-922-4700
Bartell Hotels, a California Limited Partnership, San Diego Airport/Harbor Island, CA, 1960 Harbor Island Drive San Diego, CA 92101 619-291-6700
LHO San Diego One Lessee, Inc, San Diego Gas Lamp Quarter, CA, 401 K Street San Diego, CA 92101 619-231-4040
LHO Mission Bay Rosie Lessee, Inc., San Diego Resort and Spa , CA, 1775 East Mission Bay Drive San Diego, CA 92109 619-276-4010
GC Del Mar Operator, LLC, San Diego/Del Mar, CA, 15575 Jimmy Durante Blvd Del Mar, CA 92014-1901 858-792-5200
Kalpana MV Hotel, LLC, San Diego/Mission Valley, CA, 901 Camino del Rio South San Diego, CA 92108 619-543-9000
Harbor View Hotels Inc., San Francisco Airport, CA, 600 Airport Blvd. Burlingame, CA 94010 650-340-8500
Justice Operating Company, LLC, San Francisco Financial District, CA, 750 Kearny Street San Francisco, CA 94108 415-433-6600
Han's Hospitalityat 300 San Jose, LLC, San Jose, CA, 300 Almaden Boulevard San Jose, CA 95110 408-287-2100
Ontario Airport Hotel Corporation, Santa Clara, CA, 4949 Great America Parkway Santa Clara, CA 95054 408-330-0001
A7PP HSV LLC, Santa Cruz/Scotts Valley, CA, 6001 La Madrona Drive Santa Cruz, CA 95060 831-440-1000
Stockton Hospitality LP, Stockton, CA, 2323 Grand Canal Blvd Stockton, CA 95207-8233 209-957-9090
The Waterfront Hotel, LLC, The Waterfront Beach Resort-Huntington B, 21100 Pacific Coast Hwy Huntington Beach, CA 92648-5307 714-845-8000
Canoga Hotel Corporation, Woodland Hills/Los Angeles, CA, 6360 Canoga Avenue Woodland Hills, CA 91367-2501 818-595-1000
COLORADO
Silverwest-I Inverness LLC, Denver/Inverness, CO, 200 Inverness Drive West Englewood, CO 80112 303-799-5800
Pool IV TRS, LLC, Fort Collins, CO, 425 West Prospect Road Fort Collins, CO 80526 970-482-2626
CONNECTICUT
HT-315 Trumbull Street Associates, LLC, Hartford, CT, 315 Trumbull Street Hartford, CT 06103 860-728-5151
DDH Hotel Mystic, LLC, Mystic, CT, 20 Coogan Boulevard Mystic, CT 06355-1900 860-572-0731
PHF II Stamford LLC, Stamford Hotel & Executive Meeting Cente, 1 First Stamford Place Stamford, CT 06902 203-967-2222
DELAWARE
MJ Wilmington Hotel Associates, LP, Wilmington/Christiana, DE, 100 Continental Drive Newark, DE 19713-4301 302-454-1500
FLORIDA
Heafey/Bentley Management, LLC, Bentley Miami/South Beach, FL, 101 Ocean Drive Miami Beach, FL 33139 305-938-4600
Stanford Lake Hotel, Inc., Boca Raton Suites, FL, 7920 Glades Road Boca Raton, FL 33434 561-483-3600
RLJ Cabana Miami Beach Lessee, LLC, Cabana Miami Beach, FL, 6261 Collins Avenue Miami Beach, FL 33140 305-864-6261
CP Clearwater, LLC, Clearwater Beach, FL, 400 Mandalay Avenue Clearwater, FL 33767 727-461-3222
1550 North Atlantic, LLC, Cocoa Beach Oceanfront, FL, 1550 North Atlantic Ave Cocoa Beach, FL 32931-3268 321-799-0003
Daytona Beach Owner Opco, L.L.C., Daytona Beach Oceanfront Resort, FL, 100 North Atlantic Avenue Daytona Beach, FL 32118 386-254-8200
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KHP IV Key Largo TRS LLC, Key Largo Resort, FL, 97000 Overseas Highway Key Largo, FL 33037 305-852-5553
Marco Beach Hotel, Inc, Marco Island Beach Resort and Spa, FL, 560 South Collier Boulevard Marco Island, FL 34145 239-394-5000
DW MLB H OWNER LLC, Melbourne Beach Oceanfront, FL, 3003 North Highway A1A Melbourne, FL 32903-2133 321-777-5000
Melbourne Hotel XL Owner LLC, Melbourne Rialto Place Hilton, FL, 200 Rialto Place Melbourne, FL 32901-3092 321-768-0200
Resorts World Omni LLC, Miami/Downtown, FL, 1601 Biscayne Blvd Miami, FL 33132 305-374-0000
Naples Hospitality Limited Partnership, Naples, FL, 5111 Tamiami Trail North Naples, FL 34103 239-430-4900
MJ Ocala Hotel Associates, Ltd, Ocala, FL, 3600 Southwest 36th Ave Ocala, FL 34474 352-854-1400
Altamonte Hospitality, LP, Orlando-Altamonte Springs, FL, 350 Northlake Blvd Altamonte Springs, FL 32701-5297 407-830-1985
MSP Partners Realty, LLC, PALM BEACH-AIRPORT, FL, 150 Australian Avenue West Palm Beach, FL 33406-1473 561-684-9400
Fulford Harbour, LLC, Pensacola Beach, FL, 12 Via de Luna Drive Pensacola Beach, FL 32561 850-916-2999
Sandestin Beach Hotel, Ltd, Sandestin Beach Golf Resort & Spa, FL, 4000 Sandestin Boulevard South Miramar Beach, FL 32550-4214 850-267-9500
CCHI Singer Island LLC, Singer Island Oceanfront/Palm Beaches, F, 3700 North Ocean Drive Riviera Beach, FL 33404 561-848-3888
Sea Wall Motor Lodge, Inc., St. Augustine-Historic Bayfront, FL, 32 Avenida Menendez Saint Augustine, FL 32084 904-829-2277
Ashford TRS Lessee II, LLC, St. Petersburg, FL, 333 1st St SE Saint Petersburg, FL 33701-4342 727-894-5000
Hobbs & Curry Family Limited Partnership, St. Petersburg/Carillon Park, FL, 950 Lake Carillon Drive Saint Petersburg, FL 33716 727-540-0050
CIP 2014 Tampa Tenant LLC, Tampa Downtown, FL, 211 North Tampa Street Tampa, FL 33602 813-204-3000
HHC TRS Tampa, LLC, TAMPA-AIRPORT/WESTSHORE, FL, 2225 N Lois Ave Tampa, FL 33607-2355 813-877-6688
AREP II GH Hotel, LLC, University of Florida Conference Center, 1714 SW 34th Street Gainesville, FL 32607 352-371-3600
GEORGIA
Proc GA, LP, Atlanta Perimeter, GA, 6120 Peachtree Dunwoody Rd. Atlanta, GA 30328-4513 770-668-0808
Marietta Leasehold LP, Atlanta/Marietta Conference Center, GA, 500 Powder Springs St Marietta, GA 30064 770-427-2500
Sky Harbor Atlanta Northeast, LLC, Atlanta-Northeast, GA, 5993 Peachtree Industrial Blvd. Peachtree Corners, GA 30092-3416 770-447-4747
HAWAII
Ocean View Hotel Corporation, Waikiki Beach, HI, 2500 Kuhio Ave. Honolulu, HI 96815 808-922-0811
ILLINOIS
PIL II, LP, Chicago Magnificent Mile, IL, 198 E. Delaware Place Chicago, IL 60611-1719 312-664-1100
Fireside Land Development, L.L.C., Chicago/Northbrook, IL, 2855 Milwaukee Ave Northbrook, IL 60062 847-480-7500
PH OBH Hotel Owner, LLC, Chicago/Oak Brook Hills Resort, IL, 3500 Midwest Road Oak Brook, IL 60523 630-850-5555
Rich Oak Lawn Hotel, LLC, Chicago/Oak Lawn, IL, 9333 South Cicero Avenue Oak Lawn, IL 60453-2517 708-425-7800
JPMCC 2006-LDP7 CORPORATE WEST DRIVE, LLC, Lisle/Naperville, IL, 3003 Corporate West Drive Lisle, IL 60532 630-505-0900
Oakbrook Hilton Suites And Garden Inn, LLC, Oakbrook Terrace, IL, 10 Drury Lane Oakbrook Terrace, IL 60181 630-941-0100
Evanston Orrington Hotel, LLC, Orrington/Evanston, IL, 1710 Orrington Avenue Evanston, IL 60201 847-866-8700
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INDIANA
Welcome Fort Wayne LLC, Fort Wayne at the Grand Wayne Convention, 1020 South Calhoun Street Fort Wayne, IN 46802-3005 260-420-1100
SWVP Indy LLC, Indianapolis, IN, 120 West Market Street Indianapolis, IN 46204 317-972-0600
KENTUCKY
WHG Turfway LLC, Cincinnati Airport, KY, 7373 Turfway Road Florence, KY 41042-1356 859-371-4400
Lexington Downtown Hotel, LLC, Lexington/Downtown, KY, 369 West Vine Street Lexington, KY 40507 859-231-9000
RB Seelbach Building LLC, The Seelbach Hilton Louisville, KY, 500 Fourth Street Louisville, KY 40202-2518 502-585-3200
LOUISIANA
RBP Baton Rouge LLC, Baton Rouge Capitol Center, LA, 201 Lafayette Street Baton Rouge, LA 70801 225-344-5866
Sunstone St. Charles Lessee, Inc., New Orleans/St. Charles Avenue, LA, 333 St. Charles Avenue New Orleans, LA 70130 504-378-2800
Historic Restoration, Inc., Shreveport, LA, 104 Market Street Shreveport, LA 71101 318-698-0900
MARYLAND
BPG Hotel Partners XI, LLC, Baltimore BWI Airport, MD, 1739 West Nursery Road Linthicum Heights, MD 21090 410-694-0808
Harrison Inn Stardust Business Trust, Ocean City Oceanfront, MD, 3200 North Baltimore Ocean City, MD 21842 410-289-6444
Gaithersburg Operator, LLC, Washington DC North/Gaithersburg, MD, 620 Perry Parkway Gaithersburg, MD 20877 301-977-8900
1750 Rockville Pike, LLC, Washington DC/Rockville Executive Meetin, 1750 Rockville Pike Rockville, MD 20852-1699 301-468-1100
MASSACHUSETTS
DiamondRock Boston Broad Street Tenant, LLC, Boston Downtown/Faneuil Hall, MA, 89 Broad Street Boston, MA 02110 617-556-0006
P-LR-5A, LP, Boston/Dedham, MA, 25 Allied Drive Dedham, MA 02026-6147 781-329-7900
Woburn Hotel Operator, LLC, Boston/Woburn, MA, 2 Forbes Road Woburn, MA 01801 781-932-0999
PIM TRS Boston Back Bay LLC, Boston-Back Bay, MA, 40 Dalton St Boston, MA 02115 617-236-1100
MICHIGAN
Motor City Hotel, LLC, Auburn Hills, MI, 2300 Featherstone Road Auburn Hills, MI 48326-2844 248-334-2222
MINNESOTA
Hotel Operator (MN) TRS 16-87, Inc., Minneapolis/Bloomington, MN, 3900 American Blvd West Bloomington, MN 55437 952-893-9500
Ashford TRS Minneapolis Airport LLC, Minneapolis/St. Paul Airport Mall of Ame, 3800 American Blvd E Bloomington, MN 55425 952-854-2100
MISSISSIPPI
AWH-BP Jackson Hotel, LLC, Jackson, MS, 1001 East County Line Road Jackson, MS 39211 601-957-2800
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MISSOURI
Branson Landing Hotel, L.L.C., Branson-Convention Center Hotel, MO, 200 East Main Street Branson, MO 65616 417-336-5400
LCP-BV KCI Hotel TRS LLC, Kansas City-Airport, MO, 8801 NW 112th Street Kansas City, MO 64153 816-891-8900
President Hotel TC, LC, Kansas City-President, MO, 1329 Baltimore Kansas City, MO 64105 816-221-9490
Boutique Hotel Development Company, L.L.C., Promenade at Branson Landing, MO, 3 Branson Landing Branson, MO 65616 417-336-5500
HDH, LLC, St. Louis at the Ballpark, MO, 1 South Broadway Saint Louis, MO 63102 314-421-1776
RB STL Arch LLC, St. Louis Downtown At The Arch, MO, 400 Olive St. Saint Louis, MO 63102 314-436-0002
Frontenac Property Owner, LLC, St. Louis/Frontenac, MO, 1335 South Lindbergh Blvd. Saint Louis, MO 63131 314-993-1100
SLAH, LLC, St. Louis-Airport, MO, 10330 Natural Bridge Road Saint Louis, MO 63134-3303 314-426-5500
NEVADA
Newage Lake Las Vegas, LLC, Lake Las Vegas Resort & Spa, Henderson,, 1610 Lake Las Vegas Parkway Henderson, NV 89011 702-567-4700
NEW JERSEY
EBH 18, LLC, East Brunswick, NJ, 3 Tower Center Boulevard East Brunswick, NJ 08816 732-828-2000
650 Terrace Ave LLC, Hasbrouck Heights/Meadowlands, NJ, 650 Terrace Avenue Hasbrouck Heights, NJ 07604 201-288-6100
ML Plaza Owner LLC, Meadowlands, NJ, Two Meadowlands Plaza East Rutherford, NJ 07073 201-896-0500
Raymond Owner LLC, Newark Penn Station, NJ, 1048 Raymond Blvd. Newark, NJ 07102-5107 973-622-5000
HHC TRS FP Portfolio, LLC, Parsippany, NJ, 1 Hilton Ct Parsippany, NJ 07054 973-267-7373
CP Woodcliff Lakes, LLC, Woodcliff Lake, NJ, 200 Tice Boulevard Woodcliff Lake, NJ 07677-9998 201-391-3600
NEW MEXICO
Buffalo Thunder Inc., Santa Fe Buffalo Thunder, NM, 20 Buffalo Thunder Trail Santa Fe, NM 87506 505-455-5555
Ashford TRS Santa Fe LLC, Santa Fe, NM, 100 Sandoval St Santa Fe, NM 87501 505-988-2811
NEW YORK
AFP 107 Corp., Albany, NY, 40 Lodge Street Albany, NY 12207 518-462-6611
140 Schermerhorn Street Property Owner LLC, Brooklyn New York, NY, 140 Schermerhorn St. Brooklyn, NY 11201 718-834-8800
Blue Pearl Hospitality LLC, Long Island Huntington, NY, 598 Broad Hollow Road Melville, NY 11747-5002 631-845-1000
Fashion 26th Street, LLC, New York / Fashion District, 152 West 26th Street New York, NY 10001 212-858-5888
JFK Hotel Partners LLC (f/k/a Risingsam Ditmars LLC), New York JFK Airport, NY, 144-02 135th Avenue Jamaica, NY 11436 718-659-0200
Sunstone 42nd Street Lessee, Inc., New York-Times Square, NY, 234 West 42nd Street New York, NY 10036 212-840-8222
Blue Hill Plaza Inn, Inc, Pearl River, NY, 500 Veterans Memorial Drive Pearl River, NY 10965-3209 845-735-9000
534 Saratoga Broadway, LP, The Saratoga, NY, 534 Broadway Saratoga Springs, NY 12866 518-584-4000
NORTH CAROLINA
Biltmore Park Hotel, LLC, Asheville Biltmore Park, NC, 43 Town Square Blvd Asheville, NC 28803 828-209-2700
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Charlotte N.C. Hotel Corporation, Charlotte Center City, NC, 222 East Third Street Charlotte, NC 28202 704-377-1500
UPH Lakeside Limited Partnership, Charlotte University Place, NC, 8629 JM Keynes Drive Charlotte, NC 28262 704-547-7444
BRE Charhiltex LLC, Charlotte-Executive Park, NC, 5624 Westpark Drive Charlotte, NC 28217 704-527-8000
3800 Hillsborough Durham, LP, Durham Near Duke University, NC, 3800 Hillsborough Road Durham, NC 27705-2328 919-383-8033
Greenville Prime Investors, LLC, Greenville, NC, 207 SW Greenville Blvd Greenville, NC 27834-6907 252-355-5000
FRO II Raleigh Hotel Owner LLC, Raleigh North Hills, NC, 3415 Wake Forest Road Raleigh, NC 27609-7330 919-872-2323
OHIO
Fairlawn Associates, Ltd., Akron Fairlawn, OH, 3180 W. Market Street Akron, OH 44333-3365 330-867-5000
Cincinnati Netherland Hotel LLC, Cincinnati Netherland Plaza, OH, 35 West Fifth Street Cincinnati, OH 45202 513-421-9100
Columbus Easton Hotel, LLC, Columbus at Easton, OH, 3900 Chagrin Drive Columbus, OH 43219 614-414-5000
NP Platinum Hotel, LLC, Columbus/Polaris, OH, 8700 Lyra Drive Columbus, OH 43240 614-885-1600
OKLAHOMA
Skirvin Partners, LLC, The Skirvin Hilton Oklahoma City, OK, One Park Avenue Oklahoma City, OK 73102 405-272-3040
OREGON
GEOR Lessee LLC, Eugene, OR, 66 East 6th Avenue Eugene, OR 97401-2667 541-342-2000
PENNSYLVANIA
2012 Harrisburg Investment LLC, Harrisburg, PA, One North Second Street Harrisburg, PA 17101-1601 717-233-6000
Penn's Landing Partners Project, LLC, Philadelphia at Penn's Landing, PA, 201 S. Christopher Columbus Blvd. Philadelphia, PA 19106 215-521-6500
Stout Road Associates, Inc., Philadelphia City Avenue, PA, 4200 City Avenue Philadelphia, PA 19131 215-879-4000
Scranchris Hospitality, LP, Scranton & Conference Center, PA, 100 Adams Avenue Scranton, PA 18503-1826 570-343-3000
RHODE ISLAND
PRI I, LP, Providence, RI, 21 Atwells Avenue Providence, RI 02903 401-831-3900
SOUTH CAROLINA
Vista Hotel Partners, LLC, Columbia Center, SC, 924 Senate Street Columbia, SC 29201 803-744-7800
45 West Orchard Park Drive LLC, Greenville, SC, 45 West Orchard Park Drive Greenville, SC 29615-3548 864-232-4747
TENNESSEE
LBG Music City, LLC, Brentwood/Nashville Suites, TN, 9000 Overlook Boulevard Brentwood, TN 37027 615-370-0111
Meridian Hotel Partners, LLC, Franklin/Cool Springs, TN, 601 Corporate Centre Drive Franklin, TN 37067 615-771-1995
Knoxville Airport Hotel Company, Knoxville Airport, TN, 2001 Alcoa Highway Alcoa, TN 37701-3163 865-970-4300
Knoxville Hotel XXV Owner LLC, Knoxville, TN, 501 West Church Avenue Knoxville, TN 37902-2591 865-523-2300
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LCBV Memphis Operating, LLC, Memphis, TN, 939 Ridge Lake Boulevard Memphis, TN 38120 901-684-6664
FWREF Nashville Airport, LLC, Nashville Airport, TN, 2200 Elm Hill Pike Nashville, TN 37214 615-883-9770
Nashville Downtown Hotel, LLC, Nashville Downtown, TN, 121 Fourth Avenue South Nashville, TN 37201 615-620-1000
TEXAS
2401 Lamar (Dallas) Esong LLC, Arlington, TX, 2401 East Lamar Boulevard Arlington, TX 76006-7503 817-640-3322
Austin-Bergstrom Landhost Enterprises, Inc., Austin Airport, TX, 9515 Hotel Drive Austin, TX 78719 512-385-6767
Cambridge I Holdings, LLC, College Station, TX, 801 University Drive East College Station, TX 77840-2116 979-693-7500
Woodbine Legacy/Park Cities Owner, LLC, Dallas/Park Cities, TX, 5954 Luther Lane Dallas, TX 75225 214-368-0400
2055 Summer Lee Rockwall Owner, LLC, Dallas/Rockwall, TX, 2055 Summer Lee Drive Rockwall, TX 75032 214-771-3700
Hobbs & Curry Family Limited Partnership, Dallas/Southlake Town Square, TX, 1400 Plaza Place Southlake, TX 76092 817-442-9900
DFW Lakes Owner, LLC, DFW Lakes/Grapevine, TX, 1800 Highway 26E Grapevine, TX 76051-9641 817-481-8444
Ashford TRS Fort Tower I LLC, Fort Worth, TX, 815 Main St Fort Worth, TX 76102 817-870-2100
Fertitta Hospitality, LLC, Galveston Island, TX, 5400 Seawall Boulevard Galveston, TX 77551 409-744-5000
6780 Southwest Fwy, Houston, LLC, Houston Galleria Area, TX, 6780 Southwest Freeway Houston, TX 77074-2102 713-977-7911
Ashford TRS Lessee II, LLC, Houston NASA Clear Lake, TX, 3000 Nasa Pkwy Houston, TX 77058-4322 281-333-9300
12400 Greenspoint Hotel, LLC, Houston North, TX, 12400 Greenspoint Drive Houston, TX 77060 281-875-2222
The Plaza Hotel, Inc, Houston Plaza/Medical Center, TX, 6633 Travis Street Houston, TX 77030-1308 713-313-4000
9999 Westheimer Road, Houston, LLC, Houston Westchase, TX, 9999 Westheimer Road Houston, TX 77042-3802 713-974-1000
University of Houston, Houston-University of Houston, TX, 4450 University Drive Houston, TX 77204 832-531-6300
Palacio del Rio, Inc., Palacio del Rio, TX, 200 South Alamo Street San Antonio, TX 78205 210-222-1400
GSPYR San Antonio, LLC, San Antonio Hill Country, TX, 9800 Westover Hills Blvd. San Antonio, TX 78251 210-509-9800
SAT Hotel Partners, LLC, San Antonio-Airport, TX, 611 NW Loop 410 San Antonio, TX 78216 210-340-6060
WI-ERI Waco H Property, L.P., Waco, TX, 113 South University Parks Drive Waco, TX 76701-2241 254-754-8484
VERMONT
DiamondRock Burlington Tenant, LLC, Burlington, VT, 60 Battery Street Burlington, VT 05401 802-658-6500
VIRGINIA
CRP Mark Center Hotel, L.L.C., Alexandria-Mark Center, VA, 5000 Seminary Road Alexandria, VA 22311 703-845-1010
THC Arlington, LLC, Arlington, VA, 950 North Stafford Street Arlington, VA 22203 703-528-6000
JBG/Crystal City Hotel Operator, L.L.C., Crystal City at Washington Reagan Nation, 2399 Jefferson Davis Highway Arlington, VA 22202 703-418-6800
Norfolk Hotel Associates, LLC, Norfolk The Main, VA, 100 East Main Street Norfolk, VA 23510 757-763-6200
HRIP Miller & Rhoads Acquisition LLC, Richmond Downtown, VA, 501 East Broad Street Richmond, VA 23219 804-344-4300
Henley SPW, LLC, Richmond West/Short Pump, VA, 12042 West Broad Street Richmond, VA 23233 804-364-3600
Ramspring Springfield LLC, Springfield, VA, 6550 Loisdale Road Springfield, VA 22150-1801 703-971-8900
3001 Atlantic, LLC, Virginia Beach Oceanfront, VA, 3001 Atlantic Avenue Virginia Beach, VA 23451 757-213-3000
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Dulles Hotel Corporation, Washington-Dulles, VA, 13869 Park Center Road Herndon, VA 20171 703-478-2900
WASHINGTON
Wig Properties LLC – Bell2, Bellevue, WA, 300 112th Avenue SE Bellevue, WA 98004 425-455-1300
10-1301 HSW Owner, LLC, Seattle, WA, 1301 6th Avenue Seattle, WA 98101-2304 206-624-0500
WISCONSIN
Marcus Hotels & Resorts, Inc., Madison Monona Terrace, WI, 9 East Wilson Street Madison, WI 53703 608-255-5100
Milwaukee City Center, LLC, Milwaukee-City Center, WI, 509 W. Wisconsin Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53203 414-271-7250
SIGNED BUT NOT YET OPENED
CANADA
Steve Gupta, Toronto/North York, Ontario, Canada, 4050 Yonge Street Toronto, Canada M2P 2G2
CHINA
Lijiang Xianglu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Lijiang, China, Shuhe Village under Wutai Committee Huangshan Town Lijiang, China 674100 888-3077016
COLUMBIA
Fideicomiso Palmanova - Alianza Fiduciaria S.A., Medellin, Colombia, Avenida Las Palmas y Avd Poblado Medellin, Columbia
DENMARK
BC Hospitality Group A/S, Copenhagen City Centre, Denmark, Standgade 3, 1401 Copenhagen K Copenhagen, Denmark 1401
DENMARK
BCHG SPV ApS, Copenhagen Gate, Denmark, 2150 Nordhavn, Copenhagen, Denmark. copenhagen, Denmark
JAPAN
Gloverhill, Inc, nagasaki, 42, 1, Onouemachi, Nagasaki-city, Nagas aki, Japan nagasaki, Japan
POLAND
Zdrojowa Hotels West Pomerania Sp. z o.o., Swinoujscie, Poland, Baltic Park Molo 4 Swinoujscie, Poland 72-600 91-4040900
TAJIKISTAN
CJSE CHL International, Dushanbe, Tajikistan, 48, Ayni street Dushanbe, Tajikistan 48-7030000
TURKEY
BSB AND Yapi Turizm A.S., Ankara, Turkey, Gulnihal Sokak, No. 9 Pursaklar Ankara, Turkey 061445
ASF Otelcilik ve Turizm Isletmeleri Tic. Ltd. Sti., Antakya Museum / Hatay, Turkey, St. Pierre Mevkii Haraparasi mah Hacilar sok. No 26 Antakya, Turkey 31060 326-2251020
Ata Turizm Isletmecilik Tasimacilik Madencilik Kuyumculuk Sa, Denizli (Pamukkale), Turkey, Pamukkale Denizli, Turkey
TRN Otel Isletmeciligi Ve Yatirimlari Anonim Sirketi, Mall of Istanbul, Turkey, Mall of Istanbul, Suleyman Demirel Bulvari,Basaksehir, Istanbul,Turkey Istanbul, Turkey 34306
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UNITED KINGDOM
Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, East Burn Road, Stoneywood Aberdeen, United Kingdom AB21 9FX 1224984111
UNITED STATES
CALIFORNIA
The Source Hotel, LLC, Buena Park/Orange County, CA, 6986 Beach Blvd. Buena Park, CA 90621
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
L'Enfant DC Hotel LLC, Washington DC/National Mall, 480 L'Enfant Plaza SW Washington DC, DC 20024 202-484-1000
FLORIDA
Aventura Hospitality, LLC, Aventura, FL, 2781 NE 191 Street Aventura, FL 33180
Five Stars Hotel & Hospitality Management LLC, Miami Bayfront, FL, 555 North Miami Avenue Miami, FL 33132
BHE Hospitality, LLC, Miami/Dadeland, FL, 9100 North Kendall Drive Miami, FL 33176 786-975-1920
GEORGIA
WP Hotel Owner LLC, Alpharetta, GA, SEQ of GA 400 Windward Parkway Alpharetta, GA 30005
East River Street, LLC, Savannah Riverfront/Historic District, G, NE Quad of East River Street East Bay Street on Savannah Rive Savannah, GA 31401
MINNESOTA
Legacy Hospitality I, LLC, Rochester/Mayo Clinic Area, MN, 10 East Center Street Rochester, MN 55904 507-258-5757
NEW JERSEY
KMS Development Partners, LP, Hoboken Waterfront, NJ, 1 Frank Sinatra Drive Hoboken, NJ 07030
NORTH CAROLINA
RALHAM, L.L.C., Raleigh-Durham Airport/Brier Creek, NC, 10100 Lumley Road Raleigh, NC 27617
TENNESSEE
CHGL Cleghorn Hotel Partners, LLC, Nashville/Green Hills, TN, 3801 Cleghorn Avenue Nashville, TN 37215 615-297-9979
UZBEKISTAN
Akfa Dream World LLC, Tashkent, Uzbekistan, Islam Karimov Prospect Tashkent, Uzbekistan 100005 998-971301456
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Exhibit B
Hilton
ITALY
Giardini Naxos, Italy, RussottFinance S.p.A., Messina, Italy, 39-90650771
MEXICO
Monterrey Valle, Nuevo Leon, Mexico, Desarrollos Urbanisticos IVC S.A. de C.V., San Pedra Garza Garcia, Nuevo Leon, Mexico, 52-8181007200
Villahermosa Airport, Mexico, Immobiliaria Puerta Maya S.A. de C.V., Villahermosa, Mexico, 0-529933503643
NEW CALEDONIA
Lifou Island, New Caledonia, SAS Gygadeix, Noumea, New Caldonia
RUSSIA
Borodino Moscow region, Russia, Lendoner LLC, Moscow, Russia, 749-57872893
SPAIN
Sa Torre, Mallorca, Spain, Hotel Sa Torre Mallorca S.L., Barcelona, Spain, 93-1575775
UNITED KINGDOM
Blackpool, United Kingdom, Dragonglass Stakis SPE Limited, London, United Kingdom
Coylumbridge, United Kingdom, Dragonglass Stakis SPE Limited, London, United Kingdom
Leeds Arena, United Kingdom, Oxford GB Two Limited, Sunbury-on-Thames, United Kingdom, 1932-733900
London Green Park, United Kingdom, London and Regional (Green Park) Hotel Limited, London, United Kingdom
UNITED STATES
ARIZONA
Scottsdale Resort & Villas, Procaccianti AZ II, L.P., Cranston, RI, 02920 401-946-4600
DISTRICT COLUMBIA
Washington DC North Gaithersburg, Perry Parkway Hotel Associates Operator, Inc., Atlanta, GA, 30326 678-538-1919
FLORIDA
Melbourne Rialto Place, MRP Hotel, LLC, Los Angeles, CA, 90036 323-410-7022
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ILLINOIS
Chicago Indian Lakes, IL, First ILR, L.L.C., Rosemont, IL, 60018 847-299-9040
MISSOURI
Kansas City Airport, MCI Hotel Partners, LLC, Los Angeles, CA, 90067 310-407-3233
St. Louis Downtown at the Arch, MCR St. Louis LLC, New York, NY, 10019 212-277-5601
NEW JERSEY
Hasbrouck Heights/Meadowlands, 650 Terrace Ave, LLC, Edison, NJ, 08817 732-744-1455
Newark Penn Station, IVC WHH Newark, LLC, New York, NY, 10017 212-351-3992
NEW YORK
New York Grand Central, NY, PNY III, LLC, Cranston, RI, 02920 401-946-4600
SOUTH CAROLINA
Greenville, UVH Greenville, LLC, Atlanta, GA, 30339 404-249-8310
TEXAS
Houston North, Sunstone Longhorn Lessee LP, Irvine, CA, 92618 949-382-3008
VIRGINIA
Virginia Beach, Thirty-first Street, LLC, Virginia Beach, VA, 23451 757-491-3000
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EXHIBIT D

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

[ENTER HOTEL NAME AND CITY/STATE HERE]
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Franchise Agreement is entered between Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited (“we,” “us,” “our” or
“Franchisor”) and the Franchisee set forth in the Addendum (“you,” “your” or “Franchisee) is dated as of
the Effective Date. We and you may collectively be referred to as the “Parties.”
INTRODUCTION
We are an Affiliate of Hilton Worldwide. Hilton Worldwide and its Affiliates own, license, lease, operate,
manage and provide various services for the Network. We are authorized to grant licenses for selected,
first-class, independently owned or leased hotel properties, to operate under the Brand. You have
expressed a desire to enter into this Agreement with us to obtain a license to use the Brand in the operation
of a hotel at the address or location described in the Addendum.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the undertakings and commitments of each
Party to the other Party in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows:
1.0

DEFINITIONS

The following capitalized terms will have the meanings set forth after each term:
“Affiliate” means any natural person or firm, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, association,
trust or other entity which, directly or indirectly, controls, is controlled by, or is under common Control with,
the subject entity.
“Agreement” means this Franchise Agreement, including any exhibits, attachments and addenda.
“Anti-Corruption Laws” means all applicable anti-corruption, anti-bribery, anti-money laundering, books
and records, and internal controls laws.
“Brand” means the brand name set forth in the Addendum.
“Change of Ownership Application” means the application that is submitted to us by you or the Transferee
for a new franchise agreement in connection with a Change of Ownership Transfer.
“Change of Ownership Transfer” means any proposed Transfer that results in a change of Control of
Franchisee, the Hotel, or the Hotel Site and is not otherwise permitted by this Agreement, all as set out in
Subsection 12.2.2.
[DELETE FOR OL, QQ, UP “Competing Brand” means a hotel brand or trade name that, in our sole
business judgment, competes with the System, or any System Hotel or Network Hotel.
[DELETE FOR OL, QQ, UP “Competitor” means any individual or entity that, at any time during the Term,
whether directly or through an Affiliate, owns in whole or in part, or is the licensor or franchisor of a
Competing Brand, irrespective of the number of hotels owned, licensed or franchised under such
Competing Brand name. A Competitor does not include an individual or entity that: (i) is a franchisee of a
Competing Brand; (ii) manages a Competing Brand hotel, so long as the individual or entity is not the
exclusive manager of the Competing Brand; or (iii) owns a minority interest in a Competing Brand, so long
as neither that individual or entity nor any of its Affiliates is an officer, director, or employee of the Competing
Brand, provides services (including as a consultant) to the Competing Brand, or exercises, or has the right
to exercise, Control over the business decisions of the Competing Brand.
“Construction Commencement Date” means the date set out in the Addendum, if applicable, by which
you must commence construction of the Hotel. For the Hotel to be considered under construction, you
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must have begun to pour concrete foundations for the Hotel or otherwise satisfied any site-specific criteria
for “under construction” set out in the Addendum.
“Construction Work” means all necessary action for the development, construction, renovation, furnishing,
equipping and implementation of the Plans and Designs for the Hotel.
“Construction Work Completion Date” means the date set out in the Addendum, if applicable, by which
you must complete construction of the Hotel.
“Control” means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of an entity, or of the power to veto major policy decisions of an entity, whether
through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise.
“Controlling Affiliate” means an Affiliate that directly or indirectly Controls the Hotel and/or Controls the
entity that Controls the Hotel.
“Designs” means your plans, layouts, specifications, drawings and designs for the proposed furnishings,
fixtures, equipment, signs and décor of the Hotel that use and incorporate the Standards.
“Effective Date” means the date set out in the Addendum on which this Agreement becomes effective.
“Equity Interest” means any direct or indirect legal or beneficial interest in the Franchisee, the Hotel and/or
the Hotel Site.
“Equity Owner” means the direct or indirect owner of an Equity Interest.
“Expiration Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.
“Force Majeure” means an event causing a delay in our or your performance that is not the fault of or within
the reasonable control of the Party claiming Force Majeure. Force Majeure includes fire, floods, natural
disasters, Acts of God, war, civil commotion, terrorist acts, any governmental act or regulation beyond such
Party’s reasonable control. Force Majeure does not include your financial inability to perform, inability to
obtain financing, inability to obtain permits, licenses, zoning variances or any other similar events unique
to you, or the Hotel, or to general economic downturn or conditions.
“Government” or “Government Entity” means any: (i) agency, instrumentality, subdivision or other body
of any national, regional, local or other government; (ii) commercial or similar entities owned or controlled
by such government, including any state-owned and state-operated companies; (iii) political party; and
(iv) public international organization.
“Government Official” means: (i) officers and employees of any Government; (ii) officers and employees
of companies in which a Government owns an interest; (iii) any private person acting in an official capacity
for or on behalf of any Government or Government Entity (such as a consultant retained by a government
agency); (iv) candidates for political office at any level; (v) political parties and their officials; (vi) officers,
employees, or official representatives of public (quasi-governmental) international organizations (such as
the United Nations, World Bank, or International Monetary Fund).
[INSERT FOR HFS “Gross Food and Beverage Revenue” means all revenues (including credit
transactions whether or not collected) derived from food and beverage-related operations of the Hotel and
associated facilities, and all banquet, reception and meeting room rentals, including all restaurants (unless
leased from third-party operators), dining, bar, lounge and retail food and beverage services, at the actual
rates charged, less allowances for any rebates and overcharges, and excluding any sales, hotel,
entertainment or similar taxes collected from patrons or guests.
“Gross Receipts Tax” means any gross receipts, sales, use, excise, value added or any similar tax.
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“Gross Rooms Revenue” means all revenues derived from the sale or rental of Guest Rooms (both
transient and permanent) of the Hotel, including revenue derived from the redemption of points or rewards
under the loyalty programs in which the Hotel participates, amounts attributable to breakfast (where the
guest room rate includes breakfast), Mandatory Guest Fees, late cancellation fees, and guaranteed noshow revenue and credit transactions, whether or not collected, at the actual rates charged, less allowances
for any Guest Room rebates and overcharges, and will not include taxes collected directly from patrons or
guests. Group booking rebates, if any, paid by you or on your behalf to third-party groups for group stays
must be included in, and not deducted from, the calculation of Gross Rooms Revenue.
“Guarantor” means the person or entity that guaranties your obligations under this Agreement or any of
Your Agreements.
“Guest Rooms” means each rentable unit in the Hotel generally used for overnight guest accommodations,
the entrance to which is controlled by the same key, provided that adjacent rooms with connecting doors
that can be locked and rented as separate units are considered separate Guest Rooms. The initial number
of approved Guest Rooms is set forth in the Addendum.
“Hilton Worldwide” means Hilton Worldwide Holdings Inc., a Delaware corporation (NYSE:HLT).
“Hotel” means the property you will operate under this Agreement and includes all structures, facilities,
appurtenances, furniture, fixtures, equipment, and entry, exit, parking and other areas located on the Hotel
Site we have approved for your business or located on any land we approve in the future for additions,
signs, parking or other facilities.
“Hotel Site” means the real property on which the Hotel is located or to be located, as approved by us.
“Hotel Work” means Construction Work and/or Renovation Work, as the case may be, and the context
requires.
“Hotel’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees” means: (a) if the Hotel has been operating for at least 24
months, the quotient of all Monthly Royalty Fees due under this Agreement for the twenty-four (24) month
period immediately preceding the month of termination divided by twenty-four (24); and (b) if the Hotel has
not been operating for at least twenty-four (24) months, the quotient of all Monthly Royalty Fees due under
this Agreement for the period between the Opening Date and the termination date divided by the number
of months between the Opening Date and the termination date. Any percentage fee discounts (including
fee ramps) are excluded from the calculation of Hotel’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees.
“Improper Payment” means: (a) any payment, offer, gift or promise to pay or authorization of the payment
or transfer of other things of value, including without limitation any portion of the compensation, fees or
reimbursements received hereunder or the provision of any service, gift or entertainment, directly or
indirectly to (i) a Government Official; (ii) any director, officer, employee or commercial partner of a Party
or its Affiliates; or, (iii) any other person at the suggestion, request or direction or for the benefit of any of
the above-described persons and entities, for purposes of obtaining or influencing official actions or
decisions or securing any improper advantage in order to obtain, retain or direct business; (b) payments
made and expenses incurred in connection with performance of obligations under this Agreement that are
not made and recorded with sufficient accuracy, detail, and control to meet the standards in applicable AntiCorruption Laws; or (c) any other transaction in violation of applicable Anti-Corruption Laws.
“Indemnified Parties” means us and our Affiliates and our and their respective predecessors, successors
and assigns, and the members, officers, directors, employees, managers, and agents.
“Information” means all information we obtain from you or about the Hotel or its guests or prospective
guests under this Agreement or under any agreement ancillary to this Agreement, including agreements
relating to the computerized reservation, revenue management, property management, and other systems
we provide or require, or otherwise related to the Hotel. Information includes, but is not limited to,
Operational Information, Proprietary Information, and Personal Information.
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“Interim Remedy” has the meaning set forth in Subsection 13.3.
“Laws” means all public laws, statutes, ordinances, orders, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, certificates,
authorizations, directions and requirements of all Governments and Government Entities having jurisdiction
over the Hotel, Hotel Site or over Franchisee to operate the Hotel, which, now or hereafter, may apply to
the construction, renovation, completion, equipping, opening and operation of the Hotel.
“License” has the meaning set forth in Subsection 2.1.
“Liquidated Damages” has the meaning set forth in Subsections 6.4.4 and 13.4.
“Management Company” has the meaning set forth in Subsection 7.1.
“Mandatory Guest Fee” means any separate fee that a patron or guest is charged for in addition to the
base room rate for a guest room, including but not limited to resort fees, facility fees, destination fees,
amenity fees, urban destination fees, or any other similar fee. Mandatory Guest Fees do not include
employee gratuities, state or local mandatory taxes, and other tax-like fees and assessments that are
levied on a stay, as determined by us, that are passed through to a third party (such as tourism public
improvement district fees, tourism or improvement assessments, and convention center fees).
“Manual” means all written compilations of the Standards. The Manual may take the form of one or more
of the following: one or more looseleaf or bound volumes; bulletins; notices; videos; CD-ROMS and/or
other electronic media; online postings; e-mail and/or electronic communications; facsimiles; or any other
medium capable of conveying the Manual’s contents.
“Marks” means the Brand and all other business names, copyrights, designs, distinguishing characteristics,
domain names, emblems, insignia, logos, slogans, service marks, symbols, trademarks, trade dress and
trade names (whether registered or unregistered) used in the System.
“Monthly Fees” means, collectively, [INSERT FOR HFS: the Monthly Food and Beverage Fee; the Monthly
Program Fee and the Monthly Royalty Fee.
[INSERT FOR HFS “Monthly Food and Beverage Fee” means the fee we require from you in Subsection
8.1, which is set forth in the Addendum.
“Monthly Program Fee” means the fee we require from you in Subsection 8.1, which is set forth in the
Addendum.
“Monthly Royalty Fee” means the fee we require from you in Subsection 8.1, which is set forth in the
Addendum.
“Network” means the hotels, inns, conference centers, timeshare properties and other operations that
Hilton Worldwide and its subsidiaries own, license, lease, operate or manage now or in the future.
“Network Hotel” means any hotel, inn, conference center, timeshare property or other similar facility within
the Network.
“Opening Date” means the day on which we first authorize the opening of the facilities, Guest Rooms or
services of the Hotel to the general public under the Brand.
“Operational Information” means all information concerning the Monthly Fees, other revenues generated
at the Hotel, room occupancy rates, reservation data and other financial and non-financial information we
require.
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“Other Business(es)” means any business activity we or our Affiliates engage in, other than the licensing
of the Hotel.
“Other Hotels” means any hotel, inn, lodging facility, conference center or other similar business, other
than a System Hotel or a Network Hotel.
“Permitted Transfer” means any Transfer by you or your Equity Owners that does not result in a Change
of Control of you, the Hotel, or the Hotel Site, as specified in Section 12.2 of this Agreement.
“Person(s)” means a natural person or entity.
“Personal Information” means any information that: (i) can be used (alone or when used in combination
with other information within your control) to identify, locate or contact an individual; or (ii) pertains in any
way to an identified or identifiable individual. Personal Information can be in any media or format, including
computerized or electronic records as well as paper-based files.
“PIP” means product improvement plan.
“PIP Fee” means the fee we charge for creating a PIP.
“Plans” means your plans, layouts, specifications, and drawings for the Hotel that use and incorporate the
Standards.
“Principal Mark” is the Mark identified as the Principal Mark in the Addendum.
“Privacy Laws” means any international, national, federal, provincial, state, or local law, code, rule or
regulation that regulates the processing of Personal Information in any way, including data protection laws,
laws regulating marketing communications and/or electronic communications, information security
regulations and security breach notification rules.
“Proprietary Information” means all information or materials concerning the methods, techniques, plans,
specifications, procedures, data, systems and knowledge of and experience in the development, operation,
marketing and licensing of the System, including the Standards and the Manuals, whether developed by
us, you, or a third party.
“Publicly Traded Equity Interest” means any Equity Interest that is traded on any securities exchange or
is quoted in any publication or electronic reporting service maintained by the National Association of
Securities Dealers, Inc., or any of its successors.
“Quality Assurance Re-Evaluation Fee” has the meaning set forth in Subsection 4.5.
“Renovation Commencement Date” means the date set out in the Addendum, if applicable, by which you
must commence Renovation Work.
“Renovation Work” means the renovation and/or construction work, as the context requires, including
purchasing and/or leasing and installation of all fixtures, equipment, furnishings, furniture, signs, computer
terminals and related equipment, supplies and other items that would be required of a new System Hotel
under the Manual, and any other equipment, furnishings and supplies that we may require for you to operate
the Hotel as set out in any PIP applicable to the Hotel.
“Renovation Work Completion Date” means any date set out in the Addendum by which you must
complete Renovation Work.
“Reports” mean daily, monthly, quarterly and annual operating statements, profit and loss statements,
balance sheets, and other financial and non-financial reports we require.
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“Reservation Service” means the reservation service we designate in the Standards for use by System
Hotels.
[INCLUDE ONLY IF RESTRICTED AREA PROVISION GRANTED “Restricted Area Provision” has the
meaning set forth in the Addendum.
“Room Addition Fee” means a sum equal to the then-current Room Addition Fee charged for new System
Hotels multiplied by the number of Additional Guest Rooms you wish to add to the Hotel in accordance with
Subsection 6.6.3.
“Royalty Withholdings” has the meaning set forth in Subsection 8.4.
“Sanctioned Person” means any person, entity, or Government, including those with Control over such
persons or entities, or acting on behalf of such persons or entity, who is subject to Trade Restrictions that
prohibit or restrict the Parties’ performance of the Parties’ obligations under this Agreement.
“Securities” means any public offering, private placement or other sale of securities in you, the Hotel or the
Hotel Site.
“Site” means domain names, the World Wide Web, the Internet, computer network/distribution systems, or
other electronic communications sites, including mobile applications.
“Standards” means all standards, specifications, requirements, criteria, and policies that have been and
are in the future developed and compiled by us for use by you in connection with the design, construction,
renovation, refurbishment, appearance, equipping, furnishing, supplying, opening, operating, maintaining,
marketing, services, service levels, quality, and quality assurance of System Hotels, including the Hotel,
and for hotel advertising and accounting, whether contained in the Manual or set out in this Agreement or
other written communication. The Standards do not include any personnel policies or procedures that we
may, at our option, make available to you in the Manual or other written communication. You may, in your
sole judgment, determine to what extent, if any, any such personnel policies or procedures might apply to
the Hotel or Hotel Site.
“System” means the elements, including know-how, that we designate to distinguish hotels operating
worldwide under the Brand (as may in certain jurisdictions be preceded or followed by a supplementary
identifier such as “by Hilton”) that provide to the consuming public a similar, distinctive, high-quality hotel
service. The System currently includes: the Brand, the Marks, the Trade Name, and the Standards; access
to a reservation service; advertising, publicity and other marketing programs and materials; training
programs and materials; and programs for our inspection of the Hotel and consulting with you.
“System Hotels” means hotels operating under the System using the Brand name and the Standards.
“Taxes” means any and all withholding, sales, use, excise, consumption, VAT and other similar taxes or
duties, levies, fees or assessments of whatsoever nature.
[DELETE FOR OL, UP “System’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees” means the average Monthly Royalty
Fees per Guest Room owed to us by all System Hotels in operation in the United States over the twelve
(12) full calendar month period immediately preceding the month of termination, multiplied by the number
of approved Guest Rooms at the Hotel. Any percentage fee discounts (including fee ramps) are excluded
from the calculation of System’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees. For the avoidance of doubt, any System
Hotel that has not been in operation for at least twelve (12) full calendar months immediately preceding the
month of termination is not included in determining the System’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees.
“Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.0.
“Territory” means Brazil.
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“Trade Name” means the name of the Hotel set forth in the Addendum.
“Trade Restrictions” means trade, economic or investment sanctions, export controls, anti-terrorism, nonproliferation, anti-money laundering and similar restrictions in force pursuant to laws, rules and regulations
imposed under Laws to which the Parties are subject.
“Transfer” means in all its forms, any sale, lease, assignment, spin-off, transfer, or other conveyance of a
direct or indirect legal or beneficial interest.
“Transferee” means the proposed new franchisee resulting from a Transfer.
“Your Agreements” means any other agreement between you and us, or any of our Affiliates, related to
this Agreement, the Hotel and/or the Hotel Site.
2.0

GRANT OF LICENSE

2.1
Non-Exclusive License. We grant to you and you accept a limited, nonexclusive License to use the Marks and the System during the Term at, and in connection with, the operation
of the Hotel in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Provided, however, that 1) your right to operate
the Hotel under the Brand will not become effective until after any existing third-party franchise,
management or similar agreement for the Hotel has terminated or expired; and 2) you are solely responsible
for ensuring that any existing third-party franchise, management or similar agreement has terminated or
expired on or before the Opening Date.
2.2

Reserved Rights.

2.2.1 This Agreement does not limit our right, or the right of our Affiliates, to own, license
or operate any Other Business of any nature, whether in the lodging or hospitality industry or not, and
whether under the Brand, [DELETE FOR OL, QQ, UP a Competing Brand,] or otherwise. We and our
Affiliates have the right to engage in any Other Businesses, even if they compete with the Hotel, the System,
or the Brand, and whether we or our Affiliates start those businesses, or purchase, merge with, acquire,
are acquired by, come under common ownership with, or associate with, such Other Businesses.
2.2.2

We may also:
2.2.2.1

add, alter, delete or otherwise modify elements of the System;

2.2.2.2

use or license to others all or part of the System;

2.2.2.3
use the facilities, programs, services and/or personnel used in
connection with the System in Other Businesses; and
2.2.2.4

use the System, the Brand and the Marks in the Other Businesses.

2.2.3 You acknowledge and agree that you have no rights to, and will not make any
claims or demands for, damages or other relief arising from or related to any of the foregoing activities, and
you acknowledge and agree that such activities will not give rise to any liability on our part, including liability
for claims for unfair competition, breach of contract, breach of any applicable implied covenant of good faith
and fair dealing, or divided loyalty(as such terms are known in the United States of America)..
[INCLUDE ONLY IF RESTRICTED AREA PROVIDED
2.3
Restricted Area Provision. The Restricted Area Provision is set forth in the Addendum.
3.0

TERM
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The Term shall begin on the Effective Date and will end, without further notice, on the Expiration Date set
forth in the Addendum, unless terminated earlier under the terms of this Agreement. You acknowledge and
agree that this Agreement is non-renewable and that this Agreement confers on you absolutely no rights of
license renewal or extension whatsoever following the Expiration Date.
4.0

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

We have the following responsibilities to you under this Agreement. We reserve the right to fulfill some or
all of these responsibilities through one of our Affiliates or through unrelated third parties, in our sole
business judgment. We may require you to make payment for any resulting services or products directly
to the provider.
4.1
Training. We may specify certain required and optional training programs and
provide these programs at various locations. We may charge you for required training services and
materials and for optional training services and materials we provide to you. You are responsible for all
travel, lodging and other expenses you or your employees incur in attending these programs.
4.2
Reservation Service. We will furnish you with the Reservation Service. The
Reservation Service will be furnished to you on the same basis as it is furnished to other System Hotels
in the Territory, subject to the provisions of Subsection 13 below.
4.3
Consultation. We may offer consultation services and advice in areas such as
operations, facilities, and marketing, but you will always remain responsible for hiring your employees and
the terms and conditions of their employment. We may establish fees in advance, or on a project-by-project
basis, for any consultation service or advice you request. Any consultation services and advice that you
request will be given in the United States of America.
4.4

Marketing.

4.4.1 We will publish (either in hard copy or electronic form) and make available to the
traveling public a directory that includes System Hotels. We will include the Hotel in advertising of System
Hotels and in international, national and regional marketing programs in accordance with our general
practice for System Hotels.
4.4.2
System, including:

We will use your Monthly Program Fee to pay for various programs to benefit the

4.4.2.1
other marketing programs;

advertising, promotion, publicity, public relations, market research, and

4.4.2.2

developing and maintaining directories of and Internet sites for System

4.4.2.3

developing and maintaining the Reservation Service systems and

Hotels;

support; and
4.4.2.4
administrative costs and overhead related to the administration or
direction of these projects and programs.
4.4.3 We will have the sole right to determine how and when we spend these funds,
including sole control over the creative concepts, materials and media used in the programs, the placement
and allocation of advertising, and the selection of promotional programs.
4.4.4 We may enter into arrangements for development, marketing, operations,
administrative, technical and support functions, facilities, programs, and/or other services with any other
entity, including any of our Affiliates or third parties.

{018316-022430 00275579.DOCX; 1}

10

BRAND STATE CITY QUALIFIER FACILITY ID TYPE

4.4.5 You acknowledge that Monthly Program Fees are intended for the benefit of the
System and will not simply be used to promote or benefit any one System Hotel or market. We will have
no obligation in administering any activities paid for with the Monthly Program Fee to make expenditures
for you that are equivalent or proportionate to your payments or to ensure that the Hotel benefits directly or
proportionately from such expenditures.
4.4.6 We may create any programs and allocate monies derived from Monthly Program
Fees to any regions or localities, as we consider appropriate in our sole business judgment. The aggregate
of Monthly Program Fees paid to us by System Hotels does not constitute a trust or “advertising fund” and
we are not a fiduciary with respect to the Monthly Program Fees paid by you and other System Hotels.
4.4.7 We are not obligated to expend funds in excess of the amounts received from
System Hotels. If any interest is earned on unused Monthly Program Fees, we will use the interest before
using the principal. The Monthly Program Fee does not cover your costs of participating in any optional
marketing programs and promotions offered by us in which you voluntarily choose to participate. These
Monthly Program Fees do not cover the cost of operating the Hotel in accordance with the Standards.
4.5
Inspections/Compliance Assistance. We will administer a quality assurance
program for the System that may include conducting pre-opening and periodic inspections of the Hotel and
guest satisfaction surveys and audits to ensure compliance with the Standards. You will permit us to inspect
the Hotel without prior notice to you to determine if the Hotel is in compliance with the Standards. You will
cooperate with our representatives during these inspections. You will then take all steps necessary to
correct any deficiencies within the times we establish. You may be charged a Quality Assurance ReEvaluation Fee as set forth in the Standards. You will provide complimentary accommodations for the
quality assurance auditor each time we conduct a regular inspection or a special on-site quality assurance
re-evaluation after the Hotel has failed a regular quality assurance evaluation or to verify that deficiencies
noted in a quality assurance evaluation report or PIP have been corrected or completed by the required
dates.
4.6
Manual. We will issue to you or make available in electronic form the Manual
and any revisions and updates we may make to the Manual during the Term. You agree to ensure that
your copy of the Manual is, at all times, current and up to date. If there is any dispute as to your compliance
with the provisions of the Manual, the master copy of the Manual maintained at our principal office will
control.
4.7
Equipment and Supplies. We will make available to you for use in the Hotel
various purchase, lease, or other arrangements for exterior signs, operating equipment, operating supplies,
and furnishings, which we make available to other System Hotels.
5.0

YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES
5.1

Operational and Other Requirements. You must:
5.1.1

operate the Hotel twenty-four (24) hours a day after the Opening Date;

5.1.2 operate the Hotel using the System, in compliance with this Agreement and the
Standards, and in such a manner to provide courteous, uniform, respectable and high quality lodging and
other services and conveniences to the public. You acknowledge and agree that: (a) you have exclusive
day-to-day control of the business and operation of the Hotel (including hiring your employees and the
terms and conditions of their employment); (b) although we provide the Standards, we do not in any way
possess or exercise day-to-day control of the business and operation of the Hotel; (c) we do not dictate nor
control labor or employment matters for you or your employees; and (d) we are not responsible for the
safety and security of your employees or guests.
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5.1.3 comply with the Standards, including our specifications for all supplies, products
and services. We may require you to purchase a particular brand of product or service to maintain the
common identity and reputation of the Brand, and you will comply with such requirements. Unless we
specify otherwise, you may purchase products from any authorized source of distribution; however, we
reserve the right, in our business judgment, to enter into exclusive purchasing arrangements for particular
products or services and to require that you purchase products or services from approved suppliers or
distributors;
5.1.4 install, display, and maintain signage displaying or containing the Brand name and
other distinguishing characteristics in accordance with Standards we establish for System Hotels;
5.1.5 comply with Standards for the training of persons involved in the operation of the
Hotel, including completion by key personnel of the Hotel of a training program for operation of the Hotel
under the System, at a site we designate. You will pay us all fees and charges, if any, we require for your
personnel to attend these training programs. You are responsible for all travel, lodging and other expenses
you or your personnel incur in attending these programs;
5.1.6 purchase and maintain property management, revenue management, in-room
entertainment, telecommunications, high-speed internet access, and other computer and technology
systems that we designate for the System or any portion of the System based on our assessment of the
long-term best interests of System Hotels, considering the interest of the System as a whole;
5.1.7 advertise and promote the Hotel and related facilities and services on a local and
regional basis in a first-class, dignified manner, using our identity and graphics Standards for all System
Hotels, at your cost and expense. You must submit to us for our approval samples of all advertising and
promotional materials that we have not previously approved (including any materials in digital, electronic or
computerized form or in any form of media that exists now or is developed in the future) before you produce
or distribute them. You will not begin using the materials until we approve them. You must immediately
discontinue your use of any advertising or promotional material we disapprove, even if we previously
approved the materials;
5.1.8 participate in and pay all charges in connection with all required System guest
complaint resolution programs, which programs may include chargebacks to the Hotel for guest refunds or
credits and all required System quality assurance programs, such as guest comment cards, customer
surveys and mystery shopper programs. You must maintain minimum performance Standards and scores
for quality assurance programs we establish;
5.1.9 honor all nationally recognized credit cards and credit vouchers issued for general
credit purposes that we require and enter into all necessary credit card and voucher agreements with the
issuers of such cards or vouchers;
5.1.10 participate in and use the Reservation Service, including any additions,
enhancements, supplements or variants we develop or adopt, and honor and give first priority on available
rooms to all confirmed reservations referred to the Hotel through the Reservation Service. The only
reservation service or system you may use for outgoing reservations referred by or from the Hotel to other
Network Hotels will be the Reservation Service or other reservation services we designate;
5.1.11 comply with Laws and, on request, give evidence to us of compliance;
5.1.12 participate in, and promptly pay all fees, commissions and charges associated
with, all travel agent commission programs and third-party reservation and distribution services (such as
airline reservation systems), all as required by the Standards and in accordance with the terms of these
programs, all of which may be modified;
5.1.13 not engage, directly or indirectly, in any cross-marketing or cross-promotion of the
Hotel with any Other Hotel or related business, without our prior written consent. You agree to refer guests
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and customers, wherever reasonably possible, only to System Hotels or Network Hotels. We may require
you to participate in programs designed to refer prospective customers to Other Hotels. You must display
all material, including brochures and promotional material we provide for System Hotels and Network
Hotels, and allow advertising and promotion only of System Hotels and Network Hotels on the Hotel Site,
unless we specifically direct you to include advertising or promotion of Other Hotels;
5.1.14 treat as confidential the Standards, the Manual and all other Proprietary
Information. You acknowledge and agree that you do not acquire any interest in the Proprietary Information
other than the right to utilize the same in the development and operation of the Hotel under the terms of
this Agreement. You agree that you will not use the Proprietary Information in any business or for any
purpose other than in the development and operation of the Hotel under the System and will maintain the
absolute confidentiality of the Proprietary Information during and after the Term. You will not make
unauthorized copies of any portion of the Proprietary Information; and will adopt and implement all
procedures we may periodically establish in our business judgment to prevent unauthorized use or
disclosure of the Proprietary Information, including restrictions on disclosure to employees and the use of
non-disclosure and non-competition clauses in agreements with employees, agents and independent
contractors who have access to the Proprietary Information;
5.1.15 own fee simple title (or long-term ground leasehold interest for a term equal to the
Term) to the real property and improvements that comprise the Hotel and the Hotel Site, or alternatively, at
our request, cause the fee simple owner, or other third party acceptable to us, to provide its guaranty
covering all of your obligations under this Agreement in form and substance acceptable to us;
5.1.16 maintain legal possession and control of the Hotel and Hotel Site for the Term and
promptly deliver to us a copy of any notice of default you receive from any mortgagee, trustee under any
deed of trust, or ground lessor for the Hotel, and on our request, provide any additional information we may
request related to any alleged default;
5.1.17 not directly or indirectly conduct, or permit by lease, concession arrangement or
otherwise, gaming or casino operations in or connected to the Hotel or on the Hotel Site, or otherwise
engage in any activity which, in our business judgment, is likely to adversely reflect upon or affect in any
manner, any gaming licenses or permits held by us or our Affiliates, or the then-current stature of us or any
of our Affiliates with any gaming commission, board, or similar governmental or regulatory agency, or the
reputation or business of us or any of our Affiliates;
5.1.18 not directly or indirectly conduct or permit the marketing or sale of timeshares,
vacation ownership, fractional ownership, condominiums or like schemes at, or adjacent to, the Hotel. This
restriction will not prohibit you from directly or indirectly conducting timeshare, vacation ownership,
fractional ownership, or condominium sales or marketing at and for any property located adjacent to the
Hotel that is owned or leased by you so long as you do not use any of the Marks in such sales or marketing
efforts and you do not use the Hotel or its facilities in such sales and marketing efforts or in the business
operations of the adjacent property;
5.1.19 participate in and pay all charges related to our marketing programs (in addition to
programs covered by the Monthly Program Fee), all guest frequency programs we require, and any optional
programs that you opt into;
5.1.20 honor the terms of any discount or promotional programs (including any frequent
guest program) that we offer to the public on your behalf, any room rate quoted to any guest at the time the
guest makes an advance reservation, and any award certificates issued to Hotel guests participating in
these programs;
5.1.21 after the Effective Date, comply with all insurance requirements specified in the
Manual at your expense (which includes participating in any insurance program we designate, if applicable),
and maintain, at your expense, insurance of the types and in the minimum amounts we specify in the
Standards. All such insurance must be with insurers having the minimum ratings we specify, name as
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additional insureds the parties we specify in the Standards, and carry the endorsements and notice
requirements we specify in the Standards. If you fail or neglect to obtain or maintain the insurance or policy
limits required by this Agreement or the Standards, we have the option, but not the obligation, to obtain and
maintain such insurance without notice to you, and you will immediately on our demand pay us the
premiums and cost we incur in obtaining this insurance;
5.1.22 not share the business operations and Hotel facilities with any Other Hotel or other
business;
5.1.23 provide to us information we reasonably request about any proposed lease or
sublease of commercial space, or other concession arrangements, in the Hotel in the ordinary course of
business, so that we may review and approve the nature of the proposed business, including the proposed
brand and concept, in compliance with our then-current Standards for System Hotels;
5.1.24 promptly provide to us all information we reasonably request about you and your
Affiliates (including your respective beneficial owners, officers, directors, shareholders, partners or
members) and/or the Hotel, title to the property on which the Hotel is constructed and any other property
used by the Hotel;
5.1.25 not engage in any tenant-in-common syndication or Transfer of any tenant-incommon interest in the Hotel or the Hotel Site;
5.1.26 not, and ensure that that your Equity Owners with controlling Equity Interests,
Affiliates, employees, and Management Company do not, engage in any conduct which we reasonably
determine is likely to adversely reflect upon or affect in any manner the reputation, goodwill, or business of
the Hotel, the System, us and/or any of our Affiliates;
5.1.27 obtain our approval to charge any Mandatory Guest Fee at the Hotel in accordance
with the Standards; and
5.1.28 [DELETE FOR OL, QQ, UP] not become a Competitor, or permit your Affiliate to
become a Competitor, in the [INSERT FOR HFS upper upscale [INSERT FOR DT upscale [INSERT FOR
HAM, upper midscale hotel market segment, or any substantially equivalent market segment, as
determined by Smith Travel Research (“STR”) (or, if STR is no longer in existence, STR’s successor or
other such industry resource that is as equally as reputable as STR).
6.0

HOTEL WORK
6.1

Necessary Consents.

6.1.1 You must obtain our prior written consent before retaining or engaging any
architect, interior designer, general contractor and major subcontractors for the Hotel, which consent will
not be unreasonably withheld.
6.1.2 Plans and Designs must be submitted to us in accordance with the schedule
specified in the Addendum, or any PIP attached to this Agreement.
6.1.3 You shall not commence any Hotel Work unless and until we have issued our
written consent in respect of the Plans and Designs, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.
6.1.4 Before we approve your Plans, your architect or other certified professional must
certify to us that the Plans comply with all Laws related to accessibility/accommodations/facilities for those
with disabilities. You are solely responsible for ensuring that the Plans and Designs (including Plans and
Designs for Hotel Work) comply with our then-current Standards, the Manual, and all Laws.
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6.1.5 Once we have provided our consent to the Plans and Designs, no change may be
made to the Plans or Designs without our prior written consent. By consenting to the Plans and Designs,
or any changes or modifications to the Plans and Designs, we do not warrant the depth of our analysis or
assume any responsibility or liability for the suitability of the Plans and Designs or the resulting Hotel Work.
6.2
Initial Hotel Work. You will perform or cause the Hotel Work to be performed
in accordance with this Agreement, the approved Plans and Designs, the Manual, and any PIP attached to
this Agreement. You will bear the entire cost of the Hotel Work, including the cost of the Plans and Designs,
professional fees, licenses, permits, equipment, furniture, furnishings and supplies. You are solely
responsible for obtaining all necessary licenses, permits and zoning variances required for the Hotel Work,
and for ensuring that all Hotel Work complies with the Standards, the Manual, any PIP, and all Laws.
6.3

Commencement and Completion of the Hotel Work.

6.3.1 You will commence the Hotel Work on or before the Construction Commencement
Date or Renovation Commencement Date specified in the Addendum or any PIP. You must promptly
provide to us evidence satisfactory to us that the Construction Work or Renovation Work has commenced.
Once commenced, the Hotel Work will continue uninterrupted except to the extent continuation is prevented
by events of Force Majeure. You must give written notice to us specifying the nature and duration of any
event of Force Majeure promptly after becoming aware of the event of Force Majeure, and specifying that
you have used, and continue to use, reasonable endeavours to mitigate the effects of such event of Force
Majeure until such event of Force Majeure ceases to exist.
6.3.2 The Hotel Work must be completed, and the Hotel must be furnished, equipped,
and otherwise made ready to open in accordance with the terms of this Agreement no later than the
Construction Work Completion Date or Renovation Work Completion Date specified in the Addendum or
any PIP, as the applicable Date may be extended.
6.3.3 Despite your obligation to commence and complete Hotel Work by the agreed
deadlines, we agree that the Construction Commencement Date, Renovation Commencement Date,
Construction Work Completion Date, or Renovation Work Completion Date specified in the Addendum or
any PIP will be automatically extended by thirty (30) days on a rolling basis, unless we provide at least sixty
(60) days’ notice to you that these automatic extensions of the applicable deadline no longer apply. You
must obtain our approval for any further extension of the applicable deadline after receipt of our notice. We
may, in our sole discretion, grant or deny approval, or condition our approval of your extension request on
(a) your payment of our then-current extension fee; (b) your prompt submission of a written status of the
project, including such information as we might reasonably request; and/or (c) any other conditions we
consider appropriate under the circumstances.
6.4

Opening the Hotel.

6.4.1 If the Hotel is not open under the Brand on the Effective Date, you will open the
Hotel on the Opening Date. You will not open the Hotel unless and until you receive our written consent to
do so pursuant to Subsection 6.4.2 or 6.4.3.
6.4.2 You will give us at least fifteen (15) days advance notice that you have complied
with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Hotel is ready to open. We will use reasonable
efforts within fifteen (15) days after we receive your notice to visit the Hotel and to conduct other
investigations as we deem necessary to determine whether to authorize the opening of the Hotel, but we
will not be liable for delays or loss occasioned by our inability to complete our investigation and to make
this determination within the fifteen (15) day period. If you fail to pass our initial opening site visit, we may,
in our sole business judgment, charge you reasonable fees associated with any additional visits.
6.4.3

We shall be entitled to withhold our consent to the opening of the Hotel until:
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6.4.3.1
your architect, general contractor or other certified professional
provides us with a certificate stating that the as-built premises comply with all Laws relating to
accessibility/accommodations/facilities for those with disabilities;
6.4.3.2

you have complied with all the terms and conditions in this Agreement;

6.4.3.3

your staff has received adequate training and instruction in the manner

we require;
6.4.3.4
you have received authorization to open the Hotel from the relevant
governmental authority for the jurisdiction in which the Hotel is located, if applicable; and
6.4.3.5
6.4.4

all fees and charges you owe to us or our Affiliates have been paid.

Opening the Hotel before the Opening Date is a material breach of this Agreement.

6.4.4.1
You will pay us Liquidated Damages in the amount of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000) per day if you open the Hotel before the Opening Date to compensate us for the damage
caused by such breach. You must also reimburse us for all of our costs and expenses, including legal fees,
incurred in enforcing our rights under this Agreement.
6.4.4.2
These Liquidated Damages for damage to our Marks shall not limit or
exclude any other remedies we may have at law or in equity. You acknowledge and agree that that the
Liquidated Damages payable under this Subsection represent a reasonable estimate of the minimum just
and fair compensation for the damages we will suffer as the result of the opening of the Hotel before the
Opening Date in material breach of this Agreement.
6.5
Performance of Agreement. You must satisfy all of the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, and equip, supply, staff and otherwise make the Hotel ready to open under our
Standards. As a result of your efforts to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, you will
incur significant expense and expend substantial time and effort. You acknowledge and agree that we will
have no liability or obligation to you for any losses, obligations, liabilities or expenses you incur if we do not
authorize the Hotel to open or if we terminate this Agreement because you have not complied with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement.
6.6

Hotel Refurbishment and Room Addition.

6.6.1 We may periodically require you to modernize, rehabilitate and/or upgrade the
Hotel’s fixtures, equipment, furnishings, furniture, signs, computer hardware and software and related
equipment, supplies and other items to meet the then-current Standards. You will make these changes at
your sole cost and expense and in the time frame we require.
6.6.2 You may not make any significant changes (including major changes in structure,
design or décor) in the Hotel. Minor redecoration and minor structural changes that comply with our
Standards will not be considered significant.
6.6.3 You may not make any change in the number of approved Guest Rooms in the
Addendum without our prior consent. If you wish to add additional Guest Rooms to the Hotel after the
Opening Date, you must submit an application to obtain our consent, pay our then-current Room Addition
Fee, and execute an amendment to this Agreement in the form required by us. As a condition to our granting
approval of your application, we may require you to modernize, rehabilitate or upgrade the Hotel in
accordance with Subsection 6.6.1 of this Agreement, and to pay us our then-current PIP Fee to prepare a
PIP to determine the renovation requirements for the Hotel. The Room Addition Fee is consideration for
services rendered in the United State of America by us and/or our Affiliates in connection with the evaluation
and processing of such application.
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7.0

STAFF AND MANAGEMENT OF THE HOTEL

7.1
You are solely responsible for the management of the Hotel’s business. You
will provide qualified and experienced management (a “Management Company”) [IF APPLICABLE at least
six (6) months before the Opening Date]. Your Management Company must be approved by us in writing.
We have the right to communicate directly with the Management Company and managers at the Hotel. We
may rely on the communications of such managers or Management Company as being on your behalf. Any
Management Company and its employees must have the authority to perform all of your obligations under
this Agreement. The engagement of a Management Company does not reduce your obligations under this
Agreement. In the case of any conflict between this Agreement and any agreement with the Management
Company, this Agreement prevails.
7.2
You represent and agree that you have not, and will not, enter into any lease,
management agreement or other similar arrangement for the operation of the Hotel or any part of the Hotel
without our prior written consent. To be approved by us as the operator of the Hotel, you, or any proposed
Management Company, must be qualified to manage the Hotel. We may refuse to approve you or any
proposed Management Company [DELETE FOR OL, UP, QQ, that is a Competitor or which, in our
business judgment, is inexperienced, or unqualified in managerial skills or operating capability, or is unable
or unwilling to adhere fully to your obligations under this Agreement.
7.3
If your approved Management Company [DELETE FOR OL, UP, QQ becomes
a Competitor, resigns or is terminated by you, or otherwise becomes unsuitable or unqualified, in our sole
business judgment, to manage the Hotel during the Term, you will have ninety (90) days to retain a
substitute Management Company that is acceptable to us.
8.0

PAYMENT OF FEES

8.1
Franchise Application Fee. You must pay to us a Franchise Application Fee
in the amount specified on the Addendum. We must receive the Franchise Application Fee after expiration
of the applicable waiting period as a condition to our execution of the Franchise Agreement.
8.2
Monthly Fees. Beginning on the Opening Date, you will pay to us for each
month (or part of a month, including the final month you operate under this Agreement) the Monthly Fees,
each of which is set forth in the Addendum.
8.3

Calculation and Payment of Fees.

8.3.1 The Monthly Fees will be calculated in accordance with the accounting methods
of the then-current Uniform System of Accounts for the Lodging Industry, or such other accounting methods
specified by us in the Manual. For purposes of this Agreement, the conversion rate for Gross Rooms
Revenue and Gross Food and Beverage Revenue into U.S. Dollars for hotels utilizing our then-current
proprietary property management system shall be the daily rate of exchange reported by the Wall Street
Journal in New York (or such other reference source as we may periodically specify). For hotels not utilizing
our then-current proprietary property management system, the conversion of Gross Rooms Revenue and
Gross Food and Beverage Revenue into U.S. Dollars shall be the rate of exchange reported by the Wall
Street Journal in New York (or such other reference source as we may periodically specify) for the purchase
of U.S. Dollars as of the 15th day of the month after the month in which the Gross Rooms Revenue or
Gross Food and Beverage Revenue was generated.
8.3.2 The Monthly Fees will be paid to us at the place and in the manner we designate
on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of each month and will be accompanied by our standard schedule
setting forth in reasonable detail the computation of the Monthly Fees for such month.
8.3.3 We may require you to transmit the Monthly Fees and all other payments required
under this Agreement by wire transfer or other form of electronic funds transfer and to provide the standard
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schedule in electronic form. You must bear all costs of wire transfer or other form of electronic funds transfer
or other electronic payment and reporting.
8.3.4 In the event of fire or other insured casualty that results in a reduction of Gross
Rooms Revenue [INSERT ONLY FOR HFS and Gross Food and Beverage Revenue], you will determine
and pay us, from the proceeds of any business interruption or other insurance applicable to loss of
revenues, an amount equal to the forecasted Monthly Fees, based on the Gross Rooms Revenue [INSERT
ONLY FOR HFS and Gross Food and Beverage Revenue amounts agreed on between you and your
insurance company that would have been paid to us in the absence of such casualty.
8.3.5 [INSERT ONLY FOR HFS If Hotel accommodations are bundled with food and
beverage arrangements or other services when charged to the customer, you will make a good faith
reasonable allocation of the resulting revenue between Gross Rooms Revenue and Gross Food and
Beverage Revenue, consistent with the Uniform System of Accounts for the Lodging Industry.
8.4
Other Fees. You will timely pay all amounts due us or any of our Affiliates for any invoices
or for goods or services purchased by or provided to you or paid by us or any of our Affiliates on your behalf.
8.5
Taxes. All fees and charges payable to us or any of our Affiliates under this Agreement,
including the Franchise Application Fee and the Monthly Program Fee (but not the Monthly Royalty Fee),
shall be exclusive of Taxes. The Monthly Royalty Fees payable under this Agreement shall be exclusive of
any Taxes, except for any taxes in the nature of income tax imposed on measurement of net income with
respect to the Monthly Royalty Fees (“Royalty Withholdings”).
8.5.1 If we are required by any applicable law to make any deduction or withholding on
account of Taxes or otherwise, excluding any Royalty Withholdings, from any payment payable to us or
any of our Affiliates, you shall, together with such payment, pay such additional amount as will ensure that
we or any of our Affiliates receives a net amount (free from any deduction or withholding in respect of such
additional amount itself) free and clear of any such Taxes or other deductions or withholdings and equal to
the full amount which we would otherwise have received as if no such Taxes or other deductions or
withholdings, except any Royalty Withholding, had been required. We or the appropriate Affiliate may
provide an invoice to you for any Taxes, deductions or withholdings (excluding Royalty Withholdings) that
were deducted or withheld from any payment made to us or any of our Affiliates under this Agreement,
which invoice you must promptly pay. Where appropriate, we shall provide you with a copy of our tax
residency certificate or tax exemption documentation or any other required documentation that permits a
reduced withholding tax rate to apply for payments to us, and you agree to withhold tax at the applicable
reduced withholding tax rate.
8.5.2 You shall forward to us, promptly after payment (1) copies of official receipts or
other evidence reasonably satisfactory to us showing the full amount of Taxes, including Royalty
Withholdings, and/or any other deduction or withholding that has been paid to the relevant tax authority;
and (2) a statement in English (in a form we require) listing the full amount of Taxes, including Royalty
Withholdings, and/or any other deduction or withholding that has been paid in local currency and U.S.
Dollars. Such tax receipts and statements should be sent to: Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited, Attention:
Withholding Tax Coordinator, Maple Court, Central Park, Reeds Crescent, Watford, Hertfordshire WD24
4QQ UK, or such other address that we may periodically designate.
8.6
Application of Fees. We may apply any amounts received from you to any amounts due
under this Agreement.
9.0

PROPRIETARY RIGHTS
9.1

Our Proprietary Rights.
9.1.1

You will not contest, either directly or indirectly during or after the Term:
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9.1.1.1
our (and/or any of our Affiliates’) ownership of, rights to and interest in
the System, Brand, Marks and any of their elements or components, including present and future
distinguishing characteristics and agree that neither you nor any design or construction professional
engaged by you may use our Standards, our Manual or your approved Plans and Designs for any hotel or
lodging project other than the Hotel;
9.1.1.2
components of the System;

our sole right to grant licenses to use all or any elements or

9.1.1.3
that we (and/or our Affiliates) are the owner of (or the licensee of, with
the right to sub-license) all right, title and interest in and to the Brand and the Marks used in any form and
in any design, alone or in any combination, together with the goodwill they symbolize; or
9.1.1.4
the validity or ownership of the Marks. The current registration and
application status of the Marks in Brazil is attached as Schedule 3.
9.1.2 You acknowledge that these Marks have acquired a secondary meaning or
distinctiveness which indicates that the Hotel, Brand and System are operated by or with our approval. All
improvements and additions to, or associated with, the System, all Marks, and all goodwill arising from your
use of the System and the Marks, will inure to our benefit and become our property (or that of our applicable
Affiliates), even if you develop them. [SELECT FOR LXR, UP: You acknowledge that the following Principal
Mark owned by us is still pending federal registration as of the Effective Date:
[SELECT FOR UP:]
Mark
TAPESTRY
LXR

Application Number
87241502

Registration Number
Pending
Pending

Registration Date
Pending
Pending

9.1.3 You agree not to directly or indirectly dilute the value of the goodwill attached to
the Marks, the Brand or the System. You will not apply for or obtain any trademark or service mark
registration of any of the Marks or any confusingly similar marks in your name or on behalf of or for the
benefit of anyone else. You acknowledge that you are not entitled to receive any payment or other value
from us or from any of our Affiliates for any goodwill associated with your use of the System or the Marks,
or any elements or components of the System.
9.2

Trade Name, Use of the Marks.
9.2.1

Trade Name.

9.2.1.1
The Hotel will be initially known by the Trade Name set forth in the
Addendum. We may change the Trade Name, the Brand name and/or any of the Marks (but not the Principal
Mark), or the way in which any of them (including the Principal Mark) are depicted, at any time at our sole
option and at your expense. You may not change the Trade Name without our specific prior written consent.
9.2.1.2
You acknowledge and agree that you are not acquiring the right to use
any business names, copyrights, designs, distinguishing characteristics, domain names, emblems, insignia,
logos, slogans, service marks, symbols, trademarks, trade dress, trade names or any other marks or
characteristics owned by us or licensed to us that we do not specifically designate to be used in the System.
9.3
Use of Trade Name and Marks. You will operate under the Marks, using the Trade Name,
at the Hotel. You will not adopt any other names or marks in operating the Hotel without our approval. You
will not, without our prior written consent, use any of the Marks, or the word “Hilton,” or other Network
trademarks, trade names or service marks, or any similar words or acronyms, in:
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9.3.1

your corporate, partnership, business or trade name;

9.3.2

any Internet-related name (including a domain name);

9.3.3 or any business operated separately from the Hotel, including the name or identity
of developments adjacent to or associated with the Hotel.
9.4

Trademark Disputes.

9.4.1 You will immediately notify us of any infringement or dilution of or challenge to your
use of any of the Marks and will not, absent a court order or our prior written consent, communicate with
any other person regarding any such infringement, dilution, challenge or claim. We will take the action we
deem appropriate with respect to such challenges and claims and have the sole right to handle disputes
concerning use of all or any part of the Marks or the System. You will fully cooperate with us and your
applicable Affiliates in these matters. We will reimburse you for expenses incurred by you as the direct
result of activities undertaken by you at our prior written request and specifically relating to the trademark
dispute at issue. We will not reimburse you for any other expenses incurred by you for cooperating with us
or our Affiliates.
9.4.2 You appoint us as your exclusive, true and lawful attorney-in-fact, to prosecute,
defend and/or settle all disputes of this type at our sole option. You will grant to the persons designated by
us a special power of attorney, as broad as it may be necessary and required by law, for such purposes.
You will sign any documents we or our applicable Affiliate believe are necessary to prosecute, defend or
settle any dispute or obtain protection for the Marks and the System, including the granting to us and/or our
designees the necessary powers of attorney as required by applicable law, and will assign to us any claims
you may have related to these matters. Our decisions as to the prosecution, defense or settlement of the
dispute will be final. All recoveries made as a result of disputeswith third parties regarding use of all or part
of the System or the Marks will be for our account.
9.5

Web Sites.

9.5.1 You may not register, own, or maintain any Sites that relate to the Network, or the
Hotel, or that include the Marks. The only domain names, Sites, or Site contractors that you may use relating
to the Hotel or this Agreement are those we assign or otherwise approve in writing. You acknowledge that
you may not, without a legal license or other legal right, post on your Sites any material in which any third
party has any direct or indirect ownership interest. You must incorporate on your Sites any information we
require in the manner we deem necessary to protect our Marks.
9.5.2 Any use of the Marks on any Site must conform to our requirements, including the
identity and graphics Standards for all System hotels. Given the changing nature of this technology, we
have the right to withhold our approval, and to withdraw any prior approval, and to modify our requirements.
9.6

Covenant.

9.6.1 You agree, as a direct covenant with us and our Affiliates, that you will comply with
all of the provisions of this Agreement related to the manner, terms and conditions of the use of the Marks
and the termination of any right on your part to use any of the Marks. Any non-compliance by you with this
covenant or the terms of this Agreement related to the Marks, or any unauthorized or improper use of the
System or the Marks, will cause irreparable damage to us and/or our Affiliates and is a material breach of
this Agreement.
9.6.2 If you engage in such non-compliance or unauthorized and/or improper use of the
System or the Marks during or after the Term, we and any of our applicable Affiliates, along with the
successors and assigns of each, will be entitled to both temporary and permanent injunctive relief against
you from any court of competent jurisdiction, in addition to all other remedies we or our Affiliates may have
at law. You consent to the entry of such temporary and permanent injunctions. You must pay all costs and

{018316-022430 00275579.DOCX; 1}

20

BRAND STATE CITY QUALIFIER FACILITY ID TYPE

expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees, costs and other expenses of litigation that we
and/or our Affiliates may incur in connection with your non-compliance with this covenant. In addition, you
agree, in the event of any non-compliance with any of your obligations in this Section 9, to pay to us, as
liquidated damages, the amount of $10,000 U.S. Dollars for each day that you fail or delay in complying
with your obligations until full compliance therewith is given to our satisfaction, in addition to the payment
of all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, which we or our Affiliates may incur in
connection with such non-compliance.
10.0

REPORTS, RECORDS, AUDITS, AND PRIVACY
10.1

Reports.

10.1.1 At our request, you will prepare and deliver to us the Reports containing the
Operational Information (and any other information we reasonably require) in the form, manner and time
frame we require. At a minimum, by the fifteenth (15th) day of each month, you will submit to us the
Operational Information for the previous month, and reflecting the computation of the amounts then due
under Section 8, in the form, manner and time frame we require.
10.1.2 At our request, you will certify the Reports as accurate in the manner we require.
You must permit us to inspect your books and records at all reasonable times.
10.2
Maintenance of Records. You will prepare, on a current basis, and preserve for no less
than the greater of four (4) years or the time period stated in our record retention requirements, complete
and accurate records concerning Gross Rooms Revenue and all financial, operating, marketing and other
aspects of the Hotel. You will maintain an accounting system that fully and accurately reflects all financial
aspects of the Hotel and its business. These records will include books of account, tax returns,
governmental reports, register tapes, daily reports, and complete quarterly and annual financial statements
(including profit and loss statements, balance sheets and cash flow statements), and will be prepared in
the form, manner and time frame we require.
10.3

Audit.

10.3.1 We may require you to have the Gross Rooms Revenue, fees or other monies due
to us computed and certified as accurate by a certified public accountant. During the Term, and for two (2)
years thereafter, we and our authorized agents have the right to verify Operational Information required
under this Agreement by requesting, receiving, inspecting and auditing, at all reasonable times, any and all
records referred to above wherever the records may be located (or elsewhere if we request).
10.3.2 If any inspection or audit reveals that you understated or underpaid any payment
due to us, you will promptly pay to us the deficiency, plus interest from the date each payment was due
until paid at the interest rate set forth in Section 16.15 of this Agreement.
10.3.3 If the audit or inspection reveals that the underpayment is willful, or is for five
percent (5%) or more of the total amount owed for the period being inspected, you will also reimburse us
for all inspection and audit costs, including reasonable travel, lodging, meals, salaries and other expenses
of the inspecting or auditing personnel. Our acceptance of your payment of any deficiency will not waive
any rights we may have as a result of your breach, including our right to terminate this Agreement. If the
audit discloses an overpayment, we will credit this overpayment against your future payments due under
this Agreement, without interest, or, if no future payments are due under this Agreement, we will promptly
pay you the amount of the overpayment without interest.
10.4
Ownership of Information. All Information we obtain from you and all revenues we derive
from such Information will be our property and Proprietary Information that we may use for any reason,
including making a financial performance representation in our franchise disclosure documents. At your
sole risk and responsibility, you may use Information that you acquire from third parties in connection with
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operating the Hotel, such as Personal Information, at any time during or after the Term, to the extent that
your use is permitted by Law.
10.5

Privacy and Data Protection. You will:
10.5.1 comply with all applicable Privacy Laws;

10.5.2 comply with all Standards that relate to Privacy Laws and the privacy and security
of Personal Information;
10.5.3 refrain from any action or inaction that could cause us or our Affiliates to breach
any Privacy Laws;
10.5.4 do and execute, or arrange to be done and executed, each act, document and
thing we deem necessary in our business judgment to keep us and our Affiliates in compliance with the
Privacy Laws; and
10.5.5 immediately report to us the theft or loss of Personal Information (other than the
Personal Information of your own officers, directors, shareholders, employees or service providers).
11.0

CONDEMNATION AND CASUALTY

11.1
Condemnation. You must immediately inform us of any proposed taking of any
portion of the Hotel by eminent domain. If, in our business judgment, the taking is significant enough to
render the continued operation of the Hotel in accordance with the Standards and guest expectations
impractical, then we may terminate this Agreement on written notice to you and you will not pay us
Liquidated Damages. If such taking, in our business judgment, does not require the termination of this
Agreement, then you will make all necessary modifications to make the Hotel conform to its condition,
character and appearance immediately before such taking, according to Plans and Designs approved by
us. You will take all measures to ensure that the resumption of normal operations at the Hotel is not
unreasonably delayed.
11.2

Casualty.

11.2.1 You must immediately inform us if the Hotel is damaged by fire or other casualty
or event of Force Majeure. If the damage or repair requires closing the Hotel, you may choose to repair or
rebuild the Hotel according to the Standards, provided you: begin reconstruction within six (6) months after
closing and reopen the Hotel for continuous business operations as soon as practicable (but in any event
no later than eighteen (18) months after the closing of the Hotel) and give us at least thirty (30) days’ notice
of the projected date of reopening. Once the Hotel is closed, you will not promote the Hotel as a System
Hotel or otherwise identify the Hotel using any of the Marks without our prior written consent.
11.2.2 You and we each have the right to terminate this Agreement if you elect not to
repair or rebuild the Hotel as set forth above in Subsection 11.2.1, provided the terminating Party gives the
other Party sixty (60) days written notice. We will not require you to pay Liquidated Damages unless you
or one of your Affiliates own and/or operate a hotel at the Hotel Site within three (3) years of the termination
date under a lease, license or franchise [INSERT FOR HAM DT, HFS from a Competitor. [INSERT FOR
OL, QQ, UP under another brand.
11.3

No Extensions of Term. Nothing in this Section 11 will extend the Term.
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12.0

TRANSFERS
12.1

Our Transfer.

12.1.1 We may assign or Transfer this Agreement or any of our rights, duties, or assets
under this Agreement, by operation of law or otherwise, to any person or legal entity without your consent,
provided that any such person or legal entity shall be required to assume all of our obligations to permit you
to operate the Hotel under the Brand after such assignment. Any of our Affiliates may transfer, sell, dispose
of, or otherwise convey, their ownership rights in us or any of our Affiliates, by operation of law or otherwise,
including by public offering, to any person or legal entity without your consent.
12.1.2 If we assign this Agreement to a third party who expressly assumes our obligations
under this Agreement, we will no longer have any performance or other obligations to you under this
Agreement and your right to use any programs, rights or services provided to you by us or our Affiliates
under this Agreement will terminate.
12.2
Your Transfer. You understand and acknowledge that the rights and duties in this
Agreement are personal to you and that we are entering into this Agreement in reliance on your business
skill, financial capacity, and the personal character of you and your officers, directors, partners, members,
shareholders or trustees. A Transfer by you (or by an Equity Owner as of the Effective Date, or by a
transferee Equity Owner we later approve) of any Equity Interest, or this Agreement, or any rights or
obligations under this Agreement, is prohibited other than as expressly permitted in this Agreement. In any
Transfer by you or any Equity Owner under this Subsection 12.2, the proposed Transferee may not be a
Sanctioned Person [DELETE IF OL, QQ, UP or a Competitor.
12.2.1 Permitted Transfers. We will permit you or any Equity Owner to engage in the
Permitted Transfers set forth in this Subsection 12.2.1 if the Permitted Transfer meets the listed
requirements. If a Permitted Transfer under Subsection 12.2.1.2 (requiring notice and our consent)
otherwise qualifies as a Permitted Transfer under Subsection 12.2.1.1 (not requiring notice or our consent),
the less restrictive provisions of Subsection 12.2.1.1 will control.
12.2.1.1 Permitted Transfers That Do Not Require Notice or Our Consent.
The following Permitted Transfers are permitted without giving notice or obtaining our consent if the
Permitted Transfer meets the listed requirements.
12.2.1.1.1

Publicly Traded Equity Interests. A Publicly Traded

Equity Interest may be Transferred.
12.2.1.1.2 Privately Held Equity Interests: Less than 35%
Change. An Equity Interest that is not publicly traded may be Transferred if the transferee Equity Owner
will own less than thirty-five percent (35%) of the Equity Interests, in total, immediately after the transaction.
12.2.1.1.3 Institutional Investment Funds. [IF APPLICABLE You
may Transfer Equity Interests within [Insert Fund Entities (collectively, the “Fund Entities”) and Equity
Interests in you to new fund entities or new managed accounts (collectively, “Future Funds”) if [Insert
Name of Asset Manager (“Asset Manager”) directly or indirectly, controls the Fund Entities or Future
Funds.
12.2.1.2 Permitted Transfers That Require Notice and Our Consent. We will
permit you or any Equity Owner to engage in the following Permitted Transfers if the Permitted Transfer
meets the listed requirements. For Permitted Transfers under this Subsection, you must: (a) give us at least
sixty (60) days’ advance written notice of the proposed Permitted Transfer (including the identity and contact
information for any proposed transferee); (b) pay to us on request a nonrefundable processing fee of Five
Thousand Dollars ($5,000); provided, however, we agree to waive the processing fee for one (1) Permitted
Transfer if it occurs before the Opening Date; (c) follow our then-current procedure for processing Permitted
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Transfers, including providing any information we may require in order to review the proposed Transfer and
completing our then-current compliance process; and (d) execute our then-current standard documents
required for processing Permitted Transfers.
12.2.1.2.1 Affiliate Transfer. You or any Equity Owner may
Transfer an Equity Interest or this Agreement to an Affiliate.
12.2.1.2.2 Transfers to a Family Member or Trust. If you or any
Equity Owner as of the Effective Date are a natural person, you and such Equity Owner may Transfer an
Equity Interest or this Agreement to an immediate family member (i.e., spouse, children, parents, siblings)
or to a trust for your benefit or the benefit of the Equity Owner or the Equity Owner’s immediate family
members.
12.2.1.2.3 Transfer on Death. On the death of Franchisee or an
Equity Owner who is a natural person, this Agreement or the Equity Interest of the deceased Equity Owner
may Transfer in accordance with such person’s will or, if such person dies intestate, in accordance with
laws of intestacy governing the distribution of such person’s estate, provided that: (i) the transfer on death
is to an immediate family member or to a legal entity formed by such family member(s); and (ii) within one
(1) year after the death, such family member(s) or entity meet all of our then-current requirements for an
approved Transferee.
12.2.1.2.4 Privately Held Equity Interests: 35% or Greater
Change. You or any Equity Owner may Transfer your Equity Interests even though, after the completion
of such Transfer, thirty-five percent (35%) or more of the Equity Interests will have changed hands since
the Effective Date of this Agreement.
12.2.2 Change of Ownership Transfer. A Change of Ownership Transfer is any Transfer
that will result in a change of Control of you, the Hotel or the Hotel Site, or is not otherwise described in
Subsection 12.2.1. We will have sixty (60) days from our receipt of the completed and signed franchise
application to consent or withhold our consent to any proposed Change of Ownership Transfer. Our consent
will not be unreasonably withheld. You consent to our communication with any third party we deem
necessary about the Hotel in order for us to evaluate the proposed Change of Ownership Transfer. Our
consent to the Change of Ownership Transfer is subject to the following conditions, all of which must be
satisfied at or before the date of closing the Change of Ownership Transfer (“Closing”):
12.2.2.1 Transferee submits a completed and signed Change of Ownership
Application, pays our then current franchise application fee, executes our then-current form of franchise
agreement, and all required ancillary documents. If all conditions to our consent are fulfilled, the date of
Closing will be the termination date of this Agreement, and the effective date of Transferee’s franchise
agreement;
12.2.2.2

you are not in default of this Agreement or any other agreements with

us or our Affiliates;
12.2.2.3 you or Transferee pay to us, on or before the date of Closing, the PIP
fee, and all amounts due to us and our Affiliates through the date of the Closing. We will estimate the
amounts due to us through the date of Closing, which you and the Transferee may agree to escrow, to be
disbursed to us at Closing to fulfil this obligation. If our estimate of the amounts due to us exceeds the
amount actually owed to us, we will refund the difference to you, generally within thirty (30) days after the
date of Closing;
12.2.2.4 you conclude to our satisfaction, or provide adequate security for, any
suit, action, or proceeding pending or threatened against you, us or any of our Affiliates with respect to the
Hotel, which may result in liability on the part of us or any of our Affiliates;
12.2.2.5 you, Transferee and/or Equity Owner(s) of Transferee, submit to us all
information related to the Transfer that we require;
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12.2.2.6

Transferee meets our then-current business requirements for new

franchisees; and
12.2.2.7 Transferee agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend us and our
Affiliates against any inquiry, investigation, suit, action, or proceeding by any Government Entity arising out
of or in connection with any fees or costs charged to patrons or guests by you.
12.3

Public Offering or Private Placement.

12.3.1 Any offering by you of Securities requires our review if you use the Marks, or refer
to us or this Agreement in your offering. All materials required by any Law for the offer or sale of those
Securities must be submitted to us for review at least sixty (60) days before the date you distribute those
materials or file them with any governmental agency, including any materials to be used in any offering
exempt from registration under any securities laws.
12.3.2 You must submit to us a non-refundable Five Thousand Dollar ($5,000) processing
fee with the offering documents and pay any additional costs we may incur in reviewing your documents,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees.
12.3.3 We have the right to approve any description of this Agreement or of your
relationship with us, or any use of the Marks, contained in any prospectus, offering memorandum or other
communications or materials you use in the sale or offer of any Securities. You may not use any of the
Marks except as legally required to describe the Hotel in these documents. Our review of the documents
will not in any way be considered our agreement with any statements contained in those documents,
including any projections, or our acknowledgment or agreement that the documents comply with any Laws.
12.3.4 You may not sell any Securities unless you clearly disclose to all purchasers and
offerees that we, our Affiliates, and our or their respective officers, directors, agents or employees: (a) will
not in any way be deemed an issuer or underwriter of the Securities, as those terms are defined in
applicable securities laws; and (b) have not assumed and will not have any liability or responsibility for any
financial statements, prospectuses or other financial information contained in any prospectus or similar
written or oral communication. You may not state, represent, or imply that we, Hilton Worldwide, or any
other of our Affiliates, participate in or endorse any Securities or any Securities offering in any manner
whatsoever.
12.3.5 You must indemnify, defend and hold the Indemnified Parties free and harmless
of and from any and all liabilities, costs, damages, claims or expenses arising out of or related to the sale
or offer of any of your Securities to the same extent as provided in Subsection 14.1 of this Agreement.
12.4

Mortgages and Pledges to Lending Institutions.

12.4.1 You or an Equity Owner may mortgage or pledge the Hotel or an Equity Interest to
a lender that finances the acquisition, development or operation of the Hotel, without notifying us or
obtaining our consent.
12.4.2 You may request a “lender comfort letter” on behalf of your lender, which we will
issue in a form satisfactory to us, subject to our right to charge our then-current non-refundable processing
fee.
13.0

TERMINATION

13.1
Termination with Opportunity to Cure. We may terminate this Agreement by written
notice to you and opportunity to cure at any time before its expiration on any of the following grounds:
13.1.1 You fail to pay us any sums due and owing to us or our Affiliates under this
Agreement within the cure period set forth in the notice, which shall not be less than ten (10) days;
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13.1.2 You fail to commence or complete the Hotel Work by the applicable deadline date,
including any extensions, or fail to open the Hotel on the Opening Date, and do not cure that default within
the cure period set forth in the notice, which shall not be less than ten (10) days;
13.1.3 You do not purchase or maintain insurance required by this Agreement or do not
reimburse us for our purchase of insurance on your behalf within the cure period set forth in the notice,
which shall not be less than ten (10) days; or
13.1.4 You fail to comply with any other provision of this Agreement, the Manual or any
Standard and do not cure that default within the cure period set forth in the notice, which shall not be less
than thirty (30) days.
13.2
Immediate Termination by Us. We may immediately terminate this Agreement on notice
to you and without any opportunity to cure the default if:
13.2.1 after curing any material breach of this Agreement or the Standards, you engage
in the same non-compliance within any consecutive twenty-four (24) month period, whether or not the noncompliance is corrected after notice, which pattern of non-compliance in and of itself will be deemed
material;
13.2.2 you receive three (3) notices of material default in any twelve (12) month period,
even if the defaults have been cured;
13.2.3 you fail to pay debts as they become due or admit in writing your inability to pay
your debts or you make a general assignment for the benefit of your creditors;
13.2.4 you have an order entered against you appointing a receiver for the Hotel or a
substantial part of your or the Hotel’s assets or you file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or any pleading
seeking any reorganization, liquidation, or dissolution under any law, or you admit or fail to contest the
material allegations of any such pleading filed against you or the Hotel, and the action results in the entry
of an order for relief against you under the Bankruptcy Code, the adjudication of you as insolvent, or the
abatement of the claims of creditors of you or the Hotel under any law;
13.2.5 you or your Guarantor lose possession or the right to possession of all or a
significant part of the Hotel or Hotel Site for any reason other than those described in Section 11;
13.2.6 you fail to operate the Hotel for five (5) consecutive days, unless the failure to
operate is due to an event of Force Majeure, provided that you have taken reasonable steps to minimize
the impact of such events;
13.2.7 you contest in any court or proceeding our ownership of the System or any part of
the System or the validity of any of the Marks;
13.2.8 you or any Equity Owner with a controlling Equity Interest, or any of your Affiliates,
employees, or Management Company, engage in conduct that we reasonably determine is likely to
adversely reflect upon or affect in any manner the reputation, goodwill, or business of the Hotel, the System,
us and/or any of our Affiliates;
13.2.9 you conceal revenues, maintain false books and records of accounts, submit false
reports or information to us or otherwise attempt to defraud us;
13.2.10 any Transfer is not in compliance with Section 12 and its subparts;
13.2.11 you, your Affiliate or any Guarantor become a Sanctioned Person or are owned or
controlled by a Sanctioned Person or fail to comply with the provisions of Subsection 16.13;
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13.2.12 information is disclosed involving you or your Affiliates, which, in our business
judgment, is likely to adversely reflect on or affect in any manner, any gaming licenses or permits held by
us or our Affiliates or the then-current stature of us or any of our Affiliates with any gaming commission,
board, or similar governmental or regulatory agency;
13.2.13 any Guarantor breaches its guaranty to us;
13.2.14 a threat or danger to public health or safety results from the construction,
maintenance, or operation of the Hotel.
13.2.15 [DELETE FOR OL, QQ, UP you, your Affiliate or a Guarantor become a Competitor
except as otherwise permitted by Subsection 5.1.28.
13.3
Interim Remedies. If we send you a notice that you are in default of this Agreement, we
may elect to impose an Interim Remedy, including the suspension of our obligations under this Agreement
and/or our or our Affiliates’ obligations under Your Agreements.
13.3.1 We may suspend the Hotel from the Reservation Service and any reservation
and/or website services provided through or by us. We may remove the listing of the Hotel from any
directories or advertising we publish. If we suspend the Hotel from the Reservation Service, we may divert
reservations previously made for the Hotel to other System Hotels or Network Hotels.
13.3.2 We may disable all or any part of the software provided to you under Your
Agreements and/or may suspend any one or more of the information technology and/or network services
that we provide or support under Your Agreements. We may charge you for costs related to suspending or
disabling your right to use any software systems or technology we provided to you, together with
intervention or administration fees as set forth in the Standards.
13.3.3 You agree that our exercise of the right to Interim Remedies will not result in actual
or constructive termination or abandonment of this Agreement, and that our right to Interim Remedies is in
addition to, and apart from, any other right or remedy we may have in this Agreement. If we exercise the
right to Interim Remedies, the exercise will not be a waiver of any breach by you of any term, covenant or
condition of this Agreement. You will not be entitled to any compensation, including repayment,
reimbursement, refund or offsets, for any fees, charges, expenses or losses you may directly or indirectly
incur by reason of our exercise and/or withdrawal of any Interim Remedy.
13.4

Liquidated Damages on Termination.

13.4.1 Calculation of Liquidated Damages. You acknowledge and agree that the
premature termination of this Agreement will cause substantial damage to us. You agree that Liquidated
Damages are not a penalty, but represent a reasonable estimate of the minimum just and fair compensation
for the damages we will suffer as the result of your failure to operate the Hotel for the Term. If this Agreement
terminates before the Expiration Date, you will pay us Liquidated Damages as follows:
13.4.1.1 If termination occurs before you begin the Hotel Work, and you or any
Guarantor (or your or any Guarantor’s Affiliates) directly or indirectly, enter into a franchise, license,
management, lease and/or other similar agreement for or begin construction or commence operation of a
hotel, motel, inn, or similar facility at the Hotel Site within one (1) year after termination, then you will pay
us Liquidated Damages in an amount equal to [SELECT FOR DT, HAM, HFS the System’s Average
Monthly Royalty Fees multiplied by sixty (60). [SELECT FOR OL, QQ $11,200 multiplied by the number of
approved Guest Rooms at the Hotel. [SELECT FOR UP $10,000 multiplied by the number of approved
Guest Rooms at the Hotel.
13.4.1.2 If termination occurs after you begin the Hotel Work but before the
Opening Date, unless your failure to complete the Hotel Work was the result of Force Majeure, you will pay
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us Liquidated Damages in an amount equal to [SELECT FOR DT, HAM, HFS the System’s Average
Monthly Royalty Fees multiplied by sixty (60). [SELECT FOR OL, QQ $11,200 multiplied by the number of
approved Guest Rooms at the Hotel. [SELECT FOR UP $10,000 multiplied by the number of approved
Guest Rooms at the Hotel.
13.4.1.3 If termination occurs after the Opening Date but before the second
anniversary of the Opening Date, you will pay us Liquidated Damages in an amount equal to [SELECT
FOR DT, HAM, HFS the greater of: (a) the Hotel’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees multiplied by sixty (60);
or (b) the System’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees multiplied by sixty (60). [SELECT FOR OL, QQ the
greater of: (a) the Hotel’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees multiplied by sixty (60); or (b) $11,200 multiplied
by the number of approved Guest Rooms at the Hotel. [SELECT FOR UP the greater of: (a) the Hotel’s
Average Monthly Royalty Fees multiplied by sixty (60); or (b) $10,000 multiplied by the number of approved
Guest Rooms at the Hotel.
13.4.1.4 If termination occurs after the second anniversary of the Opening Date
but before the final sixty (60) calendar months of the Term, you will pay us Liquidated Damages in an
amount equal to the Hotel’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees multiplied by sixty (60).
13.4.1.5 If there are fewer than sixty (60) months remaining in the Term on the
date of termination, you will pay us Liquidated Damages in an amount equal to the Hotel’s Average Monthly
Royalty Fees multiplied by the number of months remaining in the Term.
13.4.2 Payment of Liquidated Damages. Payment of Liquidated Damages is due thirty
(30) days following termination of this Agreement or on demand.
13.5
Actual Damages Under Special Circumstances. You acknowledge that the Liquidated
Damages described in Subsection 13.4 may be inadequate to compensate us for additional harm we may
suffer, by reason of greater difficulty in re-entering the market, competitive damage to the System or the
Network, damage to goodwill of the Marks, and other similar harm, as we reserve the right to seek actual
damages in lieu of Liquidated Damages under the following circumstances:
13.5.1 within twelve (12) months of each other, [SELECT FOR DT, HFS, OL, QQ two (2)
[SELECT FOR UP five (5) [SELECT FOR HAM seven (7) or more franchise agreements for the Brand
between yourself (or any of your Affiliates) and us (or any of our Affiliates) terminate before their expiration
date as a result of a breach by you or your Affiliate; or
13.5.2 [DELETE FOR OL, QQ, UP this Agreement terminates due to an unapproved
Transfer: (a) to a Competitor, or (b) to a buyer that converts the Hotel to a Competing Brand within two (2)
years from the date this Agreement terminates.
13.6
Your Obligations on Termination or Expiration. On termination or expiration of this
Agreement, you will immediately:
13.6.1 pay all sums due and owing to us or any of our Affiliates, including any expenses
incurred by us in obtaining injunctive relief for the enforcement of this Agreement;
13.6.2 cease operating the Hotel as a System Hotel and cease using the System;
13.6.3 cease using the Marks, the Trade Name, and any confusingly similar names,
marks, trade dress systems, insignia, symbols, or other rights, procedures, and methods. You will deliver
all goods and materials containing the Marks to us and we will have the sole and exclusive use of any items
containing the Marks. You will immediately make any specified changes to the location as we may
reasonably require for this purpose, which will include removal of the signs, custom decorations, and
promotional materials;
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13.6.4 cease representing yourself as then or formerly a System Hotel or affiliated with
the Brand or the Network;
13.6.5 return all copies of the Manual and any other Proprietary Information to us;
13.6.6 cancel all assumed name or equivalent registrations relating to your use of any
Mark, notify the telephone company and all listing agencies and directory publishers including Internet
domain name granting authorities, Internet service providers, global distribution systems, and web search
engines of the termination or expiration of your right to use the Marks, the Trade Name, and any telephone
number, any classified or other telephone directory listings, Internet domain names, uniform resource
locators, website names, electronic mail addresses and search engine metatags and keywords associated
with the Hotel, and authorize their transfer to us; and
13.6.7 irrevocably assign and transfer to us (or to our designee) all of your right, title and
interest in any domain name listings and registrations that contain any reference to our Marks, System,
Network or Brand; notify the applicable domain name registrars of the termination of your right to use any
domain name or Sites associated with the Marks or the Brand; and authorize and instruct the cancellation
of the domain name, or transfer of the domain name to us (or our designee), as we specify. You will also
delete all references to our Marks, System, Network or Brand from any Sites you own, maintain or operate
beyond the expiration or termination of this Agreement.
13.6.8 If within thirty (30) days after termination or expiration of this Agreement, you fail
to comply with this Section 13.6, you agree to pay to us, as Liquidated Damages for failing to perform your
obligations when due, the amount of $10,000 U.S. Dollars for each day that you fail or delay in complying
with your obligations until full compliance therewith is given to our satisfaction, in addition to the payment
of all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, which we and/or our Affiliates may incur in
connection with such non-compliance.
14.0

INDEMNITY

14.1
Beginning on the Effective Date, you must indemnify the Indemnified Parties against, and
hold them harmless from, all losses, costs, liabilities, damages, claims, and expenses, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees, expert fees, costs and other expenses of litigation arising out of or resulting from:
14.1.1 any breach by you of this Agreement, the Manual or the Standards;
14.1.2 any act or omission of you or your officers, employees, Affiliates, associates or
agents in any way arising out of or relating to this Agreement;
14.1.3 any claimed occurrence at the Hotel including personal injury, death or property
damage;
14.1.4 your alleged or actual infringement or violation of any copyright, industrial design,
patent, service mark, trademark or other proprietary right owned or controlled by third parties;
14.1.5 your alleged or actual violation or breach of any contract (including any group sales
agreement for the System), any Law, or any industry standard;
14.1.6 any business conducted by you or a third party in, on or about the Hotel or Hotel
Site;
14.1.7 your failure to comply with Subsection 16.13, including a breach of the
representations set forth therein; and
14.1.8 any inquiry, investigation, suit, action, or proceeding by any Government Entity
arising out of or in connection with any fees or costs charged to patrons or guests by you, and if you acquired
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the Hotel in a Change of Ownership Transfer, by the previous owner (your transferor) before you acquired
ownership of the Hotel.
14.2
You do not have to indemnify an Indemnified Party to the extent damages otherwise
covered under this Section 14 are adjudged by a final, non-appealable judgment of a court of competent
jurisdiction to have been solely the result of the gross negligence or willful misconduct of that Indemnified
Party, and not any of the acts, errors, omissions, negligence or misconduct of you or anyone related to you
or the Hotel. You may not rely on this exception to your indemnity obligation if the claims were asserted
against us or any other Indemnified Party on the basis of theories of imputed or secondary liability, such as
vicarious liability, agency, or apparent agency, or our failure to compel you to comply with the provisions of
this Agreement, including compliance with Standards, Laws or other requirements.
14.3
You will give us written notice of any action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or
investigation involving an Indemnified Party within five (5) days of your knowledge of it. At our election, you
will defend us and/or the Indemnified Parties against the same. If you fail to defend us and/or the
Indemnified Parties, we may elect to assume, but under no circumstance will we be obligated to undertake,
the defense and/or settlement of the action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation at your
expense and risk.
14.4
If we think our respective interests conflict, we may obtain separate counsel of our choice.
This will not diminish your obligation to indemnify the Indemnified Parties and to hold them harmless. You
will reimburse the Indemnified Parties on demand for all expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees,
expert fees, costs and other expenses of litigation, the Indemnified Parties incur to protect themselves or
to remedy your defaults. The Indemnified Parties will not be required to seek recovery from third parties or
otherwise mitigate their losses to maintain a claim against you, and their failure to do so will not reduce the
amounts recoverable from you by the Indemnified Parties.
14.5
Agreement.
15.0

Your obligations under this Section 14 will survive expiration or termination of this

RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

15.1
No Agency Relationship. You are an independent contractor. Neither Party is the legal
representative or agent of the other Party. Neither Party has the power to obligate the other Party for any
purpose. You acknowledge that: (a) we do not direct, supervise, manage, dictate, control, or have the right
to control labor or employment matters for you or your employees; (b) we do not set or have the right to set
any terms or conditions of employment for your employees; (c) the training we require is for the purpose of
enabling you to ensure that your Hotel operates in compliance with our Standards; and (d) you have
exclusive control over your daily affairs. You expressly acknowledge that the Parties have a business
relationship based entirely on, and defined by, the express provisions of this Agreement and that no
partnership, joint venture, agency, fiduciary, employment, or joint-employment relationship is intended or
created by reason of this Agreement.
15.2
Notices Concerning Your Independent Status. All contracts for the Hotel’s operations
and services at the Hotel will be in your name or in the name of your Management Company. You will not
enter into or sign any contracts in our name or any of our Affiliates’ names or use the Marks or any acronyms
or variations of the Marks. You will disclose in all dealings with the public and your employees, agents,
contractors, suppliers and other third parties that: (a) you are the Hotel’s owner; (b) you are an independent
entity; (c) you are the employer, principal, or contracting party (as applicable); and (d) we are not
responsible for your liabilities or debts in any manner whatsoever.
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16.0

MISCELLANEOUS
16.1

Severability and Interpretation.

16.1.1 If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable, void or voidable,
that provision will be ineffective only to the extent of the prohibition, without in any way invalidating or
affecting the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and all remaining provisions will continue in effect,
unless the unenforceability of the provision frustrates the underlying purpose of this Agreement. If any
provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable due to its scope, but may be made enforceable by
limiting its scope, the provision will be considered amended to the minimum extent necessary to make it
enforceable.
16.1.2 This Agreement will be interpreted without interpreting any provision in favor of or
against either Party by reason of the drafting of the provision, or either of our positions relative to the other.
16.1.3 Any covenant, term or provision of this Agreement that provides for continuing
obligations after the expiration or termination of this Agreement will survive any expiration or termination.
16.2

Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue.

16.2.1 The Parties agree that, except to the extent governed by the United States
Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act; 15 U.S.C. ¶ 1050 et seq.), as amended, this Agreement will be
governed by the laws of the State of New York without recourse to New York choice of law or conflicts of
law principles. Nothing in this Section is intended to invoke the application of any franchise, business
opportunity, antitrust, “implied covenant,” unfair competition, fiduciary or any other doctrine of law of the
State of New York or any other Territory that would not otherwise apply absent this Subsection 16.2.1.
16.2.2 The Parties agree that any action brought pursuant to this Agreement or the
relationship between them must be brought in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia, in
Alexandria, Virginia, or if that court lacks subject matter jurisdiction, then in a court of competent jurisdiction
whose jurisdiction includes either Fairfax County, Virginia or New York, New York, or in the Territory where
the Hotel is located. You consent to personal jurisdiction and venue in each of these jurisdictions and
waive, and agree not to assert, move or otherwise claim that the venue in any of these jurisdictions is for
any reason improper, inconvenient, prejudicial or otherwise inappropriate. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the parties agree that actions initiated or maintained by us for temporary remedies, injunctive or other
equitable relief (or the equivalent thereof under the laws of the Territory) may be brought in any competent
court or other governmental agency or authority. In addition, we may, in our sole discretion, bring any other
cause of action relating to this Agreement in the competent courts located in the Territory. Notwithstanding
such election, the choice of substantive law made by the parties pursuant to this Subsection 16.2 shall
continue to apply.
16.3
Exclusive Benefit. This Agreement is exclusively for our and your benefit, and none of
the obligations of you or us in this Agreement will run to, or be enforceable by, any other party (except for
any rights we assign or delegate to one of our Affiliates or covenants in favor of our Affiliates, which rights
and covenants will run to and be enforceable by our Affiliates or their successors and assigns) or give rise
to liability to a third party, except as otherwise specifically set forth in this Agreement.
16.4
Entire Agreement. This Agreement and all of its attachments, documents, schedules,
exhibits, and any other information specifically incorporated into this Agreement by reference (including any
representations in any franchise disclosure document that we provided to you for the Brand in connection
with the offer of this License) will be construed together as the entire agreement between you and us with
respect to the Hotel and any other aspect of our relationship and will supersede and cancel any prior and/or
contemporaneous discussions or writings between you and us.
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16.5

Amendment and Waiver.

16.5.1 No change, termination, or attempted waiver or cancellation of any provision of this
Agreement will bind us unless it is in writing, specifically designated as an amendment or waiver, and signed
by one of our officers. We may condition our agreement to any amendment or waiver on receiving from
you, in a form satisfactory to us, an estoppel and general release of claims that you may have against us,
our Affiliates, and related parties.
16.5.2 No failure by us or by any of our Affiliates to exercise any power given us under
this Agreement or to insist on strict compliance by you with any of your obligations, and no custom or
practice at variance with the terms of this Agreement, will be considered a waiver of our or any of our
Affiliates’ right to demand exact compliance with the terms of this Agreement.
16.6

Consent; Business Judgment.

16.6.1 Wherever our consent or approval is required in this Agreement, unless the
provision specifically indicates otherwise, we have the right to withhold our approval at our option, in our
business judgment, taking into consideration our assessment of the long-term interests of the System
overall. We may withhold any and all consents or approvals required by this Agreement if you are in default
or breach of this Agreement. Our approvals and consents will not be effective unless given in writing and
signed by one of our duly authorized representatives.
16.6.2 You agree not to make a claim for money damages based on any allegation that
we have unreasonably withheld or delayed any consent or approval to a proposed act by you under the
terms of this Agreement. You also may not claim damages by way of set-off, counterclaim or defense for
our withholding of consent. Your sole remedy for the claim will be an action or proceeding to enforce the
provisions of this Agreement by specific performance or by declaratory judgment.
16.7

Notices. All notices under this Agreement must be in writing.

16.7.1 Principal Legal Correspondent (“PLC”). You must designate a single Person to
be your duly authorized representative to issue and receive notices as described in Subsection 16.7.2. Your
designee will be your PLC under this Agreement. You may have only one PLC. The notice address for your
PLC may not be a P.O. Box, and the notice address for your PLC may not be the same as the Hotel address.
The notice address for your PLC will be set forth initially on the Addendum to this Agreement. If you want
to change the person designated as your PLC, or the address or email for notice to your PLC, you may do
so at any time by sending a notice to us in accordance with Subsection 16.7.3.
16.7.2 Notices of Default and Termination, or Threatened Litigation. Any notice from
you or from us declaring default of a provision of this Agreement, or potential or final termination of this
Agreement, must be delivered in person, or by prepaid overnight courier delivery service, or by prepaid
overnight United States mail, or by prepaid certified United States mail, return-receipt requested, if overnight
delivery is not available to the notice address. We will send notices under this Subsection only to your PLC.
You must send notices to us under this Subsection as follows: Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited, Attention:
General Counsel, Maple Court, Central Park, Reeds Crescent, Watford, Hertfordshire, UK WD24 4QQ.
Notice sent under this Subsection will be deemed effective on the earlier of: (a) receipt, or first refusal of
delivery; (b) one (1) day after posting, if sent by overnight commercial delivery service; or (c) three (3) days
after placement in Territory mail if overnight delivery is not available, return receipt requested.
16.7.3 Other Notices: If a Party wishes to send a notice to the other Party regarding any
issue other than those issues specified in Subsection 16.7.2, the Party may send the notice by any method
described in Subsection 16.7.2, or by email. You may send notices under this Subsection to us to:
Legal.Development@hilton.com or such other email address as we may periodically designate by notice to
you. You may periodically designate additional Persons to receive other types of notices from us by the
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methods we periodically specify. We may send notices to you under this Subsection to the email address
designed for your PLC, or to the email address for other persons you designate for these notices.
16.8
General Release. You, on your own behalf and on behalf of, as applicable, your officers,
directors, managers, employees, heirs, administrators, executors, agents and representatives and their
respective successors and assigns hereby release, remise, acquit and forever discharge us and our
Affiliates and our and their respective officers, directors, employees, managers, agents, representatives
and their respective successors and assigns from any and all actions, claims, causes of action, suits, rights,
debts, liabilities, accounts, agreements, covenants, contracts, promises, warranties, judgments,
executions, demands, damages, costs and expenses, whether known or unknown at this time, of any kind
or nature, absolute or contingent, existing at law or in equity, on account of any matter, cause or thing
whatsoever that has happened, developed or occurred relating to this Agreement or the relationship
between you and us before the Effective Date of this Agreement. This release will survive the termination
of this Agreement.
16.9
Remedies Cumulative. The remedies provided in this Agreement are cumulative. These
remedies are not exclusive of any other remedies that you or we may be entitled to in case of any breach
or threatened breach of the terms and provisions of this Agreement.
16.10 Economic Conditions Not a Defense. Neither general economic downturn or conditions
nor your own financial inability to perform the terms of this Agreement will be a defense to an action by us
or one of our Affiliates for your breach of this Agreement.
16.11 Representations and Warranties. You warrant, represent and agree that all statements
in your franchise application in anticipation of the execution of this Agreement, and all other documents and
information submitted to us by you or on your behalf are true, correct and complete as of the date of this
Agreement. You further represent and warrant to us that:
16.11.1 you have independently investigated the risks of operating the Hotel under the
Brand, including current and potential market conditions and competitive factors and risks, and have made
an independent evaluation of all such matters and reviewed our franchise disclosure document, if
applicable;
16.11.2 neither we nor our representatives have made any promises, representations or
agreements other than those provided in the Agreement or in our franchise disclosure document provided
to you in connection with the offer of this Agreement, if applicable, and you acknowledge that you are not
relying on any promises, representations or agreements about us or the franchise not expressly contained
in this Agreement in making your decision to sign this Agreement;
16.11.3

you have the full legal power authority and legal right to enter into this

Agreement;
16.11.4 this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation and your entry
into, performance and observation of this Agreement will not constitute a breach or default of any agreement
to which you are a party or of any Law;
16.11.5 if you are a corporation, limited liability company, or other entity, you are, and
throughout the Term will be, duly formed and validly existing, in good standing in the Territory in which you
are organized, and are and will be authorized to do business in the Territory in which the Hotel is located;
16.11.6 no Equity Interest has been issued, converted to, or is held as, bearer shares or
any other form of ownership, for which there is no traceable record of the identity of the legal and beneficial
owner of such Equity Interest; and
16.11.7 you hereby indemnify and hold us harmless from any breach of these
representations and warranties, which will survive the termination of this Agreement.
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16.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which will be
considered an original, and the Parties agree to conduct the transaction by electronic means.
16.13

Sanctioned Persons and Anti-bribery Representations and Warranties.
16.13.1

You represent, warrant and covenant to us and our Affiliates, on a continuing

basis, that:
16.13.1.1 neither you, nor any Person having Control over you or the Hotel, is a
Sanctioned Person;
16.13.1.2 you have not and will not obtain, receive, transfer or provide any funds,
property, debt, equity, or other financing related to this Agreement and the Hotel or Hotel Site to/from a
Sanctioned Person;
16.13.1.3 neither you, nor any Person having Control over you or the Hotel, has
been convicted of, pleaded guilty to, or otherwise been adjudged liable for any violation of laws, ordinances,
rules or regulations that pertain to bribery or corruption, money laundering, competition, securities or
financial fraud, trade sanctions or export controls, human trafficking, sex trade, or forced labor;
16.13.1.4 any funds received or paid in connection with entry into or performance
of this Agreement have not been and will not be derived from or commingled with the proceeds of any
activities that are proscribed and punishable under the criminal laws of the Territory or the United States of
America, and that you are not engaging in this transaction in furtherance of a criminal act;
16.13.1.5 in preparation for and in entering into this Agreement, neither you, nor
any Person having Control over you or the Hotel, has made any Improper Payment or engaged in any acts
or transactions otherwise in violation of any applicable Anti-Corruption Laws, and, in connection with this
Agreement or the performance of your obligations under this Agreement, neither you nor any Person having
Control over you or the Hotel will directly or indirectly make, offer to make, or authorize any Improper
Payment or engage in any acts or transactions otherwise in violation of any applicable Anti-Corruption
Laws;
16.13.1.6 neither you, nor any Person having Control over you or the Hotel who
may be considered a Government Entity or Government Official, improperly uses their status or position to
influence official actions or decisions or to secure any improper advantages to or for the benefit of the Hotel
or us; and
16.13.1.7 you will assure that your respective appointed agents (including any
Management Company) in relation to this Agreement comply in all material respects with the
representations, warranties, and covenants described in this Subsection 16.13.
16.13.2 You will notify us in writing immediately on the occurrence of any event which
would render the foregoing representations and warranties of this Subsection 16.13 incorrect.
16.13.3 If we believe that you may not be in compliance with any of the covenants,
representations and warranties set forth in this Subsection 16.13, we will advise you of our belief, and you
must (a) cooperate with any and all reasonable information and documentation requests and inquiries,
including requests for execution of certificates of compliance, and (b) permit, on reasonable prior notice, at
all reasonable times, inspection of the books and records pertaining to the development, ownership,
management, and use of the Hotel.
16.14 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. If either Party is required to employ legal counsel or to incur
other expenses to enforce any provision of this Agreement or defend any claim by the other, then the
prevailing Party in any resulting dispute will be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing Party the amount
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of all reasonable fees of attorneys and experts, court costs, and all other expenses incurred in enforcing
such obligation or in defending against such claim, demand, action, or proceeding.
16.15 Interest. Any sum owed to us or our Affiliates by you or paid by us, or our Affiliates on
your behalf, will bear interest from the date due until paid by you at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per
annum or, if lower, the maximum lawful rate.
16.16 Successors and Assigns. The terms and provisions of this Agreement will inure to the
benefit of and be binding on the permitted successors and assigns of the Parties.
16.17 Our Delegation of Rights and Responsibility. In addition to the rights granted to us in
Section 4 and Subsection 12.1 of this Agreement, we reserve the right to delegate to one or more of our
Affiliates at any time, any and all of our rights, obligations or requirements under this Agreement, and to
require that you submit any relevant materials and documents otherwise requiring approval by us under
this Agreement to such Affiliates, in which case approval by such Affiliates will be conclusively deemed to
be approval by us. During the period of such delegation or designation, any act or direction by such Affiliates
with respect to this Agreement will be deemed the act or direction of us. We may revoke any such
delegation or designation at any time. You acknowledge and agree that such delegation may result in one
or more of our Affiliates which operate, license, or otherwise support brands other than the Brand,
exercising or performing on our behalf any or all rights, obligations or requirements under this Agreement
or performing shared services on our behalf.
16.18 Confidentiality of Negotiated Terms. You agree that you will not disclose to any Person
the content of any negotiated terms of this Agreement or Your Agreements without our prior consent except:
(1) as required by Law; (2) as may be required in any legal proceedings; and (3) to those of your officers,
directors, managers, members, shareholders, employees, attorneys, accountants, agents or lenders to the
extent necessary for the operation or financing of the Hotel, and only if you inform such Persons of the
confidentiality of the negotiated provisions. Any disclosure of negotiated terms by you, or by any such
Persons, without our consent will be deemed a default under this Agreement.
16.19 Currency. Unless otherwise expressly specified, all references to amounts in this
Agreement are deemed to be references to U.S. Dollars (legal currency of the United States of America).
Furthermore, all amounts payable hereunder will be paid in U.S. Dollars, unless we specify otherwise.
16.20 English Language. This Agreement is entered into in English. The parties confirm that it
is their wish that this Agreement, as well as all other documents relating to this Agreement, including all
future notices, have been and shall be drawn up in the English language only. Notwithstanding the forgoing,
we may translate this Agreement into another language in connection with any registration of this
Agreement (or any other similar filing) with any Government Entity. We shall own any such translation.
Regardless of any translation of this Agreement, the English version of this Agreement shall control for all
purposes.
16.21 Delivery of Franchise Disclosure Document and Agreement. Notwithstanding the
choice of New York law pursuant to Section 16.2.1 to govern this Agreement, you and we acknowledge
and agree that any United States of America Franchise Disclosure Document for the Brand is not applicable
to a franchise agreement for the Territory and we did not, therefore, provide a United States of America
Franchise Disclosure Document to you. You acknowledge delivery and receipt of a Franchise Disclosure
Document for the Territory, which you acknowledge and agree complies with the requirements of Brazilian
Law 8955/94 (the Franchise Law) adopted on December 15, 1994, and effective on February 14, 1995.
You and each of your owners listed in Schedule 2 have had a full and adequate opportunity to read and
review such Brazil Franchise Disclosure Document and the Agreement, and to be thoroughly advised by
legal counsel or representative, or have chosen not to do so without any influence by us. You further
acknowledge that you (and your legal counsel or representative, if applicable) are fluent in the English
language, and that you understood all of the items of information contained in the Franchise Disclosure
Document delivered to you before execution of this Agreement.
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16.22 Registration of Agreement. We may register this Agreement (and/or make any other
similar filings, or require you to make any such filings) with any Government Entity, including but not limited
to the Brazilian National Institute of Industrial Property and/or the Brazilian Central Bank as required by
Brazilian law or as we otherwise deem appropriate. At your own expense you will cooperate with all
requests made by us relating to such registrations or filings, and will promptly pay or reimburse us for all
costs associated with such registrations and filings, including but not limited to translation costs, upon our
request.
17.0

WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL AND PUNITIVE DAMAGES

17.1
IF EITHER PARTY INITIATES LITIGATION INVOLVING THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
ASPECT OF THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES (EVEN IF OTHER PARTIES OR OTHER
CLAIMS ARE INCLUDED IN SUCH LITIGATION), ALL THE PARTIES WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A
TRIAL BY JURY.
17.2
IN ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS
AGREEMENT, ANY BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT, OR THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE
PARTIES, WHETHER SOUNDING IN CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ALL PARTIES WAIVE ANY
RIGHT THEY MAY HAVE TO PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES FROM THE OTHER. NOTHING
IN THIS SECTION LIMITS OUR RIGHT OR THE RIGHT OF AN INDEMNIFIED PARTY TO BE
INDEMNIFIED AGAINST THE PAYMENT OF PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES TO A THIRD
PARTY. THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT LIQUIDATED DAMAGES PAYABLE BY YOU UNDER
THIS AGREEMENT (WHETHER PRE-OPENING LIQUIDATED DAMAGES OR LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
FOR EARLY TERMINATION) ARE NOT PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES.

[SELECT THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH 19; DELETE ALL HIGHLIGHTED LANGUAGE AND
UPDATE TABLE OF CONTENTS]
18.0

NOTICE OF INTENT TO MARKET

[SELECT FOR DT, HAM, OL, QQ, UP Except in the case of a Transfer governed by
Subsection 12.2.1 of this Agreement, if you or a Controlling Affiliate want to Transfer any Equity Interest,
you must give us written notice, concurrently with beginning your marketing efforts.
18.0

RIGHT OF FIRST OFFER [SELECT FOR HFS

18.1
Except in the case of a Transfer governed by Subsection 12.2.1 of this Agreement, if you
or a Controlling Affiliate wants to Transfer any Equity Interest, or you or a Controlling Affiliate receive an
unsolicited bona fide offer from a third party to purchase or lease the Hotel or Hotel Site or an interest in it
(“Marketed Interest”), you or the Controlling Affiliate shall notify us in writing of such offer (“ROFO Notice”).
The ROFO Notice shall describe the Marketed Interest and state the intended sales or lease price and all
terms and conditions of the proposed sale or lease. You or the Controlling Affiliate will provide us with all
information and documentation relating to the Marketed Interest that we request.
18.2
We or our designee(s) shall have the right, exercisable within thirty (30) days after receipt
of all requested documentation and information from you (“Option Period”), to either make an offer to
purchase or lease the Marketed Interest (“Our Offer”) or waive our right to make an offer. During the Option
Period, you may not change any of the terms and conditions in the ROFO Notice, and must deal exclusively
with us or our designee(s).
18.3
You will have twenty (20) days after receiving Our Offer to accept or reject Our Offer in
writing. If Our Offer is for a price equal to or greater than stated in the notice and is on substantially similar
terms and conditions as (or is more favorable than) those stated in the ROFO Notice, then you must accept
Our Offer. If you do not accept Our Offer within twenty (20) days, it is deemed rejected.

{018316-022430 00275579.DOCX; 1}

36

BRAND STATE CITY QUALIFIER FACILITY ID TYPE

18.4
If you accept Our Offer, we or our designee and you will enter into an agreement and
complete the transaction for the purchase or lease of the Marketed Interest at the price and on the terms
and conditions of Our Offer within sixty (60) days of your written acceptance (the “60-day Period”). You will
not offer the Hotel or Hotel Site to any third party during the 60-day Period. If the parties are unable to reach
agreement despite good faith negotiations in the 60-day Period, you will be deemed to have rejected Our
Offer.
18.1 If you do not accept Our Offer, or it is deemed rejected, or we waive our right to make an
offer, for two hundred seventy (270) days (the “270-day Period”), you or a Controlling Affiliate may Transfer
the Marketed Interest to a third party for a price greater than and/or on more favorable terms than the price
and terms stated in Our Offer, but you or a Controlling Affiliate must comply with the Transfer provisions in
Section 12.2.3 of this Agreement. If you or a Controlling Affiliate proposes to Transfer the Marketed Interest
at a lesser price or on less favorable terms during the 270-day Period, then you must again give us notice
of the proposed sale or lease and comply with the provisions of this Section 18.
19.0

KEY MONEY/DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE NOTE

You and any co-makers must execute the Development Incentive Note attached to this Agreement as
Exhibit [_ contemporaneously with your execution of this Agreement. Within thirty (30) days after you open
the Hotel with our consent, we will pay to you [________ Dollars ($__) as a development incentive.
In connection with this Agreement or the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, you will not
use any portion of the development incentive to make, provide, offer to make, or authorize, directly or
indirectly, an Improper Payment or engage in any acts or transactions otherwise violating any AntiCorruption Laws. If we have any basis for a reasonable belief that you have used the development incentive
in violation of any Anti-Corruption Laws, we will advise you of this belief and you will cooperate with any
and all reasonable information and document requests and inquiries, including requests for execution of
certificates of compliance, and permit, on reasonable prior notice, at all reasonable times, inspection of the
books and records pertaining to the development, ownership, management and use of the Hotel.

This Agreement continues with an Addendum, which is part of the Agreement.
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ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
Effective Date:

[

Facility Number:

[

Franchisor Name:

Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited

Brand:

[SELECT:
Curio Collection by Hilton, as that name is used to identify
the chain of hotels operated under the Standards. The Brand
does not mean Hilton Worldwide, its Affiliates, or any other
brands, product lines, or chains of hotels that include the
words “Curio,” “Collection,” or “Hilton” as any part of their
brand name.
DoubleTree by Hilton, as that name is used to identify the
chain of hotels operated under the Standards. The Brand
does not mean Hilton Worldwide, its Affiliates, or any other
brands, product lines, or chains of hotels that include the
words “DoubleTree” or “Hilton” as any part of their brand
name.
DoubleTree Suites by Hilton, as that name is used to identify
the chain of hotels operated under the Standards. The Brand
does not mean Hilton Worldwide, its Affiliates, or any other
brands, product lines, or chains of hotels that include the
words “DoubleTree,” “Suites,” or “Hilton” as any part of their
brand name.
Hampton Inn by Hilton, as that name is used to identify the
chain of hotels operated under the Standards. The Brand
does not mean Hilton Worldwide, its Affiliates, or any other
brands, product lines, or chains of hotels that include the
words “Hampton” or “Hilton” as any part of their brand name.
Hampton Inn & Suites by Hilton, as that name is used to
identify the chain of hotels operated under the Standards. The
Brand does not mean Hilton Worldwide, its Affiliates, or any
other brands, product lines, or chains of hotels that include the
words “Hampton,” “Suites,” or “Hilton” as any part of their
brand name.
Hilton, as that name is used to identify the chain of hotels
operated under the Standards. The Brand does not mean
Hilton Worldwide, its Affiliates, or any other brands, product
lines, or chains of hotels that include the word “Hilton” as any
part of their brand name.
LXR, as that name is used to identify the chain of hotels
operated under the Standards. The Brand does not mean
Hilton Worldwide, its Affiliates, or any other brands, product
lines, or chains of hotels that include the initials or words
“LXR” or “Hilton” as any part of their brand name.
Tapestry Collection by Hilton, as that name is used to
identify the chain of hotels operated under the Standards. The
Brand does not mean Hilton Worldwide, its Affiliates, or any
other brands, product lines, or chains of hotels that include the

{018316-022430 00275579.DOCX; 1}

38

BRAND STATE CITY QUALIFIER FACILITY ID TYPE

words “Tapestry,” “Collection,” or “Hilton” as any part of their
brand name.

Initial Approved Hotel Name (Trade
Name):

[

Principal Mark in Brand:

[SELECT:
Curio
DoubleTree
Hampton
SELECT FOR HFS HGI: Hilton
LXR
Tapestry™

Franchisee Name and Address
(Attn: Principal Legal Correspondent):

[

Address of Hotel:

[

Initial Number of Approved Guest
Rooms:

[

Plans Submission Dates:
Preliminary Plans:

[Due four (4) months from the Effective Date]

Design Development (50%)
Plans and Specifications:

[Due eight (8) months from the Effective Date]

Final (100%) Plans and
Specifications:

[Due twelve (12) months from the Effective Date]

Construction Commencement Date:

[HAM : Due fifteen (15) months from the Effective Date
[DT HFS OL QQ UP: Due Sixteen (16) months from the
Effective Date
[If Adaptive Reuse, include:
For the Hotel to be considered under construction, you
must have: (a) submitted final plans to us, (b) received
our approval of your final plans, (c) submitted to us a
building permit for Hotel construction, and
(d) substantially completed, to our satisfaction:
(i) exterior demolition, if applicable, and (ii) interior
demolition and construction of new permanent interior
walls.

Construction Work Completion Date:

[HAM : Due twenty-seven (27) months from the Effective
Date
[DT HFS OL QQ UP: Due thirty-six (36) months from the
Effective Date

Renovation Commencement Date:

[
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Renovation Work Completion Date:

[

Expiration Date:

[SELECT:
New Construction – At midnight on the last day of the
month [HAM: twenty-two (22) years from the [SELECT:
Effective Date] [Opening Date] [DT HFS OL QQ UP:
twenty-three (23) years from the [SELECT: Effective
Date] [Opening Date]
Conversion – At midnight on the last day of the month
SELECT: ten (10) to twenty (20) years from the Opening
Date
Change of Ownership – Remaining Term under the
existing franchise agreement

Monthly Fees:
[DELETE UNLESS HFS Monthly
Food and Beverage Fee:

Three percent (3%) of the Hotel’s Gross Food and
Beverage Revenue for the preceding calendar month.

Monthly Program Fee:

[SELECT FOR DT HAM HFS OL QQ UP: Four percent
(4%) of the Hotel’s Gross Rooms Revenue (“GRR”) for
the preceding calendar month.
[SELECT ONLY IF EARLY RL AND PREVIOUS
MONTHLY PROGRAM FEE WAS LOWER: From the
Effective Date through [Expiration Date of prior FA, you
will pay [____ percent (_%) (“Discounted Fee”) of the
Hotel’s Gross Rooms Revenue (“GRR”) for the
preceding calendar month; then, from [Expiration Date
of prior FA to the end of the Term, you will pay [____
percent (_%) of GRR. The Discounted Fee will not be
used as a base for purposes of calculating any changes
to the Monthly Program Fee during the Term.
ALWAYS INCLUDE: The Monthly Program Fee is subject to
change by us. Any change may be established in the
Standards, but the rate will not exceed the standard Monthly
Program Fee as of the Effective Date plus one percent (1%)
of the Hotel’s GRR during the Term.

Monthly Royalty Fee:

[SELECT FOR DT HFS OL QQ UP:
Five percent (5%) of the Hotel’s GRR for the preceding
calendar month

Monthly Royalty Fee:

[SELECT FOR HAM:
Six percent (6%) of the Hotel’s GRR for the preceding
calendar month.
[IF HAM ENTERING INTO A RL FA (NOT A COO) UNDER
FA EXECUTED BEFORE 4/1/05, USE THE FOLLOWING
Three percent (3%) of the Hotel’s Gross Food and
Beverage Revenue for the preceding calendar month.
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INCLUDE ONLY FOR HFS:
Monthly Food and Beverage Fee:
Additional Requirements/Special Provisions [Section #]:
[ADD ONLY IF APPLICABLE]
Restricted Area Provision
Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement, from the Effective Date until midnight on the
day before the ____ anniversary of the [SELECT Effective Date (being ________)] [Opening Date, but
in no event later than ___________] (“Restrictive Period”), neither we nor any of our Affiliates will open,
or allow to open, a hotel or motel under the Brand, as such Brand name may be periodically changed by
us, within a [SELECT ___ mile radius of the Hotel, the center point of which is the front door of the Hotel
(“Restricted Area”). [SELECT Restricted Area described as follows, and as set forth on Exhibit [__:
[INSERT DESCRIPTION.
This restriction does not apply to any hotel or motel that is currently open or under construction or has been
approved for development or opening as a Brand hotel as of the Effective Date (“Existing Hotel”). The
term Existing Hotel also includes any hotel located or to be located within the Restricted Area that replaces
such Existing Hotel under the Brand. The restrictions also do not apply to any: (1) hotel(s) or motel(s) under
brands other than the Brand; (2) hotel(s) or motel(s) that will not begin operating under the Brand until after
the expiration of the Restrictive Period; (3) gaming-oriented hotels or facilities using the Brand; (4) shared
ownership properties (commonly known as “vacation ownership” or “time share ownership” or similar real
estate properties) under the Brand; and (5) hotel(s), motel(s), or inn(s) that are part of a chain or group of
four (4) or more hotels, motels, or inns that we or our Affiliates, as a result of a single transaction or group
of related transactions, own, operate, acquire, lease, manage, franchise, license, or join through a merger,
acquisition or marketing agreement (or otherwise), whether under their existing name or the Brand name
or any other name. [INSERT FOR HFS You acknowledge and agree that this restriction does not apply to
any “Signia Hilton” or “Signia by Hilton” brand hotel.]
[IF HAM/HIS USE THIS RAB LANGUAGE INSTEAD
Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement, from the Effective Date until midnight on the
day before the ____ anniversary of the [SELECT Effective Date (being _________)] [Opening Date, but
in no event later than ____________] (“Restrictive Period”), neither we nor any of our Affiliates will open,
or allow to open, a hotel or motel under the Hampton, Hampton Inn or Hampton Inn & Suites brands
(collectively, “Restricted Brands”), as such Restricted Brands’ names may be periodically changed by us,
within a [SELECT ___ mile radius of the Hotel, the center point of which is the front door of the Hotel
(“Restricted Area”). [SELECT Restricted Area described as follows, and as set forth on Exhibit [__:
[INSERT DESCRIPTION.
This restriction does not apply to any hotel or motel that is currently open or under construction or has been
approved for development or opening as a Restricted Brands hotel as of the Effective Date (“Existing
Hotel”). The term Existing Hotel also includes any hotel located or to be located within the Restricted Area
that replaces such Existing Hotel under the Restricted Brands. The restrictions also do not apply to any: (1)
hotel(s) or motel(s) under brands other than the Restricted Brands; (2) hotel(s) or motel(s) that will not begin
operating under the Restricted Brands until after the expiration of the Restrictive Period; (3) gaming-oriented
hotels or facilities using the Restricted Brands; (4) shared ownership properties (commonly known as
“vacation ownership” or “time share ownership” or similar real estate properties) under the Restricted
Brands; and (5) hotel(s), motel(s), or inn(s) that are part of a chain or group of four (4) or more hotels,
motels, or inns that we or our Affiliates, as a result of a single transaction or group of related transactions,
own, operate, acquire, lease, manage, franchise, license, or join through a merger, acquisition or marketing
agreement (or otherwise), whether under their existing name or the Restricted Brands name or any other
name.
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Existing Third-Party Agreement. You acknowledge and agree that (i) your right to operate the Hotel under
the Brand will not become effective until after the existing third-party franchise (or similar) agreement for
this Hotel, if any, has terminated or expired and (ii) you are solely responsible for ensuring that any such
agreement has terminated or expired on or before the Opening Date.
[IF RL Amendment and Restatement. This Agreement replaces the franchise agreement dated [INSERT
DATE (“Original Agreement”) by and between us (or our Affiliate) and you (or your Affiliate) with respect
to the Hotel. The Original Agreement will be superseded and have no further force or effect as of the
Effective Date of this Agreement, except those provisions expressly intended to survive termination or
expiration of the Original Agreement. To the extent there are outstanding obligations to us or our Affiliates
under the Original Agreement, you acknowledge and agree that you are directly responsible, jointly and
severally, for all such obligations under the Original Agreement existing at or accruing after the execution
of this Agreement.
[IF COO Obligations of Former Franchisee. You acknowledge and agree that you are directly responsible
for, and will pay on demand, all fees and charges due and owing us and our Affiliates related to the former
franchise agreement for the Hotel if any such fees and charges remain outstanding as of or accrue after
the Effective Date of this Agreement.
[IF SITE CONTROL NOT CONFIRMED ON EFFECTIVE DATE Before commencement of Construction
Work, but not later than the Construction Completion Deadline, you must submit to us evidence satisfactory
to us showing your title to, or long term possessory interest in, the real property on which the Hotel will be
sited (i.e. a conformed copy of the deed, or ground lease submitted for recording, or like document) in
accordance with Subsections 5.1.15 and 5.1.16 of the Agreement.
[IF TIC You acknowledge and agree that: (1) each of you is jointly, severally, individually and collectively
responsible for the Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement; (2) your obligations and liability to us is
not limited by your tenant-in-common structure; (3) the transfer provisions of this Agreement apply to each
of you; (4) [___________] is deemed to be your Controlling Affiliate; and (5) the Hotel has a single
designated Principal Legal Correspondent, as named above, whom we will notify for all purposes under
this Agreement.
Your Ownership Structure:
See Attached Schedule 1
[IF FRANCHISEE’S AFFILIATE IS THE FEE TITLE OWNER, LESSOR OR SUBLESSOR OF THE HOTEL
OR THE HOTEL SITE:
Ownership Structure of Affiliate Fee Owner or Lessor/Sublessor of the Hotel or Hotel Site:
See Attached Schedule 2
[IF KEY MONEY EXHIBIT _ – DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE NOTE
[IF APPLICABLE EXHIBIT _ – SHARED FACILITIES ADDENDUM
[ONLY IF NOT A RADIUS EXHIBIT _ – RESTRICTED AREA MAP
[IF APPLICABLE EXHIBIT _ – PRODUCT IMPROVEMENT PLAN
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement, which has been entered into and is
effective as of the Effective Date set forth above.
FRANCHISEE:

FRANCHISOR:

[INSERT FRANCHISEE ENTITY],
a [INSERT TYPE OF ENTITY]

HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED,
a limited company formed under the laws of
England and Wales

By:

By:

Name:

Name:
Title:

Authorized Signatory

Title:

Executed on:
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NOTARY CERTIFICATE FOR FRANCHISOR
STATE OF

)
)
)

COUNTY OF

ss:

Personally appeared before me this _____day of ___________, 20___, the above-named
______________________________, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing
Franchise Agreement, being first duly sworn, stated upon oath that s/he executed the document for the
purposed therein stated.

(SEAL)

Notary Public:
My Commission Expires:

NOTARIAL CERTIFICATION FOR FRANCHISEE
To be signed before Brazilian Notary Public – Remainder of Page Reserved for Notarial
Certification
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SCHEDULE 1
Your Ownership Structure:

Name
(Shareholder, Partner, Member and Manager)
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SCHEDULE 2
Ownership Structure of Affiliate Fee Owner or Lessor/Sublessor of the Hotel or Hotel Site:

Name
(Shareholder, Partner, Member and Manager)
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SCHEDULE 3
SCHEDULE OF TRADEMARKS
We hold the rights to the trademarks and service marks listed in the table below (and any additional
trademarks and services noted in the Franchise Disclosure Document for the Territory provided to you),
which are registered in Brazil. These trademarks were assigned to us from Hilton International IP Holding
Limited in June 2017, and those assignments are being filed for recording in the trademark office.
[SELECT BRAND]
[HFS]
Mark

Registration
Number

Registration Date

HILTON

6375499

10 July 1986

HILTON

819279412

15 February 2011

STYLIZED H design

820857467

10 July 2001

STYLIZED H design

820857475

10 July 2001

STYLIZED H design

820857483

17 July 2001

[HAM]
Mark
HAMPTON INN (block)
HAMPTON INN (design)

Registration
Number
811468054
816972400

Registration Date
02/21/85
08/23/1994

We also hold the right to the following trademarks, for which applications are pending in Brazil.
Mark
HAMPTON BY HILTON (block)
HAMPTON BY HILTON (design)

Application
Number
902153439
902153625

Application Date

Registration
Number

Registration Date

6375499

July 10, 1986

901812099

May 22, 2012

11/30/2009
11/30/2009

[DT]
Mark
HILTON (word)
DOUBLETREE BY HILTON
(word)

We also hold the right to the following Mark, for which an application is pending in Brazil.
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Mark
D with TREE DESIGN

Application
Number

Application Date

903440563

March 4, 2011

[QQ]
Mark

Registration
Number

Registration Date

HILTON

6375499

10 July 1986

HILTON

819279412

15 February 2011

CURIO

840823479

1 November 2016

CURIO

840823487

1 November 2016

CURIO

840823495

1 November 2016

[INSERT FOR ALL BRANDS]
In the future, we may transfer the Marks to other affiliates for administrative purposes periodically. If the
Marks are transferred to any affiliates, we will continue to have a license to use and sublicense the Marks
in our business, and your license to use the Marks will not be disturbed.
[ALSO INSERT FOR DT]
Hilton Hospitality, Inc. (“HHI”) held a trademark registration for DOUBLETREE in Brazil beginning
October 18, 2005, in Class 43 for providing food and drink; temporary accommodation with the specification
to motel and hotel services; restaurant services and furnishing of meals, Registration Number 820731080.
On November 7, 2006, the Industrial Property Review (“RPI”) published an administrative process for
annulment filed by Blue Tree Hotels & Resorts do Brasil S/A against the DOUBLETREE trademark
registration claiming that it is a reproduction of its BLUETREE trademark registered on January 11, 2000,
in Class 38: 50-60 for services of communication, publicity, advertising, transport, storage, package, hotels
and alimentation in general; services of alimentation. HHI filed a reply petition on January 4, 2007, to
contest the administrative proceeding and stating that there is a difference in meaning between the two
subject trademarks and were registered in different classes of service. The Brazilian Institute of Industrial
Property (“INPI”) granted the nullity and the DOUBLETREE registration was cancelled January 27, 2009.
Accordingly, HLT International IP LLC, our predecessor, filed a new application for the word and design to
replace the cancelled DOUBLETREE registration and for the letter D and Tree Design, as shown in the
above table. The first Mark matured to registration in 2012. If unopposed, the second Mark is expected to
mature sometime in 2017. These are the Marks licensed to you under the Franchise Agreement.
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EXHIBIT - __
SHARED FACILITIES ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
You and we are parties to a franchise agreement dated ______________ (“Agreement”), which provides,
among other things, for the operation of the (proposed) [insert Hotel #1 name ______ hotel located or to
be located at [Insert Hotel #1 address ____ (“Hotel”).
You (or your Affiliate) and we are also parties to a franchise agreement dated ____________ (“[Insert Brand
#2 _____ Agreement”) for the operation of the (proposed) [insert Hotel #2 name ______ hotel located or
to be located at [Insert Hotel #2 address ____ (“Insert Brand #2 ______ Hotel”).
You requested that the Hotel and the [Insert Hotel #2 ___] Hotel (collectively, “Sharing Hotels”), which are
[or, will be] [Select: part of the same building structure, [located in buildings adjacent to one another, be
permitted to jointly utilize certain shared hotel facilities and offer to their guests the use of certain shared
amenities (“Shared Facilities”) in accordance with the terms of this Addendum (“Shared Facilities
Arrangement”).
For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, you
and we agree that the following provisions are incorporated into and made a part of the Agreement:
1)

We give our consent for the Hotel and the [Hotel #2 Hotel to jointly utilize the Shared Facilities
identified during our review and approval of the Plans and Designs for the Hotel and the [Hotel #2
Hotel.

2)

Our consent is contingent upon you (or your Affiliate) executing a Shared Facilities Addendum to
the [Hotel #2 Agreement on the same terms contained in this Addendum.

3)

We expressly reserve the right to withdraw our consent and, on notice, require you to discontinue
the Shared Facilities Arrangement if:
a)

we determine that such participation is detrimental to the operation of the Hotel, the guest
experience, or the goodwill and reputation of the Brand and/or the Marks;

b)

any of the Shared Facilities fail to meet System Standards as set forth under the Agreement
and/or the [Hotel #2 Agreement;

c)

either the Agreement or the [Hotel #2 Agreement is terminated for any reason;

d)

You Transfer a controlling Equity Interest in you, the Hotel Site, or the Agreement, without
simultaneously selling, leasing, assigning, or Transferring a controlling Equity Interest in
you (or your Affiliate controlling [Hotel # 2 Hotel), the [Hotel # 2 Hotel Site, or the [Hotel #
2 Agreement, to the same transferee or a transferee under common control with such
transferee. Any Transfers are subject to the Transfer provisions of the Agreement. Failure
to comply with the Transfer provisions is a material breach of the Agreement.

If we withdraw our consent pursuant to this paragraph, to the extent that the Shared Facilities are
part of Standards, you shall immediately make arrangements to either procure the Shared
Facilities, or to construct comparable facilities and amenities, for the exclusive use of the Hotel.
Your failure to procure the Shared Facilities or construct comparable facilities and amenities to
meet Standards is deemed to be a default that may result in the termination of the Agreement. If
the Shared Facilities are no longer a part of the Hotel, you are responsible for immediately removing
any Marks or distinctive System features associated with the Brand from any of the Shared
Facilities that are accessible to or visible by Hotel guests, and removing all other indicia that the
Hotel had joint possession or use of the Shared Facilities with the [Hotel # 2 Hotel.
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4)

So long as the Shared Facilities Arrangement is in place, any new franchise agreement executed
in connection with a Transfer, or any successor franchise agreement executed between you and
us must contain the provisions set forth in this Addendum. You acknowledge and agree that your
refusal to include these restrictions in a successor franchise agreement will constitute a valid and
reasonable basis for us to refuse to grant such successor franchise agreement. You acknowledge
and agree that a proposed transferee’s refusal to include these restrictions in a new franchise
agreement will constitute a valid and reasonable basis for us to deny our consent to such Change
of Ownership Transfer.

5)

You acknowledge and agree that any Default under the [Hotel #2] Agreement shall constitute a
simultaneous Default of the Agreement, and termination of the [Hotel #2] Agreement pursuant to
such Default shall constitute a valid basis for termination of the Agreement.

6)

All questions with respect to the construction of this Addendum and the rights and liabilities of the
parties under this Addendum shall be governed by the internal laws of the state designated in the
Agreement. A breach of any provision of this Addendum is a breach of the Agreement. Any action
or proceeding related to or arising out of this Addendum shall be submitted and resolved exclusively
by a court of competent jurisdiction located in the forum designated in the Agreement.

7)

All capitalized terms not expressly defined in this Addendum shall have the meanings set forth in
the Agreement. Except as expressly modified by this Addendum, the Agreement remains
unmodified and in full force and effect.

8)

This Addendum may be executed in counterparts, and delivered by facsimile or other electronic
transmission, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute
one and the same instrument.
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EXHIBIT D-1

EXHIBIT __
DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE NOTE
McLean, Virginia
$[insert amount]

Date: [insert date]

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, [INSERT NAME (“Maker”) promises to pay to the order of HILTON FRANCHISE
HOLDING LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Holder”), the principal sum of [INSERT AMOUNT IN
WORDS ($[INSERT NUMERICAL AMOUNT) which amount shall bear no interest unless Maker defaults
or this Note is accelerated.
This Note is issued pursuant to the Franchise Agreement between Holder and Maker for the operation of a
[INSERT BRAND hotel to be located at [INSERT ADDRESS (“Hotel”). All capitalized terms not defined in
this Note shall have the same meaning as in the Franchise Agreement.
The principal amount of this Note will be disbursed by Holder to Maker, and Maker will become subject to
the obligation to repay or discharge this Note, when and if Maker opens the Hotel in accordance with the
Franchise Agreement. If the Franchise Agreement terminates before the Hotel opens and Holder does not
disburse the principal amount of this Note to Maker, then this Note will be deemed discharged and neither
party will have any further obligation to the other under this instrument. On each anniversary of the Hotel’s
Opening Date, one-twentieth (1/20th) [UPDATE IF FA TERM IS NOT 20 YEARS] of the original principal
amount will be forgiven without payment. Maker’s obligation to repay the principal of this Note will cease
and this Note will automatically be canceled and discharged when and if the principal is completely forgiven
in accordance with these terms.
If a Termination of the Franchise Agreement occurs for any reason; or a Transfer occurs, and the transferee
does not assume Maker’s obligation under this Note in a writing acceptable to Holder before the closing of
the Transfer before the principal is forgiven, then the outstanding, unamortized principal balance of this
Note shall be immediately due and payable without further notice, demand or presentment. If this Note is
accelerated under this paragraph, and is not paid within ten (10) days after it is due, the outstanding
principal balance shall bear simple interest at a rate equal to the lesser of eighteen percent (18%) per
annum or the highest rate allowed by applicable law from its due date until paid. The outstanding principal
balance of this Note shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at 7930 Jones Branch
Dr., Suite 1100, McLean, VA 22102, Attention: General Counsel, or at such other place as Holder may
periodically direct by written notice to Maker. Any payments shall be first applied to any accrued interest
and then to principal. Maker has the right to prepay this Note, in whole or in part, at any time, without
premium or penalty. Prepayments of principal will be applied without notation on this Note. Maker’s
obligation to pay this Note shall be absolute and unconditional, and all payments shall be made without
setoff, deduction, offset, recoupment or counterclaim.
If this Note is collected by or through an attorney at law, the Holder shall be entitled to collect reasonable
attorney’s fees and all costs of collection, which shall be added to the amount due and payable to Holder
under this Note. This Note is issued in and shall be governed and construed according to the laws of the
State of New York (without the application of conflict of laws principles). Each maker, endorser, guarantor
or accommodation party liable for this Note waives presentment, demand, notice of demand, protest, notice
of non-payment, notice of protest, notice of dishonor and diligence in collection. Holder reserves the right
to modify the terms of this instrument, grant extensions, renewals, releases, discharges, compositions and
compromises with any party liable on this Note, with or without notice to or the consent of, and without
discharging or affecting the obligations of any other party liable under this instrument.
The terms “Holder” and “Maker” shall be deemed to include their respective heirs, successors, legal
representatives and assigns, whether by voluntary action of the parties or by operation of law. All references
to “Maker” shall mean and include the named Maker and all co-makers, guarantors, sureties and
accommodation parties signing or endorsing this Note.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this instrument effective on the date indicated
above.

Maker

[REQUIRED IF PRINCIPAL OF NOTE IS $1,000,000 OR MORE:
Co-Maker
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EXHIBIT D-2

EFOREA SPA AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
THIS AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is made and entered into
as of [INSERT DATE] (“Effective Date”), by and between HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED
(“we,” “us,” “our,” or “Franchisor”) and the franchisee entity (“you,” “your,” or “Franchisee”) set forth in
the Addendum attached to the Franchise Agreement (as defined below).
WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have entered into that certain Franchise Agreement
effective [INSERT DATE] (“Franchise Agreement”), which provides for the Hotel to operate as a Brand
hotel pursuant to the terms of the Franchise Agreement.
WHEREAS, Franchisee has made application to operate an eforea spa (“eforea spa”) in
connection with the operation of the Hotel and Franchisor is willing to accept such application and grant a
license to Franchisee to use the Brand in the operation of an eforea spa at the Hotel Site, pursuant to the
Franchise Agreement as amended hereby.
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is
hereby acknowledged, Franchisor and Franchisee hereby agree as follows:
1.
Terms. Capitalized terms set forth herein that are not defined herein shall have the
meaning set forth in the Franchise Agreement, unless specifically amended pursuant to Section 2 below.
2.
Changes to Certain Defined Terms. Section 1 of the Franchise Agreement shall be
amended as follows:
(a)
The defined terms set forth in Section 1 of the Franchise Agreement, which are
identified below, shall be deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following:
“Hotel” means the property you will operate under this Agreement and includes all
structures, facilities, appurtenances, furniture, fixtures, equipment, and entry, exit, parking
and other areas located on the Hotel Site we have approved for your business, including
an eforea spa, located on any land we approve in the future for additions, signs, parking
or other facilities.
“Brand” means with respect to the Hotel, the brand name set forth in the Addendum, and
the brand name “eforea” with respect to the spa to be operated hereunder.
“Term” means the period from the Effective Date through the expiration of this
Agreement on the date set forth in the Addendum, unless terminated earlier under the
terms of this Agreement. The Term for the operation of your eforea spa shall expire on
the earlier of: (i) the termination of the eforea spa Amendment to this Agreement or
(ii) the expiration or termination of this Agreement.
“Opening Date” means the day on which we authorize you to make available the
facilities, guestrooms or services of the Hotel to the general public under the Brand.
However, the “Opening Date” as it relates to the eforea spa, shall mean the day on which
we authorize you to make available the spa’s services to the general public.
“Trade Name” means the name of the Hotel set forth in the Addendum, and with respect
to the operation of the spa in connection with the Hotel, the name “eforea.”
(b)
Standards Manual.

The definition of “Manual” shall be amended to include the eforea Spa Operating

(c)
spas licensed by us.

The definition of “Standards” shall be amended to include application to eforea
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(d)
The definition of “System” shall be amended to include the elements that we
designate to distinguish spas operating under the “eforea” name, including know-how.
(e)

The following term shall be added to the defined terms in Section 1:

“Gross Spa Revenue” means all revenue from services and retail sales of products from
the eforea spa, less amounts for spa rebates and overcharges, but does not include any
sales or other taxes collected directly from spa customers or any revenue derived from
food and beverage sales from the eforea spa.
3.
Grant of Non-Exclusive License. We and you acknowledge that in executing this
Amendment, and modifying certain of the defined terms contained in the Franchise Agreement during the
term of this Amendment, we are granting to you and you are accepting a limited, non-exclusive license to
operate a spa on the Hotel Site using the eforea name and other indicia of an eforea spa during the Term
applicable to the eforea spa, and you are agreeing to comply with all Standards that have been and are in
the future developed by us for use in connection with the design, construction, renovation, refurbishment,
appearance, equipment, furnishing, supplying, opening, operating, maintaining, marketing, services,
service levels, quality, and quality assurance of eforea spas.
4.
Our Responsibilities. Subsection 4.4 of the Franchise Agreement is amended by the
addition of the following new Subsection:
4.4.8 Spa.
We will provide you with (i) a sample layout for the interior of a typical
eforea spa, and specifications we have approved related to the design and construction of the
spa, (ii) a collateral suite including spa menus and appointment cards, and (iii) a list of approved
suppliers and specifications for required operating equipment, products, supplies and furnishings
in the spa. We will provide the services of a Spa Performance Director to provide you with
suggestions for the improvement of your spa’s operations, as, when and how we determine.
5.
Trade Name, Use of the Marks. Subsection 9.2.1 of the Franchise Agreement is
amended by the addition of the following sentence after the first sentence thereof:
The spa operated at the Hotel Site as a part of the Hotel will be known by the Trade Name
“eforea,” unless otherwise approved, or changed by us.
6.

Additional Operational and Other Requirements.

(a)
Subsection 5.1.1 of the Franchise Agreement shall be deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:
5.1.1 after the Opening Date, operate the Hotel twenty-four (24) hours a day; provided,
however, you will operate the eforea spa for those days of the week and hours of the day
that we may periodically establish;
[ADJUST THE FOLLOWING SECTION NUMBERS AS NECESSARY TO INSERT THE
FOLLOWING FOUR CLAUSES AT THE END OF SUBSECTION 5.1]
(b)
Subsection [5.1.24] of the Franchise Agreement is amended by deleting the word
“and” after the semicolon,
(c)
Subsection [5.1.25] of the Franchise Agreement is amended by changing the
period to a semicolon and adding the following subparagraphs:
[5.1.26] the Opening Date for the eforea spa must be [INSERT DATE]; provided,
however, if no date is inserted, the Opening Date must be within twelve (12) months of
the Effective Date of the eforea Amendment;
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[5.1.27] after the Opening Date, operate the eforea spa for those days of the week and
hours of the day as we may establish;
[5.1.28] you must display all material, including brochures and promotional materials we
provide for eforea spas, and allow advertising and promotion of eforea spas on your
spa’s premises, unless we specifically direct you to include advertising or promotion of
Other Hotels or other non-eforea spas; and
[5.1.29] comply with System Standards for the training of persons involved in the
operation of the eforea spa, including completion by each member of the spa’s staff of
the training program for operation of the spa under the System, at a site we designate.
You will pay us all fees and charges, if any, we require for your personnel to attend these
training programs. You will also be responsible for the wages, room, board and travel
expenses of your personnel.
7.
Fees. In addition to the fees set forth in the Franchise Agreement, you will pay us the
following additional fees in connection with your eforea spa:
(a)
Initial Fee. An initial fee of Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) is due and
payable on execution of this Amendment (“Initial Fee”) in consideration for our grant to you of the right to
operate an eforea spa hereunder. The Initial Fee shall be deemed to have been earned by us at the time
of execution of this Amendment by you, and shall not be refundable.
(b)
Spa Royalty Fee. An additional fee of two percent (2%) of your Gross Spa
Revenue (i) will be due at the same time as the Monthly Royalty Fee, and we will have all rights related to
the Spa Royalty Fee as set forth in the Franchise Agreement related to the Monthly Royalty Fee, and
(ii) is to be paid in addition to any other fees set forth in the Franchise Agreement.
8.
Lease; Competition; Transfer. You understand and acknowledge that: (i) you may not
lease or sublease commercial space in your eforea spa, or enter into concession arrangements for
operations in connection with your eforea spa; (ii) neither you nor any affiliate may operate, have
operated on your behalf or on behalf of an affiliate, or allow the operation of, another spa in, adjacent to
or that is associated in any way with, the Hotel; (iii) you may not enter into a Change of Ownership
Transfer for your Hotel unless you are also transferring your eforea spa in the same transaction and you
may not enter into a Change of Ownership Transfer for your eforea spa unless you are also transferring
your Hotel in the same transaction; and (iv) any Restricted Area granted by Franchisor shall not apply to
Franchisee with respect to its eforea spa. Further, in any transaction referred to in clause (ii) above, the
Transferee for your Hotel and the spa operated as part of your Hotel must be the same entity.
9.
Termination. You acknowledge and agree: (i) the expiration or termination of the
Franchise Agreement will terminate all of your rights to operate an eforea spa; and (ii) this Amendment
can be terminated for any of the grounds set forth in the termination provisions of the Franchise
Agreement, whether or not the Franchise Agreement is also terminated, following which you will have no
further right to use the name “eforea” in connection with the operation of a spa at the Hotel Site.
10.
Your Obligations Upon Termination or Expiration. In the event of a termination or
expiration of the Term with respect to your right to operate the spa as an eforea spa, you will immediately:
(a)
cease using the eforea name, and any other names, marks, trade dress,
systems, insignia, symbols, and other rights, procedures and methods licensed to you under this eforea
Amendment with respect to the operation of a spa, and any confusingly similar names, marks, trade
dress, systems, insignia, symbols, procedures and methods;
(b)
deliver all goods and materials containing that portion of the Marks related to the
operation of an eforea spa to us and we will have the sole and exclusive use of any items containing
those Marks;
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(c)
make any specified changes to the Hotel and the Hotel Site as we may
reasonably require for the purpose of de-identifying your spa, which will include removal of the signs,
custom decorations and promotional materials related to the operation of an eforea spa;
(d)

cease representing yourself or the Hotel as then or formerly operating a spa as

(e)

return all copies of the eforea Spa Operations Standards Manual to us; and

an eforea spa;

(f)
cancel all assumed name or equivalent registrations relating to your use of the
eforea name in connection with the operation of a spa at the Hotel, and irrevocably assign and transfer to
us (or to our designees) all of your right, title and interest in any domain name listings and registrations
that contain any reference to the eforea name, all to the same extent as would be required under
Subparagraphs 14.6.6 and 14.6.7 of the Franchise Agreement upon termination of that agreement.
The foregoing requirements shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any of your
obligations that arise upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement.
11.
Representations and Warranties. Subsection 17.11.1 of the Franchise Agreement is
deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
17.11.1 you have independently investigated the risks of operating the Hotel and a spa
under the Brand, including current and potential market conditions and competitive
factors and risks, and have made an independent evaluation of all such matters and
reviewed our Franchise Disclosure Document, if applicable.
12.
Original Document. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts,
and delivered via facsimile transmission, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
13.
Authority. Franchisee hereby represents and warrants that the individual signing this
Amendment on its behalf has the necessary authority and legal capacity to execute this instrument and
represent it hereunder.
14.
Effect. The terms of this Amendment are expressly made subject to and are governed by
the Franchise Agreement. Except as specifically amended hereby, the Franchise Agreement shall
continue in full force and effect. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Franchise Agreement
and this Amendment, this Amendment shall control.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendment, as indicated below to take
effect as of the Effective Date.
FRANCHISEE:

FRANCHISOR:

[INSERT FRANCHISEE ENTITY],
a [INSERT TYPE OF ENTITY]

HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED,
a limited company formed under the laws of England
and Wales

By:

By:

Name:

Name:

Title:

Title:

Executed On:

Executed On:

{000011-999987 00275576.DOC; 1}

4

2019 BRAZIL EFOREA SPA AMENDMENT

EXHIBIT E

GUARANTY OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
[Insert Hotel Name]
THIS DOCUMENT AFFECTS AND WAIVE IMPORTANT RIGHTS OF THE
PERSONS AND ENTITIES SIGNING IT.
THIS GUARANTY OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (“Guaranty”) is executed by
___________________, a ____________ (“Guarantor”), in favor of Hilton Worldwide Manage
Limited, a limited company formed under the laws of England and Wales (“Franchisor”), as
consideration of and as an inducement to Franchisor to execute the franchise agreement dated as
of _________________ (referred to in this Guaranty collectively, along with all applicable
amendments, addenda, riders, supplemental agreements and assignments, as the “Franchise
Agreement”), between Franchisor and ______________ (“Franchisee”) as of ___________
(“Effective Date”). Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Guaranty shall have the
same meaning as in the Franchise Agreement. Guarantor agrees as follows:
1.
Guaranty. Guarantor hereby unconditionally and irrevocably guaranties to
Franchisor: (a) the full and prompt payment of all sums owed by Franchisee to Franchisor and to
Franchisor’s Affiliates under the Franchise Agreement and otherwise relating to the Hotel,
including, but not limited to, all fees and charges, interest, default interest, and other costs and
fees (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees in connection with enforcement of the
Franchise Agreement; and (b) the performance of all other obligations of Franchisee arising
under the Franchise Agreement (collectively, the “Obligations”). On default by Franchisee and
notice from Franchisor to Guarantor, Guarantor will immediately make payment in full of all
amounts due and owing to Franchisor or Franchisor’s Affiliates, and perform each Obligation of
Franchisee.
2.
Possible Termination of Guaranty. Franchisor will offer Guarantor its thencurrent standard form termination of guaranty agreement releasing Guarantor from future
Obligations under this Guaranty if the following conditions are met: (a) Franchisor receives a
copy of the deed evidencing that Franchisee owns fee simple title to the real property on which
the Hotel is or will be sited or a copy of a ground lease to which Franchisee is a party with an
unrelated third-party ground lessor for a term at least equal to the term of the Franchise
Agreement; (b) Guarantor sends a written request to Franchisor to terminate the Guaranty; and
(c) at the time of Guarantor’s request, Franchisee is in good standing under the Franchise
Agreement and has not been in default under the Franchise Agreement at any time during the
twenty-four (24) month period before Guarantor’s request.
3.
Waivers of Certain Rights and Defenses. Each Guarantor waives: (a) any right
Guarantor may have to require that an action be brought against Franchisee or any other person
as a condition of Guarantor’s liability under this Guaranty; (b) all rights to payments and claims
for reimbursement or subrogation which any of the undersigned may have against Franchisee
arising as a result of Guarantor’s execution of and performance under this Guaranty; (c) any law
or statute which requires that Franchisor make demand on, assert claims against or collect from
Franchisee or any others, foreclose any security interest, sell collateral, exhaust any remedies or
take any other action against Franchisee or any others before making any demand on, collecting
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from or taking any action against Guarantor under or with respect to this Guaranty; and (d) any
and all other notices and legal or equitable defenses to which Guarantor may be entitled.
4.
Information Requests. Guarantor must deliver to Franchisor: (a) complete and
current financial information about Guarantor as Franchisor may reasonably request; and (b) any
other information about Guarantor that Franchisor reasonably requests.
5.

Additional Provisions.

(a)
Each Guarantor jointly and severally holds harmless, and agrees to defend,
protect, and indemnify Franchisor from any actions, causes of action, liabilities, damages, losses,
and fees (including attorneys’ fees) and all other claims of every nature which may arise as a
result of any dispute between or among any of Guarantors and any other persons or entities.
(b)
Franchisor may assign this Guaranty without in any way affecting
Guarantor’s liability. This Guaranty will inure to the benefit of Franchisor and its successors and
assigns and will bind Guarantor and Guarantor’s heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and
assigns.
(c)
Notices must be in writing and must be delivered in person, by prepaid
overnight commercial delivery service, or by prepaid United States Mail, overnight, registered or
certified, with return-receipt requested, to the following addresses:
If to Franchisor:

Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited
Maples Court, Central Park
Reeds Crescent
Watford, Hertfordshire WD24 4QQ UK

If to Guarantor:

Phone: (___)
Fax: (___)
If Guarantor wants to change the notice address set forth above, Guarantor shall notify
Franchisor in writing in accordance with the delivery procedure set forth in this Subsection. A
Notice will be deemed effective on the earlier of: (i) receipt or first refusal of delivery; (ii) one
(1) day after posting if sent by overnight commercial delivery service or overnight United States
Mail; or (iii) three (3) days after placement in the United States Mail if overnight delivery is not
available to the Notice address.
(d)
Guarantor represents, warrants and covenants to Franchisor that
Guarantor, including its directors, officers, senior management, shareholders and other persons
having a controlling interest in Guarantor: (i) is not, and is not owned or controlled by, or acting
on behalf of, Sanctioned Persons or, to Guarantor’s actual knowledge, otherwise the target of
Trade Restrictions; (ii) have not and will not obtain, receive, transfer or provide any funds,
property, debt, equity or other financing related to the Franchise Agreement and the Hotel or
Hotel Site to/from any entity that qualifies as a Sanctioned Person or, to Guarantor’s actual or
constructive knowledge, is otherwise the target of any applicable Trade Restrictions;
(iii) Guarantor is familiar with the provisions of applicable Anti-Corruption Laws and shall
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comply with applicable Anti-Corruption Laws in performance of its obligations under or in
connection with this Guaranty or the Franchise Agreement; (iv) any funds received or paid in
connection with entry into or performance of this Guaranty have not been and will not be derived
from or commingled with the proceeds of any activities that are proscribed and punishable under
the criminal laws of the Territory or the United States, and that Guarantor is not engaging in this
transaction in furtherance of a criminal act, including acts in violation of applicable AntiCorruption Laws; (v) in preparation for and in entering into this Guaranty, Guarantor has not
made any Improper Payment or engaged in any acts or transactions otherwise in violation of any
applicable Anti-Corruption Laws, and, in connection with this Guaranty or the performance of
Guarantor’s obligations under this Guaranty, Guarantor will not directly or indirectly make, offer
to make, or authorize any Improper Payment or engage in any acts or transactions otherwise in
violation of any applicable Anti-Corruption Laws; (vi) except as otherwise disclosed in writing
to Franchisor, neither Guarantor, nor any of its direct or indirect shareholders (including legal or
beneficial shareholders), officers, directors, employees, agents or other persons designated by
Guarantor to act on its behalf or receive any benefit under this Guaranty, is a Government
Official; (vii) any statements, oral, written, electronic or otherwise, that Guarantor submits to
Franchisor or to any third party in connection with the representations, warranties, and covenants
described in this Subsection 5(d) are truthful and accurate and do not contain any materially false
or inaccurate statements; (viii) Guarantor will make reasonable efforts to assure that its
respective appointed agents in relation to this Guaranty comply in all material respects with the
representations, warranties, and covenants described in this Subsection5(d); and (ix) will notify
Franchisor in writing immediately on the occurrence of any event which would render the
foregoing representations and warranties of this Subsection 5(d) incorrect.
(e)
Each Guarantor warrants and represents to Franchisor that Guarantor has
the requisite power to execute, deliver and perform the terms and provision of this Guaranty, and
that this Guaranty is a valid, binding and legally enforceable obligation of each Guarantor in
accordance with its terms.
(f)
If there is more than one Guarantor named in this Guaranty, any reference
to Guarantor will mean any one or all Guarantors. Each Guarantor agrees that all obligations of
each Guarantor are joint and several.
(g)
No failure or delay on Franchisor’s part in exercising any power or
privilege under this Guaranty will impair any such power, right or privilege or be construed as a
waiver of its rights under this Guaranty.
(h)
If any provision of this Guaranty is determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be unenforceable, all of the other provisions will remain effective.
(i)
This Guaranty embodies the entire agreement between Franchisor and
Guarantor with respect to the matters set forth in this Guaranty and supersedes all prior
agreements with respect to the matters set forth in this Guaranty.
6.
Governing Law. Except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark
Act of 1946 (Lanham Act; 15 U.S.C. ¶ 1050 et seq.), as amended, this Guaranty and any and all
disputes relating to this Guaranty will be governed by the laws of the State of New York without
recourse to New York choice of law or conflicts of law principles; provided, however, that
nothing in this Section is intended to invoke the application of any franchise, business
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opportunity, antitrust, “implied covenant,” unfair competition, fiduciary or any other doctrine of
law of the State of New York that would not otherwise apply absent this Section.
7.
Jurisdiction and Venue. The parties agree that any action related to this
Guaranty, any breach of this Guaranty, the relationship among or between Franchisor,
Franchisee and Guarantor, and all disputes among or between Franchisor, Franchisee and
Guarantor, whether sounding in contract, tort or otherwise, shall be brought in the U.S. District
Court for the Eastern District of Virginia, in Alexandria, Virginia or, if that court lacks subject
matter jurisdiction, then in a court of competent jurisdiction whose jurisdiction includes Fairfax
County, Virginia or New York, New York; provided, however, that Franchisor may, in its sole
discretion, elect to pursue any claim relating to the Guaranty in any competent court having
jurisdiction in the domicile of Guarantor in Brazil. Guarantor consents to personal jurisdiction
and venue in these jurisdictions and waives and agrees not to assert, move or otherwise claim
that the venue in these jurisdictions is for any reason improper, inconvenient, prejudicial or
otherwise inappropriate.
8.
WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. GUARANTOR HEREBY WAIVES ITS
RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO THE ENFORCEMENT OF THIS
GUARANTY.
9.
Registration. For purpose of enforcing this Guaranty in Brazil, Guarantor shall
cause the registration of this Guaranty, together with its Portuguese translation, made by a
Brazilian sworn public translator, with the relevant Documents Registry (Registro de Titulos e
Documentos) in Brazil.
GUARANTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THAT GUARANTOR WAS AFFORDED THE
OPPORTUNITY TO READ THIS GUARANTY AND TO REVIEW IT WITH AN
ATTORNEY OF GUARANTOR’S CHOICE BEFORE SIGNING. GUARANTOR FURTHER
ACKNOWLEDGES HAVING READ AND UNDERSTOOD THE MEANING AND EFFECT
OF THIS DOCUMENT BEFORE SIGNING IT.
SIGNATURE BLOCK ON FOLLOWING PAGE
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Guarantor has executed this Guaranty as of the Effective Date.
GUARANTOR:

GUARANTOR:

_________________________________,
a ________________________________

By: _____________________________
Name: ___________________________
Title: ____________________________

_________________________________
Name: ____________________________
Individually

Witness:

Witness:

(Signature)

(Signature)

Name:

Name:

Address:

Address:

Phone Number:

Phone Number:

ID Number:

ID Number:
NOTARIAL CERTIFICATION FOR GUARANTOR

To be signed before Brazilian Notary Public – Remainder of Page Reserved for Notarial Certification
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EXHIBIT F

2019 Brazil Hotel Project Application All Brands

This application is to be completed online via the Hilton Application Tracker (HAT) internet portal. The online
version may appear in a different format. Alternatively, we may provide a paper application. We may update
or modify this application at any time.

HOTEL PROJECT APPLICATION
This Hotel Project Application (“Application”) includes the following:





Instructions for Submitting an Application
Part 1 - Application Checklist
Part 2 - Application Letter
Part 3 - Application Form

Instructions for Submitting an Application:
1. Have a required signer for the Applicant access the current Franchise Disclosure Document (“Disclosure
Document”) for the applicable brand through the E-Disclosure procedure and complete the procedure by
clicking “Submit” on the Electronic Receipt page. If Applicant received a paper version of the Disclosure
Document, have a required signer for the Applicant sign and date the “Receipt” page at the end of the
Disclosure Document and return it immediately by mail to your development representative.
2. Each part of this Application must be completed. All information must be legible and in English. Please
type or print the information in each part of the Application. For your convenience, this Application may
be filled out electronically, saved and printed.
3. Attach supporting documents/information indicated in each part of the Application. If any part of the
Application is not completed and/or supporting documentation is not attached, you must include an
explanation of why the Application is not completed or the supporting documentation is not attached.
4. The Applicant must be a natural person or an existing legal entity. You must provide a complete
organizational chart up to the ultimate owning entity/entities and the ultimate individual owners of the
Applicant.
5. A check (or wire transfer) for the Application Fee (“Application Fee”) must be submitted with the
Application. The Application Fee must be paid for us to accept and process your Application in the United
States of America. Attached to this Application is an invoice for the Application Fee. Please be sure to
retain the attached invoice. Please confirm the amount of your franchise application fee (stated in U.S.
Dollars) with your Developer.
NOTE: APPLICANT SHOULD NOT SIGN OR SUBMIT THIS APPLICATION OR PAYMENT OF
THE APPLICATION FEE UNTIL AT LEAST THE DAY AFTER THE 10TH FULL CALENDAR
DAY AFTER THE DATE APPLICANT RECEIVED THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND
SIGNED A RECEIPT.
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NOTE: Applicant must also pay a Property Improvement Plan (“PIP”) fee if the Application is for a
Conversion, Relicensing or Change of Ownership.
Required Signatures:
The Application Letter must be signed and dated by the Applicant, or on behalf of the Applicant, by a
person or persons with the capacity and authority to do so. The signatures required for valid execution of
the Application Letter may vary depending on the laws under which the Applicant is established or resident.
These laws must be complied with. Our minimum requirements for signatures are as follows:
Applicant

Signers

Individual(s)
Corporate Entity
General Partnership
Limited Partnership
Limited Liability Company
Trust
Estate

Each Individual
President, Vice President or other authorized officer
Each General Partner
Any General Partner
Managing Member(s) or other authorized Member(s)
Trustee(s)
Executor or Administrator
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Part 1: Application Checklist
The following items must be included for the application to be complete. We reserve the right to request
additional information as we consider appropriate:
Disclosure Document Receipt signed and dated by Applicant (see instructions).
Application Letter signed and dated no earlier than the day after the 10th full calendar day after the date the Applicant
received the Disclosure Document, along with the remaining completed Application pages.
Application Fee dated and/or received no earlier than the day after the 10th full calendar day after the date the Applicant
received the Disclosure Document.
A certification of formation or similar document evidencing the Applicant Entity’s status in the jurisdiction of formation.

Complete Ownership Structure Form for Applicant and its underlying ownership entities.
Complete Ownership Structure Form for the fee title holder or lessor/sublessor of the Hotel/Hotel Site if related to
Applicant.
Market or feasibility study, if available, or on request.
Site Control Document and all amendments (e.g., recorded deed, recorded ground lease, recorded purchase option,
binding letter of intent, binding purchase agreement) in the name of Applicant or its affiliate.
Site Plan, Aerial and Location Map with site identified (consult your Developer for site plan requirements).
List of hotels owned or managed by Applicant

CONVERSION PROJECTS In addition to the above, include the following items:
Conversion Indemnity Letter (if applicable)
3 Years’ Hotel Operating Statistics (Summary Statement)
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Part 2: Hotel Project Application Letter
(“Applicant”)
(“Location”)

Name of Applicant:
Location:
BRAND (check one):
Canopy by Hilton
Conrad
Curio Collection by Hilton
DoubleTree by Hilton

Embassy Suites*
Hampton Inn*
Hampton Inn by Hilton
Hampton Inn & Suites*

Hilton
Hilton Garden Inn
Homewood Suites by Hilton
LXR Hotels & Resorts
Tapestry Collection by Hilton

* Brand may include “by Hilton” tagline in Franchisor’s sole discretion.

This hotel project application letter (“Application Letter”) is provided to HILTON WORLDWIDE
MANAGE LIMITED, a United Kingdom limited partnership (“Franchisor”), an indirect subsidiary of
HILTON WORLDWIDE HOLDINGS INC., a Delaware corporation (“Hilton Worldwide”) to consider
and process an application for a franchise to operate a hotel under the Brand at the Location (“Hotel”).
Hilton Worldwide’s present or future subsidiaries and affiliates and direct or indirect owners are referred
to as the “Entities.” Applicant understands that Franchisor is relying on the information provided in this
application and all documents submitted by Applicant and co-owners and their agents, advisers and
representatives in connection with or in support of the application, including, but not limited to, this
Application Letter (together, the “Application”). Applicant agrees to supply such additional information,
statements or data as may be requested by Franchisor. Applicant represents, warrants, and undertakes to
Franchisor and the Entities, that:
1.
All information contained in the Application is true, correct and complete as of the date of this
Application Letter. Applicant will promptly inform Franchisor of any change in any of the information
provided in the Application.
2.
Both Applicant and the undersigned have the authority to make the Application and to enter into a
franchise agreement (“Franchise Agreement”) for the proposed Hotel at the Location. Neither the making
of this Application nor the execution of a Franchise Agreement will conflict with nor put Applicant in
breach of the terms of any agreements to which Applicant, its affiliates or the undersigned are a party or by
which Applicant or its affiliates are bound. Neither Applicant nor its affiliates have been induced by Hilton
Worldwide to terminate or breach any agreement with respect to the Location.
3.
Certain information about Franchisor’s system for the Brand, including the Disclosure Document,
the manual and the Franchise Agreement (together, the “Franchise Information”), has been made
available to Applicant. Applicant is generally familiar with the Franchise Information and its requirements
and is applying for the form of Franchise Agreement provided. Applicant undertakes to treat the manual
which it may receive from Franchisor as confidential. Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the
Franchise Information is the property of Hilton Worldwide and/or the Entities, and that Applicant obtains
no right, title or interest in or to any of the Franchise Information. Applicant agrees not to use the Franchise
Information unless and until a Franchise Agreement is entered into and then in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Franchise Agreement.
4.
Applicant acknowledges that Hilton Worldwide and the Entities do not enter into oral agreements
or understandings with respect to a Franchise Agreement, and as that of the date of this Application Letter
there are no oral agreements or understandings between Applicant and Hilton Worldwide or the Entities
with respect to the proposed Franchise Agreement.
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5.
The Application Fee is paid for us to accept and process your Application in the United States of
America. Payment is due with the Application in accordance with the attached invoice. The Application
Fee shall be grossed up and be received net of any Brazilian taxes. If the Application is not approved or if
Applicant withdraws the Application before it is approved, the Application Fee will be refunded, without
interest, less $7,500 for time and expenses incurred by Franchisor in processing the Application. The refund
shall be considered fully discharged when the respective amount is sent to Applicant. ONCE THE
APPLICATION IS APPROVED, THE APPLICATION FEE WILL NOT BE RETURNED OR
REFUNDED UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES (EVEN IF APPROVAL IS CONDITIONED ON
APPLICANT PROVIDING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION); provided, however, for a Change of
Ownership Application, if Franchisor approves the Application, and the approved change of ownership
does not occur, then Franchisor will refund the Application Fee without interest, less $7,500 for time and
expenses incurred by Franchisor in processing the Application. Franchisor reserves the sole right to
approve or disapprove the Application for any reason. If the Application is approved, Applicant must
provide any additional information requested, meet any additional requirements and sign the Franchise
Agreement within the time period Franchisor specifies, and all other ancillary documents within the time
period designated by Franchisor, failing which Franchisor may terminate the proposed hotel project and
retain the Application Fee. The Application Fee may be invested, combined with other funds or otherwise
used as Hilton Worldwide deems appropriate in its sole discretion.
6.
Applicant authorizes credit agencies/bureaus, financial institutions, companies and individuals to
disclose to Hilton Worldwide any and all information for the purpose of Hilton Worldwide and the Entities
completing any necessary credit and/or background investigations in connection with this Application and
execution of any Franchise Agreement.
7.
The Applicant, jointly and severally if applicable, agrees to indemnify and defend Hilton
Worldwide and the Entities and their respective officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives, and
assignees (collectively, the “Hilton Worldwide Indemnitees”) against, and to hold them harmless from,
all losses in connection with the Application and the Location, including breach of any representations,
warranties or undertakings contained herein and all claims, demands, suits, causes of action, liabilities,
losses or otherwise, directly or indirectly incurred (including legal and accounting fees and expenses), and
including claims as a result of Franchisor processing the Application and/or approving a Franchise
Agreement. Each Hilton Worldwide Indemnitee shall have the right independently to take any action it
may deem necessary in its sole discretion to protect and defend itself against any threatened action subject
to Applicant’s indemnification, without regard to the expense, forum or other parties that may be involved.
Each Hilton Worldwide Indemnitee shall have sole and exclusive control over the defense of any such
action (including the right to be represented by counsel of its choosing) and over the settlement, compromise
or other disposition thereof. HWI may rely on any information, statement or notice from the Applicant
pertaining to the Location or Franchise Agreement without having to investigate or ascertain the accuracy
of any fact or allegation in the information, statement or notice.
8.
This Application Letter may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original.
This Application Letter must be signed by an authorized signatory for the Applicant (see Instruction for
required signatories).
9.
This Application shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the
State of New York, without regard to its choice of law principles.
REST OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK – SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE
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INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT:

ENTITY APPLICANT:
Entity Name:
By:

(Signature)
Name:

(Signature)
Name:
Title:

Date:

Date:

Witness (for Individual Applicant):

Witness (for Entity Applicant):

(Signature)

(Signature)

Name:

Name:

Address:

Address:

Phone Number:

Phone Number:

ID Number:

ID Number:
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Part 3: Application Form
HILTON WORLDWIDE HOTEL PROJECT APPLICATION
APPLICANT
NAME OF APPLICANT (entity name may not include any
of our marks or any variations/initials):
State in which Applicant’s principal business address (or if
Applicant is an individual, permanent residence) is located:
Type:

Birth or
Formation
Information:

[ ] Corporation

[ ] Limited Partnership

[ ] General Partnership

[ ] Limited Liability Company

[ ] Individual

[ ] Trust

[ ] Other (specify)

[ ] Limited Liability Partnership

_____/____/______
Month/Day/Year

____________________
State/Province, Country

_____________________________________________
US SSN (last 4 digits only)/EIN/Canada SIN/Gov’t ID#

PRINCIPAL CORRESPONDENT
FOR LEGAL NOTICES

FOR DAY-TO-DAY COMMUNICATIONS

Name:

Name:

Street
Address:
City, State/Province
Zip/Postal Code
Telephone #:
Fax #:
Email:

Street
Address:
City, State/Province
Zip/Postal Code
Telephone #:
Fax #:
Email:
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

THE PROPOSED HOTEL WILL BE MANAGED BY:
[ ] A General Manager who will be employed by the Applicant
The General Manager will be:
[ ] A Management Group under a Management Agreement with the Applicant
Company Name and Contact:
Address:
Telephone:
Fax:

Email:

LIST ALL HOTELS OWNED AND/OR OPERATED BY APPLICANT AND ITS EQUITY OWNERS
(attach additional pages if necessary)
Owner/Operator Name
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OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE OF APPLICANT ENTITY
INSTRUCTIONS: Please provide a complete breakdown of the owners of the Applicant Entity and any related
entity that holds/will hold fee title to the Hotel. For complex structures, please attach a detailed organizational
chart (see next page). If these owners are other legal entities, please include a breakdown of their underlying
ownership. That means you should provide the name and description/percentage of ownership interest of all
individuals who own and/or control these entities. Copy this form as needed to provide multiple structures.
Example:
Entity/Person’s Name

XYZ Corp.
- John Doe, President
50%
- Jane Doe, Shareholder 50%
ABC, L.L.C.
- BDC, Inc., its managing member 25%
- Bill Davis, President 100%

SSN (last 4
digits), EIN,
Canada SIN
or Gov’t ID#
12-3456789
1234
5678
23-4567891
34-5678912
9012

- Bill Davis Family Trust, member 25%
- Bill Davis, Trustee
- Bill Davis, Jr., Beneficiary
100%

45-6789123
2345
6789

- Bill Davis, member

50%

Description
of Interest

%
Interest

General
Partner

1%

Limited
Partner

99%

Business Address
& Telephone

XYZ Corp. Address/Phone
John Doe Address/Phone
Jane Doe Address/Phone
ABC, L.L.C. Address/Phone
BDC, Inc. Address/Phone

Trust Contact Address/Phone

same as above

Bill Davis Address/Phone

ENTITY NAME: ______________________________________________________________________
OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE
(provide additional pages if necessary)
Entity/Person’s Name
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Organizational Chart
Please attach a full organizational chart for the Applicant entity (and Applicant’s affiliate that will lease or
sublease the Hotel or the Hotel Site to Applicant, if applicable) showing all direct and indirect equity owners
up to the ultimate individual owners (but excluding public shareholders or passive investors in an
institutional investment fund). For each equity owner, please describe the type of interest held in the entity
(e.g., shareholder, general partner, limited partner, manager, member, trustee, etc.) and show the percentage
of ownership of each equity owner.
For example:
Ultimate Owner A
(x% ownership interest)

Entity A
(x% shareholder)

Ultimate Owner B
(x% ownership interest)

Ultimate Owner C
(x% ownership interest)

Entity B
(x% shareholder)

Entity C
(x% shareholder)

Applicant
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HOTEL/SITE/SITE CONTROL INFORMATION
Location of Hotel/Hotel site:
Street Address/Coordinates:
City, State/Province:
Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Brand:
Canopy by Hilton
Conrad
Curio Collection by Hilton
DoubleTree by Hilton

Embassy Suites*
Hampton Inn*
Hampton Inn by Hilton
Hampton Inn & Suites*

Hilton
Hilton Garden Inn
Homewood Suites by Hilton
LXR Hotels & Resorts
Tapestry Collection by Hilton

* Brand may include the “by Hilton” tagline in Franchisor’s sole discretion.

Development Type:
New Development*
(*new build/adaptive reuse)

Conversion

Change of Ownership

Relicensing

Hotel Affiliation (for New Development/Conversion applications only):
Has there ever been a franchise, branded management, affiliation or similar agreement pertaining to the
proposed hotel or site?
No
Yes/Describe:
Is the hotel currently under contract with another hotel chain?
No
Yes/Specify:
Hotel Facilities (existing and/or proposed):
Total Guest Units:
# of Standard Rooms:
Year Built (open hotel)
Meeting Space?
No
Ballroom?
No
Yes/Description/square footage:
Health Club?
No
Yes/Description:
Spa?
No
Yes/Description:
Swimming Pool?

Indoor

# of Suites:
# of Stories:
Yes: ______ sq. ft # of Mtg Rms:

Outdoor

None

Food & Beverage Facilities (outlets, capacity, meals served, operated/leased, current/planned brand names):

Other Retail Outlets (type, operated/ leased, current/planned brand names):
Other Amenities (specify):
Shared Facilities?
Condo Residences?
Hotel Rental Program?
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Hotel Site /Building Information:
Total sq footage of site:
Zoned for hotel development?
Max height allowed by zoning: ________ Sq. Ft
Stories
Site/Development Restrictions?
No
Yes/Describe:

No

Yes

Please describe Applicant’s current form of site control for the Hotel or Hotel Site:
Owned by Applicant (attach copy of recorded deed)
Ground lease (attach copy of recorded ground lease)
Expiration Date:
Binding option agreement (attach copy of recorded option Exercise Deadline:
agreement)
Binding purchase agreement (attach copy of executed purchase Closing Deadline:
agreement)
Other/Describe:
If Hotel or Hotel Site is currently owned by someone else other than Applicant, please indicate:
Owner name:
Street Address:
State/Province:
Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone:
Fax:
Email:
Related to Applicant?

No

Yes/Describe*:

If Hotel or Hotel Site will, on close of purchase, be owned by someone other than Applicant,
please indicate:
Owner name:
Street Address:
City, State/Province:
Zip/Postal Code:
Country
Tel:
Fax:
Email:
Related to Applicant?

No

Yes/Describe*:

*Provide complete ownership structure of any related entity
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION/PROJECT TIMELINE
Estimated Project Costs - New Development Project:
Costs
Land:
Construction:
FF&E:
Other:
Total Project Costs :

Overall

Per Key

US$
US$
US$
US$
US$

US$
US$
US$
US$
US$

Estimated Project Costs – Conversion or Change of Ownership (existing hotel):
Costs
Purchase Price/Current Market Value:
Renovations/Upgrades:
Other:
Total Project Costs:

Aggregate

Per Key

US$
US$
US$
US$

US$
US$
US$
US$

Estimated Project Timeline:
Forecasted Construction/Renovation Start Date:
Forecasted Construction/Renovation Completion Date:
Operating Projections:
Assumptions
% Occupancy
Avg. Daily Rate (US$)

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Financing/Refinancing Information:
Do you have a loan or loan commitment for this project?
Name of Lender(s):
Loan Amount:
Description:

No

Yes (continue)

Percentage Equity:

New?
Existing?
Is the loan (or will the loan be) cross-collateralized by other hotels/real estate assets, or cross-defaulted to
any other loan(s)?
No
Yes/Describe:

Deadlines associated with Project or Application:
Are there any critical deadlines we should know about in processing your application, such as purchase
closings or financing commitment deadlines?
No
Yes/Describe:
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2019 Brazil Hotel Project Application All Brands

APPLICATION FEE
INVOICE

INVOICE DATE:___________________
Hotel Project Name:
Company Name
Attention:
Street Address
City, State, Postal Code

AMOUNT DUE
APPLICATION FEE:
OTHER [describe]:

Country

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE:

PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS:
IF PAYING BY CHECK, MAKE CHECK
PAYABLE TO:

IF PAYING BY WIRE TRANSFER, DIRECT
PAYMENT TO:

Hilton Domestic Operating Company Inc.
Mail Payment with Application To:

The Application Fee is paid for us to accept and process your Hotel Project Application in the U.S.A.
The Application Fee shall be grossed up and be received net of any Brazilian taxes.
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EXHIBIT G

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SYSTEM AGREEMENT

THIS INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SYSTEM AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of %CreationDate%
(the “Effective Date”) by and between Hilton Systems Solutions, LLC (“HSS”) and %LegalEntity% (“Customer”), each of
which is a “Party” and both of which are, collectively, the “Parties”. This Agreement includes all of its attachments,
exhibits, schedules and Order Documents as well as all other documents expressly incorporated into it by reference.
RECITALS
Customer is a party to a management agreement and/or franchise agreement with an affiliate of HSS for the
%BrandCodeDesc% hotel located at %PropertyAddress2%, %PropertyZip%, %PropertyCity%, %PropertyCountry%
(the “Hotel”). Customer is entering into this Agreement in order to obtain and use certain information technology (“IT”)
products, services and systems for and at the Hotel.

ARTICLE 1.
DEFINITIONS AND ORDER DOCUMENTS
1.1
Use of Relationship Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement will be deemed to include all of the
terms, requirements, covenants and conditions contained in either (i) the Customer’s Franchise Agreement; or (ii) the
Customer’s Management Agreement, (the “Relationship Agreement”), with such modifications as are necessary to make
them applicable to this Agreement and the Parties as if set out in full in this Agreement. In the event that both a
Customer’s Franchise Agreement and Customer’s Management Agreement exist, without prejudice to Article 7
(Precedence and Interpretation) then only the terms, requirements, covenants and conditions contained in the
Customer’s Franchise Agreement will be deemed to be incorporated into this Agreement
1.2 Definitions. Unless otherwise defined in the body of this Agreement or in Annex 1 – Definitions, all of the
defined words and expressions used in this Agreement have the meanings set out in the Relationship Agreement.
1.3 Ordering Software, Services and Authorized Equipment. Customer may order Software, Services and
Authorized Equipment by submitting an HSS-approved form of order document (“Order Document”) to HSS. Once
accepted by HSS the Order Document becomes part of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2.
SOFTWARE, FEES AND MASTER AGREEMENTS
2.1
License to Software. HSS licenses to Customer the Proprietary Software and sublicenses to
Customer the Certified Third Party Software set forth in the Order Document on the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement.
2.1.1 Customer may be required to execute a separate license agreement directly with one or more
third party software providers in connection with Certified Third Party Software not licensed from HSS and such
Certified Third Party Software will be licensed on the terms and conditions set out in such separate license agreement.
2.1.2 The Proprietary Software and Certified Third Party Software for which there is no separate license
agreement are licensed or sublicensed to Customer under this Agreement on the following terms and conditions:
(a)
(b)
for the operation of the Hotel.

The license is personal, non-exclusive and non-transferable.
The Software may be used by Customer solely on the Authorized Equipment and solely
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(c)
Except for a single copy of Certified Third Party Software which may be maintained by
Customer for archival back-up purposes, Customer will not reproduce or reuse, in whole or in part, any Software,
documentation or materials comprising any portion of the Information System in any manner (whether directly or in
creating a new use or otherwise) without the prior written consent of HSS. Customer will not cause or permit any
reverse engineering, disassembly or de-compilation of any of the Software or any review of Software data structures.
(d)
Customer will accept all patches, bug fixes, updates, version upgrades, maintenance
and service packs (collectively, “Patches”) from HSS or the relevant Preferred Provider that are deemed necessary by
HSS for the proper function and security of the Software. HSS is not responsible for performance or security issues
that result from Customer’s failure to accept the application of Patches. Except for emergency or security related
maintenance activities, HSS will coordinate with Customer the scheduling of the application of Patches, where
possible, based on HSS’s next available standard maintenance window.
(e)
Customer recognizes the confidential and proprietary nature of the Software and
agrees to maintain the Software in confidence in accordance with Article 6 (Confidentiality). Customer will not permit
the Software and related documentation to be used or accessed by anyone other than Customer’s employees or
contractors pursuant to Section 2.1.2 (b) who are bound by obligations of confidentiality no less stringent than those
set forth herein.
2.1.3 Customer will not remove or obscure any copyright, trademark, other mark or confidentiality
notices affixed to any Software.
2.1.4 No legal or equitable title to or ownership of any of the Software or any proprietary rights therein
are transferred to Customer under this Agreement other than the limited software license specified herein.
2.1.5 Customer acknowledges that the Software is owned by HSS, HSS’s Affiliates and/or their
respective licensors and that everything in the Software, including all intellectual property, is proprietary to HSS, HSS’s
Affiliates and/or their licensors, respectively. Customer also acknowledges that HSS may, at its discretion, make
changes in, and substitutions of the Software.
2.2
Fees and Payment. All Fees are subject to change by HSS and/or the relevant third party as
applicable. Customer will make all payments under or required by this Agreement in United States Dollars and within
thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice therefore.
2.3
Master Agreements with Third Parties. HSS or its designee may, without warranty or representation
of any kind, negotiate with any third party vendor a master services, software or equipment purchase or lease
agreement (collectively, the “Master Agreements”) and permit Customer to purchase or lease Authorized Equipment,
license software and purchase services from those third party vendors (each a “Preferred Provider”) pursuant to the
terms of the applicable Master Agreements. The Preferred Providers may require Customer to execute a joinder or
participation agreement for the applicable Master Agreement, in substantially the forms contained in schedules to the
relevant Order Document (collectively, the “Joinder Agreements”). Customer will be bound by the terms of that Master
Agreement as specified in the relevant Joinder Agreement(s) and will be directly and solely responsible for Customer’s
compliance with and performance under the Joinder Agreement.
2.4
Customer Cooperation. Customer will provide HSS and its Affiliates and its and their respective third
party providers with such cooperation relating to HSS’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement as HSS
may reasonably request from time to time. Customer agrees to comply with the Information System’s regulations,
rules and policies as HSS may determine from time to time.
ARTICLE 3.
AUDITS
Customer will maintain records sufficient to permit verification of Customer’s compliance with this Agreement. Upon
forty-five (45) days written notice (or such shorter period of time as may be required under any applicable Master
Agreement), HSS or its designee may perform examinations, tests, audits, inspections and reviews of Customer’s
compliance with this Agreement, including by using the Services of one or more third parties. Customer will cooperate
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with HSS’s audit activities and provide reasonable assistance and access to information when requested, including to
all of the following: (a) any part of any facility, including the Hotel, at which any Services and products provided
pursuant to this Agreement are performed, provided or used; (b) the employees and contractors Customer uses in
connection with its operation of the Hotel; and (c) data and records. No such audit will unreasonably interfere with
Customer’s normal business operations. Customer agrees that HSS will not be responsible for any of Customer’s
costs incurred in cooperating with any audit.
ARTICLE 4.
TERMINATION
4.1
following grounds:

Termination. HSS may terminate this Agreement by written notice to Customer on any of the

4.1.1 Customer fails to pay any sums due and payable under this Agreement and fails to cure such
failure within the cure period set forth in the notice, which will not be less than ten (10) days;
4.1.2 Customer breaches its obligations under Article 6 (Confidentiality);
4.1.3 Customer fails to refresh the Authorized Equipment at the Hotel as required by HSS;
4.1.4 Customer’s Third Party PMS Agreement terminates or expires; and
4.1.5 Customer breaches any other provision of this Agreement and does not cure that breach within
the cure period set forth in the notice, which will not be less than thirty (30) days.
This Agreement will automatically terminate upon the termination or expiration of the Relationship Agreement.
4.2
Customer’s Obligations upon Termination or Expiration. Upon any such termination the licenses
granted to Customer under this Agreement, and the obligations of HSS to provide any Agreement Products and Services
will immediately terminate. Customer will immediately cease using all Agreement Products and Services and promptly
at HSS’ discretion return any and all Agreement Products to HSS other than Authorized Equipment Customer owns or
destroy the same; provided, however, that Customer must return to HSS all Software contained in such Authorized
Equipment. All of Customer’s covenants and obligations under this Agreement will survive termination and expiration.
4.3
Termination Fees. Upon termination of this Agreement Customer will pay: (a) all unpaid Fees
related to the Agreement Products and Services, Software and Authorized Equipment incurred by Customer; (b) all costs
to HSS of all the Agreement Products and Services, Software and Authorized Equipment that exceeds what the
Customer paid for same; (c) all termination, penalty or administrative fees that would not be payable but for the
termination for cause; (d) all costs related to disabling the Agreement Products and Services, together with the
intervention or administration fees set forth in the Manual; (e) all costs and fees for any Authorized Equipment, Authorized
Equipment maintenance Services, Software, Software maintenance Services, network and other Services HSS and its
Affiliates, in their sole discretion, provide to Customer at Customer’s request after the termination effective date; and (f)
all termination fees identified in the Customer’s Order Document.
4.4
Suspension of Service. If Customer fails to comply with the Information System use regulations,
rules or policies, or is otherwise in default under this Agreement HSS may, in its sole discretion: (a) disable Customer’s
access to or use of all or any part of the Information System and suspend any part of the Services provided or
supported under this Agreement and (b) suspend and withhold performance of HSS’s obligations under this
Agreement. Customer will not be entitled to any compensation, refund or reduction in charges as a result of such
action. Customer agrees that any such disabled access and suspension from the Information System will not
constitute or result in actual or constructive termination or abandonment of this Agreement, or a waiver or release of
any right to terminate. HSS may charge Customer for the cost relating to such disabling and suspending and, if
Customer’s defaults are cured as required, re-enabling such access and resuming such obligations, if any, together
with the intervention or administration fees set forth in the Manual.
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4.5
Limitation on Access. If HSS determines in its sole discretion that it is necessary or advisable in
order to protect in any way and for any reason the Information System, HSS may bar Customer’s access to the
Information System and may temporarily or permanently remove any or all data or other files. Such reasons include,
without limitation, HSS or third party provider’s determination that: (a) Customer’s network connection, software,
equipment or files may infect the Information System with Malicious Code, (b) internet access by the Customer or
Customer’s access to or use of the Information System is in violation of the applicable acceptable use policy governing
use of the provider’s services or any law or (c) Customer’s network connection, software, equipment or files may cause
harm to or disrupt the Information System. Neither HSS nor any such third party provider will be liable for any
inconvenience or disruption to the Customer or any consequences thereof caused by such measures.
ARTICLE 5.
DISCLAIMERS
5.1
HSS makes no representations or warranties as to any Certified Third Party Software, any
Authorized Equipment or any Services provided by any Preferred Provider and will have no liability
whatsoever for the terms and conditions thereof, performance of any obligations or other agreements
therewith, any equipment purchased, leased, or installed, any Services performed, any use of any software, or
any software licensed or sublicensed by any Preferred Provider. The sole warranties provided to Customer, if
any, with respect to the Certified Third Party Software, Authorized Equipment or Services provided by the
Preferred Providers are provided by the applicable third party vendor pursuant to a written warranty, if any,
provided to Customer by such third party vendor. In the event Customer notifies HSS of any condition which
Customer believes constitutes a breach of any warranty provided by a third party vendor, HSS will, upon
Customer’s request, provide reasonable cooperation and assistance in notifying such third party vendor of
such condition and in urging such third party vendor to correct such condition. HSS reserves the right to
make changes and substitutions in the components of the Information System.
5.2
Except as specifically provided in this Article 5 (Disclaimers), HSS disclaims all express or
implied warranties with respect to the Software, Authorized Equipment, Services and Information System,
including without limitation, any implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, title,
noninfringement, design, accuracy, capability, sufficiency, suitability, capacity, completeness, availability,
compatibility, or those that may arise from course of dealing or course of performance or that any Software,
Services or Authorized Equipment provided hereunder will not violate the intellectual property rights of and
person or entity. HSS does not guarantee, warrant, or make any representations to the effect that any of the
Software, Authorized Equipment, Services or Information System provided or made available to Customer
under this Agreement (a) will be continuously available, uninterrupted or defect- free, delay-free, or error-free,
(b) will have its defects or errors corrected, (c) will operate in combination with any Customer or third party
software, system, service, data or equipment not made available by HSS, (d) will be free of Malicious Code or
other harmful components, or (e) will be accurate or complete. HSS does not guaranty, warrant or make any
representations regarding the use of, or the results of, any of the Software, Authorized Equipment, Services
or Information System in terms of its respective correctness, accuracy, reliability, or otherwise.
5.3
HSS will not be liable for, and makes no warranty or guaranty of, the confidentiality or
privacy of any data or other files transmitted to, on, from or through the Agreement Products and Services
and/or the Information System and is not responsible for any delays, delivery failures, or other damage
resulting from such problems arising in connection therewith. HSS is not responsible for any issues related to
the performance, operation or security of the Services that arise from Customer content, Customer
applications or third party content. HSS is not responsible for incorrect or inaccurate entry information, or
destroyed, impaired or lost data, whether caused by Customer or by any of the equipment or programming
associated with or utilized in the Information System or by any technical or human error which may occur in
the processing of any information related to the Information System.
5.4
HSS will have no liability to third parties for any claims, losses or damages of any type
whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to the access to or any use of any of the Agreement Products
and Services or any part of the Information System. Customer will be responsible for, and Customer will
indemnify HSS and its Affiliates and hold them harmless from and against any and all allegations, losses,
demands, claims (including taxes), liabilities, damages (including punitive and exemplary), fines, penalties
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and interest, and all related costs and expenses of whatever nature (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
disbursements and costs of investigation, litigation, experts, settlement, judgment, interest and penalties)
from any individual or entity which arise out of Customer’s (a) access to or any use of any of the Agreement
Products and Services or any portion of the Information System, and (b) acts and omissions under this
Agreement, including without limitation infringement of any intellectual property rights.
5.5
HSS reserves the right for any reason, including, but not limited to, Customer’s failure to
comply with the Information System’s use regulations, rules and policies, to temporarily bar access of
Customer to the Information System and/or to temporarily or permanently remove any or all data or other files
if HSS or the third party provider hereunder determines or receives notice that Customer’s network
connection, software, equipment or files may infect the Information System with a virus, that internet access
by the Customer or Customer’s access to or use of the information system is in violation of the applicable
acceptable use policy governing use of the internet service provider’s services (“AUP”) or any governmental
law or regulation or that Customer’s network connection, software, equipment or files may cause harm to or
disrupt the Information System. HSS and the third party provider will not be liable for any inconvenience or
disruption to the Customer caused by such measures.
5.6
HSS may inform governmental authorities or interested third parties if HSS suspects,
believes or receives notice that Customer’s data or other files contain legally prohibited information or are
being used for illegal purposes. Customer acknowledges that HSS or the third party provider may monitor
and review stored data and other files without restriction and Customer hereby acknowledges and consents
to such monitoring. Customer also acknowledges that HSS or the third party provider may need to release
Customer’s data or other files when HSS or the third party provider believes it must do so in order to comply
with a law, subpoena, warrant, order or regulation arising from litigants, law enforcement, courts and other
governmental agencies. Neither HSS nor the third party provider will be responsible or liable to Customer for
any such actions taken by HSS or the third party provider
5.7
The remedies provided in this Agreement constitute Customer’s sole and exclusive
remedies. In no event will HSS be liable for any special, incidental, consequential or exemplary damages,
including without limitation damages for loss of use, lost profits or loss of data or information of any kind,
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, whether or not HSS has been advised of the possibility of
such loss or damage. In no event will HSS’ liability to Customer arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement, whether in contract, tort or otherwise, exceed the amounts actually paid by Customer to HSS
under this Agreement during the six (6) month period immediately preceding the time that the cause of action
giving rise to such liability first accrues.
5.8
To the extent not prohibited by law, the warranties contained in this Article 5 (Disclaimers)
are exclusive and there are no other express or implied warranties or conditions.
ARTICLE 6.
CONFIDENTIALITY
Customer will maintain the confidential and proprietary nature of the Proprietary Software, Certified Third Party Software,
Information System, Services and any and all information, documentation and materials of HSS and HSS Affiliates which
are disclosed under or provided or made available to Customer under or in connection with this Agreement. The
foregoing includes without limitation proprietary ideas, patentable ideas, copyrights, trade secrets, existing and
contemplated products and services, software, schematics, research and development, discoveries, inventions,
methods, processes, materials, algorithms, formulas, specifications, designs, data, strategies, plans, and know-how,
whether tangible or intangible (collectively, the “Confidential Information”). Customer will maintain such Confidential
Information in confidence and agrees not to disclose or otherwise make available the Confidential to any person or entity
other than Customer’s employees at the Hotel who are bound by obligations of confidentiality no less stringent than
those set forth herein, without prior written consent of HSS. Customer further agrees to take all reasonable steps and
precautions, including those set forth in the Manual, necessary to protect the Confidential Information from unauthorized
use or disclosure.
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ARTICLE 7.
PRECEDENCE AND INTERPRETATION
The terms and conditions of Customer’s use of the Agreement Products and Services and the Information System will
be governed exclusively by this Agreement and any applicable Joinder Agreements notwithstanding any different terms
submitted by Customer to HSS. In the event of any conflict between this Agreement and any Order Document, the Order
Document will control. Terms in the Relationship Agreement addressing the same issue as terms in this Agreement will
be deemed to be additional and complimentary to this Agreement’s terms except to the extent that such Relationship
Agreement terms specifically conflict with the terms of this Agreement in which case the terms of this Agreement will
control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, by the signature of its respective authorized representative, each of the Parties agrees to be
bound by all of the terms of this Agreement.

HSS
Hilton System Solutions, LLC

CUSTOMER:
%LegalEntity%

By: __________________________________

By: __________________________________

Name: ________________________________

Name: ________________________________

Title:_________________________________

Title: _________________________________

Date:_________________________________

Date: _________________________________

HITS Agreement (International Third Party) (Version 11.2017)

6

Inn Code/Project: %InnCodeProj% Version: %Version%

ANNEX 1
DEFINITIONS
As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings given to them below.
1. “Agreement Products and Services” means, collectively, the Software, Authorized Equipment, Services,
subscriptions, Information System, Manual, documentation and all other materials identified herein that is or may be
made available to Customer pursuant to this Agreement.
2. “Authorized Equipment” means equipment that has met HSS standards for operating as part of the Information
System and which is made available for purchase or lease under this Agreement or a Joinder Agreement.
3. “Certified Third Party Software” means software licensed by third parties to Customer or sublicensed by HSS to
Customer and listed in the applicable Order Document.
4. “Fees” means, collectively, all of the fees, charges and expenses chargeable to or due from Customer under this
Agreement, including any Order Document.
5. “Information System” means, collectively, the software, equipment and IT systems made available by HSS or its
Affiliates for Customer’s access, use or benefit, including without limitation the OnQ® technology.
6. “Malicious Code” means any virus, worm, trojan horse, spyware, adware, rootkit, ransomware, scareware,
rogueware, backdoor, trap door, logic bomb or similar item intended to cause or capable of causing undesired
effects, security breaches and/or damage to a system or a system’s contents.
7. “Manual” means any standards and/or operating manual(s) provided or made available to Customer in connection
with this Agreement or any Franchise or Management Agreement to which Customer is party
8. “Proprietary Software” means software owned by HSS or its Affiliates.
9. “Services” means the services provided under this Agreement.
10. “Software” means the Certified Third Party Software and Proprietary Software.
11. “Third Party PMS Product” means third party products or services necessary for the proper operation of the
Customer’s property management system portion of the Agreement Products and Services. As of the Effective Date
these include Oracle OPERA products
12. Third Party PMS Agreement” means any agreement between Customer and a third party for Third Party PMS
Products. As of the Effective Date this includes Customer’s contract(s) with Oracle for OPERA products.
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ORDER DOCUMENT
Customer Name:

%LegalEntity%

Customer Contact:

Customer Address:

%PrimaryContactName%
%PrimaryContactAddress1%
%PrimaryContactAddress2%
%PrimaryContactZip%
%PrimaryContactCity%
%PrimaryContactCountry%

Property Name:

%PropertyName%

%GMName%
%PrimaryContactHeading%
%PropertyName%
%PropertyAddress1%
%PropertyAddress2%
%PropertyCity%
%PropertyZip%
%PropertyCountry%

Issue Date:

%CreationDate%

This Order Document is issued under and is a part of the Information Technology System Agreement (“Agreement”) between Hilton
Systems Solutions, LLC (“HSS”) and %LegalEntity% (“Customer”) and includes all of its schedules, attachments, and exhibits as well as
all other documents expressly incorporated into it by reference. It becomes effective on the date identified by HSS under the signature
blocks below (“Order Effective Date”) and when signed by both parties is automatically incorporated into and becomes part of the
Agreement. All licenses and sublicenses of software, all subscriptions, all Services and all equipment provided herein or obtained
hereunder are subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement and to the terms of this Order Document. Unless otherwise specified
the defined terms in this Order Document have the meanings given them in the Agreement.
The pricing provided here for goods and services provided by Hilton is valid for a period of ninety (90) days following the date of issue of
this Order Document to Customer (“Issue Date”). Should this Order Document not be signed by the Customer within those (90) days,
Customer must obtain written confirmation from HSS that the pricing requested by Customer remains in effect.
Except as otherwise noted herein or in the applicable invoice all payments required by this Order Document must be made in United
States Dollars within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice therefore. Customer acknowledges and agrees that HSS or its Affiliates may
derive revenues and/or other material consideration on all or a portion of the fees paid by Customer and that HSS may use third parties
to perform the Services. All fees indicated are exclusive of applicable taxes, shipping, insurance, rigging, duties and other related fees
and expenses, all of which are payable by Customer. Provision of the Authorized Equipment, Software and Services is made in
consideration of the Customer’s promise herein to pay the fees therefor and is subject to Customer’s timely payment of such fees. HSS
may delegate certain of its operational responsibilities hereunder to third parties but remains responsible therefore.
EXECUTION INSTRUCTIONS: Please sign this Order Document, the document in Schedule C and any other Schedules indicated
as needing your signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, by the signature of its respective authorized representative, each of the parties agrees to be bound by all of
the terms of this Order Document.

HSS
Hilton System Solutions, LLC

CUSTOMER:
%LegalEntity%

By: __________________________________

By: __________________________________

Name: ________________________________

Name: ________________________________

Title:_________________________________

Title: _________________________________

Date:_________________________________

Date: _________________________________

The Order Effective Date for this Order Document is the date it is signed by HSS.
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1. Software and Related Services.
1.1 Software. This Agreement does not grant Customer the right to use or access HSS’ OnQ® Proprietary Software for Customer’s
property management system. Instead, Customer is required to use the Third Party PMS Products in accordance with Customer’s Third
Party PMS Agreement. HSS does, however, hereby license to Customer the following Proprietary Software and sublicenses to Customer
the following Certified Third Party Software under the terms specified in the Agreement. The fees shown are one-time payments.
A. Base Operational Software (Proprietary Software unless otherwise noted):

Software

1.
2.
3.
4.

Those Being Licensed
to Customer are Noted
with “X”
X
X
X
X

Operations Audit
Customer Relationship Management
OnQ™ Insider
OnQ™ Rate and Inventory

Customer will pay HSS or a retailer approved by HSS, a fee for the license of each copy of the Proprietary Software installed on the
Authorized Equipment at the hotel (the “License Fee”). The License Fee may be prorated to reflect the installation of some, but not all,
of the Proprietary Software modules. The costs of Third Party PMS Products will be billed directly to Customer by the Third Party PMS
supplier pursuant to Customer’s Third Party PMS Agreement.
B. Certified Third Party Software.

%INTLSoftwareListwithQTY%
HSS may require that Customer use additional Proprietary Software and Certified Third Party Software for the proper operation of the
Agreement Products and Services. Some of such Software may be Certified Third Party Software, such as malware anti-virus software
or Microsoft Windows, SQL, or Exchange, that may be purchased through a Master Agreement (“Additional Certified Third Party
Software”). The fee for the license of each copy of such Additional Certified Third Party Software will be billed to and payable by
Customer.
Additional Certified Third Party Software Licenses

$%INTLOnQOSandDBSoftware%

(Price excludes taxes, configuration, imaging and installation related costs)
C. Revenue Management System: Customer will pay HSS or a provider approved by HSS the license fees for certain revenue
management system software needed for the operation of Customer’s hotel, as determined by HSS in its sole discretion. The license
fees for any such revenue management system software will be billed separately. Customer will be responsible for the cost of any
services necessary for the installation of any revenue management system software and for the implementation and verification of the
proper functioning of such revenue management system software on Customer’s equipment. The cost of such services and the travel
costs for any on-site services will be billed separately by HSS or the provider.
D. Electronic Mail: Customer will pay HSS for the license fees for electronic mail. The license fees for electronic mail will be billed
separately. Certain additional Software may be required by HSS for the operation of Customer’s hotel. Any such additional Software
will be provided pursuant to the terms, conditions and limitations contained in the Agreement and, as applicable, the terms, conditions
and limitations required by the supplier of such additional Software.
E. Project Management: HSS will exercise full Project Management for the preparation, installation and/or implementation of the Third
Party PMS Products as part of OnQ®. HSS in its sole discretion may require additional HSS or Preferred Provider presence at the
Customer’s Site during the installation.
1.2 Training and Training Materials: Customer’s employees who have responsibilities related to the use of the Proprietary Software
modules described above will need on-site training for the access to and use by Customer or Customer’s Hotel of the Third Party PMS
Products and for Hilton Business Process Training, which may be included in this Agreement and/or in Customer’s Third Party PMS
Agreement, but is not provided for in the Technology Program License Agreement in Schedule D (“Technology Program”/ if applicable).
HSS will charge Customer a fee related to Hilton Business Process Training and a fee related to Training and Project Management all as
further set forth below.
1.3 Site Surveys. Customer and HSS will mutually determine the scope, schedule and timing of a site survey that may be required for
the preparation, installation and/or implementation of OnQ and the Third Party PMS Products (the “Site Survey”). HSS and Customer
will identify the responsible parties for each aspect of the Site Survey. In preparation for any Site Survey, Customer will provide
information and documentation relative to the Hotel as requested by HSS, including, but not limited to, hotel drawings, room locations
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and wiring diagrams. If HSS performs on-site services during the Site Survey, the Customer is responsible for providing timely access
to the Hotel property, as well as complimentary room nights with confirmed reservations at the Hotel, as needed in the course of
performing the Site Survey. A Hotel representative will be appointed by Customer to provide escort and access to guest rooms for the
room inspection portion of the Site Survey. The fees and costs for any work performed by HSS relative to the Site Survey, including
any fees for creation and validation of the wireless network design, any travel expenses, per diem fees and other out-of-pocket related
costs, will be billed separately by HSS to the Customer. Any additional costs incurred due to delays in performing the Site Survey
caused by the Customer’s Hotel will also be billed to Customer.
Site Survey Fees
expenses, per diem fees and related costs)

$%INTLTSSiteSurvey% (Price excludes taxes, travel

1.4 IT Project Services: HSS will, with agreement of Customer, perform (i) implementation of Customer’s Authorized Equipment and
related Certified Software, (ii) installation of Customer’s Authorized Equipment, and (iii) third party product interface testing and
connectivity establishment. Details regarding these Services are available from HSS. The specific services and the charges and costs
for the services provided under this Section may vary depending upon size, brand and complexity of Customer’s Hotel. These
specialists and the services they may perform may include, without limitation, the following:
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SS Specialists
IT Opening Project Manager (Owned and
Managed Hotels only)

IT Manager or Consultant

Hardware Deployment Engineer – New
Opening / Brand Conversion:

Infrastructure Change Coordinator –
Information System Server Consolidator Hilton Family Brand Conversions:

Implementation Project Manager and a
Contracts Manager

Services May Include Without Limitation:
• Project Initiation Phase – Site Survey, budget preparation, plan creation
• Project Management Phase – technical design assistance, system and
application recommendations, project meetings, budget and plan
management
• Pre-Opening Phase – third party order coordination, escalation points for
IT Manager
• Management of various activities.
• Where practical, HSS may also provide approved third party contractors,
or a HSS seconded resource, which would also be chargeable to Customer
Utility Server build, installation and software load (Managed Hotels only)
• Pre-Opening office set up and support.
• Training room set ups.
• Physical hardware deployment except OnQ server.
• Onsite third party vendor management.
• Technical live support cover and documentation.
• PMS Server build, installation and software load.
• Utility Server build, installation and software load (Managed Hotels only).
• Remote Desktop Services Server build, installation and software load.
• Application Servers build (Managed Hotels only).
• Assist with installation of PMS workstations & printers.
• Completion of connection of Customer’s Hotel to Hilton Wide Area
Network (WAN).
• Review of IT environment.
The time needed for completion of Hardware Deployment Engineer
activities either onsite, remotely or combination of both will depend upon the
network complexity of Customer’s Hotel and will be chargeable.
HSS may provide and charge Customer for services to coordinate the
execution of the required infrastructure changes needed for Information
System server consolidations (from dual-server to single server) and for
brand conversions which require changes on multiple backend infrastructure
systems. These services may include, but not be limited to:
• Credit card encryption key manager changes.
• Domain Name System (DNS) changes.
HSS may provide and charge Customer for an Implementation Project
Manager and a Contracts Manager to be assigned to Hotel and to provide
end-to-end project management services. These services may include, but
not limited to:
• Facilitation of contracting process
• Advice on mandatory hardware, introduction of approved third party
vendors, outline application & network requirements,
• Ensure compliance to OnQ hardware standards and facilitate the
connection to Hilton Wide Area Network.
• Pre-live preparation including kick-off meeting, detailed project
preparation and guidance, weekly conference calls, focused preparation
and change impact in revenue and finance areas, WebEx sessions and elearning facilitation
• Management, coordination and facilitation of on-site implementation and
change management training process
• Post implementation support and follow-up.

1.5 Implementation Services. HSS may, in its sole discretion, provide implementation services for Customer’s Authorized Equipment
and related Certified Third Party Software. Some are described below but more exact requirements may be set forth in the applicable
Brand and/or Standards Manual(s) and are subject to change by HSS or Hilton Domestic Operating Company Inc. (“HDOC”) or their
affiliates or subsidiaries from time to time. HSS will provide the services using Systems Implementation consultants. The number of
consultants and number of days they will be used will be determined by HSS based upon the size and type of the Hotel and the Hotel’s
IT requirements. These consultants may:
(a) work with the Hotel, which is responsible for the cost of building the Hotel’s database, including the verification of the proper
functioning of the Software, installation, conversion, implementation, data conversion or recovery;
(b) provide procedural support for the property management system to the Hotel’s management;
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(c) work with the Hotel’s management to adapt their use of the Information System to meet the Hotel’s requirements;
(d) support the Hotel’s staff in their use of the Information System through the Hotel’s management;
(e) work with the Hotel’s management to assure that the Hotel has all necessary tools for the implementation of the Information
System (i.e., Authorized Equipment, Certified Third Party Software, documentation, etc.);
(f) install or approve the installation of equipment to meet the requirements of the Hotel, HSS and the manufacturer of the Authorized
Equipment;
(g) work with third party vendors to meet the technical criteria for interface communications (i.e., central reservations, call accounting,
energy management, pay movies, guest internet access, etc.);
(h) verify that all front desk staff and Hotel’s management have successfully completed the Information System Guided Tour &
Training;
(i) identify and address operational problems that involve the Information System;
(j) formulate and present recommendations that maximize efficient use of the Information System;
(k) administer a trial run of the Information System to verify that the front desk staff and audit staff have been trained properly;
(l) identify and address operational problems that involve the Information System; and
(m) formulate and present recommendations that maximize efficient use of the Information System.
1.6 Authorized Equipment Installation. Whether Customer elects to purchase or lease Authorized Equipment from a Preferred
Provider through one of the Master Agreements HSS will coordinate the installation of such Authorized Equipment at the Hotel.
A. Customer or HSS, in HSS’s discretion, will obtain and maintain throughout the term hereof, at Customer’s cost, the necessary
communication vehicles and services for direct communication between HSS and the Hotel as is reasonably necessary for the
operation of, and for the diagnosing of issues involving, the Agreement Products and Services, including without limitation, network
access and wide area network connections to the Central Reservation System and Internet.
B. Customer will make available, at its own expense, prior to the agreed upon installation date a location that, in HSS’s opinion, is
suitable for installation of Authorized Equipment. Customer will furnish any electrical connections and dedicated phone lines which may
be required by HSS and will perform and pay for all work, including alterations, which in the sole discretion of HSS is necessary to
prepare the Hotel for the installation and proper operation of the Authorized Equipment.
C. Any delay in shipment and installation of such Authorized Equipment or Certified Third Party Software, including delays by
communications vendors, Preferred Providers or any other retailers, will, for the duration of such delay, excuse any failure of HSS to
install the Authorized Equipment on or before the agreed upon installation date. However, HSS will use commercially reasonable
efforts to require such approved vendors to comply with their service level agreements as to installation and shipment timing for
Customer’s installation, in accordance with such approved vendor agreements.
D. If Customer elects to purchase Authorized Equipment from another retailer, it will be installed at the Hotel on a date mutually agreed
to by HSS and Customer following HSS’s determination that it conforms to HSS’s specifications and testing procedures and can be
configured with the Software.
1.7 Software Installation.
A. Unless specifically stated as being implemented by HSS, it is Customer’s obligation to install the Software on the Authorized
Equipment and any related hardware at such time as HSS designates in writing to Customer. The Software may be installed in phases
such that one or more Software modules may be installed and/or be operational prior to other Software modules. Customer will be
responsible for all fees and costs incurred in the installation of Software and any related Software.
B. If Customer purchases the Authorized Equipment from HSS or a Preferred Provider, the Preferred Provider or HSS will install the
Software and any related software as described in this Agreement on the Authorized Equipment and HSS will complete the installation
at the Hotel, as applicable, on the agreed upon installation date. If Customer does not purchase such Authorized Equipment from the
Preferred Provider, HSS will install the Software and any related software at such time as HSS designates in writing to Customer. The
Software may be installed in phases such that one or more Software modules may be installed and/or operational prior to other
Software modules. The Software modules to be installed will be as set out above and in this Agreement, and Customer hereby agrees
to permit the Preferred Provider or HSS to install any and all other Software modules on the Authorized Equipment in or at the Hotel, as
provided for herein.
C. If Customer purchases such Authorized Equipment from a retailer other than the Preferred Provider, Customer will pay for
configuring the Authorized Equipment purchased from such retailer, with the Software. Customer will also be responsible for shipping
and shipping related costs to and from HSS for such configuration.
1.8 Third Party Interface Testing and Connectivity: If Customer requires the implementation of any interface software for
connectivity to third party systems, Customer will be responsible for any fees assessed by the third party vendors to test and implement
the necessary connectivity. In addition, Customer will be required to make arrangements with any such third party vendor to provide
the necessary assistance required to test and to implement the interface connectivity. This assistance requires the vendor to be on-site
at the time of testing and implementation, unless the third party vendor can perform all necessary tasks (as defined by HSS) through a
remote connection to the Customer’s third party system. The cost incurred by any third party vendors for testing and implementing
connectivity to third party systems will be billed to Customer by HSS, or such vendors for the license of each copy of the Proprietary
Software and the Certified Third Party Software licensed to Customer by HSS.
1.9 Certain Costs
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A. The Customer is responsible for paying the following fees:
Cost of IT Project Services:
IT Opening Project Manager

$%INTLITOPENPM%

IT Manager or Consultant / Local Hotel Opening Support

$%INTLITOPENMC%

Hardware Deployment Engineer – New Opening/Brand Conversion

$%INTLINSTFEE%

Infrastructure Change Coordination

$%INTLINFCHGCO%

Cost of Installation Management, Implementation and Training Services:
Project Management and Contracting Fee

$%INTLDEPLPM%

Hilton Onsite Change Management Fee

$%INTLCHANGEMGMTFEE%

Hilton Business Process Training Materials

$%INTLBUSINESSTRAIN%

Hilton Implementation Fee

$%INTLIMPFEE%

Oracle Hospitality / Hilton Domestic Operating Company Integration

$%IntlMfHwIntegration%

Hilton Onsite Revenue Conversion Preparation

$%INTLREVPREP%

Brand Training Materials

$%INTLPreOpenMat%

Delphi Implementation Specialist

$%INTLDELPHIIMP%

IdeaS Implementation Fee

$%INTLIDEAS%

Digital Floor Plan Setup Fee

$%INTLDigitalFloorSetup%

Salesforce Community License

$%INTLSalesforce%

Maintenance Notes: %MaintComments%
(Travel expenses, per diem fees and related costs will be the responsibility of Customer and will be invoiced to Customer separately by
HSS or an affiliate of HSS or the Preferred Provider.)
B. Other. If Customer attaches or uses third party equipment, software, and/or interfaces with any of the Agreement Products and
Services, the Central Reservation System or the internet which have not been certified or approved by HSS as meeting HSS’
specifications and/or does not conform to the standards provided by the HSS or if Customer installs other third party non-HSS
proprietary software which has not been certified or approved by HSS as meeting HSS’ specifications, the Agreement Products and
Services or such third party equipment, software, and/or interfaces may need to be reconfigured and the entire cost of such
reconfiguration will be borne by Customer. Where HSS specifications cannot be met with such third party equipment, software, and/or
interfaces, such third party equipment, software and/or interfaces will, at Customer’s sole cost, be removed and/or replaced as directed
by HSS.
1.10 HSS Representatives on-Site at Hotel. Customer must have its representative(s) on-site at the Hotel for the implementation of
the Agreement Products and Services identified in this Order Document. Once HSS’s representatives are on-site, any delays will result
in additional expense to Customer. If a delay in implementation of any of the Agreement Products and Services caused solely by
Customer necessitates the departure and re-scheduling of HSS’ representatives, then, in addition to the other fees set forth in this
Order Document, Customer will be required to pay a fee consisting of charges for such representatives’ work days and travel days
(each currently U$700.00 per representative per day), change fees, and additional travel expenses. The re-scheduled date will be
determined based on the needs of the Hotel as well as the availability of HSS’ representatives.
2. Proprietary Software Maintenance / Help Desk Services.
2.1 Proprietary Software Maintenance.
A. HSS will provide Customer with Proprietary Software Maintenance and support services (the “Proprietary Software Maintenance”) for
a term of one (1) year (with annual renewals thereafter at the option of HSS) commencing on the Order Effective Date.
B. The first monthly payment will be invoiced upon the opening of the Hotel. For the avoidance of doubt, HSS has no obligation to
provide Customer with maintenance, support or Help Desk services for any Certified Third Party Software; maintenance support and
services for Certified Third Party Software is to be provided by the applicable Preferred Provider pursuant to the applicable Master
Agreement. The Proprietary Software Maintenance and support offered by HSS is described in Schedule A.
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C. HSS is unable to modify, and does not provide support for, the Certified Third Party Software. Provided Customer has paid for all
Software Maintenance and other fees charged hereunder and satisfied all other obligations under the Agreement, HSS will supply
Customer with any standard enhancements, improvements, updates, and/or modifications to the Proprietary Software (“Updates”)
generally made available by HSS as options or new releases to its Customers which are not charged for separately by HSS (“Software
Maintenance”). Such Updates will be HSS’ sole and exclusive property and will be deemed part of the Proprietary Software hereunder.
Customer agrees that it may be required to purchase some Updates to the Proprietary Software, which are charged for separately by
HSS, as well as additional hardware and/or software in order to utilize certain major upgrades or enhancements.
2.3 Use of Certified Third Party Software Only. In the event Customer uses or installs any third party software other than Certified
Software on the Authorized Equipment or uses equipment that is not Authorized Equipment, HSS will have no further obligations to
provide any Software Maintenance services to Customer.
2.4 Increases/Decreases. HSS reserves the right to increase or decrease the Software Maintenance cost on an annual basis to
reflect increases or decreases in such costs and the addition or construction of additional guest rooms (or suites) by Customer for
Customer's Hotel.
2.5 Certain Cost and Payment Terms. Customer will be billed separately for certain enhancements provided by HSS in its discretion
from time to time related to Information System (“System Enhancements”). The annual cost of System Enhancements for Customer’s
Hotel is $%INTLSYSYEAR%, payable in monthly installments of $%MONTH% per month.
2.6 Help Desk Services. HSS will provide Customer Help Desk services for the Proprietary Software for a term of one (1) year (with
annual renewals thereafter at the option of HSS) commencing on the Order Effective Date. The annual fee, payable in monthly
installments, is as follows:

Help Desk Services
Help Desk Services

Annual Payment
$%INTLHelpYear%

Fee
Monthly Payment
$%INTLHelpMonth%

3. Additional Services.
3.1 Additional Services Purchased Under This Ordering Document. HSS will provide the following additional Services (if any are
listed) for the fees noted: N/A
4. Authorized Equipment.
4.1. Authorized Equipment Purchased or Leased. Customer will purchase or lease Authorized Equipment meeting the requirements
identified by HSS in accordance with Schedule B-1 – Authorized Equipment to this Order Document. The Authorized Equipment will be
selected based on the technology needs of the Hotel and Customer’s obligations under this Agreement.
4.2. Authorized Equipment Maintenance. Customer must purchase maintenance services as described in Schedule B-2 – Authorized
Equipment Maintenance and Refresh for all of the Authorized Equipment it purchases or leases.
5. Expenses. If HSS or Preferred Provider personnel incur travel, lodging, meal, or any other out of pocket expenses in furnishing
services hereunder, Customer will pay for or promptly reimburse HSS for same, subject to reasonable documentation of such
expenses.
6. Customer Responsibilities. Customer will maintain on its staff at all times sufficient personnel that have been trained in and are
knowledgeable about the use of the Information System in a professional, efficient and competent manner. Customer is responsible for
maintaining duplicate or back-up copies of its software, data files and documentation. HSS will have no liability for any damages
resulting from Customer’s failure to maintain such duplicate or back-up copies nor for any costs or expenses of reconstructing any such
data or information that may be destroyed, impaired or lost.
7. Exclusions. HSS’s obligations under the Agreement will not apply to any errors, defects or problems caused in whole or in part by
(i) any modifications or enhancements made to any Proprietary Software, Certified Third Party Software or Authorized Equipment by
Customer or any third person or entity other than HSS; (ii) any software program, hardware, firmware, peripheral or communication
device used in connection with the Information System which was not approved in advance in writing by HSS; (iii) the failure of
Customer to follow the most current instructions promulgated by HSS or any third party vendor from time to time with respect to the
proper use of the Information System; (iv) the failure of Customer to schedule regular preventive maintenance in accordance with
standard HSS procedures; (v) forces or supplies external to the Authorized Equipment, including, without limitation, the reasons set
forth in the force majeure provisions of the Agreement; and/or (vi) the negligence of Customer or any other third person or entity. Any
corrections performed by HSS for any such errors, difficulties, or defects will be fixed, in HSS’s sole discretion, at HSS’s then current
time and material charges. HSS will be under no obligation, however, to fix any such Customer or externally caused errors, defects or
problems.
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8. Joinder Agreement. Schedules C contains the Joinder Agreement under which Customer can obtain products from Microsoft.
Customer is required to sign this agreement if it is obtaining any products from this Preferred Provider in connection with this Order
Document.
9. Request for Products or Services. The form to use when requesting products or services is contained in Schedule E – Form of
Request for Products or Services. ‘not attached to this Document’
10. Notices. Questions and notices regarding this Order Document should be directed to:
The Attention of:
Address:

Telephone Number:
Email Address:

HITS Agreement (International Third Party) (Version 11.2017)
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ORDER DOCUMENT - HAITI
Customer Name:

%LegalEntity%

Customer Contact:

Customer Address:

%PrimaryContactName%
%PrimaryContactAddress1%
%PrimaryContactAddress2%
%PrimaryContactZip%
%PrimaryContactCity%
%PrimaryContactCountry%

Property Name:

%PropertyName%

%GMName%
%PrimaryContactHeading%
%PropertyName%
%PropertyAddress1%
%PropertyAddress2%
%PropertyCity%
%PropertyZip%
%PropertyCountry%

Issue Date:

%CreationDate%

This Order Document is issued under and is a part of the Information Technology System Agreement (“Agreement”) between Hilton
Systems Solutions, LLC (“HSS”) and %LegalEntity% (“Customer”) and includes all of its schedules, attachments, and exhibits as well as
all other documents expressly incorporated into it by reference. It becomes effective on the date identified by HSS under the signature
blocks below (“Order Effective Date”) and when signed by both parties is automatically incorporated into and becomes part of the
Agreement. All licenses and sublicenses of software, all subscriptions, all Services and all equipment provided herein or obtained
hereunder are subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement and to the terms of this Order Document. Unless otherwise specified
the defined terms in this Order Document have the meanings given them in the Agreement.
The pricing provided here for goods and services provided by Hilton is valid for a period of ninety (90) days following the date of issue of
this Order Document to Customer (“Issue Date”). Should this Order Document not be signed by the Customer within those (90) days,
Customer must obtain written confirmation from HSS that the pricing requested by Customer remains in effect.
Except as otherwise noted herein or in the applicable invoice all payments required by this Order Document must be made in United
States Dollars within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice therefore. Customer acknowledges and agrees that HSS or its Affiliates may
derive revenues and/or other material consideration on all or a portion of the fees paid by Customer and that HSS may use third parties
to perform the Services. All fees indicated are exclusive of applicable taxes, shipping, insurance, rigging, duties and other related fees
and expenses, all of which are payable by Customer. Provision of the Authorized Equipment, Software and Services is made in
consideration of the Customer’s promise herein to pay the fees therefor and is subject to Customer’s timely payment of such fees. HSS
may delegate certain of its operational responsibilities hereunder to third parties but remains responsible therefore.
EXECUTION INSTRUCTIONS: Please sign this Order Document, the document in Schedule C and any other Schedules indicated
as needing your signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, by the signature of its respective authorized representative, each of the parties agrees to be bound by all of
the terms of this Order Document.

HSS
Hilton System Solutions, LLC

CUSTOMER:
%LegalEntity%

By: __________________________________

By: __________________________________

Name: ________________________________

Name: ________________________________

Title:_________________________________

Title: _________________________________

Date:_________________________________

Date: _________________________________

The Order Effective Date for this Order Document is the date it is signed by HSS.
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1. Software and Related Services.
1.1 Software. HSS hereby licenses to Customer on a non – exclusive basis the following Proprietary Software and sublicenses to
Customer the following Certified Third Party Software under the terms specified in the Agreement. The fees identified under this Section
1.1 for software are one-time payments. To be clear, this Agreement does not grant Customer the right to use or access HSS’ OnQ®
Proprietary Software for Customer’s property management system. Instead, Customer is required to use the Third Party PMS Products
in accordance with Customer’s Third Party PMS Agreement
A. Base Operational Software (Proprietary Software unless otherwise noted):

Software

1.
2.
3.
4.

Those Being Licensed
to Customer are Noted
with “X”
X
X
X
X

Operations Audit
Customer Relationship Management
OnQ™ Insider
OnQ™ Rate and Inventory

Customer will pay HSS or a retailer approved by HSS, a fee for the license of each copy of the Proprietary Software installed on the
Authorized Equipment at the hotel (the “License Fee”). The License Fee may be prorated to reflect the installation of some, but not all,
of the Proprietary Software modules. The costs of Third Party PMS Products will be billed directly to Customer by the Third Party PMS
supplier pursuant to Customer’s Third Party PMS Agreement.
B. Certified Third Party Software.

%INTLSoftwareListwithQTY%
HSS may require that Customer use additional Proprietary Software and Certified Third Party Software for the proper operation of the
Agreement Products and Services. Some of such Software may be Certified Third Party Software, such as malware anti-virus software
or Microsoft Windows, SQL, or Exchange, that may be purchased through a Master Agreement (“Additional Certified Third Party
Software”). The fee for the license of each copy of such Additional Certified Third Party Software will be billed to and payable by
Customer.
Additional Certified Third Party Software Licenses

$%INTLOnQOSandDBSoftware%

(Price excludes taxes, configuration, imaging and installation related costs)
C. Revenue Management System: Customer will pay HSS or a provider approved by HSS the license fees for certain revenue
management system software needed for the operation of Customer’s hotel, as determined by HSS in its sole discretion. The license
fees for any such revenue management system software will be billed separately. Customer will be responsible for the cost of any
services necessary for the installation of any revenue management system software and for the implementation and verification of the
proper functioning of such revenue management system software on Customer’s equipment. The cost of such services and the travel
costs for any on-site services will be billed separately by HSS or the provider.
D. Electronic Mail: Customer will pay HSS for the license fees for electronic mail. The license fees for electronic mail will be billed
separately. Certain additional Software may be required by HSS for the operation of Customer’s hotel. Any such additional Software
will be provided pursuant to the terms, conditions and limitations contained in the Agreement and, as applicable, the terms, conditions
and limitations required by the supplier of such additional Software.
E. Project Management: HSS will exercise full Project Management for the preparation, installation and/or implementation of the Third
Party PMS Products and any Proprietary Software licensed by Customer. HSS in its sole discretion may require additional HSS or
Preferred Provider presence at the Customer’s Site during the installation.
1.2 Training and Training Materials: Customer’s employees who have responsibilities related to the use of the Proprietary Software
modules described above will need on-site training for the access to and use by Customer or Customer’s Hotel of the Third Party PMS
Products and for Hilton Business Process Training, which may be included in this Agreement and/or in Customer’s Third Party PMS
Agreement, but is not provided for in the Technology Program License Agreement in Schedule D (“Technology Program”). HSS will
charge Customer a fee related to Hilton Business Process Training and a fee related to Training and Project Management all as further
set forth below.
1.3 Site Surveys. Customer and HSS will mutually determine the scope, schedule and timing of a site survey that may be required for
the preparation, installation and/or implementation of the Proprietary Software licensed by Customer and the Third Party PMS Products
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(the “Site Survey”). HSS and Customer will identify the responsible parties for each aspect of the Site Survey. In preparation for any
Site Survey, Customer will provide information and documentation relative to the Hotel as requested by HSS, including, but not limited
to, hotel drawings, room locations and wiring diagrams. If HSS performs on-site services during the Site Survey, the Customer is
responsible for providing timely access to the Hotel property, as well as complimentary room nights with confirmed reservations at the
Hotel, as needed in the course of performing the Site Survey. A Hotel representative will be appointed by Customer to provide escort
and access to guest rooms for the room inspection portion of the Site Survey. The fees and costs for any work performed by HSS
relative to the Site Survey, including any fees for creation and validation of the wireless network design, any travel expenses, per diem
fees and other out-of-pocket related costs, will be billed separately by HSS to the Customer. Any additional costs incurred due to
delays in performing the Site Survey caused by the Customer’s Hotel will also be billed to Customer.
Site Survey Fees
expenses, per diem fees and related costs)

$%INTLTSSiteSurvey% (Price excludes taxes, travel

1.4 IT Project Services: HSS will, with agreement of Customer, perform (i) implementation of Customer’s Authorized Equipment and
related Certified Software, (ii) installation of Customer’s Authorized Equipment, and (iii) third party product interface testing and
connectivity establishment. Details regarding these Services are available from HSS. The specific services and the charges and costs
for the services provided under this Section may vary depending upon size, brand and complexity of Customer’s Hotel. These
specialists and the services they may perform may include, without limitation, the following:

SS Specialists
IT Opening Project Manager (Owned and
Managed Hotels only)

IT Manager or Consultant

Hardware Deployment Engineer – New
Opening / Brand Conversion:

Infrastructure Change Coordinator –
Information System Server Consolidator Hilton Family Brand Conversions:

Implementation Project Manager and a
Contracts Manager

Services May Include Without Limitation:
• Project Initiation Phase – Site Survey, budget preparation, plan creation
• Project Management Phase – technical design assistance, system and
application recommendations, project meetings, budget and plan
management
• Pre-Opening Phase – third party order coordination, escalation points for
IT Manager
• Management of various activities.
• Where practical, HSS may also provide approved third party contractors,
or a HSS seconded resource, which would also be chargeable to Customer
Utility Server build, installation and software load (Managed Hotels only)
• Pre-Opening office set up and support.
• Training room set ups.
• Physical hardware deployment except OnQ server.
• Onsite third party vendor management.
• Technical live support cover and documentation.
• PMS Server build, installation and software load.
• Utility Server build, installation and software load (Managed Hotels only).
• Remote Desktop Services Server build, installation and software load.
• Application Servers build (Managed Hotels only).
• Assist with installation of PMS workstations & printers.
• Completion of connection of Customer’s Hotel to Hilton Wide Area
Network (WAN).
• Review of IT environment.
The time needed for completion of Hardware Deployment Engineer
activities either onsite, remotely or combination of both will depend upon the
network complexity of Customer’s Hotel and will be chargeable.
HSS may provide and charge Customer for services to coordinate the
execution of the required infrastructure changes needed for Information
System server consolidations (from dual-server to single server) and for
brand conversions which require changes on multiple backend infrastructure
systems. These services may include, but not be limited to:
• Credit card encryption key manager changes.
• Domain Name System (DNS) changes.
HSS may provide and charge Customer for an Implementation Project
Manager and a Contracts Manager to be assigned to Hotel and to provide
end-to-end project management services. These services may include, but
not limited to:
• Facilitation of contracting process
• Advice on mandatory hardware, introduction of approved third party
vendors, outline application & network requirements,
• Ensure compliance to OnQ hardware standards and facilitate the
connection to Hilton Wide Area Network.
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• Pre-live preparation including kick-off meeting, detailed project
preparation and guidance, weekly conference calls, focused preparation
and change impact in revenue and finance areas, WebEx sessions and elearning facilitation
• Management, coordination and facilitation of on-site implementation and
change management training process
• Post implementation support and follow-up.

1.5 Implementation Services. HSS may, in its sole discretion, provide implementation services for Customer’s Authorized Equipment
and related Certified Third Party Software. Some are described below but more exact requirements may be set forth in the applicable
Brand and/or Standards Manual(s) and are subject to change by HSS or Hilton Domestic Operating Company Inc. (“HDOC”) or their
affiliates or subsidiaries from time to time. HSS will provide the services using Systems Implementation consultants. The number of
consultants and number of days they will be used will be determined by HSS based upon the size and type of the Hotel and the Hotel’s
IT requirements. These consultants may:
(a) work with the Hotel, which is responsible for the cost of building the Hotel’s database, including the verification of the proper
functioning of the Software, installation, conversion, implementation, data conversion or recovery;
(b) provide procedural support for the property management system to the Hotel’s management;
(c) work with the Hotel’s management to adapt their use of the Information System to meet the Hotel’s requirements;
(d) support the Hotel’s staff in their use of the Information System through the Hotel’s management;
(e) work with the Hotel’s management to assure that the Hotel has all necessary tools for the implementation of the Information
System (i.e., Authorized Equipment, Certified Third Party Software, documentation, etc.);
(f) install or approve the installation of equipment to meet the requirements of the Hotel, HSS and the manufacturer of the Authorized
Equipment;
(g) work with third party vendors to meet the technical criteria for interface communications (i.e., central reservations, call accounting,
energy management, pay movies, guest internet access, etc.);
(h) verify that all front desk staff and Hotel’s management have successfully completed the Information System Guided Tour &
Training;
(i) identify and address operational problems that involve the Information System;
(j) formulate and present recommendations that maximize efficient use of the Information System;
(k) administer a trial run of the Information System to verify that the front desk staff and audit staff have been trained properly;
(l) identify and address operational problems that involve the Information System; and
(m) formulate and present recommendations that maximize efficient use of the Information System.
1.6 Authorized Equipment Installation. Whether Customer elects to purchase or lease Authorized Equipment from a Preferred
Provider or through one of the Master Agreements HSS will coordinate the installation of such Authorized Equipment at the Hotel.
A. Customer or HSS, in HSS’s discretion, will obtain and maintain throughout the term hereof, at Customer’s cost, the necessary
communication vehicles and services for direct communication between HSS and the Hotel as is reasonably necessary for the
operation of, and for the diagnosing of issues involving, the Agreement Products and Services, including without limitation, network
access and wide area network connections to the Central Reservation System and Internet.
B. Customer will make available, at its own expense, prior to the agreed upon installation date a location that, in HSS’s opinion, is
suitable for installation of Authorized Equipment. Customer will furnish any electrical connections and dedicated phone lines which may
be required by HSS and will perform and pay for all work, including alterations, which in the sole discretion of HSS is necessary to
prepare the Hotel for the installation and proper operation of the Authorized Equipment.
C. Any delay in shipment and installation of such Authorized Equipment or Certified Third Party Software, including delays by
communications vendors, Preferred Providers or any other retailers, will, for the duration of such delay, excuse any failure of HSS to
install the Authorized Equipment on or before the agreed upon installation date. However, HSS will use commercially reasonable
efforts to require such approved vendors to comply with their service level agreements as to installation and shipment timing for
Customer’s installation, in accordance with such approved vendor agreements.
D. If Customer elects to purchase Authorized Equipment from another retailer, it will be installed at the Hotel on a date mutually agreed
to by HSS and Customer following HSS’s determination that it conforms to HSS’s specifications and testing procedures and can be
configured with the Software.
1.7 Software Installation.
A. Unless specifically stated as being implemented by HSS, it is Customer’s obligation to install the Software on the Authorized
Equipment and any related hardware at such time as HSS designates in writing to Customer. The Software may be installed in phases
such that one or more Software modules may be installed and/or be operational prior to other Software modules. Customer will be
responsible for all fees and costs incurred in the installation of Software and any related Software.
B. If Customer purchases the Authorized Equipment from HSS or a Preferred Provider, the Preferred Provider or HSS will install the
Software and any related software as described in this Agreement on the Authorized Equipment and HSS will complete the installation
at the Hotel, as applicable, on the agreed upon installation date. If Customer does not purchase such Authorized Equipment from the
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Preferred Provider, HSS will install the Software and any related software at such time as HSS designates in writing to Customer. The
Software may be installed in phases such that one or more Software modules may be installed and/or operational prior to other
Software modules. The Software modules to be installed will be as set out above and in this Agreement, and Customer hereby agrees
to permit the Preferred Provider or HSS to install any and all other Software modules on the Authorized Equipment in or at the Hotel, as
provided for herein.
C. If Customer purchases such Authorized Equipment from a retailer other than the Preferred Provider, Customer will pay for
configuring the Authorized Equipment purchased from such retailer, with the Software. Customer will also be responsible for shipping
and shipping related costs to and from HSS for such configuration. Customer is solely responsible for all customs clearance in the
country of operation and any customs clearance fees, taxes or other applicable charges.
1.8 Third Party Interface Testing and Connectivity: If Customer requires the implementation of any interface software for
connectivity to third party systems, Customer will be responsible for any fees assessed by the third party vendors to test and implement
the necessary connectivity. In addition, Customer will be required to make arrangements with any such third party vendor to provide
the necessary assistance required to test and to implement the interface connectivity. This assistance requires the vendor to be on-site
at the time of testing and implementation, unless the third party vendor can perform all necessary tasks (as defined by HSS) through a
remote connection to the Customer’s third party system. The cost incurred by any third party vendors for testing and implementing
connectivity to third party systems will be billed to Customer by HSS, or such vendors for the license of each copy of the Proprietary
Software and the Certified Third Party Software licensed to Customer by HSS.
1.9 Certain Costs
A. The Customer is responsible for paying the following fees:
Cost of IT Project Services:
IT Opening Project Manager

$%INTLITOPENPM%

IT Manager or Consultant / Local Hotel Opening Support

$%INTLITOPENMC%

Hardware Deployment Engineer – New Opening/Brand Conversion
Infrastructure Change Coordination

$%INTLINSTFEE%
$%INTLINFCHGCO%

Cost of Installation Management, Implementation and Training Services:
Project Management and Contracting Fee

$%INTLDEPLPM%

Hilton Onsite Change Management Fee

$%INTLCHANGEMGMTFEE%

Hilton Business Process Training Materials

$%INTLBUSINESSTRAIN%

Hilton Implementation Fee

$%INTLIMPFEE%

Oracle Hospitality / Hilton Domestic Operating Company Integration

$%IntlMfHwIntegration%

Hilton Onsite Revenue Conversion Preparation

$%INTLREVPREP%

Brand Training Materials

$%INTLPreOpenMat%

Delphi Implementation Specialist

$%INTLDELPHIIMP%

IdeaS Implementation Fee

$%INTLIDEAS%

Digital Floor Plan Setup Fee

$%INTLDigitalFloorSetup%

Salesforce Community License

$%INTLSalesforce%

Maintenance Notes: %MaintComments%
(Travel expenses, per diem fees and related costs will be the responsibility of Customer and will be invoiced to Customer separately by
HSS or an affiliate of HSS or the Preferred Provider.)
B. Other. If Customer attaches or uses third party equipment, software, and/or interfaces with any of the Agreement Products and
Services, the Central Reservation System or the internet which have not been certified or approved by HSS as meeting HSS’
specifications and/or does not conform to the standards provided by the HSS or if Customer installs other third party non-HSS
proprietary software which has not been certified or approved by HSS as meeting HSS’ specifications, the Agreement Products and
Services or such third party equipment, software, and/or interfaces may need to be reconfigured and the entire cost of such
reconfiguration will be borne by Customer. Where HSS specifications cannot be met with such third party equipment, software, and/or
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interfaces, such third party equipment, software and/or interfaces will, at Customer’s sole cost, be removed and/or replaced as directed
by HSS.
1.10 HSS Representatives on-Site at Hotel. Customer must have its representative(s) on-site at the Hotel for the implementation of
the Agreement Products and Services identified in this Order Document. Once HSS’s representatives are on-site, any delays will result
in additional expense to Customer. If a delay in implementation of any of the Agreement Products and Services caused solely by
Customer necessitates the departure and re-scheduling of HSS’ representatives, then, in addition to the other fees set forth in this
Order Document, Customer will be required to pay a fee consisting of charges for such representatives’ work days and travel days
(each currently U$700.00 per representative per day), change fees, and additional travel expenses. The re-scheduled date will be
determined based on the needs of the Hotel as well as the availability of HSS’ representatives.
2. Proprietary Software Maintenance / Help Desk Services.
2.1 Proprietary Software Maintenance.
A. HSS will provide Customer with Proprietary Software Maintenance and support services (the “Proprietary Software Maintenance”) for
a term of one (1) year (with annual renewals thereafter at the option of HSS) commencing on the Order Effective Date.
B. The first monthly payment will be invoiced upon the opening of the Hotel. For the avoidance of doubt, HSS has no obligation to
provide Customer with maintenance, support or Help Desk services for any Certified Third Party Software; maintenance support and
services for Certified Third Party Software is to be provided by the applicable Preferred Provider pursuant to the applicable Master
Agreement. The Proprietary Software Maintenance and support offered by HSS is described in Schedule A.
C. HSS is unable to modify, and does not provide support for, the Certified Third Party Software. Provided Customer has paid for all
Software Maintenance and other fees charged hereunder and satisfied all other obligations under the Agreement, HSS will supply
Customer with any standard enhancements, improvements, updates, and/or modifications to the Proprietary Software (“Updates”)
generally made available by HSS as options or new releases to its Customers which are not charged for separately by HSS (“Software
Maintenance”). Such Updates will be HSS’ sole and exclusive property and will be deemed part of the Proprietary Software hereunder.
Customer agrees that it may be required to purchase some Updates to the Proprietary Software, which are charged for separately by
HSS, as well as additional hardware and/or software in order to utilize certain major upgrades or enhancements.
2.3 Use of Certified Third Party Software Only. In the event Customer uses or installs any third party software other than Certified
Software on the Authorized Equipment or uses equipment that is not Authorized Equipment, HSS will have no further obligations to
provide any Software Maintenance services to Customer.
2.4 Increases/Decreases. HSS reserves the right to increase or decrease the Software Maintenance cost on an annual basis to
reflect increases or decreases in such costs and the addition or construction of additional guest rooms (or suites) by Customer for
Customer's Hotel.
2.5 Certain Cost and Payment Terms. Customer will be billed separately for certain enhancements provided by HSS in its discretion
from time to time related to Information System (“System Enhancements”). The annual cost of System Enhancements for Customer’s
Hotel is %INTLSYSYEAR%, payable in monthly installments of $%MONTH% per month.
2.6 Help Desk Services. HSS will provide Customer Help Desk services for the Proprietary Software for a term of one (1) year (with
annual renewals thereafter at the option of HSS) commencing on the Order Effective Date. The annual fee, payable in monthly
installments, is as follows:

Help Desk Services
Help Desk Services

Annual Payment
$%INTLHelpYear%

Fee
Monthly Payment
$%INTLHelpMonth%

3. Additional Services.
3.1 Additional Services Purchased Under This Ordering Document. HSS will provide the following additional Services (if any are
listed) for the fees noted: N/A
4. Authorized Equipment.
4.1. Authorized Equipment Purchased or Leased. Customer must purchase or lease sufficient Authorized Equipment meeting the
requirements identified by HSS in accordance with Schedule B-1 – Authorized Equipment to this Order Document. The Authorized
Equipment will be selected based on the technology needs of the Hotel and Customer’s obligations under this Agreement.
4.2. Authorized Equipment Maintenance. Customer must purchase maintenance services as described in Schedule B-2 – Authorized
Equipment Maintenance and Refresh for all of the Authorized Equipment it purchases or leases.
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5. Expenses. If HSS or Preferred Provider personnel incur travel, lodging, meal, or any other out of pocket expenses in furnishing
services hereunder, Customer will pay for or promptly reimburse HSS or Preferred Provider, as applicable,for same, subject to
reasonable documentation of such expenses.
6. Customer Responsibilities. Customer will maintain on its staff at all times sufficient personnel that have been trained in and are
knowledgeable about the use of the Information System in a professional, efficient and competent manner. Customer is responsible for
maintaining duplicate or back-up copies of its software, data files and documentation. HSS will have no liability for any damages
resulting from Customer’s failure to maintain such duplicate or back-up copies nor for any costs or expenses of reconstructing any such
data or information that may be destroyed, impaired or lost.
7. Exclusions. HSS’s obligations under the Agreement will not apply to any errors, defects or problems caused in whole or in part by
(i) any modifications or enhancements made to any Proprietary Software, Certified Third Party Software or Authorized Equipment by
Customer or any third person or entity other than HSS; (ii) any software program, hardware, firmware, peripheral or communication
device used in connection with the Information System which was not approved in advance in writing by HSS; (iii) the failure of
Customer to follow the most current instructions promulgated by HSS or any third party vendor from time to time with respect to the
proper use of the Information System; (iv) the failure of Customer to schedule regular preventive maintenance in accordance with
standard HSS procedures; (v) forces or supplies external to the Authorized Equipment, including, without limitation, the reasons set
forth in the force majeure provisions of the Agreement; and/or (vi) the negligence of Customer or any other third person or entity. Any
corrections performed by HSS for any such errors, difficulties, or defects will be fixed, in HSS’s sole discretion, at HSS’s then current
time and material charges. HSS will be under no obligation, however, to fix any such Customer or externally caused errors, defects or
problems.
8. Joinder Agreement. Schedules C contains the Joinder Agreement under which Customer can obtain products from Microsoft.
Customer is required to sign this agreement if it is obtaining any products from this Preferred Provider in connection with this Order
Document.
9. Request for Products or Services. The form to use when requesting additional products or services not contained in this Order
Document is contained in Schedule E – Form of Request for Products or Services.
10. Notices. Questions and notices regarding this Order Document should be directed to:
The Attention of:
Address:

Telephone Number:
Email Address:

Scott Greenberg
Hilton System Solutions LLC
755 Crossover Lane
Memphis, Tennessee 38117
(901) 374-5510
Scott.Greenberg@hilton.com
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ORDER DOCUMENT - Tajikastan
Customer Name:

%LegalEntity%

Customer Contact:

Customer Address:

%PrimaryContactName%
%PrimaryContactAddress1%
%PrimaryContactAddress2%
%PrimaryContactZip%
%PrimaryContactCity%
%PrimaryContactCountry%

Property Name:

%PropertyName%

%GMName%
%PrimaryContactHeading%
%PropertyName%
%PropertyAddress1%
%PropertyAddress2%
%PropertyCity%
%PropertyZip%
%PropertyCountry%

Issue Date:

%CreationDate%

This Order Document is issued under and is a part of the Information Technology System Agreement (“Agreement”) between Hilton
Systems Solutions, LLC (“HSS”) and %LegalEntity% (“Customer”) and includes all of its schedules, attachments, and exhibits as well as
all other documents expressly incorporated into it by reference. It becomes effective on the date identified by HSS under the signature
blocks below (“Order Effective Date”) and when signed by both parties is automatically incorporated into and becomes part of the
Agreement. All licenses and sublicenses of software, all subscriptions, all Services and all equipment provided herein or obtained
hereunder are subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement and to the terms of this Order Document. Unless otherwise specified
the defined terms in this Order Document have the meanings given them in the Agreement.
The pricing provided here for goods and services provided by Hilton is valid for a period of ninety (90) days following the date of issue of
this Order Document to Customer (“Issue Date”). Should this Order Document not be signed by the Customer within those (90) days,
Customer must obtain written confirmation from HSS that the pricing requested by Customer remains in effect.
Except as otherwise noted herein or in the applicable invoice all payments required by this Order Document must be made in United
States Dollars within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice therefore. Customer acknowledges and agrees that HSS or its Affiliates may
derive revenues and/or other material consideration on all or a portion of the fees paid by Customer and that HSS may use third parties
to perform the Services. All fees indicated are exclusive of applicable taxes, shipping, insurance, rigging, duties and other related fees
and expenses, all of which are payable by Customer. Provision of the Authorized Equipment, Software and Services is made in
consideration of the Customer’s promise herein to pay the fees therefor and is subject to Customer’s timely payment of such fees. HSS
may delegate certain of its operational responsibilities hereunder to third parties but remains responsible therefore.
EXECUTION INSTRUCTIONS: Please sign this Order Document, the document in Schedule C and any other Schedules indicated
as needing your signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, by the signature of its respective authorized representative, each of the parties agrees to be bound by all of
the terms of this Order Document.

HSS
Hilton Systems Solutions, LLC

CUSTOMER:
%LegalEntity%

By: __________________________________

By: __________________________________

Name: ________________________________

Name: ________________________________

Title:_________________________________

Title: _________________________________

Date:_________________________________

Date: _________________________________

The Order Effective Date for this Order Document is the date it is signed by HSS.
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1. Software and Related Services.
1.1 Software. This Agreement does not grant Customer the right to use or access HSS’ OnQ® Proprietary Software for Customer’s
property management system. Instead, Customer is required to use the Third Party PMS Products in accordance with Customer’s Third
Party PMS Agreement. HSS does, however, hereby license to Customer the following Proprietary Software and sublicenses to Customer
the following Certified Third Party Software under the terms specified in the Agreement.
A. Base Operational Software (Proprietary Software unless otherwise noted):

Software

1.
2.
3.
4.

Those Being Licensed
to Customer are Noted
with “X”
X
X
X
X

Operations Audit
Customer Relationship Management
OnQ™ Insider
OnQ™ Rate and Inventory

Customer will pay HSS or a retailer approved by HSS, a fee for the license of each copy of the Proprietary Software installed on the
Authorized Equipment at the hotel (the “License Fee”). The License Fee may be prorated to reflect the installation of some, but not all,
of the Proprietary Software modules. The costs of Third Party PMS Products will be billed directly to Customer by the Third Party PMS
supplier pursuant to Customer’s Third Party PMS Agreement.
B. Certified Third Party Software.

%INTLSoftwareListwithQTY%
HSS may require that Customer use additional Proprietary Software and Certified Third Party Software for the proper operation of the
Agreement Products and Services. Use of that Software is subject to the terms of this Agreement. Some of such Software may be
Certified Third Party Software, such as malware anti-virus software or Microsoft Windows, SQL, or Exchange, that may be purchased
through a Master Agreement (“Additional Certified Third Party Software”). The fee for the license of each copy of such Additional
Certified Third Party Software will be billed to and payable by Customer.
Additional Certified Third Party Software Licenses

$%INTLOnQOSandDBSoftware%

(Price excludes taxes, configuration, imaging and installation related costs)
C. Revenue Management System: Customer will pay HSS or a provider approved by HSS the license fees for certain revenue
management system software needed for the operation of Customer’s hotel, as determined by HSS in its sole discretion. The license
fees for any such revenue management system software will be billed separately. Customer will be responsible for the cost of any
services necessary for the installation of any revenue management system software and for the implementation and verification of the
proper functioning of such revenue management system software on Customer’s equipment. The cost of such services and the travel
costs for any on-site services will be billed separately by HSS or the provider.
D. Electronic Mail: Customer will pay HSS for the license fees for electronic mail. The license fees for electronic mail will be billed
separately. Certain additional Software may be required by HSS for the operation of Customer’s hotel. Any such additional Software
will be provided pursuant to the terms, conditions and limitations contained in the Agreement and, as applicable, the terms, conditions
and limitations required by the supplier of such additional Software.
E. Project Management: HSS will exercise full Project Management for the preparation, installation and/or implementation of the Third
Party PMS Products as part of OnQ®. HSS in its sole discretion may require additional HSS or Preferred Provider presence at the
Customer’s Site during the installation.
1.2 Training and Training Materials: Customer’s employees who have responsibilities related to the use of the Proprietary Software
modules described above will need on-site training for the access to and use by Customer or Customer’s Hotel of the Third Party PMS
Products and for Hilton Business Process Training, which may be included in this Agreement and/or in Customer’s Third Party PMS
Agreement, but is not provided for in the Technology Program License Agreement in Schedule D (“Technology Program”). HSS will
charge Customer a fee related to Hilton Business Process Training and a fee related to Training and Project Management all as further
set forth below.
1.3 Site Surveys. Customer and HSS will mutually determine the scope, schedule and timing of a site survey that may be required for
the preparation, installation and/or implementation of OnQ and the Third Party PMS Products (the “Site Survey”). HSS and Customer
will identify the responsible parties for each aspect of the Site Survey. In preparation for any Site Survey, Customer will provide
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information and documentation relative to the Hotel as requested by HSS, including, but not limited to, hotel drawings, room locations
and wiring diagrams. If HSS performs on-site services during the Site Survey, the Customer is responsible for providing timely access
to the Hotel property, as well as complimentary room nights with confirmed reservations at the Hotel, as needed in the course of
performing the Site Survey. A Hotel representative will be appointed by Customer to provide escort and access to guest rooms for the
room inspection portion of the Site Survey. The fees and costs for any work performed by HSS relative to the Site Survey, including
any fees for creation and validation of the wireless network design, any travel expenses, per diem fees and other out-of-pocket related
costs, will be billed separately by HSS to the Customer. Any additional costs incurred due to delays in performing the Site Survey
caused by the Customer’s Hotel will also be billed to Customer.
Site Survey Fees
expenses, per diem fees and related costs)

$%INTLTSSiteSurvey% (Price excludes taxes, travel

1.4 IT Project Services: HSS will, with agreement of Customer, perform (i) implementation of Customer’s Authorized Equipment and
related Certified Software, (ii) installation of Customer’s Authorized Equipment, and (iii) third party product interface testing and
connectivity establishment. Details regarding these Services are available from HSS. The specific services and the charges and costs
for the services provided under this Section may vary depending upon size, brand and complexity of Customer’s Hotel. These
specialists and the services they may perform may include, without limitation, the following:
SS Specialists
IT Opening Project Manager (Owned and
Managed Hotels only)

IT Manager or Consultant

Hardware Deployment Engineer – New
Opening / Brand Conversion:

Infrastructure Change Coordinator –
Information System Server Consolidator Hilton Family Brand Conversions:

Implementation Project Manager and a
Contracts Manager

Services May Include Without Limitation:
• Project Initiation Phase – Site Survey, budget preparation, plan creation
• Project Management Phase – technical design assistance, system and
application recommendations, project meetings, budget and plan
management
• Pre-Opening Phase – third party order coordination, escalation points for
IT Manager
• Management of various activities.
• Where practical, HSS may also provide approved third party contractors,
or a HSS seconded resource, which would also be chargeable to Customer
Utility Server build, installation and software load (Managed Hotels only)
• Pre-Opening office set up and support.
• Training room set ups.
• Physical hardware deployment except OnQ server.
• Onsite third party vendor management.
• Technical live support cover and documentation.
• PMS Server build, installation and software load.
• Utility Server build, installation and software load (Managed Hotels only).
• Remote Desktop Services Server build, installation and software load.
• Application Servers build (Managed Hotels only).
• Assist with installation of PMS workstations & printers.
• Completion of connection of Customer’s Hotel to Hilton Wide Area
Network (WAN).
• Review of IT environment.
The time needed for completion of Hardware Deployment Engineer
activities either onsite, remotely or combination of both will depend upon the
network complexity of Customer’s Hotel and will be chargeable.
HSS may provide and charge Customer for services to coordinate the
execution of the required infrastructure changes needed for Information
System server consolidations (from dual-server to single server) and for
brand conversions which require changes on multiple backend infrastructure
systems. These services may include, but not be limited to:
• Credit card encryption key manager changes.
• Domain Name System (DNS) changes.
HSS may provide and charge Customer for an Implementation Project
Manager and a Contracts Manager to be assigned to Hotel and to provide
end-to-end project management services. These services may include, but
not limited to:
• Facilitation of contracting process
• Advice on mandatory hardware, introduction of approved third party
vendors, outline application & network requirements,
• Ensure compliance to OnQ hardware standards and facilitate the
connection to Hilton Wide Area Network.
• Pre-live preparation including kick-off meeting, detailed project
preparation and guidance, weekly conference calls, focused preparation
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and change impact in revenue and finance areas, WebEx sessions and elearning facilitation
• Management, coordination and facilitation of on-site implementation and
change management training process
• Post implementation support and follow-up.

1.5 Implementation Services. HSS may, in its sole discretion, provide implementation services for Customer’s Authorized Equipment
and related Certified Third Party Software. Some are described below but more exact requirements may be set forth in the applicable
Standards and/or Manual(s) and are subject to change by HSS or Hilton Domestic Operating Company Inc. (“HDOC”) or their affiliates
or subsidiaries from time to time. HSS will provide the services using System Implementation consultants. The number of consultants
and number of days they will be used will be determined by HSS based upon the size and type of the Hotel and the Hotel’s IT
requirements. These consultants may:
(a) work with the Hotel, which is responsible for the cost of building the Hotel’s database, including the verification of the proper
functioning of the Software, installation, conversion, implementation, data conversion or recovery;
(b) provide procedural support for the property management system to the Hotel’s management;
(c) work with the Hotel’s management to adapt their use of the Information System to meet the Hotel’s requirements;
(d) support the Hotel’s staff in their use of the Information System through the Hotel’s management;
(e) work with the Hotel’s management to assure that the Hotel has all necessary tools for the implementation of the Information
System (i.e., Authorized Equipment, Certified Third Party Software, documentation, etc.);
(f) install or approve the installation of equipment to meet the requirements of the Hotel, HSS and the manufacturer of the Authorized
Equipment;
(g) work with third party vendors to meet the technical criteria for interface communications (i.e., central reservations, call accounting,
energy management, pay movies, guest internet access, etc.);
(h) verify that all front desk staff and Hotel’s management have successfully completed the Information System Guided Tour &
Training;
(i) identify and address operational problems that involve the Information System;
(j) formulate and present recommendations that maximize efficient use of the Information System;
(k) administer a trial run of the Information System to verify that the front desk staff and audit staff have been trained properly;
(l) identify and address operational problems that involve the Information System; and
(m) formulate and present recommendations that maximize efficient use of the Information System.
1.6 Authorized Equipment Installation. Whether Customer elects to purchase or lease Authorized Equipment from a Preferred
Provider through one of the Master Agreements HSS will coordinate the installation of such Authorized Equipment at the Hotel.
A. Customer or HSS, in HSS’s discretion, will obtain and maintain throughout the term hereof, at Customer’s cost, the necessary
communication vehicles and services for direct communication between HSS and the Hotel as is reasonably necessary for the
operation of, and for the diagnosing of issues involving, the Agreement Products and Services, including without limitation, network
access and wide area network connections to the Information System and Internet.
B. Customer will make available, at its own expense, prior to the agreed upon installation date a location that, in HSS’s opinion, is
suitable for installation of Authorized Equipment. Customer will furnish any electrical connections and dedicated phone lines which may
be required by HSS and will perform and pay for all work, including alterations, which in the sole discretion of HSS is necessary to
prepare the Hotel for the installation and proper operation of the Authorized Equipment.
C. Any delay in shipment and installation of such Authorized Equipment or Certified Third Party Software, including delays by
communications vendors, Preferred Providers or any other retailers, will, for the duration of such delay, excuse any failure of HSS to
install the Authorized Equipment on or before the agreed upon installation date. However, HSS will use commercially reasonable
efforts to require such approved vendors to comply with their service level agreements as to installation and shipment timing for
Customer’s installation, in accordance with such approved vendor agreements.
D. If Customer elects to purchase Authorized Equipment from another retailer, it will be installed at the Hotel on a date mutually agreed
to by HSS and Customer following HSS’s determination that it conforms to HSS’s specifications and testing procedures and can be
configured with the Software.
1.7 Software Installation.
A. Unless specifically stated as being implemented by HSS, it is Customer’s obligation to install the Software on the Authorized
Equipment and any related hardware at such time as HSS designates in writing to Customer. The Software may be installed in phases
such that one or more Software modules may be installed and/or be operational prior to other Software modules. Customer will be
responsible for all fees and costs incurred in the installation of Software and any related Software.
B. If Customer purchases the Authorized Equipment from HSS or a Preferred Provider, the Preferred Provider or HSS will install the
Software and any related software as described in this Agreement on the Authorized Equipment and HSS will complete the installation
at the Hotel, as applicable, on the agreed upon installation date. If Customer does not purchase such Authorized Equipment from the
Preferred Provider, HSS will install the Software and any related software at such time as HSS designates in writing to Customer. The
Software may be installed in phases such that one or more Software modules may be installed and/or operational prior to other
Software modules. The Software modules to be installed will be as set out above and in this Agreement, and Customer hereby agrees
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to permit the Preferred Provider or HSS to install any and all other Software modules on the Authorized Equipment in or at the Hotel, as
provided for herein.
C. If Customer purchases such Authorized Equipment from a retailer other than the Preferred Provider, Customer will pay for
configuring the Authorized Equipment purchased from such retailer, with the Software. Customer will also be responsible for shipping
and shipping related costs to and from HSS for such configuration. Customer is solely responsible for all customs clearance in the
country of operation and any customs clearance fees, taxes or other applicable charges
1.8 Third Party Interface Testing and Connectivity: If Customer requires the implementation of any interface software for
connectivity to third party systems, Customer will be responsible for any fees assessed by the third party vendors to test and implement
the necessary connectivity. In addition, Customer will be required to make arrangements with any such third party vendor to provide
the necessary assistance required to test and to implement the interface connectivity. This assistance requires the vendor to be on-site
at the time of testing and implementation, unless the third party vendor can perform all necessary tasks (as defined by HSS) through a
remote connection to the Customer’s third party system. The cost incurred by any third party vendors for testing and implementing
connectivity to third party systems will be the responsibility of Customer.
1.9 Certain Costs
A. The Customer is responsible for paying the following fees:
Cost of IT Project Services:
IT Opening Project Manager

$%INTLITOPENPM%

IT Manager or Consultant / Local Hotel Opening Support

$%INTLITOPENMC%

Hardware Deployment Engineer – New Opening/Brand Conversion
Infrastructure Change Coordination

$%INTLINSTFEE%
$%INTLINFCHGCO%

Cost of Installation Management, Implementation and Training Services:
Project Management and Contracting Fee

$%INTLDEPLPM%

Hilton Onsite Change Management Fee

$%INTLCHANGEMGMTFEE%

Hilton Business Process Training Materials

$%INTLBUSINESSTRAIN%

Hilton Implementation Fee

$%INTLIMPFEE%

Oracle Hospitality / Hilton Domestic Operating Company Integration

$%IntlMfHwIntegration%

Hilton Onsite Revenue Conversion Preparation

$%INTLREVPREP%

Brand Training Materials

$%INTLPreOpenMat%

Delphi Implementation Specialist

$%INTLDELPHIIMP%

IdeaS Implementation Fee

$%INTLIDEAS%

Digital Floor Plan Setup Fee

$%INTLDigitalFloorSetup%

Salesforce Community License

$%INTLSalesforce%

Maintenance Notes: %MaintComments%
(Travel expenses, per diem fees and related costs will be the responsibility of Customer and will be invoiced to Customer separately by
HSS or an affiliate of HSS or the Preferred Provider.)
B. Other. If Customer attaches or uses third party equipment, software, and/or interfaces with any of the Agreement Products and
Services, the Information System or the internet which have not been certified or approved by HSS as meeting HSS’ specifications
and/or does not conform to the standards provided by the HSS or if Customer installs other third party non-HSS proprietary software
which has not been certified or approved by HSS as meeting HSS’ specifications, the Agreement Products and Services or such third
party equipment, software, and/or interfaces may need to be reconfigured and the entire cost of such reconfiguration will be borne by
Customer. Where HSS specifications cannot be met with such third party equipment, software, and/or interfaces, such third party
equipment, software and/or interfaces will, at Customer’s sole cost, be removed and/or replaced as directed by HSS.
1.10 HSS Representatives on-Site at Hotel. Customer must have its representative(s) on-site at the Hotel for the implementation of
the Agreement Products and Services identified in this Order Document. Once HSS’s representatives are on-site, any delays will result
in additional expense to Customer. If a delay in implementation of any of the Agreement Products and Services caused solely by
Customer necessitates the departure and re-scheduling of HSS’ representatives, then, in addition to the other fees set forth in this
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Order Document, Customer will be required to pay a fee consisting of charges for such representatives’ work days and travel days
(each currently U$700.00 per representative per day), change fees, and additional travel expenses. The re-scheduled date will be
determined based on the needs of the Hotel as well as the availability of HSS’ representatives.
2. Proprietary Software Maintenance / Help Desk Services.
2.1 Proprietary Software Maintenance.
A. HSS will provide Customer with Proprietary Software Maintenance and support services (the “Proprietary Software Maintenance”) for
a term of one (1) year (with annual renewals thereafter at the option of HSS) commencing on the Order Effective Date.
B. The first monthly payment will be invoiced upon the opening of the Hotel. For the avoidance of doubt, HSS has no obligation to
provide Customer with maintenance, support or Help Desk services for any Certified Third Party Software; maintenance support and
services for Certified Third Party Software is to be provided by the applicable Preferred Provider pursuant to the applicable Master
Agreement. The Proprietary Software Maintenance and support offered by HSS is described in Schedule A.
C. HSS is unable to modify, and does not provide support for, the Certified Third Party Software. Provided Customer has paid for all
Software Maintenance and other fees charged hereunder and satisfied all other obligations under the Agreement, HSS will supply
Customer with any standard enhancements, improvements, updates, and/or modifications to the Proprietary Software (“Updates”)
generally made available by HSS as options or new releases to its Customers which are not charged for separately by HSS (“Software
Maintenance”). Such Updates will be HSS’ sole and exclusive property and will be deemed part of the Proprietary Software hereunder.
Customer agrees that it may be required to purchase some Updates to the Proprietary Software, which are charged for separately by
HSS, as well as additional hardware and/or software in order to utilize certain major upgrades or enhancements.
2.3 Use of Certified Third Party Software Only. In the event Customer uses or installs any third party software other than Certified
Software on the Authorized Equipment or uses equipment that is not Authorized Equipment, HSS will have no further obligations to
provide any Software Maintenance services to Customer.
2.4 Increases/Decreases. HSS reserves the right to increase or decrease the Software Maintenance cost on an annual basis to
reflect increases or decreases in such costs and the addition or construction of additional guest rooms (or suites) by Customer for
Customer's Hotel.
2.5 Certain Cost and Payment Terms. Customer will be billed separately for certain enhancements provided by HSS in its discretion
from time to time related to Information System (“System Enhancements”). The annual cost of System Enhancements for Customer’s
Hotel Is %INTLSYSYEAR%, payable in monthly installments of $%MONTH% per month.
2.6 Help Desk Services. HSS will provide Customer Help Desk services for the Proprietary Software for a term of one (1) year (with
annual renewals thereafter at the option of HSS) commencing on the Order Effective Date. The annual fee, payable in monthly
installments, is as follows:

Help Desk Services
Help Desk Services

Annual Payment
$%INTLHelpYear%

Fee
Monthly Payment
$%INTLHelpMonth%

3. Additional Services.
3.1 Additional Services Purchased Under This Ordering Document. HSS will provide the following additional Services (if any are
listed) for the fees noted: N/A
4. Authorized Equipment.
4.1. Authorized Equipment Purchased or Leased. Customer will purchase or lease Authorized Equipment meeting the requirements
identified by HSS in accordance with Schedule B-1 – Authorized Equipment to this Order Document. The Authorized Equipment will be
selected based on the technology needs of the Hotel and Customer’s obligations under this Agreement.
4.2. Authorized Equipment Maintenance. Customer must purchase maintenance services as described in Schedule B-2 – Authorized
Equipment Maintenance and Refresh for all of the Authorized Equipment it purchases or leases.
5. Expenses. If HSS or Preferred Provider personnel incur travel, lodging, meal, or any other out of pocket expenses in furnishing
services hereunder, Customer will pay for or promptly reimburse HSS or the Preferred Provider, as applicable, for the same, subject to
reasonable documentation of such expenses.
6. Customer Responsibilities. Customer will maintain on its staff at all times sufficient personnel that have been trained in and are
knowledgeable about the use of the Information System in a professional, efficient and competent manner. Customer is responsible for
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maintaining duplicate or back-up copies of its software, data files and documentation. HSS will have no liability for any damages
resulting from Customer’s failure to maintain such duplicate or back-up copies nor for any costs or expenses of reconstructing any such
data or information that may be destroyed, impaired or lost.
7. Exclusions. HSS’s obligations under the Agreement will not apply to any errors, defects or problems caused in whole or in part by
any of the following: (i) any modifications or enhancements made to any Proprietary Software, Certified Third Party Software or
Authorized Equipment by Customer or any third person or entity other than HSS or its designee; (ii) any software program, hardware,
firmware, peripheral or communication device used in connection with the Information System which was not approved in advance in
writing by HSS; (iii) the failure of Customer to follow the most current instructions promulgated by HSS or any third party vendor from
time to time with respect to the proper access or any use of the Information System; (iv) the failure of Customer to schedule regular
preventive maintenance in accordance with standard HSS procedures; (v) forces or supplies external to the Authorized Equipment,
including, without limitation, the reasons set forth in the force majeure provisions of the Agreement; and/or (vi) the negligence of
Customer or any other third person or entity. Any corrections performed by HSS for any such errors, difficulties, or defects will be fixed,
in HSS’s sole discretion, at HSS’s then current time and material charges. HSS will be under no obligation, however, to fix any such
Customer or externally caused errors, defects or problems.
8. Joinder Agreement. Schedules C contains the Joinder Agreement under which Customer can obtain products from Microsoft.
Customer is required to sign this agreement if it is obtaining any products from this Preferred Provider in connection with this Order
Document.
9. Request for Products or Services. The form to use when requesting additional products or services is contained in Schedule E –
Form of Request for Products or Services.
10. Notices. Questions and notices regarding this Order Document should be directed to:
The Attention of:
Address:

Telephone Number:
Email Address:

Scott Greenberg
Hilton Systems Solutions LLC
755 Crossover Lane
Memphis, Tennessee 38117
(901) 374-5510
Scott.Greenberg@hilton.com
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SCHEDULE A
SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE
1.
General. HSS may provide Customer with maintenance and support for Proprietary Software for the term of this Agreement,
commencing upon execution hereof.
2.
Use of Certified Third Party Software Only. Customer understands that the use of any software other than that provided by
HSS pursuant to this Agreement or pursuant to Customer’s Third Party PMS Agreement, unless such additional third party software has
been otherwise approved in writing by the HSS Information Technology Department (collectively, “Certified Software”), is not warranted
for use on the Authorized Equipment. In the event Customer uses or installs any third party software other than Certified Software on the
Authorized Equipment or uses equipment that is not Authorized Equipment, HSS shall have no further obligations to provide any Software
Maintenance services to Customer hereunder for Proprietary Software.
3.

Software Maintenance.
(a) Customer acknowledges and understands that HSS is unable to modify the Certified Third Party Software. HSS does not
provide support for Certified Third Party Software or for any software provided under the Third Party PMS Agreement. In the
event Customer notifies HSS of any condition which Customer believes constitutes a breach of any warranty provided by a third
party vendor or a defect in Certified Third Party Software provided hereunder, HSS shall, upon Customer’s request, provide
reasonable cooperation and assistance in notifying such third party vendor of such condition and in urging such third party
vendor to fix such condition.
(b) With respect to the Proprietary Software, provided Customer has paid for any Software Maintenance and other fees charged
hereunder and satisfied all other obligations under this Agreement and under Customer’s License Agreement, HSS shall supply
Customer with any standard enhancements, improvements, updates, and/or modifications to the Proprietary Software generally
made available by HSS as options or new releases to its Customers which are not charged for separately by HSS as options or
new releases (“Software Maintenance”). Such enhancements, improvements, updates, additions, and/or modifications which
are supplied by HSS to Customer, and all Intellectual Property Rights shall be HSS’ sole and exclusive property and shall be
deemed part of the Proprietary Software hereunder and shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement.
Customer acknowledges and agrees that it may be required to purchase some enhancements, improvements, updates, and/or
modifications to the Proprietary Software, which are charged for separately by HSS, as well as additional hardware and/or
software in order to utilize certain major upgrades or enhancements.

4.
Cooperation. Customer shall provide HSS with all information, data and other required materials necessary for HSS to replicate
any problem identified by Customer. Customer shall maintain for the term of this Agreement a modem and dial-up telephone line and a
facsimile machine or other electronic communication capability mutually acceptable to both parties to facilitate HSS’ ability to perform its
maintenance services remotely.
5.
Expenses. If service personnel incur travel, lodging, meal, or any other out of pocket expenses in furnishing any maintenance
services hereunder, Customer shall pay for or promptly reimburse HSS for same, subject to reasonable documentation of such expenses.
Customer shall also pay for all telephone toll charges incurred in providing maintenance and support hereunder.
6.
Proprietary Rights. Any changes, improvements, additions, and/or modifications to any of the Proprietary Software supplied
by HSS to Customer, and all proprietary rights therein, including without limitation copyrights, patents and trade secret rights, shall be
HSS’ sole and exclusive property, and all such software shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement.
7.
Hotline. HSS will provide, in accordance with its customary business practices and procedures, telephone customer service
support as reflected in this Schedule, for the purposes of receiving reports from Customer regarding software malfunctions subject to
maintenance hereunder. HSS may attempt, to the extent practical, to resolve any reported problems by telephone or by accessing
Customer’s equipment remotely.
8.
On-Site Services. In the event HSS is unable to resolve any reported problem by telephone or modem, HSS will dispatch
service personnel to Customer’s hotel site for the purpose of providing maintenance services hereunder at HSS’ standard rates and
charges.
9.
Cost and Payment Terms. Customer will be billed separately for certain services related to HSS' Help Desk ("Help Desk
Services"). The annual cost of Help Desk Services for Customer's hotel is $%INTLHelpYear%.
Customer will also be billed separately for certain enhancements provided by HSS in its discretion from time to time related to Information
System (“System Enhancements”). The annual cost of System Enhancements for Customer’s hotel is $%INTLSYSYEAR%, payable in
monthly installments of $%MONTH% per month. The fee for System Enhancements is not included under Schedule D (if applicable) or
otherwise under the terms of a HILTON Brand Division Program.
HSS reserves the right to increase or decrease the Software Maintenance cost, the cost of Help Desk Services, and/or the fee for System
Enhancements to reflect increases or decreases in such cost internally and from the Preferred Providers of such services and to reflect
the addition or construction of additional guest rooms (or suites) by Customer for Customer's hotel.
Even where Software Maintenance, support services or Help Desk Services are provided at no additional cost under Schedule D (if
applicable) or otherwise under the terms of a HILTON Division Brand Program, any travel expenses, per diem fees and related costs for
any such services that are provided on-site will be the responsibility of Customer and will be billed to Customer separately.
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SCHEDULE B-1
AUTHORIZED EQUIPMENT

The term “Authorized Equipment” includes the equipment needed (including its specifications and quantity) to operate
the software provided Customer for use with the Third Party PMS Products and the Software provided hereunder, all of
which must conform to standards provided by the supplier of the Third Party PMS Products and HSS.
1.
Authorized Equipment Purchased by Customer. Customer may purchase the Authorized Equipment from the
Preferred Provider of Customer’s choice or from another retailer; however, in all circumstances the Authorized Equipment
must conform to HSS’ specifications.
2.
Authorized Equipment As Personal Property. The Authorized Equipment will be at all times, personal property
which shall not, by reason of connection to Customer’s Hotel, become a fixture or appurtenance to the Hotel.
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SCHEDULE B-2
AUTHORIZED EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AND REFRESH

1.
Maintenance for the Authorized Equipment. Customer will take all steps necessary to provide throughout the term of this
Agreement all necessary maintenance services for the Authorized Equipment it purchases or leases and any and all of the other
equipment that HSS has approved for installation on Customer’s Information System. Customer has elected to enter into a separate
agreement with a Preferred Provider maintenance company or another maintenance company (“Maintenance Company”) selected by
Customer to provide maintenance services (“Equipment Maintenance”) for the Authorized Equipment.

2.
Refresh of Authorized Equipment. Under HSS’ refreshment program, Customer will be responsible for and will pay for all
fees and costs for the replacement or refreshment of the Authorized Equipment as identified in HSS’ sole discretion (“Refresh”) on an
approximate three (3) year cycle, starting approximately three (3) years after the initial shipment of such Authorized Equipment and for
the provision of maintenance services by the Maintenance Company on such refreshed equipment. The terms and conditions of the
Authorized Equipment maintenance services for such equipment (included in such initial Refresh and included in any additional Refresh
or Refreshes of Customer’s Authorized Equipment) will be the same as the terms and conditions of this Schedule, including, but not
limited to, the imposition of termination fees as described hereinafter. Customer's Refresh will be timed to occur prior to the end of the
approximate three (3) year cycle. If Customer fails to meet HSS's timeline for Refresh, including order dates for equipment and software,
Customer will be responsible for all fees and costs incident to such delay, including, without limitation, higher fees and costs for equipment
maintenance and software maintenance.
3.
Use of Certified Software Only. Customer understands that use of any software other than the Certified Software provided
by HSS pursuant to this Agreement, unless such additional third party software has been approved in writing by the HSS Information
Technology Department, is not warranted for use on the Authorized Equipment. In the event Customer uses or installs any third party
software other than Certified Software or such approved software on the Authorized Equipment, HSS will have no further obligations to
provide any Support Services to Customer.
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SCHEDULE C
MICROSOFT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT
This Participation Agreement is entered into by the party signing below (“you” or “Customer Affiliate”) for the benefit of the Microsoft
affiliate (“Microsoft” and “we”) and will be enforceable against you by Microsoft in accordance with its terms. You acknowledge that
Microsoft and Hilton Worldwide Inc. (“Customer”) have entered into Microsoft Enterprise Enrollment, No. 68436885 (the “agreement”),
under which you desire to sublicense certain Microsoft products. As used in this Participation Agreement, the term to “run” a product
means to copy, install, use, access, display, run or otherwise interact with it. You acknowledge that your right to run a copy of any
version of any product sublicensed under the agreement is governed by the applicable product use rights for the product and version
licensed as of the date you first run that copy. Such product use rights will be made available to you by the customer, or by publication
at a designated site on the World Wide Web, or by some other means. Microsoft does not transfer any ownership rights in any licensed
product and it reserves all rights not expressly granted.
1.

Acknowledgment and Agreement. You hereby acknowledge that you have obtained a copy of the product use rights located at
http://microsoft.com/licensing/resources/ applicable to the products acquired under the above-referenced agreement; you have read
and understood the terms and conditions as they relate to your obligations; and you agree to be bound by such terms and conditions,
as well as to the following provisions:
a.

Restrictions on use. You may not:
(i)

Separate the components of a product made up of multiple components by running them on different computers, by
upgrading or downgrading them at different times, or by transferring them separately, except as otherwise provided in the
product use rights;

(ii) Rent, lease, lend or host products, except where Microsoft agrees by separate agreement;
(iii) Reverse engineer, de-compile or disassemble products or fixes, except to the extent expressly permitted by applicable law
despite this limitation;
Products, fixes and service deliverables licensed under this agreement (including any license or services agreement
incorporating these terms) are subject to U.S. export jurisdiction. You must comply with all domestic and international export
laws and regulations that apply to the products, fixes and service deliverables. Such laws include restrictions on destinations,
end-user, and end-use for additional information, see http://www.microsoft.com/exporting/.
b.

Limited product warranty. Microsoft warrants that each version of a commercial product will perform substantially in
accordance with its user documentation. This warranty is valid for a period of one year from the date you first run a copy of the
version. To the maximum extent permitted by law, any warranties imposed by law concerning the products are limited to the
same extent and the same one year period. This warranty does not apply to components of products which you are permitted
to redistribute under applicable product use rights, or if failure of the product has resulted from accident, abuse or misapplication.
If you notify Microsoft within the warranty period that a product does not meet this warranty, then Microsoft will, at its option,
either (1) return the price paid for the product or (2) repair or replace the product. To the maximum extent permitted by law, this
is your exclusive remedy for any failure of any commercial product to function as described in this paragraph.

c.

Free and beta products. To the maximum extent permitted by law, free and beta products, if any, are provided “as-is,” without
any warranties. You acknowledge that the provisions of this paragraph with regard to pre-release and beta products are
reasonable having regard to, among other things, the fact that they are provided prior to commercial release so as to give you
the opportunity (earlier than you would otherwise have) to assess their suitability for your business, and without full and complete
testing by Microsoft.

d.

NO OTHER WARRANTIES. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, MICROSOFT DISCLAIMS AND
EXCLUDES ALL REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR
STATUTORY, OTHER THAN THOSE IDENTIFIED EXPRESSLY IN THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION
WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, SATISFACTORY QUALITY, MERCHANTABILITY AND
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WITH RESPECT TO THE PRODUCTS AND RELATED MATERIALS.
MICROSOFT WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY PRODUCTS PROVIDED BY THIRD PARTY VENDORS, DEVELOPERS OR
CONSULTANTS IDENTIFIED OR REFERRED TO YOU BY MICROSOFT UNLESS SUCH THIRD PARTY PRODUCTS ARE
PROVIDED UNDER WRITTEN AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU AND MICROSOFT, AND THEN ONLY TO THE EXTENT
EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN SUCH AGREEMENT.

e.

Defense of infringement and misappropriation claims. We will defend you against any claims, made by an unaffiliated third
party, that any commercial product, fix or service deliverable infringes its patent, copyright or trademark or misappropriates its
trade secret, and will pay the amount of any resulting adverse final judgment (or settlement to which we consent):
You must notify us promptly in writing of the claim and give us sole control over its defense or settlement. You agree to provide
us with reasonable assistance in defending the claim, and we will reimburse you for reasonable out of pocket expenses that you
incur in providing that assistance. The terms “misappropriation” and “trade secret” are used as defined in the Uniform Trade
Secrets Act, except in the case of claims arising under any license agreement governed by the laws of any jurisdiction outside
the United States, in which case “misappropriation” will mean intentionally unlawful use and “trade secret” will mean “undisclosed
information” as specified in Article 39.2 of the TRIPs agreement.
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Our obligations will not apply to the extent that the claim or adverse final judgment is based on (i) your running of the product or
fix after we notify you to discontinue running due to such a claim; (ii) your combining the product or fix with a non-Microsoft
product, data or business process; (iii) damages attributable to the value of the use of a non-Microsoft product, data or business
process; (iv) your altering the product or fix; (v) your distribution of the product or fix, or its use for the benefit of, any third party;
(vi) your use of our trademark(s) without express written consent to do so; or (vii) for any trade secret claim, your acquiring a
trade secret (a) through improper means; (b) under circumstances giving rise to a duty to maintain its secrecy or limit its use; or
(c) from a person (other than us or our affiliates) who owed to the party asserting the claim a duty to maintain the secrecy or limit
the use of the trade secret. You will reimburse us for any costs or damages that result from these actions.
If we receive information concerning an infringement claim related to a commercial product or fix, we may, at our expense and
without obligation to do so, either (i) procure for you the right to continue to run the allegedly infringing product or fix, or (ii) modify
the product or fix or replace it with a functional equivalent, to make it non-infringing, in which case you will stop running the
allegedly infringing product or fix immediately. If, as a result of an infringement claim, your use of a commercial product or fix is
enjoined by a court of competent jurisdiction, we will, at our option, either procure the right to continue its use, replace it with a
functional equivalent, modify it to make it non-infringing, or refund the amount paid and terminate the license for the infringing
product or fix.
If any other type of third party claim is brought against you regarding our intellectual property, you must notify us promptly in
writing. We may, at our option, choose to treat these claims as being covered by this section. This Section e provides your
exclusive remedy for third party infringement and trade secret misappropriation claims.
f.

Limitation of liability. There may be situations in which you have a right to claim damages or payment from Microsoft. Except
as otherwise specifically provided in this paragraph, whatever the legal basis for your claim, Microsoft’s liability will be limited, to
the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, to direct damages up to the amount you have paid for the product giving rise
to the claim. In the case of free product, or code you are authorized to redistribute to third parties without separate payment to
Microsoft, Microsoft’s total liability to you will not exceed US$5000, or its equivalent in local currency. The limitations contained
in this paragraph will not apply with respect to the following in connection with the performance of the agreement:
(i) our obligations to defend third party claims of patent, copyright or trademark infringement or trade secret misappropriation,
and to pay damages resulting from any final adjudication (or settlement to which we consent) of such claims;
(ii) our liability for damages for gross negligence or willful misconduct, to the extent caused by us or our agent and awarded by
a court of final adjudication; and

g.

No liability for certain damages. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, neither you, your affiliates or suppliers,
nor Microsoft, its affiliates or suppliers will be liable for any indirect damages (including, without limitation, consequential, special
or incidental damages, damages for loss of profits or revenues, business interruption, or loss of business information) arising in
connection with any agreement, product, or fix, even if advised of the possibility of such damages or if such possibility was
reasonably foreseeable. This exclusion of liability does not apply to either party’s liability to the other for violation of the other
party’s intellectual property rights.

h.

Application. The limitations on and exclusions of liability for damages set forth herein apply regardless of whether the liability
is based on breach of contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability, breach of warranties, or any other legal theory.

i.

Verifying compliance. You must keep records relating to the products you run. Microsoft has the right to verify compliance
with these terms and any applicable product use rights, at its expense, during the term of the enrollment and for a period of one
year thereafter. To do so, Microsoft will engage an independent accountant from a nationally recognized public accounting firm,
which will be subject to a confidentiality obligation. Verification will take place upon not fewer than 30 days notice, during normal
business hours and in a manner that does not interfere unreasonably with your operations. As an alternative, Microsoft may
require you to accurately complete its self-audit questionnaire relating to the products you use. If verification or self-audit reveals
unlicensed use of products, you must promptly order sufficient licenses to permit all product usage disclosed. If material
unlicensed use is found (license shortage of 5% or more), you must reimburse Microsoft for the costs it has incurred in verification
and acquire the necessary additional licenses as single retail licenses within 30 days. If Microsoft undertakes such verification
and does not find material unlicensed use of products, it will not undertake another such verification for at least one year.
Microsoft and its auditors will use the information obtained in compliance verification only to enforce its rights and to determine
whether you are in compliance with these terms and the product use rights. By invoking the rights and procedures described
above, Microsoft does not waive its rights to enforce these terms or the product use rights, or to protect its intellectual property
by any other means permitted by law.

j.

Dispute Resolution; Applicable Law. This Participation Agreement will be governed and construed in accordance with the
laws of the jurisdiction whose law governs the agreement. You consent to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the state and
federal courts located in such jurisdiction. This choice of jurisdiction does not prevent either party from seeking injunctive relief
with respect to a violation of intellectual property rights in any appropriate jurisdiction. The 1980 United Nations Convention on
Contracts for the International Sale of Goods and its related instruments will not apply to this agreement or any license entered
into with Microsoft or its affiliates under this agreement.

Your violation of the above-referenced terms and conditions will be deemed to be a breach of this Participation Agreement and will be
grounds for immediate termination of all rights granted hereunder.
Dated as of ________________.
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CUSTOMER AFFILIATE:

%LegalEntity%
By:
Name:
Title:
Date:
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SCHEDULE D
TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM LICENSE AGREEMENT
FOR USE WITH THE THIRD PARTY PMS AGREEMENT
This Technology Program License Agreement (this “Technology Program Agreement”) for use with Third Party PMS Agreement is
entered into as of the Effective Date defined herein between Hilton Systems Solutions, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“HSS”)
and %LegalEntity% (the “Customer”) for Customer’s Hotel (the “Hotel”) known as %PropertyName% and located at
%PropertyAddress2% %PropertyZip% %PropertyCity% %PropertyCountryDesc%.
In connection with the Information Technology Systems Agreement for use with Third Party PMS Agreement (the “HITS
Agreement”) entered into between HSS and Customer (and if applicable, in anticipation of the Hotel’s conversion and rebranding as a
Hilton Brand Hotel), HSS is willing to make certain benefits available to Customer for the above Hotel under the Technology Program
(the “Technology Program”), on the terms, conditions and limitations hereinafter set forth. This Technology Program Agreement is part
of, and incorporated by reference into, the HITS Agreement.
. For good, valuable and sufficient consideration, Customer hereby enters into this Technology Program Agreement, and HSS
and Customer agree as follows:
1.
Customer’s Benefits. The following benefits are provided to Customer by HSS during the term of this Technology Program
Agreement:
a) Third Party Property Management System. As an alternative to Customer’s use of HSS’ OnQ® Property Management
Technology, Customer has entered into a Third Party PMS Agreement for the use of a Third Party PMS Products at Customer’s Hotel.
The Technology Program shall cover the specifically set forth license fees and maintenance fees applicable to the Hotel for the Third
Party PMS Products licensed or sublicensed to Customer by the third party pursuant to Customer’s Third Party PMS Agreement and the
terms and conditions set forth therein. The payment of the fees for the Hotel’s Technology Program is determined as follows:
i)
For all hotels that are not full service brand hotels (currently, Hampton by Hilton and Hilton Garden Inn hotels)
but the operations are managed for Customer by an affiliate of HSS through a Management Agreement, the payment of the fees
for the Hotel’s Technology Program (other than any fees for the software license or Software Maintenance for the Revenue
Management System described below) are paid for through the Group Services Benefit Program for such managed hotels.
ii)
For all hotels that are operated by Customer under a Franchise License Agreement, the fees for the Hotel’s
Technology Program are paid for through such hotel’s brand division program.
HSS and the Technology Program shall have no other obligations to Customer regarding any software, equipment and/or
services provided pursuant to Customer’s Third Party PMS Agreement or installation, system conversion, implementation, verification,
data conversion or recovery or other services or costs, regardless of cause. For certain hotels, HSS may recommend Oracle Hospitality
as the supplier of the Third Party PMS Products; if so, a sample Oracle Hospitality Agreement may be attached hereto.
Customer will be responsible for the cost of any services necessary for the installation of the above Third Party PMS Products,
any system or data conversions or restorations required, and for the implementation and verification of the proper functioning of Third
Party PMS Products on Customer’s equipment. The cost of such services and the travel costs for any on-site services will be billed in
accordance with Customer’s Third Party PMS Agreement and/or this Agreement, as appropriate.
b) Revenue Management System. HSS will provide the license fees for certain revenue management system software
needed for the operation of Customer’s hotel, as determined by HSS in its sole discretion. For hotels operated by Customer under a
Franchise License Agreement only, HSS may recommend specific revenue management system software; if so, a sample agreement
may be provided to Customer..
Customer will be responsible for the cost of any services necessary for the installation of any revenue management system
software and for the implementation and verification of the proper functioning of such revenue management system software on
Customer’s equipment. The cost of such services and the travel costs for any on-site services will be billed separately by HSS or the
Preferred Provider and payable by Customer.
c) Electronic Mail. HSS will provide the license fees for electronic mail limited to the number of licenses specified by the Hilton
brand division for Customer’s hotel.
d) Software Maintenance Fees. The Technology Program covers Customer’s Software Maintenance fees relative to the
Proprietary Software Modules described above. Fees for System Enhancements, travel expenses, per diem fees and related costs for
any on-site Software Maintenance are the responsibility of Customer and shall be billed separately to and payable by Customer.
e) Help Desk. For Proprietary Software only, the Technology Program will cover the cost of HSS' Help Desk (telephone
customer service support) for certain remote reporting and diagnostic services offered in accordance with HSS' customary business
practices and procedures. Provided Customer maintains recommended modem, dial-up telephone line, facsimile machine or other
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electronic communication vehicles acceptable to HSS to facilitate the operation of the Help Desk, HSS may perform the above services
and may perform certain equipment maintenance services remotely through the Help Desk for any equipment provided by HSS
hereunder. Any travel expenses, per diem fees and related costs that might result from on-site Help Desk Services will be the
responsibility of Customer and will be billed to Customer separately.
2.

Customer’s Obligations. In consideration of the benefits provided by HSS herein, Customer shall:
a)

Perform all of its obligations hereunder and under the HITS Agreement

b)
Pay any and all shipping duties and all Taxes (as defined in the HITS Agreement) on any and all software, equipment
or services provided under this Technology Program Agreement. Customer also specifically agrees to pay any and all personal property
taxes associated with any and all software or equipment provided under this Technology Program Agreement.
c)

Pay for all telephone toll charges incurred in providing maintenance and support hereunder.

d)

Prevent any liens from attaching to any and all software or equipment provided hereunder.

e)
Not allow any other software to be added to Customer’s information system, other than software provided pursuant to
Customer’s Third Party PMS Agreement, Proprietary Software Modules and Certified Third Party Software, without prior specific written
permission of HSS.
3.
Customer’s Conditions. All benefits provided Customer herein and all obligations of HSS under this Technology Program
Agreement are expressly subject to and conditioned upon the following:
a)
Customer is not, and continues not to be, in default of any agreement with HSS or any of its affiliates or subsidiaries,
or any Brand division, including, but not limited to, this Technology Program Agreement, the HITS Agreement and Customer’s
Relationship Agreement with Hilton Domestic Operating Company, Inc. (“HDOC”) or its affiliate or subsidiary.
b)
Customer continues to make all other payments to HSS or HSS’ Preferred Providers or other ITP’s under any applicable
agreements and does not become in default under such agreements.
c)
Customer’s Hotel remains (after conversion and rebranding if applicable) in one of the following Hilton Brand Divisions:
Waldorf Astoria, Conrad, Hilton, Doubletree by Hilton, Hilton Garden Inn or Hampton Inn by Hilton.
d)
Customer has executed the HITS Agreement or executes the HITS Agreement contemporaneously with this
Technology Program Agreement.
4.
Termination and Termination Fees. HSS may terminate all of HSS' obligations under this Technology Program Agreement at
HSS’ option: (a) Immediately without notice in event of breach of Customer’s obligations or conditions set forth in Sections 2 and 3 above,
or (b) at any time, with or without cause, upon not less than ninety (90) days advance written notice to Customer. Any default by Customer
under this Technology Program Agreement shall constitute a default by Customer under the HITS Agreement and in such event, HSS
may exercise any of its rights provided under the HITS Agreement. Any default by Customer under the HITS Agreement shall constitute
a default and breach of condition by Customer under this Technology Program Agreement. Termination of the HITS Agreement will result
in termination of this Technology Program Agreement. HSS may terminate this Technology Program Agreement without terminating the
HITS Agreement, whereupon the HITS Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if this Technology Program Agreement had never
been entered into (subject to accrued rights and obligations).
Upon termination, Customer shall pay to HSS termination fees which are designed to reimburse HSS in part for unamortized
costs under this Technology Program Agreement. The termination fees shall be an amount equal to a percentage of the annual Gross
Room Revenue (as defined in Customer’s Franchise Agreement or, if none, Customer’s Management Agreement) determined by the
percentage listed below according to the number of years from Start Date to date of termination applicable to Customer’s Hotel.
Percentage of annual Gross Room Revenues due as termination fee as follows:

5.

Year 1

1.00%

Year 2

0.85%

Year 3

0.70%

Year 4

0.55%

Year 5

0.45%

Thereafter

0.30%

Additional Software. Additional Certified Third Party Software may be licensed by Customer.

6.
Defined Terms. All capitalized terms used in this Technology Program Agreement which are not specially defined in this
Technology Program Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the HITS Agreement.
7.
Other Important Provisions. The parties mutually acknowledge and agree this Technology Program Agreement is a schedule
to the HITS Agreement and that this Technology Program Agreement and its performance by the parties are a part of the transactions
contemplated by the HITS Agreement. In the event of conflict between the provisions of this Technology Program Agreement and the
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provisions of the HITS Agreement, the provisions of this Technology Program Agreement shall prevail. Except as modified herein, all
provisions of the HITS Agreement applicable to the Proprietary Software or Certified Third Party Software and Services are applicable to
the equipment, software, and services described herein or provided hereunder. Where HSS or Hilton is providing software or services
instead of such items being provided by another Preferred Provider, HSS or Hilton shall be entitled to all of the protections and the
limitations of warranties, liabilities and damages provided any other Preferred Provider. Except as the context may otherwise require, all
references to “this Agreement” in these incorporated provisions shall, for purposes of this Technology Program Agreement, be construed
to include this Technology Program Agreement.
8.
Notices. The notice provisions of the HITS Agreement shall apply to all notices, requests, demands and other communications
under this Technology Program Agreement.
9.
Counterparts. This Technology Program Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall
constitute one and the same instrument.
Effective Date: The effective date (“Effective Date”) shall be the date signed by HSS.
CUSTOMER:

%LegalEntity%

By:

HILTON SYSTEMS SOLUTIONS, LLC
By:

Authorized Signature

Authorized Signature

Print Name:

Print Name:

Title:

Title:

Date:

Date:

Shannon Knox

Vice President, IT Field Services & Strategic
Sourcing
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ATTACHMENT L (1)
NETWORK AUTHORIZED (PROGRAM FUNDED) EQUIPMENT

%NetAuthEquip1%

4
INTL OnQ HITS
MR 022217

Inn Code/Project: %InnCodeProj% Version: %Version%

SCHEDULE E / H
FORM OF REQUEST FOR PRODUCTS OR SERVICES

Date: %CreationDate%
INNCODE: %InnCode%
INNCODE Address: %PropertyAddress1%, %PropertyAddress2%, %PropertyZip%, %PropertyCity%,
%PropertyCountryDesc%.
Name of Customer: %LegalEntity%
Address of Customer: %PrimaryContactContractAddress2%, %PrimaryContactZip%, %PrimaryContactCity%,
%PrimaryContactCountry%.

Dear: %Salutation%
This Letter Agreement (“Letter Agreement”) confirms your request to purchase, lease, use, license or sublicense
(“Acquire”) additional software and/or services in order to add options, features and/or systems (“Additions”) to the
Information System, and will constitute an amendment to the existing Hilton Information Technology System Agreement
previously entered into between (“Customer”) and Hilton Systems Solutions, LLC (“HSS”) dated %ExecuteDayName%,
%ExecuteMonthName%, %ExecuteYearName% (the “Agreement”).
It is agreed that you will Acquire the Additions and that you will be billed by HSS or the applicable vendor for the Additions,
as listed below. The effective date of billing on the new items will be the date the equipment is shipped, the date upon
which you Acquire the Additions, and/or the date upon which you request the Additions, whichever is earliest.
%StdPlusEquipINTL%
Total: %StdPlusTotal%
Total Maintenance: %StdPlusMaintTotal%

The prices shown above exclude taxes, travel expenses, per diem fees, related costs, insurance and shipping.
Special Note:

%ProjectComments%

Travel Expenses / Per Diem Fees/Rescheduling
If the Additions require travel by HSS and/or the applicable vendor, you will pay for or promptly reimburse any travel
expenses, per diem fees and related costs of Hilton Domestic Operating Company Inc. (“HDOC”), HSS, any vendor
hereunder or their designees, including without limitation: round-trip airfare (due to frequent scheduling changes, HSS is
often unable to book airline tickets more than one week in advance of travel); single room accommodations (if the Hotel
cannot provide accommodations, comparable accommodations will be utilized); meals; ground transportation (all ground
transportation required to get to and from the Hotel as well as transportation used during HSS’ representatives’ stay at the
Hotel); tips; taxes; and miscellaneous expenses (including phone, internet, laundry, etc.)
Promptly following HSS’ providing of the services described in this schedule where not previously paid for or reimbursed by
hotel, an invoice will be submitted to Customer for HSS’ representatives’ out-of-pocket expenses, any additional per diem
charges for its representatives, any re-scheduling fee, and any additional travel expenses as described herein, which invoice
will be payable within fifteen days of Customer’s receipt of same.
Notes:
If Customer attaches or uses third party equipment and/or interfaces with the Authorized Equipment which have not been
certified or approved by HSS as meeting HSS’ specifications and/or does not conform to the standards provided by the
supplier of the third party products or if Customer installs other third party non-HSS proprietary software which has not been
certified or approved by HSS as meeting HSS’ specifications on the equipment or that does not conform to the standards
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provided by the supplier of the third party products, the software may need to be reconfigured and the entire cost of the
reconfiguration will be borne by Customer.
All fees indicated are exclusive of applicable taxes (see Agreement sections on taxes). Unless otherwise specified by
HSS in writing, Customer will make all payments in United States dollars to HSS or any other party designated by HSS in
its sole discretion.
Customer will pay according to the terms of any invoice(s) submitted to Customer therefore, including any provision for
late charges, the fee for the installation of any telephone line(s) or wide area network connection(s) necessary for
connection of the Authorized Equipment.
Customer will purchase and replace, from any source, paper, ribbons, printer maintenance kits, toner and such other
operating supplies as will be required for the operation of the Authorized Equipment, but Customer will utilize only such
brands as are approved by HSS or the Authorized Equipment manufacturer.
Upon HSS’ receipt of a copy of this Letter Agreement signed by a duly authorized representative of Customer, the
Agreement will be deemed to have been automatically amended to incorporate the items of this Letter Agreement.
Customer agrees that Customer’s delivery to HSS by facsimile transmission of this Letter Agreement will be deemed to be
as effective for all purposes as hand delivery of the manually executed Letter Agreement and that the terms of this Letter
Agreement will be binding upon Customer without the necessity of any further action by HSS. This Letter Agreement will
be effective as of the date inserted by Customer below.
Customer may be required to sign additional license agreements with the vendors or licensors of Certified Third Party
Software.
Certain Other Equipment (for orders of $5,000 or greater) may be leased by Customer. Any such leases will be entered
into between Customer and the applicable lessor. Neither HSS nor Hilton will be a party to such leases.
In addition to any other specific purchase terms required by a retailer of the Additions, the following purchase terms and
conditions will apply to any Other Equipment obtained from a Preferred Provider (as that term is defined in the Agreement.
The Other Equipment will be at all times, personal property which will not, by reason of connection to the Hotel, become a
fixture or appurtenance to the Hotel, and until such time as Customer or its designated third party pays to the Preferred
Provider the total sum for the Other Equipment as required hereunder, the Other Equipment will remain the property of the
Preferred Provider, and title will remain with the Preferred Provider, free from any claims of Customer or the holder of any
lien or encumbrance on the Hotel and/or any other property of Customer. Customer will maintain fire, extended coverage,
vandalism, and malicious mischief insurance on the Other Equipment. Said insurance will name HSS as an additional
insured. For so long as this obligation remains in effect, Customer will furnish to HSS a certificate of the insurance carrier
describing the terms and coverage of the insurance in force, the persons insured, and the fact that the coverage may not
be canceled, altered or permitted to lapse or expire without thirty (30) days advance written notice to HSS. Upon payment
in full, title to the Other Equipment will vest in the Customer and will be free and clear of the above requirements relating
to insurance and of all of the Preferred Provider’s liens, claims and encumbrances and the Other Equipment will become
the sole property of Customer.
NEITHER THE AUTHORIZED EQUIPMENT NOR THE PROPRIETARY SOFTWARE OR CERTIFIED THIRD PARTY
SOFTWARE WILL BE SHIPPED, NOR WILL CUSTOMER HAVE USE OF THE PROPRIETARY SOFTWARE MODULE
OR ANY EQUIPMENT LISTED IN THIS LETTER AGREEMENT UNTIL HSS RECEIVES A COPY OF THIS LETTER
AGREEMENT SIGNED BY CUSTOMER.
To indicate Customer’s acceptance of this Letter Agreement, please have it signed by an authorized representative of
Customer and return it to me. Upon HSS’ receipt of the executed Letter Agreement, you will be advised of the shipment
and installation dates.
If you have any questions, please contact me at %PSAConsultantPhone%.

Sincerely,
%PSAConsultantName%
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Hilton Systems Solutions, LLC

Accepted and Agreed:
Customer Name:
%LegalEntity%

By:

By:
Authorized Signature

Print Name:

Shannon Knox

Signature
Print Name and Title:
Effective Date:
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EXHIBIT H

STATEMENT OF DELIVERY
AND RECEIPT
HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED
HILTON HOTELS & RESORTS
THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT SUMMARIZES CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND OTHER INFORMATION. READ THIS FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND ALL AGREEMENTS CAREFULLY.
IF HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED OFFERS YOU A FRANCHISE, YOU MUST BE
PROVIDED WITH THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AT LEAST TEN DAYS
BEFORE YOU SIGN THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT OR PRELIMINARY FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT, OR PAY ANY KIND OF FEE TO HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED OR
TO A COMPANY OR INDIVIDUAL RELATED TO HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED.
This Franchise Disclosure Document includes the following Exhibits:
Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C
Exhibit D
Exhibit D-1
Exhibit D-2
Exhibit E
Exhibit F
Exhibit G
Exhibit H

List of Franchisees as of December 31, 2018
List of Franchisees Terminated, Canceled, Not Renewed or with Changes
in Controlling Interest in 2018
Financial Statements
Franchise Agreement and Addendum
Development Incentive Note
Eforea Spa Amendment
Guaranty of Franchise Agreement
Hotel Project Application
Information Technology System Agreement (HITS Agreement)
Receipts

I acknowledge that I have received the Franchise Disclosure Document dated July 31, 2019,
as required by LAW NO. 8.995 OF BRAZIL.
PROPOSED LICENSEE:
Name of Proposed Licensee: ____________________________________
By: _____________________
(Signature)
Name: __________________
Its: _____________________
Date: ___________________
OTHER:
Printed Name

Signature

Date

(1)
(2)
RETURN ONE COPY OF THIS RECEIPT TO:
LOCATION OF PROPOSED HOTEL:
{018316-999987 00275160.DOCX; 1}

2019 Brazil FDD Hilton

STATEMENT OF DELIVERY
AND RECEIPT
HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED
HILTON HOTELS & RESORTS
THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT SUMMARIZES CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND OTHER INFORMATION. READ THIS FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND ALL AGREEMENTS CAREFULLY.
IF HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED OFFERS YOU A FRANCHISE, YOU MUST BE
PROVIDED WITH THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AT LEAST TEN DAYS
BEFORE YOU SIGN THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT OR PRELIMINARY FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT, OR PAY ANY KIND OF FEE TO HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED OR
TO A COMPANY OR INDIVIDUAL RELATED TO HILTON WORLDWIDE MANAGE LIMITED.
This Franchise Disclosure Document includes the following Exhibits:
Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C
Exhibit D
Exhibit D-1
Exhibit D-2
Exhibit E
Exhibit F
Exhibit G
Exhibit H

List of Franchisees as of December 31, 2018
List of Franchisees Terminated, Canceled, Not Renewed or with Changes in
Controlling Interest in 2018
Financial Statements
Franchise Agreement and Addendum
Development Incentive Note
Eforea Spa Amendment
Guaranty of Franchise Agreement
Hotel Project Application
Information Technology System Agreement (HITS Agreement)
Receipts

I acknowledge that I have received the Franchise Disclosure Document dated July 31, 2019,
as required by LAW NO. 8.995 OF BRAZIL.
PROPOSED LICENSEE:
Name of Proposed Licensee: ____________________________________
By: _____________________
(Signature)
Name: __________________
Its: _____________________
Date: ___________________
OTHER:
Printed Name

Signature

Date

(1)
(2)
RETURN ONE COPY OF THIS RECEIPT TO:
LOCATION OF PROPOSED HOTEL:
{018316-999987 00275160.DOCX; 1}

2019 Brazil FDD Hilton

